
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING 

JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
JUNE 13, 2016 - 5:30 PM 

 
The Board of Commissioners will meet at the Town Hall and then travel to The Fountains at Matthews (10624 
Parrish Street, Matthews) to tour the apartment complex and discuss multifamily design and development.  
 

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

JUNE 13, 2016 - 7:00 PM 
 

 
1. Regular Meeting Called to Order 

 
2. Invocation 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4. Items to be Added to the Agenda 
 
5. Recess Regular Meeting for Public Hearings 

 
A. FY 2016-17 Budget 

 
B. Storm Water Fees 

 
C. Application to Amend the Unified Development Ordinance: 2016-645/Sportsplex: To change the 

zoning from R-20 to ENT District on that certain property commonly referred to as the 
SPORTSPLEX and being designated as 2425 Sports Parkway, 1601 and 1585 Tank Town Road, 
and further identified as tax parcels 215-081- 15, 215-231-01 and -02. 

 
6. Reconvene Regular Meeting 

 
7. Planning and Development Business 

 
A. Planning and Zoning Related Actions: 

 
1) Motion 2015-3: Consider the Downtown Streetscape Improvement Plan 

 
2) Application 2016-643/Primrose School: to change the zoning from I-1 to O(CD) on that 

certain property designated as 720 Park Center Drive and further designated as Tax Parcel 
193-243-07 for a proposed development of a child daycare facility. 

   
8. Public Comment (Please sign in to speak at this time. Limited to 4 minutes.) 

 

 



9. Reports from Boards/Committees 
 

A. Historic Preservation Advisory Committee - minutes 
 

10. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Approve Minutes of the May 23, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting 

B. Approve Police Department Request to Solicit Donations on Behalf of the Special Olympics of 

North Carolina on Saturday, June 18, 2016 

C. Approve Changes to Historic Preservation Advisory Committee Bylaws 

D. Accept Zoning Application 2016-646; Cross and Crown Lutheran Church; 1024 Pineville-

Matthews Road; for a Change in R/I(CD) Zoning Conditions to Allow a 120' Stealth Cell Tower 

(Bell Tower) and Set Public Hearing for July 11, 2016 

E. Accept Zoning Application 2016-648; J Pressley; 352 East Charles Street; from R-12 to O(CD) 

and Set Public Hearing for August 8, 2016 

F. Approve Tax Refunds 

G. Approve Budget Ordinance Amendments to Recognize: 

1) FEMA Grant in the Amount of $21,600.00 

2) Controlled Substance Tax Assessment Revenues in the Amount of $5,447.50 

3) Donations Received for DARE Program in the Amount of $560.00 

4) Court-Ordered Restitution in the Amount of $38.00 

5) Court-Ordered Restitution in the Amount of $256.50 

6) SAFER Incentive Grants from FEMA for Fire/EMS in the Amount of $91,990.00 

H.  Approve Proclamation for Bee City USA National Pollinator Week 

 

11. New Business 

A. Consider Fee Schedule Changes  

B. Adopt FY 2016-17 General Fund and Tourism Budget Ordinance, Capital Outlay/Equipment Plan 

and Fee Schedule  

 
12. Mayor’s Report 

 
13. Attorney’s Report 

 
14. Town Manager’s Report 

      
15. Adjournment 

 



Matthews FY 
2016-17 
Budget 
HAZEN BLODGETT, TOWN MANAGER          
JUNE 13, 2016 



Strategic Framework & 
Budget 

 Quality of Life Goal: “To maintain our small 
town identity by providing a vibrant 
downtown, pedestrian friendly community, 
extensive greenspace system, and 
recreational and cultural activities.” 
 

 Parks, Recreation, & Cultural Resources Department: 
Special Events continue to be Successful 

 Red Brick Partnership success continues to build 
 Downtown Streetscape Plan/Pedestrian Friendly Aspect 
 Opening of new community garden at Purser-Hulsey 

Park 



Strategic Framework & 
Budget 

 Communications Goal: “To create an 
informed citizenry by providing relevant 
information about the Town and enhancing 
two way communications using traditional 
techniques and new technologies.” 

 Communications Plan Implementation ongoing:  
social media, direct mail for special events, e-
blasts, press releases 

 Website has been rebuilt with new vendor – 
Municipal CMS (Tourism Funds) 

 First installment of “Matthews 101” a success – 13 
participants 

 Ongoing citizen academies at police/fire depts 
 

 



Strategic Framework & 
Budget 

 Transportation Goal: “To identify, plan, 
design, fund, and build transportation 
facilities that efficiently and effectively serve 
the community in a cost effective and 
environmentally sensitive manner.” 

 
 Public Works Department:  S. Trade Street Project is 

nearly complete, Charles Buckley Way project 
completed, N.C. 51/Matthews-Mint Hill Superstreet 
completed, Campus Ridge project upcoming 

 Continuous planning for U.S. 74 express lanes, Silver 
Line, John Street widening, Weddington Rd/I-485, 
McKee Road “A”, Composite Bike/Ped plan 

 Continue CRTPO, MTC participation and leadership 
 



Strategic Framework & 
Budget 

 Public Safety Goal: “To provide the necessary 
trained personnel, equipment, and 
procedures to ensure the safety of Matthews’ 
citizens and enhance the Town’s reputation 
for safety.”  

 Police Department: maintain all sworn positions; 8 
replacement police vehicles & equipment; continue 
Citizen Observer program 

 Replacement fire truck programmed in CIP for Idlewild 
VFD;  Explorer Program continues to be successful 

 Fire & EMS Department: grants  for volunteer incentives 
continue. 



Strategic Framework & 
Budget 

 Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
Goal: “To enhance the quality of life of the 
citizens by aggressively pursuing a balanced 
tax base by targeting businesses that will 
contribute sustainable, environmentally 
sensitive development and by planning for 
orderly growth and development.” 

 Economic Development: Red Brick Partnership, The 
Quad, EDAC 

 Planning & Development Department: Bike/Ped 
Composite Plan, E. John Street Small Area Plan, ENT 
District 



Strategic Framework & 
Budget 

 Operational Performance Goal: “To plan, 
allocate resources, and operate all 
departments effectively and efficiently in 
order to meet the citizens’ needs for local 
government services.” 

 
 Service Excellence Initiative continues  
 Diversity Training to be completed 
 Retain/Recruit Professional Staff – “People Are Our 

Business” – Our people serve the people of 
Matthews  
 
 



Strategic Framework & 
Budget 

 Financial Performance Goal: “To provide 
financial resources in a prudent and 
responsible manner through traditional and 
alternative sources of revenue, effective 
budgeting, and cost control with a focus on 
maintaining a healthy fund balance.” 

 Conservative Budgeting Continues  
 No Proposed Use of Fund Balance in FY 16-17 

Annual Budget 
 GFOA Excellence in Financial Reporting Award – 

18 consecutive years  
 Progress continues to be made on growing Fund 

Balance percent 
 
 
 

 

 



FY 15-16 Budget Recap 
 Department budgets continued to reflect restraints 

due to limited revenues. 
 Property tax rate was increased 2.5 cents – 1.5 

cents for the South Trade Street bond, 1 cent for loss 
of business license and revaluation. 

 Fee Increases in Planning & Development and 
Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource 

 No Fund Balance Appropriated (FBA) 
 

 
 



FY 16-17 Budget Overview 
 Town’s strategic framework and departments’ strategic 

plans guide  the budget development process.  
 This budget invests in our people & the resources we 

need to maintain all of the services we offer our citizens. 
 Department budgets reflect conservative budgets, 

maintaining  service levels. 
 Property Tax Rate – No Proposed Increase  
 Proposed increase in storm water fees. Additional 

revenue will go to Storm Water Division. 
 Minor Fee increase (Planning & Development)  
 No Fund Balance Appropriated (FBA) 
  



FY 16-17 Budget Overview 
2016-17 General Fund Budget    
$20,693,049 
 
 
2015-16 General Fund Budget 
$20,646,716  
 
 



Tax Rate History 
2008  .3075 
2009  .3325 
2010  .3325 
2011  .3325  
2012  .3025 
2013  .3025 
2014      .3175 
2015      .3175 
2016      .34 

 
 

 



Town’s FY 16-17 
 Revenue Sources 

 

 Property Taxes – 58% 
 Sales Taxes – 14%  
 State Shared Revenues – 11% 
 Other (Powell Bill, permits, fees, etc.) – 17% 
 
 
 

 



FY 16-17 Budget Pressures 

 
Pressure on Operations Due to 
Increases in Cost of Doing Business 
 
 
 



FY 16-17 Budget Pressures 

 
• Stagnant or reduced revenue sources 

•Debt payment (Levine Senior Center) 

 

 

 
 

 



Investment in People/Resources 
 
 
 

 
 
 
3%  Salary Increase Pool for 
Employees 
 
 
Lower health insurance costs 
 
Lower Solid Waste Contract 
 

•Approximately $700,000 
saved through these two 
efforts 

 
 

 



Governing Body 

Highlights:  
 Out of town planning conference  
 Conduct Bi-annual Citizens Survey 
 Increase Technology Allowance to $3600 per 

term 
 
 
 
 
 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $44,406 $44,406 $56,678 

Operating $148,550 $170,750 $182,900 

TOTAL $192,956 $215,156 $239,578 



Manager 

Not Included: 
  Internship - $4,000 
  Benchmarking Program through UNC School of    

 Government - $10,000 

 
 

EXPENSES FY 14-15  
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $413,605 $429,042 $441,952 

Operating $14,500 $14,250 $15,450 

Capital  $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL $428,105 $443,292 $457,402 



Human Resources 

Highlights:  
 State Health Plan Savings - $415,000 
 Pre-employment physical increased $20,000 
 Tuition Reimbursement increased $4,000 
 Organizational Development - $10,000 

 
 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget  

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $51,389 $53,458 $58,177 

Operating $1,681,000 $1,641,892 $1,275,258 

Capital  $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL $1,732,447 $1,695,350 $1,333,435 



Finance 

 
Highlights: 
 Reorganized department to create 2 part-time receptionist 

positions 
 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel 221,705 $235,626 $244,311 

Operating 184,200 $185,100 $183,250 

Capital  $0 
 

$0 $0 

TOTAL 405,905 $420,726 $427,561 



Fire & EMS 

*Personnel includes Idlewild VFD and Matthews VFD costs.  Does not 
include grants for firefighters and volunteers   

Highlights: 
 Applied for two AFG grants to fund purchase of second engine and 

iPads for scene management. Awarded $20,000 iPad AFG Friday, 
May 6, 2016 

 Applied for SAFER grant to fund additional volunteer incentives 
 Applied for a Fire Prevention & Life Safety Grant for a residential 

sprinkler awareness training prop 
 Budget includes three firefighters for 12 months  
      
    

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16- 17 
Recommended 

Personnel * $727,854 $781,595 $939,980 

Operating $763,923 $812,250 $786,635 

Capital  $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL $1,491,777 $1,593,845 $1,726,615 



Information Technology 

Highlights:  
 Second IT person to be hired 
 Eliminated contract with IT consultant at 

police department 
 Install Hood Room improvements (FY ‘15-

16) 
 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $71,324 $74,763 $135,778 

Operating $174,650 $181,700 $195,650 

Capital  $12,500 $20,000 $20,000 

TOTAL $258,474 $276,463 $351,428 



Safety & Risk 
Management 

Highlights:  
 Workers’ Comp premiums – 2% increase 
 Waiting on Property and Liability Bids – 

budgeted 9% increase to $185,000 
 
 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $52,376 $68,709 $71,404 

Operating $431,350 $361,981 $376,450 

Capital  $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL $483,726 $430,690 $447,854 



Police 

 
Highlights:  
 More than $90,000 brought in so far in FY 2016 

through grants, donations, federal shared assets 
 Purchased/deployed body cameras to all 

uniformed members of the department 
 Successful FBI Security audit of facility, 

date/information systems – received exemplary 
report 

 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $4,426,514 $4,610,607 $4,729,063 

Operating $854,938 $854,395 $766,779 

Capital  $237,600 $243,700 $281,327 

TOTAL $5,519,052 $5,708,702 $5,777,169 



Public Works 

 

Highlights:  
 New solid waste contract that will provide significant 

savings to the Town. 
 Repaired parking lots at Fire Stations 1 and 2. 
 Worked with NCDOT to build new superstreet on N.C. 51. 
 Completed Charles Buckley Way project. 
 Started construction on Campus Ridge Relocation 

project. 
 Pursued TIP funding for McKee Road “A”. 
 

    

  

 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $1,295,176 $1,326,006 $1,368,853 

Operating $3,571,868 $3,549,297 $3,230,798 

Capital  $103,000 $175,770 $70,000 

TOTAL $4,970,544 $5,051,073 $4,669,651 



Public Works - Stormwater 

 
Highlights:  
 Continuing storm water service maintenance 
 

 
 

    

  

 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $370,108 $380,067 $374,217 

Operating $219,650 $278,850 $328,116 

Capital  $24,000 $6500 $31,000 

TOTAL $613,758 $665,417 $733,333 



Economic Development 

Highlights:  

  Continue funding for Red Brick- $20,000 
  Continued funding for façade grant 

 program 
  Miscellaneous Economic Development-  

 $10,000 
 
 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $0 $0 $0 

Operating  $20,000 $25,000 $35,000 

TOTAL $20,000 $25,000 $35,000 



Planning & Development 

Highlights:  
 Ongoing staff involvement in The Quad, U.S. 74 conversion, I-485 

expansion, E. John St. /Old Monroe widening, CATS mass transit 
corridor 

 Continued work on Crestdale Heritage Trail with other Town 
departments 

 Working alongside consultants (through grant) to create new 
Downtown Streetscape Improvement Plan (to be approved this 
FY) 
 

 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel $393,093 $397,418 $421,690 

Operating $58,438 $59,938 $45,117 

Capital  $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL $451,531 $457,356 $466,807 



Parks, Recreation & Cultural 
Resource 

 

Highlights: 
 Continued success of Pawsitively Matthews 
 Re-engineered Food Truck Fridays event 
 Continuing additions of sewer art designs on Four Mile 

Creek Greenway 
 Continuing efforts to improve performance measures in 

the department – refined survey tool rates customer 
service at events as excellent (4.5 out of 5) 

 

  

 

EXPENSES FY 14-15 
Budget 

FY 15-16 
Budget 

FY 16-17 
Recommended 

Personnel  $571,800 $588,192 $630,845 

Operating $546,050 $556,950 $646,275 

Capital  $15,000 $0 $0 

TOTAL $1,132,850 $1,145,142 $1,277,120 



Other  
 
 Levine Senior Center  $5,000      (General Fund) 
 Tourism Grants                 $63,000   (Tourism Fund) 
 Matthews Alive                $60,000  (Tourism Fund) 
 Sportsplex                     $249,200   (Tourism Fund) 
 Arts/Science Council     $25,000   (Tourism Fund)               
 Matthews Historical Museum $40,000   (Tourism Fund) 
 National League of Cities Convention Contribution – no 

funding this year – review potential funding next FY 
 

 
 
 



Additional Information 

 

Facilities Maintenance Fund: 
 $28,030  included  
 Additional funding necessary for 

future needs 
 
 

 
 



Capital Improvement Plan 
Review CIP Document 
 

 



Questions? 

 

 
 
 



 

 

 
Stormwater Fee Change 
 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
TO:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners  
FROM: C.J. O’Neill, PE- Public Works Director 
 
Background/Issue 
 
The Town of Matthews started our Stormwater Utility in 1992.  Since that time, we have operated on 
a two-tier structure and have never adjusted the rates. Since 2014, we have been operating at a loss, 
and last year we ran out of the reserves that have built over the previous decade. 
 
The reasons for the cost increases are several- our infrastructure is aging, we are required to operate 
a street sweeping program and will need to budget for future maintenance of residential stormwater 
quality facilities (BMP’s). 
 
Altogether, we are estimating the Stormwater budget to be about $800k this year, which is about 
$200k more than the funds that the program is receiving through stormwater fees.  To cover this 
increase in costs, the Board voted in April to move to a 4-tier system and to set the rate for Tier 1 at 
$1.67 per month, Tier 2 at $2.58 per month, Tier 3 at $3.64 per month, Tier 4 at $5.98 per month, and 
commercial properties at $43.56 per acre per month.  
 
Proposals / Solutions 
 
To continue on the path to implement a 4-tier structure with the rates set as listed above.  Moving to 
this fee structure should allow us to cover the Stormwater Program costs for the next 5 years and to 
build up a reserve fund to be able to maintain and rehabilitate residential BMPs for the foreseeable 
future. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
Increases in the Stormwater fees as outlined in either alternative above will result in an approximate 
$200k increase to the Stormwater Program, which is enough to cover the projected costs incurred by 
the program in the coming years. 
 
 
 



 

 

Related Town Goals and Strategies 
 
To provide the infrastructure and services that supports the superior quality of life in the Matthews 
community, in a proactive, courteous, and professional manner. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
To move to a 4-Tier Stormwater Rate Structure and set residential rate for Tier 1 at $1.67 per month, 
Tier 2 at $2.58 per month, Tier 3 at $3.64 per month, Tier 4 at $5.98 per month, and commercial 
properties at $43.56 per acre of impervious surface per month. 



Pre Public Hearing Rezoning Staff Analysis  

June 6, 2016 

Project Summary 

Location:   2425 Sports Parkway 
 

Owner(s):   Mecklenburg County                                          

Agent:                  

 

Current Zoning:  R-20 

 

Proposed Zoning:  ENT  

Existing Use:   Sportsplex 

Proposed Use:  Same 

Community Meeting:  May 18, 2016 

 

Summary of Request 

The requested rezoning ensures that the Sportsplex is zoned properly and also conforms with 
long term plans for the ENT District . The stadium cannot receive a C/O until the proper zoning is 
in place.  

 

 

Staff Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning as the ENT zoning category was specifically created 
for both the Sportsplex as well as adjacent parcels that are a part of the Entertainment District.  

Application: 2016-645  Sportsplex 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Background And History 

The approximately 160 acre Sportsplex site is located on land once earmarked for a landfill. Once I-485 
was constructed, dividing much of the property, CPCC was constructed on the south side while talks 
turned to discussion about a sports complex for the subject property. Bonds for the Sportsplex were ap-
proved in 2007 with phase 1 opening in 2013.      

Details of the Site Plan 

The zoning plan is based on approved plans for construction of phases 1 and 2 of the Sportsplex. Access 
is provided to the site via the new Sports Parkway that connects Brigman Road to Tank Town Rd.  

 

Summary of Proposed Conditions 

See attached proposed conditions on page 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Outstanding Issues/Planning Staff Comments  

(Please see additional comments in staff memos for more detail) 

 

1. Clarification needed for allowed uses section of proposed conditional notes. The notes indi-
cate that any use allowed in a County park shall be allowed at this site. The UDO has provi-
sions for how to deal with uses that are not specifically listed. 

2. More detail on the future location of Independence Pointe Parkway should be provided in the 
conditional notes to make clear the fact the this roadway has long been planned to extend 
through the Sportsplex property.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Consistency with Adopted Plans and Policies and Town Vision Statements 

The rezoning is consistent with the adopted Entertainment District Small Area Plan.  

 

 

Reports from Town Departments and County Agencies 

 

Matthews Police 
No Concerns   

 

Matthews Fire 

No Concerns 

Public Works 

No Concerns 

 

Matthews Parks and Recreation 

No Concerns 

 

Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools 

Not Applicable 

 

Town Arborist 

N/A 

 

PCO Concept Plan Approval Required?  

Previously approved 

 

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Impact Analysis 

The property is owned by Mecklenburg County and is tax exempt.  

 

 

 

 

Projected Financial Impact of the Request 

The Sportsplex is a local amenity for area residents while also serving as a destination for local 
and regional sports tournaments. The primary financial benefit to the Town is visitor spending.   

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Site Images 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Draft Conditional Notes 
Sportsplex 
I-485 at US74 
 
 
 
General Provisions: 
The site proposed for rezoning includes Mecklenburg County Tax parcels 215-231-01, 215-231-02, and 215-081-
15, currently utilizing street addresses of 1601 Tank Town Road, 1585 Tank Town Road, and 2425 Sports 
Parkway respectively.  All three parcels are currently owned by Mecklenburg County. 
 
The drawings and aerial map of the subject property provided for this rezoning action – SP.01, a sheet from the 
Phase 2 (civil engineering) plan documents, and Site Aerial, showing outline of the property with current Phase 1 
improvements – along with these notes comprise the details of this zoning request from R-20 to ENT. 
 
The Town of Matthews established the ENT zoning district specifically for the Sportsplex site and the adjacent 
mostly-vacant surrounding property with the intention of an entertainment focused neighborhood being developed 
over time.  The Sportsplex is an integral anchor use and quality of life incentive for the adjacent property as it 
develops.  The Town adopted a Small Area Plan and Development Policies to guide further development around 
the Sportsplex site so it will be compatible and beneficial. 
 
 
Proposed Use: 
The development and use of the site will be for a public park and recreation facility. 
 
This site has been planned and is currently under development as a County-owned park and recreational facility.  
Completed Phase 1 includes 5 sports fields, associated parking, a playground and picnic area, restrooms and 
amenities.  Phase 2 now underway will add 7 additional sports fields with one being a “championship field” with 
seating (stadium), parking, running trails, greenway/multi-use paths, concession and restroom facilities, parking, 
picnicking areas, open fields, and natural areas.  A roadway through the park site connects the park to Town 
streets in two directions, and may intersect with Independence Pointe Parkway in the future.  The site is being 
developed generally as illustrated on SP.01.  Minor modifications to layout of the overall park plan may take place 
during construction that do not substantially alter the intended recreational opportunities and preservation of 
natural features.   
 
To determine whether individual uses, either primary and/or accessory, are allowed, the site shall be reviewed in 
its entirety and include all property owned by Mecklenburg County at the park site. Park and recreation uses not 
listed in the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance, but that are found in a Mecklenburg County Regional Park 
shall be allowed at the site and are hereby deemed to fall into one of three following categories: 
 

 Athletic or sports fields, ballfields, in a concentration of three or more, and similar outdoor 
physical recreation facility intended for use by teams of participants 

 Community recreation center, fitness/health center, gymnasium, YMCA, and similar use with 
multiple physically involved activities, primarily indoor, can take place concurrently 

 Park and playground, not otherwise listed 
 
   
Future changes: 
Ongoing repair and maintenance, including replacement of certain materials with alternate materials that will 
provide improved durability and maintenance, is allowed.  Converting an artificial turf field to natural grass or a 
natural grass field to artificial turf is allowed.  Adding field lighting or pedestrian/parking lot/security lighting is 
allowed when following Matthews outdoor illumination ordinance at 155.609. 
 



Future new or expanded recreational amenities are allowed as long as required setbacks and similar zoning 
standards are met, and preserved tree canopy is not reduced. 
 
Future expansion of seating at the stadium will be reviewed and approved by the Matthews Board of 
Commissioners as a site plan, using the process at 155.401.5.B. of the Matthews UDO. 
 
Changes or future additions to the park site that may reduce tree canopy, or will remove then-existing trees 
(individual or groves, without replacement of like caliper at same place) other than due to tree disease, significant 
decline, or death, as determined by a certified arborist, may follow the provisions at 155.401.5 for Administrative 
Amendment. 
 
 
 
Internal Streets: 
Sports Parkway: 
The internal street being developed as the park facilities are installed, currently known as Sports Parkway, will be 
dedicated to the Town of Matthews as a public street.  This dedication will be completed prior to Phase 2 of the 
park site being opened for public use, and will include the portion of the street from existing Brigman Road (Town 
street)  to existing Tank Town Road (Town street).  At the time of Phase 2 plan review, it was determined that the 
final platting of this street through both the County park facility and the strip of land obtained from the Brigman 
Family to connect the park facility to Brigman Road, to be used as a construction access, would be delayed until 
this was no longer required for major park construction purposes. 
 
 
Independence Pointe Parkway: 
The County agrees to continue discussions regarding the future route of Independence Pointe Parkway. 
 
 



srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by srobertson



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



Draft Conditional Notes 
Sportsplex 
I-485 at US74 
 
 
 
General Provisions: 
The site proposed for rezoning includes Mecklenburg County Tax parcels 215-231-01, 215-231-02, and 215-081-
15, currently utilizing street addresses of 1601 Tank Town Road, 1585 Tank Town Road, and 2425 Sports 
Parkway respectively.  All three parcels are currently owned by Mecklenburg County. 
 
The drawings and aerial map of the subject property provided for this rezoning action – SP.01, a sheet from the 
Phase 2 (civil engineering) plan documents, and Site Aerial, showing outline of the property with current Phase 1 
improvements – along with these notes comprise the details of this zoning request from R-20 to ENT. 
 
The Town of Matthews established the ENT zoning district specifically for the Sportsplex site and the adjacent 
mostly-vacant surrounding property with the intention of an entertainment focused neighborhood being developed 
over time.  The Sportsplex is an integral anchor use and quality of life incentive for the adjacent property as it 
develops.  The Town adopted a Small Area Plan and Development Policies to guide further development around 
the Sportsplex site so it will be compatible and beneficial. 
 
 
Proposed Use: 
The development and use of the site will be for a public park and recreation facility. 
 
This site has been planned and is currently under development as a County-owned park and recreational facility.  
Completed Phase 1 includes 5 sports fields, associated parking, a playground and picnic area, restrooms and 
amenities.  Phase 2 now underway will add 7 additional sports fields with one being a “championship field” with 
seating (stadium), parking, running trails, greenway/multi-use paths, concession and restroom facilities, parking, 
picnicking areas, open fields, and natural areas.  A roadway through the park site connects the park to Town 
streets in two directions, and may intersect with Independence Pointe Parkway in the future.  The site is being 
developed generally as illustrated on SP.01.  Minor modifications to layout of the overall park plan may take place 
during construction that do not substantially alter the intended recreational opportunities and preservation of 
natural features.   
 
To determine whether individual uses, either primary and/or accessory, are allowed, the site shall be reviewed in 
its entirety and include all property owned by Mecklenburg County at the park site. Park and recreation uses not 
listed in the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance, but that are found in a Mecklenburg County Regional Park 
shall be allowed at the site and are hereby deemed to fall into one of three following categories: 
 

• Athletic or sports fields, ballfields, in a concentration of three or more, and similar outdoor 
physical recreation facility intended for use by teams of participants 

• Community recreation center, fitness/health center, gymnasium, YMCA, and similar use with 
multiple physically involved activities, primarily indoor, can take place concurrently 

• Park and playground, not otherwise listed 
 
   
Future changes: 
Ongoing repair and maintenance, including replacement of certain materials with alternate materials that will 
provide improved durability and maintenance, is allowed.  Converting an artificial turf field to natural grass or a 
natural grass field to artificial turf is allowed.  Adding field lighting or pedestrian/parking lot/security lighting is 
allowed when following Matthews outdoor illumination ordinance at 155.609. 
 

srobertson
New Stamp



Future new or expanded recreational amenities are allowed as long as required setbacks and similar zoning 
standards are met, and preserved tree canopy is not reduced. 
 
Future expansion of seating at the stadium will be reviewed and approved by the Matthews Board of 
Commissioners as a site plan, using the process at 155.401.5.B. of the Matthews UDO. 
 
Changes or future additions to the park site that may reduce tree canopy, or will remove then-existing trees 
(individual or groves, without replacement of like caliper at same place) other than due to tree disease, significant 
decline, or death, as determined by a certified arborist, may follow the provisions at 155.401.5 for Administrative 
Amendment. 
 
 
 
Internal Streets: 
Sports Parkway: 
The internal street being developed as the park facilities are installed, currently known as Sports Parkway, will be 
dedicated to the Town of Matthews as a public street.  This dedication will be completed prior to Phase 2 of the 
park site being opened for public use, and will include the portion of the street from existing Brigman Road (Town 
street)  to existing Tank Town Road (Town street).  At the time of Phase 2 plan review, it was determined that the 
final platting of this street through both the County park facility and the strip of land obtained from the Brigman 
Family to connect the park facility to Brigman Road, to be used as a construction access, would be delayed until 
this was no longer required for major park construction purposes. 
 
 
Independence Pointe Parkway: 
The County agrees to continue discussions regarding the future route of Independence Pointe Parkway. 
 
 

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



I-485 INNER
I-485

I-485 OUTER

INDEPENDENCE

CPCC

M
O

O
R

E

TANK TOWN

MARGLY
N

DANNY

CA
M

PU
S 

RI
DG

E

ROYAL COMMONS

RAINBOW RIDGE

M
ATTHEW

S SCHOOL

CHIM
ORE

WINGATE COMMONS

CRESTDALE CROSSING

SP
O

R
TS

HADCO

MERANCAS

ALEXAN
D

ER
 R

ID
G

E

I-485

I-485

I-485

20
16

-6
45

20
16

-6
45

M
ec

kl
en

bu
rg

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
po

rts
pl

ex

05/05/16

Sportsplex 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    215-231-01; 215-231-02; 215-081-15 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    2425 Sports Parkway, 1585 and 1601 Tank Town Road 
EXISTING ZONING    R-20 
PROPOSED ZONING    ENT (Family Entertainment)  
EXISTING USE     Recreation; Sportsplex  
PROPOSED USE    Recreation; Sportsplex   
SITE AREA     160.16 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA   N/A  
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT                                    60/80 (see note below) 
REQUIRED PARKING:  See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    See note below 
MINIMUM SETBACK    N/A 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
TREE CANOPY     35.7% total saved 
 
NOTE: Required minimum side and rear yards must be increased one feet (1') for each foot or fraction of a foot in height over  the given 
maximum when adjacent to a residential district, or one foot (1') for each two feet (2') in height over the given maximum when adjacent 
to all nonresidential districts. 
 

PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
PHASE 1 Required Installed 

Vehicle 100 280 
Bicycle 0 7 
   
PHASE 2   
Vehicle 579 992 
Bicycle 50 56 

 
 

 Mecklenburg County Sportsplex

±1 in = 200 ft
2016-645 
5-5-2016 



I-485 INNER
I-485

I-485 OUTER

INDEPENDENCE

CPCC

M
O

O
R

E

TANK TOWN

MARGLY
N

DANNY

CA
M

PU
S 

RI
DG

E

ROYAL COMMONS

RAINBOW RIDGE

M
ATTHEW

S SCHOOL

CHIM
ORE

WINGATE COMMONS

CRESTDALE CROSSING

SP
O

R
TS

HADCO

MERANCAS

ALEXAN
D

ER
 R

ID
G

E

I-485

I-485

I-485

20
16

-6
45

20
16

-6
45

M
ec

kl
en

bu
rg

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
po

rts
pl

ex

05/05/16

Sportsplex 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    215-231-01; 215-231-02; 215-081-15 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    2425 Sports Parkway, 1585 and 1601 Tank Town Road 
EXISTING ZONING    R-20 
PROPOSED ZONING    ENT (Family Entertainment)  
EXISTING USE     Recreation; Sportsplex  
PROPOSED USE    Recreation; Sportsplex   
SITE AREA     160.16 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA   N/A  
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT                                    60/80 (see note below) 
REQUIRED PARKING:  See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    See note below 
MINIMUM SETBACK    N/A 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
TREE CANOPY     35.7% total saved 
 
NOTE: Required minimum side and rear yards must be increased one feet (1') for each foot or fraction of a foot in height over  the given 
maximum when adjacent to a residential district, or one foot (1') for each two feet (2') in height over the given maximum when adjacent 
to all nonresidential districts. 
 

PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
PHASE 1 Required Installed 

Vehicle 100 280 
Bicycle 0 7 
   
PHASE 2   
Vehicle 579 992 
Bicycle 50 56 

 
 

 Mecklenburg County Sportsplex

±1 in = 200 ft
2016-645 
5-5-2016 



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



 

 

  
 
Decision on Downtown Streetscape Improvement Plan 
 
DATE: June 8, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue: 
For the past several months, Planning Staff have worked with McGill and Associates on revisions to the 
Downtown Streetscape Improvement Plan. The 4th draft of the document is now posted to the Town website 
for review. Many of the changes made to the document are small in nature or were sought to make the 
document better organized and easier to read. For instance, street types, cross sections and renderings are 
now grouped together. For instance, when viewing the cross section for West John Street, the associated 
spot improvement drawings are located on the following page and not at the end of the document. We have 
also added language at the beginning of the plan that addresses situations where an exact cross section does 
not exist for a section of roadway or when the planned cross section does not fit exactly as drawn due to right 
of way or other constraints. This gives the Town flexibility when approving streets and street improvements.  
 
We appreciate the attention to detail that Council has shown during development of the plan and hope that 
you all agree that it is ready for adoption and implementation.  
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
Adoption of the new Downtown Streetscape Plan allows staff to begin using the new cross sections within the 
document when new development is planned in downtown Matthews. We will also begin focus on the 3rd and 
final phase of the rewrite of the Downtown Plan which is an update to design guidelines.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Adopt the Downtown Streetscape Improvement Plan as currently revised     



DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
2016

6-1-16



1

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

2.........Plan Purpose
3.........Objectives and How to use these guidelines
4......... Clarification of Planning Intent
5..........Downtown Limits & Districts Maps
6.........Alternative Transportation Paths Map
7.........Public Input
8.........Cross-section Locations Map
9.........Street Types Map
10........Typical Arterial Street
11.........100 Block of North Trade Street
12........100 Block of North Trade Street - Conceptual Improvements
13.........100 Block of North Trade Street - Photo Edit
14........North Trade Street and Matthews Street
15........North Trade Street and Matthews Street - Photo Edit #1
16........North Trade Street and Matthews Street - Photo Edit #2
17........North Trade Street and Matthews Street - Photo Edit #3
18........North Trade Street and Matthews Street - Photo Edit #4
19........North Trade at Center Park Drive
20.......South Trade at East and West John Street
21........Trade Street and John Street - Photo Edit
22.......South Trade Street at First Baptist Church
23.......South Trade Street at First Baptist Church - Photo Edit
24.......West John Street at Trade Street (option #A)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
25........West John Street at Trade Street (option B)
26........West John Street near Freemont Street
27.........West John Street near Ames Street
28.........West John Street - Photo Edit
29.........East John Street BBT to Trade Street
30.........E. John Street near Post Office
31..........Typical Downtown Collector Street
32.........East Matthews at Trade Street
33.........Typical Local Street
34.........Typical Urban Residential Street
35.........Proposed College Street
36.........McDowell Street
37.........Typical Woonerf
38.........Market Alley - Photo Edit
39.........Woonerf Precedent Images
40.........Typical Urban Lane
41..........Urban Lane Precedent Images
42.........Cotton Gin Alley
43..........Spot Improvements 
44.........Proposed Interactive Fountain at Matthews Town Hall
45.........Proposed Pedestrian Path Between Trade and Ames
46.........Prposed Pedestrian Path - Photo Edit
 



2

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Purpose
This guide serves as an addendum to and expansion of the existing Town of Matthews Downtown Plan as adopted by the Matthews Board of Commissioners January 7, 2013 and updates 
the streetscape improvements portion of the 1998 Downtown Master Plan.  Existing and proposed street cross sections and streetscape improvements are illustrated through sketches and 
photo edits of before and after images.  General examples of typical street types are also provided.  For each street type, there is a typical cross-section and in many instances a specific cross-
section.  As specific cross-sections are developmed for new or existing streets, they may be added to this plan over time.

The proposed streetscape improvements for the downtown area of Matthews include any combination of the following elements:  proposed infill development, curb and gutter, sidewalks, 
multi-use paths, curb ramps, bicycle racks, street lighting, way-finding signage, and landscaping.  Dimensions for streets, planting strips, sidewalks and building setbacks are provided.  
Some streets reviewed in this document are controlled by the Town and others may be controlled by the North Carolina Department of Transportation.  It is recommended that property 
owners and businesses located within Downtown refer to the Matthews Downtown Plan and other Town planning documents for additional advice and direction on development issues.  

The recommended style for all Downtown development should reflect basic principles of geometry and form while complimenting the existing rural North Carolina Piedmont vernacular 
of the late 19th and early 20th centuries. Streetscape elements such as benches, street lights, sign poles, and landscaping should enhance, not conflict with those examples found within 
the Downtown Core District.

Matthews Town Hall and Public Library Pedestrian Crossing at Matthews Station Street and North Trade Street



3

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

How to use these guidelines
Streetscape cross-section Guidelines help implement the recommendations in the approved 
and adopted Downtown Plan.  They provide information on how plan recommendations and 
Unified Development Ordinances can be met, the area or district context for individual sites, 
and ideas about best practices in building and site design. 

The planning process is structured in a hierarchy of decisions:

• The Downtown Plan recommendations provide the vision for a specific area,

• Unified Development Ordinance and other codes establish standards and regulations     
            for development,
• Streetscape Cross-section Guidelines and concept images provide inspiration and   
            suggestions to fulfill the Downtown Plan’s vision, and serve as a problem-solving tool. 

The streetscape guidelines are developed through work with property owners, residents, 
institutions, interest groups, and Town Staff.  They are approved by the Town Board for use by 
planning staff in developing and evaluating proposed building projects and other applications. 
They will be revised and updated as necessary.  With the exception of street standards and other 
specific recommendations included in the Downtown Plan, the guidelines are not regulations 
that mandate specific forms and locations for buildings and open space. They illustrate how 
plan recommendations and principles might be met, and encourage an attractive and successful 
public realm.

Objectives
This plan provides: 

•  An inventory of existing street-cross sections, transportation infrastructure, and land uses,

•  A map indicating street types within the Downtown Area,

•  Graphic examples of proposed street cross-sections,

•  Photo-realistic before and after representations of how new streets should be developed/   
redeveloped illustrating how buildings, sidewalks, and other streetscape elements should 
interact.

Traditional Streetscape on North Trade Street (Downtown Core District)

Contemporary Streetscape on North Trade Street (North End District)



4

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
Applicability and Enforcement
These design guidelines apply to both new construction and buildings undergoing significant renovations within the Downtown Overlay District. The intent is to have new streetscape improvements 
constructed as new development occurs, as long as it will be connected to future improvements at adjacent sites.  At a minimum, at least 5’ of sidewalk and street trees should be provided at any site 
of new development or renovation.  
The entire lot width associated with the new construction or significant renovation of a building or group of buildings, where no improvements exist or where improvements are substandard, shall 
be improved to the standard for that street which is shown in this document. Substandard is defined as not meeting the planned improvement specifications for that particular portion of street. If no 
standard exists for any portion of a street, the standard most closely associated with planned improvements in the general vicinity should be implemented. Significant renovation is defined as existing 
buildings where total construction and up fit costs exceed 40% of the taxable value of the structure. The exact cross section will be determined by the applicant and Town Staff.  The Town Engineer or 
Public Works Director and members of the Planning Department will work with property owners or developers to determine the overall scope of required improvements and develop an infrastructure 
construction plan. 

Appeals
Should the property owner or developer disagree with the scope of required improvements, a request may be made to the Town Board to render a decision on what improvements are mandatory.     

Exemptions
1.  Properties that received rezoning or site plan approval prior to February 2016 for which a building permit is issued prior to February 2018.  (These properties may still be required to install basic curb 
and gutter, street trees and 5’ sidewalks.)
2.  Construction or renovation of an individual new single family detached home but not a new development of 2 or more new dwellings. 

Fee In Lieu
1. When the Public Works Department determines that construction of public improvements are not feasible or that new improvements would otherwise be damaged or replaced as a result of future 
construction, a fee in lieu may be permitted or required. In general, a fee in lieu will not be permitted to delay construction of a minimum 5’ wide sidewalk.  
2. A fee in lieu may be allowed if one or more of the following circumstances exists:
a. When there are planned or anticipated future streetscape or road improvements with enough specificity to   know where improvements will occur, and newly installed improvements such as side-
walk, curb and gutter and street trees would be be removed or destroyed, the owner/developer may elect to pay a fee in lieu.
b. When there is no existing curb and gutter on the subject property and/or adjacent properties.
c. If existing street trees are determined to be healthy, and installation of other improvements would cause damage or removal of the existing tree(s). 
d. Properties with less than 50’ of road frontage. 
3. The calculation of the fee in lieu may be created by either the Town Public Works Department or the developer and shall be equal to 125% of the estimated cost of the installation of all the required 
improvements. Typical improvements required as a component of a streetscape construction plan may include but are not limited to sidewalk, widening of sidewalk, street trees, lighting, curb and 
gutter and on street parking.  Fees in lieu are to be placed in a dedicated account for improvements within the downtown area. 
4. All dedications of right-of-way and easements shall be recorded prior to obtaining building permits.   

Process for Approval
1. An initial meeting with Public Works and Planning is required to determine scope of work.
2. Staff will determine the desired cross section based on Streetscape Improvement Plan. 
3. Applicant will create draft infrastructure improvement plan and submit for review.
4. Public Works department must approve the infrastructure plan prior to issuance of building permits. 

 

Clarification of Planning Intent



5

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Downtown Area
The recommendations presented in this guide refer to areas within the Downtown area as defined by the Town of Matthews Planning department.  The above map delineates the area 

considered within the Downtown area.

Downtown Districts

Downtown Districts Map highlighting the Historic Urban Core, Downtown Overlay and Expanded Downtown Areas



6

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Alternative Transportation Paths Map (Walking Paths, Cycling and Bus Routes)

As the Town grows so will the need to provide 
pedestrian amenities.   The map to the right 
displays existing and future alternative 
transportation routes.  

The town should follow the Matthews Composite 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan.

Bus equipped to accommodate cyclists needs

Bus stop location with bike rack



7

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN
Public Input

A Visual Preference Survey was conducted at the Food Truck Friday event held on September 18th, 2015.  Public outreach included the preference exercise, review of proposed streetscape recommendations 
and open discussion.  The survey was made available online via a link on the Town’s webpage from September 18th thru October 6th.  The survey consisted of different groups of images depicting 
potential streetscape treatments or urban environments.  Participants were asked to rate each image in a given group according to their preference (1 being most prefered - 6 least prefered).  
The participants’ input can be used make inferences about visual preference as it relates to certain elements of streetscape design.  Prioritized results of the survey participant’s responses start with the 
highest preference and end with the least prefered image.  There were 50 volunteer participants that provided input about their preferences.  The results of the survey may be found below:

 

Results:

Q1:  Preferences for “Parking Area Screening” method was as follows: A, E, F, C, D, B
Respondents favored wide, treed, green spaces over hardscape such as walls.

Q2:  Preferences for “Residential Street” was as follows: C, B, F, E, A, D
Respondents favored streets that both accommodated pedestrians and provided vegetative screening 
between structures and the flow of traffic.

Q3:  Preferences of a “Friendly Back Street” was as follows: C, B, D, E, A, F
Respondents favored back streets that incorporated vegetation and that offered places of respite.

Q4:  Preferences for “Cross-walk Delineation” was as follows: C, B, A, E, F, D
Respondents preferred crosswalks with high contrasting colors and brick patterns over traditional, 
standard white striped designs.

Q5:  Preferences for a “Setback” was as follows: E, C, B, A, F, D
Respondents preferred wide (20’-40’), suburban yard type setbacks that accommodate space for 
pedestrian paths and trees.

Q6:  Preferences for “Sidewalk Treatment” was as follows: A, E, F, C, B, D
Respondents preferred brick accented, wide sidewalks that provide pedestrian amenities.

Q7:  Preferences for “Wayfinding Devices” was as follows: A, E, B, D, C, F
Respondents preferred conservative, unobtrusive, traditional type wayfinding signage over larger, 
pretentious, landmark type signage.

Q8:  Preferences for “Intersections” was as follows: E, A, D, B, C, F
Respondents favored decorative paving (distinct colors and materials), space for landscaping, and 
pedestrian oriented amenities.  The look would be more “village” and less “city”.

Q9:  Preferences for a “Pedestrian Refuge Strategy” was as follows: C, A, D, B, E, F
Respondents favored those street crossings that provided a pedestrian refuge island integrated within 
the street median.  Preference was for highly visible waiting areas within vegetated, well-marked, 
pedestrian oriented locations.

 



8

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Example Cross-section Location Map

Cross-section Locations

1.    College Street
2.    Cotton Gin Alley (John St. to Mid-Block)
       Cotton Gin Alley (Mid-Block to Charles St.)
3.    100 Block of N. Trade
4.   Market Alley 
5.   E. John (BB&T to Trade)
6.   E. John (Buckley Way to BB&T)
7.   McDowell St.
8.   S. Trade at W. John
9.   S. Trade at Baptist Church 
10.  W. John at Trade (options A & B)
11.  W. John near Freemont St.
12.  W. John near Ames St.
13.  W. John near Lois St.
14.  W. John at Matthews Township Pkwy.
15.  N. Trade at Matthew St.
16.  N. Trade at Park Center Dr.
17.  E. Matthews at Trade St.

 

Please refer to the street types map on page 
eight (8) of this document for typical, recom-
mended cross-sections for most Downtown 
streets.  Locations/corridors with cross-sec-
tion recommendations that deviate from the 
typical may be identified via this map.

 



9

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Street Types vary within the Downtown Area

Purpose
The Street Types Map displays corridors where typical minimum streetscape stan-
dards are recommended.  Streetscape design features, and building-to-street relation-
ships will support the development of Downtown as a focus of the community and a 
pedestrian-oriented, multi-modal transportation friendly area.  Standards of design 
for each type of street are graphically illustrated within this document.  Specific loca-
tions where variations to the typical minimum cross-sections are recommended can be 
identified via the Cross-section Locations Map on page 7.  

Street Types
These Street Type designations will ensure consistent application of appropriate street-
scape dimensions and treatments based on types of uses and levels of intensity through-
out the different Downtown districts. 

Arterial - Trade Street and John Street

Downtown Collector Street -   Matthews Street, Country Place Drive,   
Part of (north) Freemont Street, Matthews-Mint Hill Road, Covenant 
Church Lane, Part of (north) Ames Street1, Charles Street1

Local Street - Sadie DriveMatthews Station Street, Park Center Drive, An-
drew Caroline, Lois Street 

Urban Residential Street - Clubview Lane, Irwin Lane, College Street, 
McDowell Street McLeod Circle, Jefferson Street, Alexander Street, Main 
Street, Part of East Matthews Street, Part of (south) Freemont Street, Part 
of (south) Ames Street

Woonerf - Market Alley, Bank Street

Urban Lane - Cotton Gin Alley, Old Depot Lane, Jill Lane, Library Lane

1 A unique cross-section applies for this corridor

 



10

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Arterial          (Trade Street, John Street)

For the Arterial Street Type, all the following minimum Street Type Standards are recommended:

• A clear, accessible sidewalk with a minimum width of 5’ is recommended.  However, a multi-use path on one side of the street is encouraged.

• A planting strip is recommended between the sidewalk and travel lane. This amenity zone may consist of street trees, street lighting, landscaping and/or seating.

• On-street parking is not recommended for this street type, except on Trade Street.

• It is recommended that street lamp lighting be located within the planting strip area and be at least 2.5’ from the face of curb or edge of pavement if curbing is not in place.

• Existing driveway cuts should be maintained and any new driveways must be approved by the Town of Matthews, and NCDOT prior to construction.



11

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

100 Block of North Trade Between John and Charles Streets (Looking South) 
The proposed changes to the 100 block of North Trade Street predominantly consist of moving the face of curb on the west side of the street out 11’ towards the center of the street thus eliminat-
ing  the angled parking  while establishing parallel parking in its place.  This would affect the north half of this block up to the point where the existing parallel parking.  This existing parallel 
parking shall remain.  The advantage of this proposed change is that a wider pedestrian area is established. 



12

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

100 Block of North Trade Between John and Charles Streets  - Conceptual Improvements

EXISTING CONDITIONS

This concept consists of a public space created by widening 
the existing sidewalk.  Existing angled spaces would be 
replaced by parallel spaces.  Small street trees would be 
installed in tree pits where existing space currently exists.

The existing 100 block of North Trade Street may be 
improved by the creation of pedestrian oriented spaces.  
Currently there is a lack of public seating and gathering 
areas.  Parking is difficult to use because of its orientation 
and typical traffic volumes.  Curb appeal is limited by the 
lack of typical streetscape elements such as vegetation, 
seating, art, etc.

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN



13

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

BEFORE AFTER

100 Block of North Trade Between John and Charles Streets (Looking South) 



14

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

North Trade Street at Matthews Street (Looking North)



15

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Photographic Representations (Before & After)

The following “Before and After” images provide a graphical representation of how new and existing streets could be developed or redeveloped in the future.  Many different streetscape 
elements such as sidewalks, multipurpose paths, traffic calming, street lighting, landscaping, buildings and parking configurations are explored.  

The intent of the photographic representations is not to dictate specific design expectations or configurations but instead are meant to relay design possibilities intended to encourage an 
attractive and successful public realm.

BEFORE AFTER

North Trade Street and East Matthews Street (1)



16

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

BEFORE AFTER

North Trade Street and East Matthews Street (2)



17

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

BEFORE AFTER

North Trade Street and East Matthews Street (3)



18

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

North Trade Street and East Matthews Street (4)

AFTERBEFORE



19

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

North Trade Street Near Park Center Drive (Looking North) 



20

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

South Trade Street at East and West John Street (Looking South)

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



21

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Concept for Trade Street and John Street Intersection

AFTERBEFORE

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



22

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

South Trade Street at First Baptist Church (Looking South)



23

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

BEFORE AFTER 

South Trade Street at First Baptist Church (Looking North)



24

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

West John Street at Trade Street - Option 10A (Looking West)

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



25

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

West John Street at Trade Street - Option 10B (Looking West)

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



26

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

West John Street Near Freemont Street

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



27

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

West John Street Near Ames Street

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



28

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

West John Street between Ames Street and Irwin Lane (Looking West)

BEFORE AFTER

Proposed John Street improvements subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



29

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Typical East John Street from BB&T to Trade Street (Looking West)

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



30

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

East John Street near Post Office - From BB&T to Buckley Way (Looking East)

Proposed John Street Cross-sections subject to change per any future NCDOT work.   



31

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Downtown Collector Street  (Matthews Street, Country Place Drive,   Part of (north) Freemont Street, Matthews-Mint Hill Road, Covenant Church Lane, Part of (north)   
                                                                 Ames Street, Charles Street)

For the Downtown Collector  Street Type, all the following minimum Street Type Standards are recommended:

• A clear, accessible sidewalk with a minimum width of 5’ is recommended.  However, a multi-use path on one side of the street is encouraged.

• A minimum 4-foot planting strip provided between the sidewalk and travel lane is recommended.  Amenities within this strip may consist of street trees, street lighting, landscaping 
and/or seating.

• It is recommended that on street parking be included on at least one side of the street

• It is recommended that street lamp lighting be located within the planting strip area within 2’ of the face of curb or edge of pavement if curbing is not in place.

• Existing driveway cuts should be maintained and any new driveways must be approved by the Town of Matthews, and NCDOT prior to construction.

• For streets not requiring on street parking, 7’ bicycle lanes may be designated but must be on both sides of the street for two way traffic corridors and on the right side 

      of the street for one way traffic corridors.



32

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

East Matthews Street at Trade Street (Looking West)



33

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Local Street

For the Local Street Type, all the following minimum Street Type Standards are recommended:

• A clear, accessible sidewalk with a minimum width of 6’ is recommended.

• It is recommended that a 3-foot pedestrian amenity zone provided between the sidewalk and building facade. This amenity zone may consist of bike racks, seating, removable 
planters and temporary signage as approved by the Town of Matthews.

• It is recommended that on-street parking exist on at least one side of the street.

• It is recommended that street-lamp lighting be located within 2’ of the face of curb or edge of pavement if curbing is not in place.

• Existing driveway cuts should be maintained and any new driveways must be approved by the Town of Matthews prior to construction.

(Sadie Drive, Matthews Station Street, Park Center Drive, Andrew Caroline, Lois Street, N. Ames Street at Park Center Drive) 



34

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Urban Residential Street

For the Local Street Type, all the following minimum Street Type Standards are recommended: 

• A clear, accessible sidewalk with a minimum width of 5’ is recommended. A 4’ planting strip is recommended between the sidewalk and street.

• It is recommended that on-street parking be allowed on at least one side of the street

• Street lamp lighting is recommended within the planting strip and should be within 2’ of the face of curb or edge of pavement is curbing is not in place.

• Existing driveway cuts should be maintained and any new driveways must be approved by the Town of Matthews prior to construction.

(Clubview Lane, Irwin Lane, College Street, McDowell Street McLeod Circle, Jefferson Street, Alexander Street, Main Street, 
Part of East Matthews Street, Part of (south) Freemont Street, Part of (south) Ames Street)



35

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

(Proposed) College Street (Looking North West)



36

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

McDowell Street (Looking West)



37

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Woonerf

For the typical Woonerf, all the following streetscape elements are recommended:

• Limited vehicular traffic may be permissible per Town of Matthews and should be limited to speed limits of 5 m.p.h. or less. 

• All seating, removable planters, temporary signage, bike racks and other pedestrian amenities, should be within 10’ of building facades 

• On-street parking should be limited to maintenance and delivery vehicles only

• Street lamp lighting should be decorative, as recommended by the Town of Matthews Downtown Plan

• Pavement should be decorative, such as stamped or stained asphalt/concrete, pavers, or stone 

Typical Woonerf

(Market Alley, Bank Street)



38

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Proposed Market Alley (Woonerf)Photo Edit

BEFORE AFTER



39

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Woonerf - Precedent Images



40

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Urban Lane

For the typical Urban Lane, all the following streetscape elements are recommended:

• Vehicular traffic should yield to pedestrians and bicyclists which share this multi-modal corridor.  

• On-street parking should be limited to maintenance and delivery vehicles only

• Street lamp lighting should be decorative, as recommended by the Town of Matthews Downtown Plan

• Pavement should be decorative, such as stamped or stained asphalt/concrete, pavers, or stone 

(Cotton Gin Alley, Old Depot Lane, Jill Lane, Library Lane)



41

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Urban Lane - Precedent Images



42

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Cotton Gin Alley



43

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Spot Improvement Projects



44

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Proposed Interactive Fountain at Matthews Town Hall

BEFORE AFTER



45

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

A conceptual sketch of how a revision to the parking lot layout may provide space for a 10’ wide pedestrian walk can be seen below.

Proposed pedestrian path through parking lot between Trade Street and Ames Street 



46

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Proposed pedestrian path through parking lot between Trade Street and Ames Street 

BEFORE AFTER



 

 

  
 
Decision on Application 2016-643 Primrose School 
 
DATE: June 8, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue: 
After deferral of the decision for this zoning case on May 4, the following items have changed or 
been addressed: 
 

 The only changes to the conditional notes were corrections to grammatical and spelling 
errors. 
 

 The applicant continues to offer a choice of a traffic officer and $10,000 towards road 
improvements or a single $25,000 payment for road improvements with no traffic officer. 
 

 Public Works has estimated the cost of adding additional asphalt to widen Ames to 24’ at 
$85,000. 
 

 Chief Hunter has indicated that he does not see the need for a traffic control officer. He is also 
concerned with potential closure of the Ames access point. His comments are attached. 
 

 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
Based on comments from Chief Hunter, move forward with the $25,000 option for road improvements and 
allow the Ames Street driveway on the site plan to remain.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Approve rezoning application 2016-643    



Suggested Town Board Consistency and 
Reasonableness Statements for all zoning actions: 
(Complete one statement each for #1 and #2 below) 

 

1) The requested zoning action IS REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

 

The proposed childcare center is a new amenity for downtown Matthews and will be located within 
an attractive and well design building that blends well with the character of the architecture in the 
area. 

 

 

 OR 
 The requested zoning action IS NOT REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

2) The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS CONSISTENT with the policies for 
development as outlined by the Matthews Land Use Plan, and/or Town’s long-range Vision 
Statements, and/or other adopted policies/plans. 

 

 OR 
The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS NOT CONSISTENT with the 
Matthews Land Use Plan and/or other adopted land development policies and plans. 

 

 

 

(Town Board:  It is acceptable to determine a request is INCONSISTENT and still 
eligible for approval, or that the zoning request is CONSISTENT with adopted 
plans but still vote to deny the request.) 



6/8/2016 Matthewsnc.gov Mail - Primrose School 2016-643

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=ab8bf1699e&view=pt&q=rhunter%20ames&qs=true&search=query&th=154df2bbdc50cc1e&siml=154df2bbdc50cc1e 1/1

Jay Camp <jcamp@matthewsnc.gov>

Primrose School 2016-643 
1 message

Chief Rob Hunter <rhunter@matthewsnc.gov> Mon, May 23, 2016 at 3:50 PM
To: Jay Camp <jcamp@matthewsnc.gov>
Cc: Kathi Ingrish <kingrish@matthewsnc.gov>

I failed to share these thoughts/recommendations following the recent public hearing, but would like to
place these into the record:

1. Traffic control officer offer - while I was unaware this had been suggested/offered, I would not see
the safety need for this detail. While I recognize that at least twice daily there will be an increased
traffic flow for drop-off / pick-up, as this will occur from / onto two local streets with minimal traffic, I
do not think an officer would be beneficial nor could I find that need. 

There is currently a traffic control device (3-way stop) in front of the property; and as the two access
points to the property are in such close proximity to this intersection, the traffic speeds of any non-
involved vehicles would be so slow, if not stopped, the need would be unwarranted.

2. Consideration of closure of Ames Street access point - I would strongly urge this not be done.
Requiring this would result in all vehicles flowing thru the 3-way stop and, as such, cause delays at the
Ortho-Carolina property.  More significantly, such closure would jeopardize emergency responses -
especially Fire Dept - to the property, especially for emergency vehicles responding from Ames Street.
And while not likely, as the portion of Park Center Dr from N Trade St is not and will never be 'public',
there is no assurance of emergency vehicle access from that point. Finally, with such closure, while
technically impermissable for fire trucks to back the required distance from the rear parking lot, that
distance would also greatly heighten the risk for property damage or personal injury by such
movements.

Recommendation - While I take no position on the flow direction within the parking lot - a requirement
for which we would have no enforcement power - I would recommend allowing physical development
as proposed, allow the tenants / property owners to establish the preferred traffic flow patterns, and
for the town to monitor for some period of time any resulting traffic issues.

Chief Rob Hunter
Matthews Police Department
1201 Crews Road
Matthews, N.C. 28105
(704) 841-6731
rhunter@matthewsnc.gov
www.matthewsnc.gov

Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 132, Public Records, this electronic mail message
and any attachments hereto, as well as any electronic mail message(s) that may be sent in response
to it may be considered public record and as such are subject to request and review.

tel:%28704%29%20841-6731
mailto:rhunter@matthewsnc.gov
http://www.matthewspolice.org/


blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



blynd
Date Stamp



S
ur

ve
y/

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
d

iti
on

s 
P

la
n

R
Z

-1

as
 n

ot
ed

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



PARK CENTER DRIVE
(70' PUBLIC R/W)

N
O

R
TH

 A
M

E
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
36' P

U
B

LIC
 R

/W
D

B
 8156-955

EXIST. STREET
TREES (TYP)
TO REMAIN

EXIST.
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

EXIST. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
ENCROACHES INTO PROPERTY

PROPERTY LINE

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (6 SP.)
TO BE STRIPED

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (5 SP.)

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING SITE
 LIGHTING (TYP)

E
X

IS
T. R

/W

PROP. SIDEWALK
TIE TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 6'
MONOLITHIC SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK
8' PLANTING STRIP

SIDEWALK ESMT
2' OFF BACK OF WALK

EXIST. SITE
LIGHTING (TYP)

ACCESSIBLE
RAMP

PROP. DUMPSTER
W/BRICK ENCLOSURE

PROP. FLAGPOLE

25
'x2

5'
 S

IG
HT

 T
RIA

NGLE

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

PRIMROSE SCHOOL
OF MATTHEWS

LOT 2
1.20 AC.

PLAYGROUND
FENCING (TYP)

PLAYGROUND FENCING
AT BACK OF SIDEWALK

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 E
S

M
T

CONSTRUCT SIDEWALK
TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

20' FR
O

N
T S

E
TB

A
C

K

PRIMARY
ENTRANCE

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

BENCH IN SIDEWALK
SELECTION BY OWNER

BENCH IN SIDEWALK
SELECTION BY OWNER

R
ez

on
in

g 
P

la
n

R
Z

-2

1"
 =

 2
0'

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

VICINITY MAP

SITE

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

TAX PARCEL ID #: 193-243-07

TOTAL SITE AREA: +/-1.20 AC.

EXISTING ZONING: I-1

PROPOSED ZONING: O (CD)

PROPOSED USE: CHILD DAY CARE &
OTHER USES

SETBACKS:
FRONT (PARK CENTER): 20' MAX.
SIDE: 6'
SIDE (NORTH AMES): 20' MIN., 30' MAX.
REAR: 20'

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 40'

VEHICULAR PARKING (CHILD DAY CARE FACILITY):
REQUIRED:

1 SPACE/ 2 ADULTS 13 (25 FACULTY/STAFF)
1 SPACE/10 CHILDREN 19 (185 KIDS)
TOTAL: 32 SPACES

PROPOSED:
SITE: 45 SPACES
STREET: 11 SPACES
TOTAL: 56 SPACES

BICYCLE PARKING:
REQUIRED: 2
PROPOSED: 2

TREE CANOPY
REQUIRED: 6,220 SF (12%)
PROVIDED: 8,000 SF

PLAYGROUND AREA:
REQUIRED: 185 MAX CHILDREN/2 = 93 CHILDREN

93 * 100 SF = 9,300 SF

PROVIDED: 12,200 SF

BUILDING FRONTAGE
AMES STREET 175 FT
REQUIRED 75% COVERAGE: 131 FT
BUILDING WIDTH: 136 FT

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

2

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

DECORATIVE FENCE

2
05

.0
2.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

2

3

3 
06

.0
1.

16
U

D
P

N
O

TE
 C

O
R

R
E

C
TI

O
N

S

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-243-01  MARY C. HULSEY FAMILY LP  DB 13102-516  ZONING: C

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-01 STEVEN H. KNICKERBOCKER  DB 08156-955  ZONING: R-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-02 JACK REED JR.   DB 13880-632  ZONING: R-12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-03 KATHRIN E. ROWAN  DB 2221-409  ZONING: R-12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 MATTHEWS PARKWAY  CORPORATE CENTER MORNINGSTAR OFFICE LLC M.B. 51, PG. 412 D.B. 24564, PG. 796 193-243-06 ZONING: I-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEWS LOFTS LLC DB 26531-219 193-271-47

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIDE YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 MATTHEWS PARKWAY  CORPORATE CENTER OCRE I, LLC M.B. 51, PG. 412 D.B. 26359, PG. 484 193-243-05 ZONING: I-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIDE YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH = 20 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. JOHN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. AMES ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAM NEWELL RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(US HWY 51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. CHARLES ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOIS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MATTHEWS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. FREEDOM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEABOARD COAST RxR

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

s 
&

 N
ot

es
R

Z
-3

nt
s

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan associated with the Rezoning Application
filed by Primrose School Franchising Company (“Applicant”) for an approximately 1.2 acre site located on
the west side of Park Center Drive between Matthews Township Parkway and North Ames Street, which
site is more particularly depicted on the Rezoning Plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Site”).

B. The development and use of the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan, these Development Standards
and the applicable provisions of the Town of Matthews Unified Development Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
The regulations established under the Ordinance for the O zoning district shall govern the use and
development of the Site.

C. Subject to paragraph G under Architectural Standards, the location of any building to be constructed on the
Site and the location of parking areas and other improvements shall be governed by the standards and
regulations set out in the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a building devoted to a child day care
facility and the associated parking areas and other improvements shall be located on the site as generally
depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

PERMITTED USES

A. The Site may be devoted only to the following uses and to any incidental and accessory uses associated
therewith that are allowed in the O zoning district.

(1) General and professional offices

(2) Medical, dental, optical offices and clinics.

(3) Laboratory and research facilities, medical, dental or optical.

(4) A child day care facility.

DEVELOPMENT LIMITATIONS/MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA

A. A child day care facility developed on the Site shall be subject to the following limitations:

(1) The maximum number of children that may be served on the Site shall be 185.

(2) The maximum size of a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be 12,800 square feet of gross floor
area.

(3) A child day care facility shall comply with the applicable requirements of Section 155.506.6 of the
Ordinance.

B. The maximum size of a building devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility shall be 20,000
square feet of gross floor area.

C. For purposes of the limitations set out above, “gross floor area” shall mean the total floor area enclosed
within a building, including interior balconies, exclusive of mezzanines, stairways and elevator shafts.

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS

A. Development of the Site shall comply with the dimensional standards of the O zoning district and the
Downtown Overlay District set out in the Ordinance.

TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING

A. Vehicular access shall be as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The placement and configuration of
the access points are subject to any minor modifications required by the Town of Matthews.

B. Vehicular parking shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of the Ordinance.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be constructed on the Site for a child
day facility located on the Site.  Of these 45 parking spaces, a minimum of 40 shall be devoted to the child
day care facility.

D. In addition to the on-site vehicular parking spaces described above, a minimum of 11 on-street parking
spaces shall be located along the Site's frontages on North Ames Street and Park Center Drive as depicted
on the Rezoning Plan.

E. If the Town of Matthews determines that it is necessary for the safety and efficiency of Park Center Drive
and North Ames Street as a result of the traffic generated by a child day care facility on the Site, and the
Town of Matthews advises the operator of a child day care facility of such necessity, then the operator of a
child day care facility on the Site shall hire one off-duty law enforcement officer or one private security
officer to manage traffic at the vehicular access points into the Site and/or at the intersection of Park Center
Drive and North Ames Street during the transportation peak hours of the child day care facility.  The
transportation peak hours of the child day care facility shall be defined as 7:00 AM to 9:00 AM and 4:00 PM
to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday (excluding holidays).  If the Town of Matthews subsequently determines
that it is no longer necessary for the operator of a child day care facility on the Site to continue to hire one
off-duty law enforcement officer or one private security officer to manage traffic at the vehicular access
points into the Site and/or at the intersection of Park Center Drive and North Ames Street during the
transportation peak hours of the child day care facility, then the operator of a child day care facility on the
Site shall no longer be required to do so.  In making the determinations set out above, the Town of
Matthews shall consult with the Town Engineer, and the operator of a child day care facility on the Site may
engage a traffic engineer to consult with the Town and the Town Engineer as well with respect to these
determinations.  This paragraph E shall only apply to a child day care facility on the Site.

F. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a child day care facility on the Site, the operator of a
child day care facility on the Site shall pay the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) to the Town of
Matthews to be used by the Town of Matthews for future improvements to North Ames Street.  This
paragraph F shall only apply to a child day care facility on the Site.

STREETSCAPE TREATMENT AND SIDEWALKS

A. The streetscape treatment along the Site's public street frontages shall comply with the requirements of the
Ordinance.

B. Sidewalks shall be installed along the Site's public street frontages as depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The
sidewalk to be installed along the Site's frontage on Park Center Drive shall match the design of the existing
sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive and shall include pavers and other
features of the existing sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive.

C. A sidewalk easement shall be conveyed to the Town of Matthews for any portion of the public sidewalks
that are located on the Site and outside of the public right of way.

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

A. The maximum height of any building constructed on the Site shall be 40 feet.

B. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the front elevations
of the building (the elevations facing North Ames Street and Park Center Drive) to be
constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility that are intended to
depict the general conceptual architectural style and character of the front elevations of this
building.  Accordingly, the front elevations of the building to be constructed on the Site that will
be devoted to a child day care facility shall be designed and constructed so that the front
elevations are substantially similar in appearance to the attached relevant conceptual
architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, changes and alterations which do not
materially change the overall conceptual architectural style and character shall be permitted.

C. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the north and west
elevations of the building to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care
facility that are intended to depict the general conceptual architectural style and character of
the north and west elevations of this building.  Accordingly, the north and west elevations of
the building to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility shall
be designed and constructed so that the north and west elevations are substantially similar in
appearance to the attached relevant conceptual architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, changes and alterations which do not materially change the overall conceptual
architectural style and character shall be permitted.

D. As depicted on the conceptual architectural renderings, the primary exterior building materials
used on a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be brick, stone and precast stone
or precast concrete.

E. A building devoted to a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the
side and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the
front elevations and the same percentage brick as the front elevations.

F. The main entrance into a building devoted to a child care facility is designated on the Rezoning
Plan.

G. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any building to be constructed on the Site that
shall be devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility, the site plan and the
building elevations for such building must be approved by the Matthews Board of
Commissioners. Any building to be constructed on the Site that shall be devoted to a use or
uses other than a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the side
and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the front
elevation and the same percentage brick as the front elevation.

SCREENING

A. Dumpster and recycling areas will be enclosed on all four sides with three sides being
enclosed by opaque walls and one side being enclosed by a hinged opaque gate.  If one or
more sides of a dumpster and recycling area adjoin a side wall or rear wall of the building, then
the side wall or rear wall of the building may be substituted for the wall  along each such side.

B. The opaque walls of a dumpster and recycling area enclosure shall be masonry walls clad with
the same brick as the brick on the building to be constructed on the Site.

SIGNS

A. All signs installed on the Site shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.

BINDING EFFECT OF THE REZONING APPLICATION

A. If this Rezoning Application is approved, all conditions applicable to the development and/or
use of the Site imposed under this Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided
under the Ordinance, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Applicant and the current and
subsequent owners of the Site and their respective successors in interest and assigns.
Throughout these Development Standards, the terms, "Applicant" and "owner" or "owners"
shall be deemed to include the heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest
and assigns of Applicant or the owner or owners of the Site from time to time who may be
involved in any future development thereof.

2

1

1

1

1

2

2

2
05

.0
2.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

3

3

3

3 
06

.0
1.

16
U

D
P

N
O

TE
 C

O
R

R
E

C
TI

O
N

S

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



S
ur

ve
y/

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
d

iti
on

s 
P

la
n

R
Z

-1

as
 n

ot
ed

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

zoning
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



PARK CENTER DRIVE
(70' PUBLIC R/W)

N
O

R
TH

 A
M

E
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
36' P

U
B

LIC
 R

/W
D

B
 8156-955

EXIST. STREET
TREES (TYP)
TO REMAIN

EXIST.
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

EXIST. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
ENCROACHES INTO PROPERTY

PROPERTY LINE

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (6 SP.)
TO BE STRIPED

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (5 SP.)

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING SITE
 LIGHTING (TYP)

E
X

IS
T. R

/W

PROP. SIDEWALK
TIE TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 6'
MONOLITHIC SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK
8' PLANTING STRIP

SIDEWALK ESMT
2' OFF BACK OF WALK

EXIST. SITE
LIGHTING (TYP)

ACCESSIBLE
RAMP

PROP. DUMPSTER
W/BRICK ENCLOSURE

PROP. FLAGPOLE

25
'x2

5'
 S

IG
HT

 T
RIA

NGLE

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

PRIMROSE SCHOOL
OF MATTHEWS

LOT 2
1.20 AC.

PLAYGROUND
FENCING (TYP)

PLAYGROUND FENCING
AT BACK OF SIDEWALK

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 E
S

M
T

CONSTRUCT SIDEWALK
TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

20' FR
O

N
T S

E
TB

A
C

K

PRIMARY
ENTRANCE

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

R
ez

on
in

g 
P

la
n

R
Z

-2

1"
 =

 2
0'

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

VICINITY MAP

SITE

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

TAX PARCEL ID #: 193-243-07

TOTAL SITE AREA: +/-1.20 AC.

EXISTING ZONING: I-1

PROPOSED ZONING: O (CD)

PROPOSED USE: CHILD DAY CARE &
OTHER USES

SETBACKS:
FRONT (PARK CENTER): 20' MAX.
SIDE: 6'
SIDE (NORTH AMES): 20' MIN., 30' MAX.
REAR: 20'

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 40'

VEHICULAR PARKING:
REQUIRED:

1 SPACE/ 2 ADULTS 13 (25 FACULTY/STAFF)
1 SPACE/10 CHILDREN 19 (185 KIDS)
TOTAL: 32 SPACES

PROPOSED:
SITE: 45 SPACES
STREET: 11 SPACES
TOTAL: 56 SPACES

BICYCLE PARKING:
REQUIRED: 2
PROPOSED: 2

TREE CANOPY
REQUIRED: 6,220 SF (12%)
PROVIDED: 8,000 SF

PLAYGROUND AREA:
REQUIRED: 185 MAX CHILDREN/2 = 93 CHILDREN

93 * 100 SF = 9,300 SF

PROVIDED: 12,200 SF

BUILDING FRONTAGE
AMES STREET 175 FT
REQUIRED 75% COVERAGE: 131 FT
BUILDING WIDTH: 136 FT

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

2

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

ALONG STREET FRONTAGES
DECORATIVE FENCE

zoning
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

s 
&

 N
ot

es
R

Z
-3

nt
s

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan associated with the Rezoning Application
filed by Primrose School Franchising Company (“Applicant”) for an approximately 1.2 acre site located on
the west side of Park Center Drive between Matthews Township Parkway and North Ames Street, which
site is more particularly depicted on the Rezoning Plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Site”).

B. The development and use of the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan, these Development Standards
and the applicable provisions of the Town of Matthews Unified Development Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
The regulations established under the Ordinance for the O zoning district shall govern the use and
development of the Site.

C. Subject to paragraph F under Architectural Standards, the location of any building to be constructed on the
Site and the location of parking areas and other improvements shall be governed by the standards and
regulations set out in the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a building devoted to a child day care
facility and the associated parking areas and other improvements shall be located on the site as generally
depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

PERMITTED USES

A. The Site may be devoted to any use or uses that are permitted by right or under prescribed conditions in the
O zoning district and to any incidental and accessory uses associated therewith that are allowed in the O
zoning district.

DEVELOPMENT LIMITATIONS/MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA

A. A child day care facility developed on the Site shall be subject to the following limitations:

(1) The maximum number of children that may be served on the Site shall be 185.

(2) The maximum size of a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be 12,800 square feet of gross floor
area.

(3) A child day care facility shall comply with the applicable requirements of Section 155.506.6 of the
Ordinance.

B. The maximum size of a building devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility shall be 20,000
square feet of gross floor area.

C. For purposes of the limitations set out above, “gross floor area” shall mean the total floor area enclosed
within a building, including interior balconies, exclusive of mezzanines, stairways and elevator shafts.

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS

A. Development of the Site shall comply with the dimensional standards of the O zoning district and the
Downtown Overlay District set out in the Ordinance.

TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING

A. Vehicular access shall be as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The placement and configuration of
the access points are subject to any minor modifications required by the Town of Matthews.

B. Vehicular parking shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding
the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be provided on the Site.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be constructed on the Site for a child
day facility located on the Site.  Of these 45 parking spaces, a minimum of 40 shall be devoted to the child
day care facility.

D. In addition to the on-site vehicular parking spaces described above, a minimum of 11 on-street parking
spaces shall be located along the Site's frontages on North Ames Street and Park Center Drive as depicted
on the Rezoning Plan.

STREETSCAPE TREATMENT AND SIDEWALKS

A. The streetscape treatment along the Site's public street frontages shall comply with the requirements of the
Ordinance.

B. Sidewalks shall be installed along the Site's public street frontages as depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The
sidewalk to be installed along the Site's frontage on Park Center Drive shall match the design of the existing
sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive and shall include pavers and other
features of the existing sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive.

C. A sidewalk easement shall be conveyed to the Town of Matthews for any portion of the public sidewalks
that are located on the Site and outside of the public right of way.

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

A. The maximum height of any building constructed on the Site shall be 40 feet.

B. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the front elevations of the building
(the elevations facing North Ames Street and Park Center Drive) to be constructed on the Site that will be
devoted to a child day care facility that are intended to depict the general conceptual architectural style and
character of the front elevations of this building.  Accordingly, the front elevations of the building to be
constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility shall be designed and constructed so
that the front elevations are substantially similar in appearance to the attached relevant conceptual
architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, changes and alterations which do not materially
change the overall conceptual architectural style and character shall be permitted.

C. As depicted on the conceptual architectural renderings, the primary exterior building materials used on a
building devoted to a child day care facility shall be brick, stone and precast stone or precast concrete.

D. A building devoted to a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the side and rear
elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the front elevation and the same
percentage brick as the front elevation.

E. The main entrance into a building devoted to a child care facility is designated on the rezoning plan.

F. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any building to be constructed on the Site that shall be devoted
to a use or uses other than a child day care facility, the site plan and the building elevations for such building
must be approved by the Matthews Board of  Commissioners. Any building to be constructed on the Site
that shall be devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture,
such that the side and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the
front elevation and the same percentage brick as the front elevation.

SCREENING

A. Dumpster and recycling areas will be enclosed on all four sides with three sides being
enclosed by opaque walls and one side being enclosed by a hinged opaque gate.  If one or
more sides of a dumpster and recycling area adjoin a side wall or rear wall of the building, then
the side wall or rear wall of the building may be substituted for the wall or fence along each
such side.

B. The opaque walls of a dumpster and recycling are enclosure shall be masonry walls clad with
the same brick as the brick on the building to be constructed on the Site.

SIGNS

A. All signs installed on the Site shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.

BINDING EFFECT OF THE REZONING APPLICATION

A. If this Rezoning Application is approved, all conditions applicable to the development and/or
use of the Site imposed under this Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided
under the Ordinance, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Applicant and the current and
subsequent owners of the Site and their respective successors in interest and assigns.
Throughout these Development Standards, the terms, "Applicant" and "owner" or "owners"
shall be deemed to include the heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest
and assigns of Applicant or the owner or owners of the Site from time to time who may be
involved in any future development thereof.

1

1

1

1

1

1

zoning
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



S
ur

ve
y/

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
d

iti
on

s 
P

la
n

R
Z

-1

as
 n

ot
ed

REZONING PETITION #2016-xxx

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

blynd
Date Stamp

zoning
SUPERCEDED



PARK CENTER DRIVE
(70' PUBLIC R/W)

N
O

R
TH

 A
M

E
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
36' P

U
B

LIC
 R

/W
D

B
 8156-955

EXIST. STREET
TREES (TYP)
TO REMAIN

EXIST.
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

EXIST. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
ENCROACHES INTO PROPERTY

PROPERTY LINE

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (6 SP.)
TO BE STRIPED

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (5 SP.)

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING SITE
 LIGHTING (TYP)

E
X

IS
T. R

/W

PROP. SIDEWALK
TIE TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 6'
MONOLITHIC SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK
8' PLANTING STRIP

SIDEWALK ESMT
2' OFF BACK OF WALK

EXIST. SITE
LIGHTING (TYP)

ACCESSIBLE
RAMP

PROP. DUMPSTER
W/SOLID ENCLOSURE

PROP. FLAGPOLE

25
'x2

5'
 S

IG
HT

 T
RIA

NGLE

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

PRIMROSE SCHOOL
OF MATTHEWS

LOT 2
1.20 AC.

PLAYGROUND
FENCING (TYP)

PLAYGROUND FENCING
AT BACK OF SIDEWALK

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 E
S

M
T

R
ez

on
in

g 
P

la
n

R
Z

-2

1"
 =

 2
0'

REZONING PETITION #2016-xxx

VICINITY MAP

SITE

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

TAX PARCEL ID #: 193-243-07

TOTAL SITE AREA: +/-1.20 AC.

EXISTING ZONING: I-1

PROPOSED ZONING: O (CD)

PROPOSED USE: CHILD DAY CARE &
OTHER USES

SETBACKS:
FRONT: 12'
SIDE: 8' & 6'
SIDE (CORNER): 10'
REAR: 20'

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 40'

VEHICULAR PARKING:
REQUIRED:

1 SPACE/ 2 ADULT & 1 SPACE/10 CHILDREN
PROPOSED:

SITE: 45
STREET: 11

BICYCLE PARKING:
REQUIRED: 2
PROPOSED: 2

TREE CANOPY
REQUIRED: 6,220 SF (12%)
PROVIDED: 8,000 SF

PLAYGROUND AREA:
REQUIRED: 185 MAX CHILDREN/2 = 93 CHILDREN

93 * 100 SF = 9,300 SF

PROVIDED: 12,500 SF

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

2

blynd
Date Stamp

zoning
SUPERCEDED



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

s 
&

 N
ot

es
R

Z
-3

nt
s

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

REZONING PETITION #2016-xxx

1
09

.2
9.

15
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan associated with
the Rezoning Application filed by Primrose School Franchising Company
(“Applicant”) for an approximately 1.2 acre site located on the west side of Park
Center Drive between Matthews Township Parkway and North Ames Street,
which site is more particularly depicted on the Rezoning Plan (hereinafter referred
to as the “Site”).

B. The development and use of the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan,
these Development Standards and the applicable provisions of the Town of
Matthews Unified Development Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).  The regulations
established under the Ordinance for the O zoning district shall govern the use and
development of the Site.

C. Subject to paragraph E under Architectural Standards, the location of any building
to be constructed on the Site and the location of parking areas and other
improvements shall be governed by the standards and regulations set out in the
Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a building devoted to a child day care
facility and the associated parking areas and other improvements shall be located
on the site as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

PERMITTED USES

A. The Site may be devoted to any use or uses that are permitted by right or under
prescribed conditions in the O zoning district and to any incidental and accessory
uses associated therewith that are allowed in the O zoning district.

DEVELOPMENT LIMITATIONS/MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA

A. A child day care facility developed on the Site shall be subject to the following
limitations:

(1) The maximum number of children that may be served on the Site shall be 185.

(2) The maximum size of a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be
12,800 square feet of gross floor area.

(3) A child day care facility shall comply with the applicable requirements of Section
155.506.6 of the Ordinance.

B. The maximum size of a building devoted to a use or uses other than a child day
care facility shall be 20,000 square feet of gross floor area.

C. For purposes of the limitations set out above, “gross floor area” shall mean the
total floor area enclosed within a building, including interior balconies, exclusive
of mezzanines, stairways and elevator shafts.

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS

A. Development of the Site shall comply with the dimensional standards of the O
zoning district and the Downtown Overlay District set out in the Ordinance.

TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING

A. Vehicular access shall be as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The
placement and configuration of the access points are subject to any minor
modifications required by the Town of Matthews.

B. Vehicular parking shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of the
Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall
be provided on the Site.

C. In addition to the on-site vehicular parking spaces described above, a minimum
of 11 on-street parking spaces shall be located along the Site's frontages on
North Ames Street and Park Center Drive as depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

STREETSCAPE TREATMENT AND SIDEWALKS

A. The streetscape treatment along the Site's public street frontages shall comply
with the requirements of the Ordinance.

B. Sidewalks shall be installed along the Site's public street frontages as depicted
on the Rezoning Plan.

C. A sidewalk easement shall be conveyed to the Town of Matthews for any portion
of the public sidewalks that are located on the Site and outside of the public right
of way.

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

A. The maximum height of any building constructed on the Site shall be 40 feet.

B. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the
front elevations of the building (the elevations facing North Ames Street and Park
Center Drive) to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day
care facility that are intended to depict the general conceptual architectural style
and character of the front elevations of this building.  Accordingly, the front
elevations of the building to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a
child day care facility shall be designed and constructed so that the front
elevations are substantially similar in appearance to the attached relevant
conceptual architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, changes and
alterations which do not materially change the overall conceptual architectural
style and character shall be permitted.

C. The primary exterior building materials used on a building devoted to a child day
care facility will be a combination of portions of the following: brick, stone,
precast stone, synthetic stone, cementitious siding (such as hardi-plank) and
wood.  Vinyl as a building material may only be used on windows, soffits, trim and
shutters.

D. A building devoted to a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture,
such that the side and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior
building materials as the front elevation and the same percentage brick as the
front elevation.

E. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any building to be constructed on
the Site that shall be devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility,
the site plan and the building elevations for such building must be approved by
the Matthews Board of  Commissioners.

2
12

.0
8.

15
U

D
P

A
D

D
'L

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 &

 R
O

TA
TE

 B
LD

G

SCREENING

A. Dumpster and recycling areas will be enclosed on all four sides by an opaque wall
or fence with one side being a hinged opaque gate.  If one or more sides of a
dumpster and recycling area adjoin a side wall or rear wall of the building, then
the side wall or rear wall of the building may be substituted for the wall or fence
along each such side.

SIGNS

A. All signs installed on the Site shall comply with the requirements of the
Ordinance.

BINDING EFFECT OF THE REZONING APPLICATION

A. If this Rezoning Application is approved, all conditions applicable to the
development and/or use of the Site imposed under this Rezoning Plan will, unless
amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of Applicant and the current and subsequent owners of the Site and
their respective successors in interest and assigns.  Throughout these
Development Standards, the terms, "Applicant" and "owner" or "owners" shall be
deemed to include the heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in
interest and assigns of Applicant or the owner or owners of the Site from time to
time who may be involved in any future development thereof.

blynd
Date Stamp

zoning
SUPERCEDED



S
ur

ve
y/

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
d

iti
on

s 
P

la
n

R
Z

-1

as
 n

ot
ed

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

zoning
CURRENT

zoning
New Stamp



PARK CENTER DRIVE
(70' PUBLIC R/W)

N
O

R
TH

 A
M

E
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
36' P

U
B

LIC
 R

/W
D

B
 8156-955

EXIST. STREET
TREES (TYP)
TO REMAIN

EXIST.
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

EXIST. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
ENCROACHES INTO PROPERTY

PROPERTY LINE

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (6 SP.)
TO BE STRIPED

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (5 SP.)

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING SITE
 LIGHTING (TYP)

E
X

IS
T. R

/W

PROP. SIDEWALK
TIE TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 6'
MONOLITHIC SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK
8' PLANTING STRIP

SIDEWALK ESMT
2' OFF BACK OF WALK

EXIST. SITE
LIGHTING (TYP)

ACCESSIBLE
RAMP

PROP. DUMPSTER
W/BRICK ENCLOSURE

PROP. FLAGPOLE

25
'x2

5'
 S

IG
HT

 T
RIA

NGLE

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

PRIMROSE SCHOOL
OF MATTHEWS

LOT 2
1.20 AC.

PLAYGROUND
FENCING (TYP)

PLAYGROUND FENCING
AT BACK OF SIDEWALK

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 E
S

M
T

CONSTRUCT SIDEWALK
TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

20' FR
O

N
T S

E
TB

A
C

K

PRIMARY
ENTRANCE

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

R
ez

on
in

g 
P

la
n

R
Z

-2

1"
 =

 2
0'

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

VICINITY MAP

SITE

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

TAX PARCEL ID #: 193-243-07

TOTAL SITE AREA: +/-1.20 AC.

EXISTING ZONING: I-1

PROPOSED ZONING: O (CD)

PROPOSED USE: CHILD DAY CARE &
OTHER USES

SETBACKS:
FRONT (PARK CENTER): 20' MAX.
SIDE: 6'
SIDE (NORTH AMES): 20' MIN., 30' MAX.
REAR: 20'

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 40'

VEHICULAR PARKING:
REQUIRED:

1 SPACE/ 2 ADULTS 13 (25 FACULTY/STAFF)
1 SPACE/10 CHILDREN 19 (185 KIDS)
TOTAL: 32 SPACES

PROPOSED:
SITE: 45 SPACES
STREET: 11 SPACES
TOTAL: 56 SPACES

BICYCLE PARKING:
REQUIRED: 2
PROPOSED: 2

TREE CANOPY
REQUIRED: 6,220 SF (12%)
PROVIDED: 8,000 SF

PLAYGROUND AREA:
REQUIRED: 185 MAX CHILDREN/2 = 93 CHILDREN

93 * 100 SF = 9,300 SF

PROVIDED: 12,200 SF

BUILDING FRONTAGE
AMES STREET 175 FT
REQUIRED 75% COVERAGE: 131 FT
BUILDING WIDTH: 136 FT

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

2

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

ALONG STREET FRONTAGES
DECORATIVE FENCE

zoning
CURRENT

zoning
New Stamp



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

s 
&

 N
ot

es
R

Z
-3

nt
s

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group
Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365
Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624
(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan associated with the Rezoning Application
filed by Primrose School Franchising Company (“Applicant”) for an approximately 1.2 acre site located on
the west side of Park Center Drive between Matthews Township Parkway and North Ames Street, which
site is more particularly depicted on the Rezoning Plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Site”).

B. The development and use of the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan, these Development Standards
and the applicable provisions of the Town of Matthews Unified Development Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
The regulations established under the Ordinance for the O zoning district shall govern the use and
development of the Site.

C. Subject to paragraph F under Architectural Standards, the location of any building to be constructed on the
Site and the location of parking areas and other improvements shall be governed by the standards and
regulations set out in the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a building devoted to a child day care
facility and the associated parking areas and other improvements shall be located on the site as generally
depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

PERMITTED USES

A. The Site may be devoted to any use or uses that are permitted by right or under prescribed conditions in the
O zoning district and to any incidental and accessory uses associated therewith that are allowed in the O
zoning district.

DEVELOPMENT LIMITATIONS/MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA

A. A child day care facility developed on the Site shall be subject to the following limitations:

(1) The maximum number of children that may be served on the Site shall be 185.

(2) The maximum size of a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be 12,800 square feet of gross floor
area.

(3) A child day care facility shall comply with the applicable requirements of Section 155.506.6 of the
Ordinance.

B. The maximum size of a building devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility shall be 20,000
square feet of gross floor area.

C. For purposes of the limitations set out above, “gross floor area” shall mean the total floor area enclosed
within a building, including interior balconies, exclusive of mezzanines, stairways and elevator shafts.

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS

A. Development of the Site shall comply with the dimensional standards of the O zoning district and the
Downtown Overlay District set out in the Ordinance.

TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING

A. Vehicular access shall be as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The placement and configuration of
the access points are subject to any minor modifications required by the Town of Matthews.

B. Vehicular parking shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding
the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be provided on the Site.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be constructed on the Site for a child
day facility located on the Site.  Of these 45 parking spaces, a minimum of 40 shall be devoted to the child
day care facility.

D. In addition to the on-site vehicular parking spaces described above, a minimum of 11 on-street parking
spaces shall be located along the Site's frontages on North Ames Street and Park Center Drive as depicted
on the Rezoning Plan.

STREETSCAPE TREATMENT AND SIDEWALKS

A. The streetscape treatment along the Site's public street frontages shall comply with the requirements of the
Ordinance.

B. Sidewalks shall be installed along the Site's public street frontages as depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The
sidewalk to be installed along the Site's frontage on Park Center Drive shall match the design of the existing
sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive and shall include pavers and other
features of the existing sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive.

C. A sidewalk easement shall be conveyed to the Town of Matthews for any portion of the public sidewalks
that are located on the Site and outside of the public right of way.

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

A. The maximum height of any building constructed on the Site shall be 40 feet.

B. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the front elevations of the building
(the elevations facing North Ames Street and Park Center Drive) to be constructed on the Site that will be
devoted to a child day care facility that are intended to depict the general conceptual architectural style and
character of the front elevations of this building.  Accordingly, the front elevations of the building to be
constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility shall be designed and constructed so
that the front elevations are substantially similar in appearance to the attached relevant conceptual
architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, changes and alterations which do not materially
change the overall conceptual architectural style and character shall be permitted.

C. As depicted on the conceptual architectural renderings, the primary exterior building materials used on a
building devoted to a child day care facility shall be brick, stone and precast stone or precast concrete.

D. A building devoted to a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the side and rear
elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the front elevation and the same
percentage brick as the front elevation.

E. The main entrance into a building devoted to a child care facility is designated on the rezoning plan.

F. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any building to be constructed on the Site that shall be devoted
to a use or uses other than a child day care facility, the site plan and the building elevations for such building
must be approved by the Matthews Board of  Commissioners. Any building to be constructed on the Site
that shall be devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture,
such that the side and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the
front elevation and the same percentage brick as the front elevation.

SCREENING

A. Dumpster and recycling areas will be enclosed on all four sides with three sides being
enclosed by opaque walls and one side being enclosed by a hinged opaque gate.  If one or
more sides of a dumpster and recycling area adjoin a side wall or rear wall of the building, then
the side wall or rear wall of the building may be substituted for the wall or fence along each
such side.

B. The opaque walls of a dumpster and recycling are enclosure shall be masonry walls clad with
the same brick as the brick on the building to be constructed on the Site.

SIGNS

A. All signs installed on the Site shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.

BINDING EFFECT OF THE REZONING APPLICATION

A. If this Rezoning Application is approved, all conditions applicable to the development and/or
use of the Site imposed under this Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided
under the Ordinance, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Applicant and the current and
subsequent owners of the Site and their respective successors in interest and assigns.
Throughout these Development Standards, the terms, "Applicant" and "owner" or "owners"
shall be deemed to include the heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest
and assigns of Applicant or the owner or owners of the Site from time to time who may be
involved in any future development thereof.

1

1

1

1

1

1

zoning
CURRENT

zoning
New Stamp



zoning
CURRENT

zoning
New Stamp



S
ur

ve
y/

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
d

iti
on

s 
P

la
n

R
Z

-1

as
 n

ot
ed

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

srobertson
New Stamp



PARK CENTER DRIVE
(70' PUBLIC R/W)

N
O

R
TH

 A
M

E
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
36' P

U
B

LIC
 R

/W
D

B
 8156-955

EXIST. STREET
TREES (TYP)
TO REMAIN

EXIST.
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

EXIST. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
ENCROACHES INTO PROPERTY

PROPERTY LINE

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (6 SP.)
TO BE STRIPED

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (5 SP.)

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING SITE
 LIGHTING (TYP)

E
X

IS
T. R

/W

PROP. SIDEWALK
TIE TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 6'
MONOLITHIC SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK
8' PLANTING STRIP

SIDEWALK ESMT
2' OFF BACK OF WALK

EXIST. SITE
LIGHTING (TYP)

ACCESSIBLE
RAMP

PROP. DUMPSTER
W/BRICK ENCLOSURE

PROP. FLAGPOLE

25
'x2

5'
 S

IG
HT

 T
RIA

NGLE

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

PRIMROSE SCHOOL
OF MATTHEWS

LOT 2
1.20 AC.

PLAYGROUND
FENCING (TYP)

PLAYGROUND FENCING
AT BACK OF SIDEWALK

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 E
S

M
T

CONSTRUCT SIDEWALK
TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

20' FR
O

N
T S

E
TB

A
C

K

PRIMARY
ENTRANCE

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

BENCH IN SIDEWALK
SELECTION BY OWNER

BENCH IN SIDEWALK
SELECTION BY OWNER

R
ez

on
in

g 
P

la
n

R
Z

-2

1"
 =

 2
0'

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

VICINITY MAP

SITE

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

TAX PARCEL ID #: 193-243-07

TOTAL SITE AREA: +/-1.20 AC.

EXISTING ZONING: I-1

PROPOSED ZONING: O (CD)

PROPOSED USE: CHILD DAY CARE &
OTHER USES

SETBACKS:
FRONT (PARK CENTER): 20' MAX.
SIDE: 6'
SIDE (NORTH AMES): 20' MIN., 30' MAX.
REAR: 20'

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 40'

VEHICULAR PARKING:
REQUIRED:

1 SPACE/ 2 ADULTS 13 (25 FACULTY/STAFF)
1 SPACE/10 CHILDREN 19 (185 KIDS)
TOTAL: 32 SPACES

PROPOSED:
SITE: 45 SPACES
STREET: 11 SPACES
TOTAL: 56 SPACES

BICYCLE PARKING:
REQUIRED: 2
PROPOSED: 2

TREE CANOPY
REQUIRED: 6,220 SF (12%)
PROVIDED: 8,000 SF

PLAYGROUND AREA:
REQUIRED: 185 MAX CHILDREN/2 = 93 CHILDREN

93 * 100 SF = 9,300 SF

PROVIDED: 12,200 SF

BUILDING FRONTAGE
AMES STREET 175 FT
REQUIRED 75% COVERAGE: 131 FT
BUILDING WIDTH: 136 FT

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

2

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

DECORATIVE FENCE

2
05

.0
2.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

2

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-243-01  MARY C. HULSEY FAMILY LP  DB 13102-516  ZONING: C

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-01 STEVEN H. KNICKERBOCKER  DB 08156-955  ZONING: R-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-02 JACK REED JR.   DB 13880-632  ZONING: R-12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-03 KATHRIN E. ROWAN  DB 2221-409  ZONING: R-12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 MATTHEWS PARKWAY  CORPORATE CENTER MORNINGSTAR OFFICE LLC M.B. 51, PG. 412 D.B. 24564, PG. 796 193-243-06 ZONING: I-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEWS LOFTS LLC DB 26531-219 193-271-47

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIDE YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 MATTHEWS PARKWAY  CORPORATE CENTER OCRE I, LLC M.B. 51, PG. 412 D.B. 26359, PG. 484 193-243-05 ZONING: I-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIDE YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH = 20 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. JOHN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. AMES ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAM NEWELL RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(US HWY 51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. CHARLES ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOIS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MATTHEWS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. FREEDOM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEABOARD COAST RxR

srobertson
New Stamp



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

s 
&

 N
ot

es
R

Z
-3

nt
s

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan associated with the Rezoning Application
filed by Primrose School Franchising Company (“Applicant”) for an approximately 1.2 acre site located on
the west side of Park Center Drive between Matthews Township Parkway and North Ames Street, which
site is more particularly depicted on the Rezoning Plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Site”).

B. The development and use of the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan, these Development Standards
and the applicable provisions of the Town of Matthews Unified Development Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
The regulations established under the Ordinance for the O zoning district shall govern the use and
development of the Site.

C. Subject to paragraph G under Architectural Standards, the location of any building to be constructed on the
Site and the location of parking areas and other improvements shall be governed by the standards and
regulations set out in the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a building devoted to a child day care
facility and the associated parking areas and other improvements shall be located on the site as generally
depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

PERMITTED USES

A. The Site may be devoted only to the following uses and to any incidental and accessory uses associated
therewith that are allowed in the O zoning district.

(1) General and professional offices

(2) Medical, dental, optical offices and clinics.

(3) Laboratory and research facilities, medical, dental or optical.

(4) A child day care facility.

DEVELOPMENT LIMITATIONS/MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA

A. A child day care facility developed on the Site shall be subject to the following limitations:

(1) The maximum number of children that may be served on the Site shall be 185.

(2) The maximum size of a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be 12,800 square feet of gross floor
area.

(3) A child day care facility shall comply with the applicable requirements of Section 155.506.6 of the
Ordinance.

B. The maximum size of a building devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility shall be 20,000
square feet of gross floor area.

C. For purposes of the limitations set out above, “gross floor area” shall mean the total floor area enclosed
within a building, including interior balconies, exclusive of mezzanines, stairways and elevator shafts.

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS

A. Development of the Site shall comply with the dimensional standards of the O zoning district and the
Downtown Overlay District set out in the Ordinance.

TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING

A. Vehicular access shall be as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The placement and configuration of
the access points are subject to any minor modifications required by the Town of Matthews.

B. Vehicular parking shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding
the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be provided on the Site.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be constructed on the Site for a child
day facility located on the Site.  Of these 45 parking spaces, a minimum of 40 shall be devoted to the child
day care facility.

D. In addition to the on-site vehicular parking spaces described above, a minimum of 11 on-street parking
spaces shall be located along the Site's frontages on North Ames Street and Park Center Drive as depicted
on the Rezoning Plan.

E. If the Town of Matthews determines that it is necessary for the safety and efficiency of Park Center Drive
and North Ames Street as a result of the traffic generated by a child day care facility on the Site, and the
Town of Matthews advises the operator of a child day care facility of such necessity, then the operator of a
child day care facility on the Site shall hire one off-duty law enforcement officer or one private security
officer to manage traffic at the vehicular access points into the Site and/or at the intersection of Park Center
Drive and North Ames Street during the transportation peak hours of the child day care facility.  The
transportation peak hours of the child day care facility shall be defined as 7:00 AM to 9:00 AM and 4:00 PM
to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday (excluding holidays).  If the Town of Matthews subsequently determines
that it is no longer necessary for the operator of a child day care facility on the Site to continue to hire one
off-duty law enforcement officer or one private security officer to manage traffic at the vehicular access
points into the Site and/or at the intersection of Park Center Drive and North Ames Street during the
transportation peak hours of the child day care facility, then the operator of a child day care facility on the
Site shall no longer be required to do so.  In making the determinations set out above, the Town of
Matthews shall consult with the Town Engineer, and the operator of a child day care facility on the Site may
engage a traffic engineer to consult with the Town and the Town Engineer as well with respect to these
determinations.  This paragraph E shall only apply to a child day care facility on the Site.

F. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a child day care facility on the Site, the operator of a
child day care facility on the Site shall pay the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) to the Town of
Matthews to be used by the Town of Matthews for future improvements to North Ames Street.  This
paragraph F shall only apply to a child day care facility on the Site.

STREETSCAPE TREATMENT AND SIDEWALKS

A. The streetscape treatment along the Site's public street frontages shall comply with the requirements of the
Ordinance.

B. Sidewalks shall be installed along the Site's public street frontages as depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The
sidewalk to be installed along the Site's frontage on Park Center Drive shall match the design of the existing
sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive and shall include pavers and other
features of the existing sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive.

C. A sidewalk easement shall be conveyed to the Town of Matthews for any portion of the public sidewalks
that are located on the Site and outside of the public right of way.

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

A. The maximum height of any building constructed on the Site shall be 40 feet.

B. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the front elevations
of the building (the elevations facing North Ames Street and Park Center Drive) to be
constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility that are intended to
depict the general conceptual architectural style and character of the front elevations of this
building.  Accordingly, the front elevations of the building to be constructed on the Site that will
be devoted to a child day care facility shall be designed and constructed so that the front
elevations are substantially similar in appearance to the attached relevant conceptual
architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, changes and alterations which do not
materially change the overall conceptual architectural style and character shall be permitted.

C. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the north and west
elevations of the building to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care
facility that are intended to depict the general conceptual architectural style and character of
the north and west elevations of this building.  Accordingly, the north and west elevations of
the building to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility shall
be designed and constructed so that the north and west elevations are substantially similar in
appearance to the attached relevant conceptual architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, changes and alterations which do not materially change the overall conceptual
architectural style and character shall be permitted.

D. As depicted on the conceptual architectural renderings, the primary exterior building materials
used on a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be brick, stone and precast stone
or precast concrete.

E. A building devoted to a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the
side and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the
front elevation and the same percentage brick as the front elevation.

F. The main entrance into a building devoted to a child care facility is designated on the rezoning
plan.

G. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any building to be constructed on the Site that
shall be devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility, the site plan and the
building elevations for such building must be approved by the Matthews Board of
Commissioners. Any building to be constructed on the Site that shall be devoted to a use or
uses other than a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the side
and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the front
elevation and the same percentage brick as the front elevation.

SCREENING

A. Dumpster and recycling areas will be enclosed on all four sides with three sides being
enclosed by opaque walls and one side being enclosed by a hinged opaque gate.  If one or
more sides of a dumpster and recycling area adjoin a side wall or rear wall of the building, then
the side wall or rear wall of the building may be substituted for the wall or fence along each
such side.

B. The opaque walls of a dumpster and recycling are enclosure shall be masonry walls clad with
the same brick as the brick on the building to be constructed on the Site.

SIGNS

A. All signs installed on the Site shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.

BINDING EFFECT OF THE REZONING APPLICATION

A. If this Rezoning Application is approved, all conditions applicable to the development and/or
use of the Site imposed under this Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided
under the Ordinance, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Applicant and the current and
subsequent owners of the Site and their respective successors in interest and assigns.
Throughout these Development Standards, the terms, "Applicant" and "owner" or "owners"
shall be deemed to include the heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest
and assigns of Applicant or the owner or owners of the Site from time to time who may be
involved in any future development thereof.

2

1

1

1

1

2

2

2
05

.0
2.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



S
ur

ve
y/

E
xi

st
in

g 
C

on
d

iti
on

s 
P

la
n

R
Z

-1

as
 n

ot
ed

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



PARK CENTER DRIVE
(70' PUBLIC R/W)

N
O

R
TH

 A
M

E
S

 S
TR

E
E

T
36' P

U
B

LIC
 R

/W
D

B
 8156-955

EXIST. STREET
TREES (TYP)
TO REMAIN

EXIST.
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

EXIST. ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
ENCROACHES INTO PROPERTY

PROPERTY LINE

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (6 SP.)
TO BE STRIPED

EXIST. ON-STREET
PARKING (5 SP.)

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING SITE
 LIGHTING (TYP)

E
X

IS
T. R

/W

PROP. SIDEWALK
TIE TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 6'
MONOLITHIC SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK
8' PLANTING STRIP

SIDEWALK ESMT
2' OFF BACK OF WALK

EXIST. SITE
LIGHTING (TYP)

ACCESSIBLE
RAMP

PROP. DUMPSTER
W/BRICK ENCLOSURE

PROP. FLAGPOLE

25
'x2

5'
 S

IG
HT

 T
RIA

NGLE

25'x25' SIGHT

 TRIANGLE

PRIMROSE SCHOOL
OF MATTHEWS

LOT 2
1.20 AC.

PLAYGROUND
FENCING (TYP)

PLAYGROUND FENCING
AT BACK OF SIDEWALK

S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 E
S

M
T

CONSTRUCT SIDEWALK
TO EXIST. DRIVEWAY

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

20' FR
O

N
T S

E
TB

A
C

K

PRIMARY
ENTRANCE

4' DECORATIVE FENCE
ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

BENCH IN SIDEWALK
SELECTION BY OWNER

BENCH IN SIDEWALK
SELECTION BY OWNER

R
ez

on
in

g 
P

la
n

R
Z

-2

1"
 =

 2
0'

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

VICINITY MAP

SITE

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

TAX PARCEL ID #: 193-243-07

TOTAL SITE AREA: +/-1.20 AC.

EXISTING ZONING: I-1

PROPOSED ZONING: O (CD)

PROPOSED USE: CHILD DAY CARE &
OTHER USES

SETBACKS:
FRONT (PARK CENTER): 20' MAX.
SIDE: 6'
SIDE (NORTH AMES): 20' MIN., 30' MAX.
REAR: 20'

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 40'

VEHICULAR PARKING (CHILD DAY CARE FACILITY):
REQUIRED:

1 SPACE/ 2 ADULTS 13 (25 FACULTY/STAFF)
1 SPACE/10 CHILDREN 19 (185 KIDS)
TOTAL: 32 SPACES

PROPOSED:
SITE: 45 SPACES
STREET: 11 SPACES
TOTAL: 56 SPACES

BICYCLE PARKING:
REQUIRED: 2
PROPOSED: 2

TREE CANOPY
REQUIRED: 6,220 SF (12%)
PROVIDED: 8,000 SF

PLAYGROUND AREA:
REQUIRED: 185 MAX CHILDREN/2 = 93 CHILDREN

93 * 100 SF = 9,300 SF

PROVIDED: 12,200 SF

BUILDING FRONTAGE
AMES STREET 175 FT
REQUIRED 75% COVERAGE: 131 FT
BUILDING WIDTH: 136 FT

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

2

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

ALONG STREET FRONTAGES

DECORATIVE FENCE

2
05

.0
2.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

2

3

3 
06

.0
1.

16
U

D
P

N
O

TE
 C

O
R

R
E

C
TI

O
N

S

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-243-01  MARY C. HULSEY FAMILY LP  DB 13102-516  ZONING: C

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-01 STEVEN H. KNICKERBOCKER  DB 08156-955  ZONING: R-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-02 JACK REED JR.   DB 13880-632  ZONING: R-12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
193-271-03 KATHRIN E. ROWAN  DB 2221-409  ZONING: R-12 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROX R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 MATTHEWS PARKWAY  CORPORATE CENTER MORNINGSTAR OFFICE LLC M.B. 51, PG. 412 D.B. 24564, PG. 796 193-243-06 ZONING: I-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEWS LOFTS LLC DB 26531-219 193-271-47

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIDE YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 MATTHEWS PARKWAY  CORPORATE CENTER OCRE I, LLC M.B. 51, PG. 412 D.B. 26359, PG. 484 193-243-05 ZONING: I-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' SIDE YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 INCH = 20 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTHEWS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. JOHN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. AMES ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAM NEWELL RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(US HWY 51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. CHARLES ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOIS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MATTHEWS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. FREEDOM ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEABOARD COAST RxR

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ta
nd

ar
d

s 
&

 N
ot

es
R

Z
-3

nt
s

N
O

.

D
at

e:

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

B
Y

:
D

A
TE

:

D
es

ig
ne

d
 b

y:

D
ra

w
n 

B
y:

1318-e6 central ave.
charlotte, nc 28205
urbandesignpartners.com

P  704.334.3303
F  704.334.3305

S
ca

le
:

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

S
he

et
 N

o:

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l

 o
f M

at
th

ew
s

A
m

es
 S

tr
ee

t,
 M

at
th

ew
s,

 N
C

ud
pud

p

Ja
nu

ar
y 

27
, 2

01
6

P
rim

ro
se

 S
ch

oo
l 

Fr
an

ch
is

in
g 

C
om

p
an

y

Te
d

 T
ill

m
an

36
60

 C
ed

ar
cr

es
t 

R
oa

d
A

cw
or

th
, G

A
 3

01
01

15
-0

40

Children's Design Group

Mark D. Pavey, A.I.A.-Architect

PO Box 1365

Gulf Shores, AL  36547

(334)-546-3624

(206)-350-0593 Fax

child.design@mindspring.com

nc license no: P-0418

REZONING PETITION #2016-643

1
03

.3
0.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. These Development Standards form a part of the Rezoning Plan associated with the Rezoning Application
filed by Primrose School Franchising Company (“Applicant”) for an approximately 1.2 acre site located on
the west side of Park Center Drive between Matthews Township Parkway and North Ames Street, which
site is more particularly depicted on the Rezoning Plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Site”).

B. The development and use of the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan, these Development Standards
and the applicable provisions of the Town of Matthews Unified Development Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
The regulations established under the Ordinance for the O zoning district shall govern the use and
development of the Site.

C. Subject to paragraph G under Architectural Standards, the location of any building to be constructed on the
Site and the location of parking areas and other improvements shall be governed by the standards and
regulations set out in the Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a building devoted to a child day care
facility and the associated parking areas and other improvements shall be located on the site as generally
depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

PERMITTED USES

A. The Site may be devoted only to the following uses and to any incidental and accessory uses associated
therewith that are allowed in the O zoning district.

(1) General and professional offices

(2) Medical, dental, optical offices and clinics.

(3) Laboratory and research facilities, medical, dental or optical.

(4) A child day care facility.

DEVELOPMENT LIMITATIONS/MAXIMUM GROSS FLOOR AREA

A. A child day care facility developed on the Site shall be subject to the following limitations:

(1) The maximum number of children that may be served on the Site shall be 185.

(2) The maximum size of a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be 12,800 square feet of gross floor
area.

(3) A child day care facility shall comply with the applicable requirements of Section 155.506.6 of the
Ordinance.

B. The maximum size of a building devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility shall be 20,000
square feet of gross floor area.

C. For purposes of the limitations set out above, “gross floor area” shall mean the total floor area enclosed
within a building, including interior balconies, exclusive of mezzanines, stairways and elevator shafts.

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS

A. Development of the Site shall comply with the dimensional standards of the O zoning district and the
Downtown Overlay District set out in the Ordinance.

TRANSPORTATION AND PARKING

A. Vehicular access shall be as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The placement and configuration of
the access points are subject to any minor modifications required by the Town of Matthews.

B. Vehicular parking shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of the Ordinance.

C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a minimum of 45 parking spaces shall be constructed on the Site for a child
day facility located on the Site.  Of these 45 parking spaces, a minimum of 40 shall be devoted to the child
day care facility.

D. In addition to the on-site vehicular parking spaces described above, a minimum of 11 on-street parking
spaces shall be located along the Site's frontages on North Ames Street and Park Center Drive as depicted
on the Rezoning Plan.

E. If the Town of Matthews determines that it is necessary for the safety and efficiency of Park Center Drive
and North Ames Street as a result of the traffic generated by a child day care facility on the Site, and the
Town of Matthews advises the operator of a child day care facility of such necessity, then the operator of a
child day care facility on the Site shall hire one off-duty law enforcement officer or one private security
officer to manage traffic at the vehicular access points into the Site and/or at the intersection of Park Center
Drive and North Ames Street during the transportation peak hours of the child day care facility.  The
transportation peak hours of the child day care facility shall be defined as 7:00 AM to 9:00 AM and 4:00 PM
to 6:00 PM Monday through Friday (excluding holidays).  If the Town of Matthews subsequently determines
that it is no longer necessary for the operator of a child day care facility on the Site to continue to hire one
off-duty law enforcement officer or one private security officer to manage traffic at the vehicular access
points into the Site and/or at the intersection of Park Center Drive and North Ames Street during the
transportation peak hours of the child day care facility, then the operator of a child day care facility on the
Site shall no longer be required to do so.  In making the determinations set out above, the Town of
Matthews shall consult with the Town Engineer, and the operator of a child day care facility on the Site may
engage a traffic engineer to consult with the Town and the Town Engineer as well with respect to these
determinations.  This paragraph E shall only apply to a child day care facility on the Site.

F. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for a child day care facility on the Site, the operator of a
child day care facility on the Site shall pay the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) to the Town of
Matthews to be used by the Town of Matthews for future improvements to North Ames Street.  This
paragraph F shall only apply to a child day care facility on the Site.

STREETSCAPE TREATMENT AND SIDEWALKS

A. The streetscape treatment along the Site's public street frontages shall comply with the requirements of the
Ordinance.

B. Sidewalks shall be installed along the Site's public street frontages as depicted on the Rezoning Plan.  The
sidewalk to be installed along the Site's frontage on Park Center Drive shall match the design of the existing
sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive and shall include pavers and other
features of the existing sidewalk located on the opposite or east side of Park Center Drive.

C. A sidewalk easement shall be conveyed to the Town of Matthews for any portion of the public sidewalks
that are located on the Site and outside of the public right of way.

ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

A. The maximum height of any building constructed on the Site shall be 40 feet.

B. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the front elevations
of the building (the elevations facing North Ames Street and Park Center Drive) to be
constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility that are intended to
depict the general conceptual architectural style and character of the front elevations of this
building.  Accordingly, the front elevations of the building to be constructed on the Site that will
be devoted to a child day care facility shall be designed and constructed so that the front
elevations are substantially similar in appearance to the attached relevant conceptual
architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, changes and alterations which do not
materially change the overall conceptual architectural style and character shall be permitted.

C. Attached to the Rezoning Plan are conceptual architectural renderings of the north and west
elevations of the building to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care
facility that are intended to depict the general conceptual architectural style and character of
the north and west elevations of this building.  Accordingly, the north and west elevations of
the building to be constructed on the Site that will be devoted to a child day care facility shall
be designed and constructed so that the north and west elevations are substantially similar in
appearance to the attached relevant conceptual architectural renderings.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, changes and alterations which do not materially change the overall conceptual
architectural style and character shall be permitted.

D. As depicted on the conceptual architectural renderings, the primary exterior building materials
used on a building devoted to a child day care facility shall be brick, stone and precast stone
or precast concrete.

E. A building devoted to a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the
side and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the
front elevations and the same percentage brick as the front elevations.

F. The main entrance into a building devoted to a child care facility is designated on the Rezoning
Plan.

G. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for any building to be constructed on the Site that
shall be devoted to a use or uses other than a child day care facility, the site plan and the
building elevations for such building must be approved by the Matthews Board of
Commissioners. Any building to be constructed on the Site that shall be devoted to a use or
uses other than a child day care facility shall have four sided architecture, such that the side
and rear elevations of the building shall have the same exterior building materials as the front
elevation and the same percentage brick as the front elevation.

SCREENING

A. Dumpster and recycling areas will be enclosed on all four sides with three sides being
enclosed by opaque walls and one side being enclosed by a hinged opaque gate.  If one or
more sides of a dumpster and recycling area adjoin a side wall or rear wall of the building, then
the side wall or rear wall of the building may be substituted for the wall  along each such side.

B. The opaque walls of a dumpster and recycling area enclosure shall be masonry walls clad with
the same brick as the brick on the building to be constructed on the Site.

SIGNS

A. All signs installed on the Site shall comply with the requirements of the Ordinance.

BINDING EFFECT OF THE REZONING APPLICATION

A. If this Rezoning Application is approved, all conditions applicable to the development and/or
use of the Site imposed under this Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided
under the Ordinance, be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Applicant and the current and
subsequent owners of the Site and their respective successors in interest and assigns.
Throughout these Development Standards, the terms, "Applicant" and "owner" or "owners"
shall be deemed to include the heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest
and assigns of Applicant or the owner or owners of the Site from time to time who may be
involved in any future development thereof.

2

1

1

1

1

2

2

2
05

.0
2.

16
U

D
P

P
E

R
 S

TA
FF

 C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

1

1

3

3

3

3 
06

.0
1.

16
U

D
P

N
O

TE
 C

O
R

R
E

C
TI

O
N

S

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



blynd
New Stamp



blynd
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



zoning
New Stamp



 

 

  
 
Decision on Application 2016-643 Primrose School 
 
DATE: June 8, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue: 
After deferral of the decision for this zoning case on May 4, the following items have changed or 
been addressed: 
 

 The only changes to the conditional notes were corrections to grammatical and spelling 
errors. 
 

 The applicant continues to offer a choice of a traffic officer and $10,000 towards road 
improvements or a single $25,000 payment for road improvements with no traffic officer. 
 

 Public Works has estimated the cost of adding additional asphalt to widen Ames to 24’ at 
$85,000. 
 

 Chief Hunter has indicated that he does not see the need for a traffic control officer. He is also 
concerned with potential closure of the Ames access point. His comments are attached. 
 

 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
Based on comments from Chief Hunter, move forward with the $25,000 option for road improvements and 
allow the Ames Street driveway on the site plan to remain.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Approve rezoning application 2016-643    

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Suggested Town Board Consistency and 
Reasonableness Statements for all zoning actions: 
(Complete one statement each for #1 and #2 below) 

 

1) The requested zoning action IS REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

 

The proposed childcare center is a new amenity for downtown Matthews and will be located within 
an attractive and well design building that blends well with the character of the architecture in the 
area. 

 

 

 OR 
 The requested zoning action IS NOT REASONABLE and in the public interest because: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

2) The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS CONSISTENT with the policies for 
development as outlined by the Matthews Land Use Plan, and/or Town’s long-range Vision 
Statements, and/or other adopted policies/plans. 

 

 OR 
The requested zoning action, as most currently amended, IS NOT CONSISTENT with the 
Matthews Land Use Plan and/or other adopted land development policies and plans. 

 

 

 

(Town Board:  It is acceptable to determine a request is INCONSISTENT and still 
eligible for approval, or that the zoning request is CONSISTENT with adopted 
plans but still vote to deny the request.) 



6/8/2016 Matthewsnc.gov Mail - Primrose School 2016-643

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=ab8bf1699e&view=pt&q=rhunter%20ames&qs=true&search=query&th=154df2bbdc50cc1e&siml=154df2bbdc50cc1e 1/1

Jay Camp <jcamp@matthewsnc.gov>

Primrose School 2016-643 
1 message

Chief Rob Hunter <rhunter@matthewsnc.gov> Mon, May 23, 2016 at 3:50 PM
To: Jay Camp <jcamp@matthewsnc.gov>
Cc: Kathi Ingrish <kingrish@matthewsnc.gov>

I failed to share these thoughts/recommendations following the recent public hearing, but would like to
place these into the record:

1. Traffic control officer offer - while I was unaware this had been suggested/offered, I would not see
the safety need for this detail. While I recognize that at least twice daily there will be an increased
traffic flow for drop-off / pick-up, as this will occur from / onto two local streets with minimal traffic, I
do not think an officer would be beneficial nor could I find that need. 

There is currently a traffic control device (3-way stop) in front of the property; and as the two access
points to the property are in such close proximity to this intersection, the traffic speeds of any non-
involved vehicles would be so slow, if not stopped, the need would be unwarranted.

2. Consideration of closure of Ames Street access point - I would strongly urge this not be done.
Requiring this would result in all vehicles flowing thru the 3-way stop and, as such, cause delays at the
Ortho-Carolina property.  More significantly, such closure would jeopardize emergency responses -
especially Fire Dept - to the property, especially for emergency vehicles responding from Ames Street.
And while not likely, as the portion of Park Center Dr from N Trade St is not and will never be 'public',
there is no assurance of emergency vehicle access from that point. Finally, with such closure, while
technically impermissable for fire trucks to back the required distance from the rear parking lot, that
distance would also greatly heighten the risk for property damage or personal injury by such
movements.

Recommendation - While I take no position on the flow direction within the parking lot - a requirement
for which we would have no enforcement power - I would recommend allowing physical development
as proposed, allow the tenants / property owners to establish the preferred traffic flow patterns, and
for the town to monitor for some period of time any resulting traffic issues.

Chief Rob Hunter
Matthews Police Department
1201 Crews Road
Matthews, N.C. 28105
(704) 841-6731
rhunter@matthewsnc.gov
www.matthewsnc.gov

Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 132, Public Records, this electronic mail message
and any attachments hereto, as well as any electronic mail message(s) that may be sent in response
to it may be considered public record and as such are subject to request and review.

tel:%28704%29%20841-6731
mailto:rhunter@matthewsnc.gov
http://www.matthewspolice.org/


 

 

  
 
Decision on Application 2016-643 Primrose School 
 
DATE: May 4, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue: 
Since the Public Hearing, Planning Board has recommended denial of the rezoning request primarily due to 
concerns over safety along Ames Street. In response, the applicant has added several new conditional notes 
to address those concerns. Below are the changes to the site plan and notes that have occurred since the 
Public Hearing: 
 

 Addition of brick piers to fence detail at street frontage as well as benches along the sidewalk  
 Uses are now limited to only general and medical offices and laboratories and child daycare facilities 
 If the Town deems traffic control necessary at the site, the applicant will hire off duty officers or private 

security to direct traffic from 7:00 AM to 9:00 AM and 4:00 PM to 6:00 PM 
 A payment of $10,000 towards future improvements to North Ames Street will be made prior to a 

Certificate of Occupancy being issued at the site.  
 New building elevations indicate more detailed brickwork and changes to the façade to create more 

visual interest 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
The Downtown Master Plan calls for office zoning at the site as well as improvements to North Ames Street. 
While there are concerns related to traffic to be generated by the proposed use, the site is currently zoned I-1 
and could potentially be developed at  a similar or greater intensity for office or medical use by right. Staff 
recommends approval of the rezoning due to consistency with the adopted Downtown Master Plan as well as 
the most recent changes made to the zoning conditions and architectural elevations.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Approve rezoning application 2016-643    

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Rezoning Staff Analysis  

April 5, 2016 

Project Summary 

Location:   Corner of N. Ames and Park Center Dr. 
                                                    Parcel ID 19324307 

Owner(s):   Center LLC Matthews Parkway Corporate Center.                                          

Agent:               John Carmichael    

 

Current Zoning:  I-1 

 

Proposed Zoning:  Office (CD)  

Existing Use:   Vacant 

Proposed Use:  Child Daycare Facility  

Community Meeting:  Occurred March 8, 2016 

 

Summary of Request 

The applicant proposes to construct a child daycare facility with up to 12,800 sq ft of floor area with a maxi-
mum daily attendance of 185 children. 

 

Staff Recommendation  

This rezoning application is a second attempt to locate a Primrose School on the site. The new site plan 
features a new building footprint and architecture. Staff continues to work with the applicant to ensure the 
design and layout of the property fits within the vision for Downtown Matthews.  

Application: 2016-643  Primrose School 

srobertson
New Stamp



Planning Staff Review 

 

Background And History 

The site is a part of the Matthews Parkway Corporate Center Development that began in 2008. At that 
time, the former Country Place Inn restaurant was demolished and Ames Street was connected to the new 
Park Center Drive. The development, all on I-1 zoned property, created Park Center Drive as a public 
street and 3 new development pads. Morningstar Storage and OrthoCarolina occupied two buildings while 
the subject property remained unbuilt. A previous rezoning plan to locate a Primrose School on the site 
was withdrawn in December 2015.    

Details of the Site Plan 

The layout of the site is revised compared to the recent zoning plan from 2015 and now features an “L” 
shaped building. One of the main concerns about the previous plan was the issue of which street the build-
ing should primarily face. The “L” design solves that concern and generally occupies most of the street 
frontage. Parking access remains along North Ames as well as via cross access easement through the 
OrthoCarolina parking lot. Onsite parking remains the same as the previous plan with 45 total spaces. The 
entrance to the facility was at the corner of N. Ames and Park Center when the current petition was first 
submitted. After feedback from Police and Planning, the entrance has been moving to the corner of the 
building on Ames Street closest to the parking lot. The applicant proposes to match the existing decorative 
concrete and brick accented sidewalk that was installed along the Morningstar Properties building frontage 
across Park Center Drive. This design yields a balanced streetscape with similar cross sections on both 
sides of Park Center Drive.   

 

Summary of Proposed Conditions 

1. Up to 12,800 sq ft of space for a daycare or 20,000 sq ft for other uses in the Office District.  

2. Primarily brick and stone appearance per elevation drawings. 

3. All uses within the Office district are allowed. 

4. Four sided architecture. 

5. Should a daycare not locate at the site, Town Board to approve elevation drawings of any other use. 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

srobertson
New Stamp



Planning Staff Review 

 

Outstanding Issues/Planning Staff Comments  

(Please see additional comments in staff memos for more detail) 

 

1. One additional parking lot tree required. 

2. The proposed trees flanking the driveway on Ames St are in the sight triangle.  

3. Fencing is proposed along the Ames St. frontage to separate exterior classroom doors from 
the public realm. The proposed fence type, height and any landscaping used to screen the 
fencing should be shown in more detail as it affects the relationship of the building to the 
street.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Consistency with Adopted Plans and Policies and Town Vision Statements 

Office is an appropriate zoning designation for the site given the mixture of existing office, multi-
family and single family parcels surrounding the site.  

 

Reports from Town Departments and County Agencies 

 

Matthews Police 
Chief Hunter requested that the main entrance be moved to the side of the building closest to the parking 
lot and applicant has applied this change to the recent plan revision.  

 

Matthews Fire 

Preference that building has a sprinkler system 

Public Works 

No Concerns 

 

Matthews Parks and Recreation 

No Concerns 

 

Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools 

Not Applicable 

 

Town Arborist 

Ralph Ramsaur previously assessed the health of the large oak along North Ames and found it to be in 
decline. He recommends removing it and planting a new tree.  

 

PCO Concept Plan Approval Required?  

Site is exempt from PCO. Stormwater provided via existing shared detention pond.  

 

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Impact Analysis 

As a commercial project, there is no anticipated financial burden from this request. 

 

 

 

 

Projected Financial Impact of the Request 

The existing tax revenue for the site, valued at $182,000, is $621 annually. The anticipated value 
of the land and improvements is approximately $1,700,000 based on the values of several nearby 
childcare facilities. Therefore, annual Matthews tax revenue derived from the site is estimated at 
$5,780. 

 

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Site Images 

 

 

 

 

Exis ng driveway to be used 

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Previous and Current Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Previous Site Plan 

Current Site Plan 

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Full Size Site Plan 

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Elevations 

 

srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Area Zoning 

Subject Property 

srobertson
New Stamp



 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

May 18, 2016 
6:30 pm 

TOWN HALL  
 

 
PRESENT:  Paula Lester, Penny Higdon, Jim Thurman, Mark Brookshire, 

Richard Simmons, and Jay Camp, staff advisor 
 
ABSENT:   Florence Prather and Becky Willard 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Chair Paula Lester called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Minutes from the last meeting were approved as written.  
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Discussed the Sam Newell house and property at 1924 Sam Newell Road.  It 
is not inhabited and appears to be in disrepair. HPAC directed staff to 
investigate the possibility of local historic designation.  Jay Camp will report 
back at our next meeting.  
 
Discussed the upcoming meetings for the Phillips House and Barn.  Paula will 
let everyone know the dates and times when the meetings are announced.   
 
Discussed other possible houses for historic designation. 
 
The National Register sign for the Matthews business block is up in the 
bump-out by Renfrow’s.    
 
Discussed Roseland Cemetery on Monroe Road and the possibility of 
development on the 42 acre site that includes the cemetery.  Of course, the 
cemetery is protected by law.    
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
The committee read through the existing 2012 by-laws and updated them. 
Richard made a motion to accept the updated by-laws seconded by Mark. 
Motion passed unanimously.  Jay will present them to town council for 
adoption.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Meeting dismissed at 7:49 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Paula Lester, interim secretary  
 



 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
MAY 23, 2016 – 5:30 PM 

 
PRESENT: Mayor James Taylor; Mayor Pro Tem John Higdon; Commissioners Chris Melton, Jeff Miller, 

John Ross, John Urban and Larry Whitley; Town Manager Hazen Blodgett, Assistant Town 
Manager Becky Hawke; Communications Director Jen Thompson; Town Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Fire & EMS Chief Dennis Green; Police Chief Rob Hunter; Planning and Development Director 

Kathi Ingrish; Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Director Corey King; Public Works 
Director CJ O’Neill 

 
The Board of Commissioners met with staff to review the proposed fiscal year 2016-17 budget. Town Manager 
Hazen Blodgett reviewed the proposed budget and Capital Improvement and Equipment Plan. Discussion ensued 
regarding various proposed aspects, including a $5.00 increase to the vehicle tag fee, financial contributions to 
organizations including the Arts and Science Council, Red Brick Partnership, The Quad and the National League 
of Cities and an employee merit increase pool. By consensus the Board agreed with the Manager’s 
recommendation to fund a contribution of $25,000 to the Arts and Science Council but will not fund the National 
League of Cities this fiscal year. Opinions differed on the issues of the vehicle tag increase and employee merit 
increase. The Board will continue discussion on these items and the complete budget at the June 6, 2016 budget 
work session. 
 

 
MINUTES 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

MAY 23, 2016 - 7:00 PM 
 
 

PRESENT: Mayor James Taylor; Mayor Pro Tem John Higdon; Commissioners Chris Melton, Jeff Miller, 
John Ross, John Urban and Larry Whitley; Town Manager Hazen Blodgett, Assistant Town 
Manager Becky Hawke; Communications Director Jen Thompson; Town Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Fire & EMS Chief Dennis Green; Police Chief Rob Hunter; Planning and Development Director 

Kathi Ingrish; Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Director Corey King; Public Works 
Director CJ O’Neill 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 

 
 

INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Whitley rendered an invocation.  

 
 

 



Board of Commissioners 
May 23, 2016 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
A Scout from Boy Scout Troop 4 led the audience in the pledge. 
 
 
ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA 
 
None 
 
 
FIRE & EMS SCHOLARSHIP RECOGNITION 
 
Fire & EMS Chief Dennis Green discussed the federal SAFER grant scholarships that were awarded to three 
volunteer members of the Matthews Fire & EMS Department. He introduced scholarship award winner Graham 
Davis, who discussed his use of the scholarship for his upcoming nursing program at UNCC. Chief Green noted 
that Mr. Davis started with the Fire & EMS Department as an Explorer and began volunteering with Matthews at 
age 14 in 2010.  
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
None 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Approve Minutes of the May 9, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting 
B. Approve Minutes of the May 9, 2016 Closed Session Board of Commissioners Meeting 
C. Cancel July 25, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting 
D. Approve Disposal of Surplus Property 
E. Approve Charlotte Water Easement Abandonment 
F. Approve Budget Amendments to Recognize: 

1) Court-Ordered Restitution Payments and Funds in Excess of Budgeted Revenues in 
the Amount of $482.50 

2) Donation to the DARE Program in Excess of Budgeted Revenues in the Amount of 
$1,475.00 

 

Motion by Mr. Miller to approve consent agenda items A through F2. The motion was seconded by Mr.  Higdon 
and unanimously approved.  
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
APPROVE CONTRACT FOR SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
 
Public Works Director CJ O’Neill reviewed the process. The Board elected to pursue a contract for solid waste 
services with Republic Services. Staff has been negotiating the proposed contract and has come up with two 
options: a five year contract or a seven year contract. The seven year contract has slightly lower rates and staff 
recommends the seven year contract, which should save the Town approximately $324,000 annually over the 
current contract.  
 

2 
 



Board of Commissioners 
May 23, 2016 

 
Some information changed very recently and Mr. O’Neill reviewed those items and other contract highlights. The 
Matthews-branded recycling carts will remain but the trash carts will be unbranded. Yard debris terms have 
changed slightly: the same pickup regulations of 20 bags/20 minutes per yard remains but the dimensions that 
can be disposed of drops from five feet in length to four feet since the Foxhole center no longer accepts lengths 
over four feet. There is now an option for additional trash bins to be billed to the consumer directly rather than 
through the Town. The additional bin would be free and the recurring service fee would be billed on a monthly or 
annual basis. The Town currently pays those additional fees. The recommendation is to offer an additional 
recycling bin for free and charge for additional trash bins. Republic has also offered an additional pickup at the 
Police Department and a dumpster at Squirrel Lake Park with pickup at no charge. The Town would have to 
install a pad for the dumpster. In addition, there is no fuel adjustment rate and Republic will increase and 
decrease the rates for service based on the CPI.  
 
Mr. Miller said the costs for additional trash bins should be passed on to those citizens who use them. He noted 
the cost of replacing trash carts with the Town’s logo would be $48.72 per bin. He suggested the Town absorb the 
cost of replacing one hundred per year for a cost of less than $5,000. Discussion ensued regarding logos on 
carts. Mr. O’Neill explained that Republic wouldn’t be able to use the Matthews-branded carts elsewhere so if the 
Town chose another vendor after the contract ended they’d be left with thousands of carts they couldn’t reuse.  
 
Mr. Ross asked how many households have more than one cart. Environmental Advisory Committee Chair 
Gordon Miller explained that the number is in the couple hundred range with some having one extra and others 
having two extra carts. Mr. Ross said he wasn’t in favor of charging citizens extra for additional bins, saying it’s a 
service that the Town provides no matter how much waste there is. Mr. Urban disagreed, saying citizens should 
pay for what they use. He also asked about the informational postcard and Mr. Miller confirmed that the postcard 
is still included and will list more information on what materials can and can’t be collected. Malinda Barkley of 
Republic Services explained that the contract includes cost sharing for the postcard calendar as has been done in 
the past. The next calendar run will be a little more expensive since it will cover six months and then the following 
one will be sent in December to get the Town onto the standard calendar year cycle for 2017.  
 
Mr. Higdon said he doesn’t think it’s worth any extra tax dollars to put a Town logo on a garbage can. He also 
asked about the cost for white good pickups and if the number exceeds 100. Mr. O’Neill explained that was just 
an estimate used in the RFP – the actual contract has no limitation on those pickups.  
 
Mayor Taylor noted the contract requires trash to be placed in a bin and asked if occasional extra bags wouldn’t 
be picked up if they were not placed in a bin. He noted that Republic has always been great about going above 
and beyond in terms of customer service and he expected that same level of great service to be retained with the 
new contract. Ms. Barkley confirmed that the level of service the Town is accustomed to will continue. They may 
need to educate consumers on how to dispose of materials efficiently but they wouldn’t just leave material on the 
ground and drive away.  
 
Mr. Miller asked about the issue of branded carts. Mayor Taylor noted that was a concern of a couple of Board 
members but there has been no consensus. He said he didn’t think a cost of $88,000 per year for branded carts 
could be justified since the non-logoed carts are free. Mr. Miller said he was comfortable continuing with the 
logoed recycling bins and non-logoed trash bins. He said he thought it would be worth it for the Town to spend the 
money to replace approximately a hundred or so logoed recycling bins per year as they became damaged.  
 
Mr. Urban asked about potentially sharing services with nearby towns. Mr. O’Neill said staff is still pursuing that 
but it isn’t a definite. The seven year contract will help align towns on a similar schedule.  
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to approve the seven year contract with Republic Services as recommended by staff and to 
exclude logoed trash containers. The motion was seconded by Mr. Whitley and unanimously approved.  
 

3 
 



Board of Commissioners 
May 23, 2016 

 
Mayor Taylor noted this will save the Town $2.7 million over the course of seven years. He thanked the 
Environmental Advisory Committee, Mr. O’Neill, Ms. Barkley and her staff for their work on this, and said he looks 
forward to a continued great relationship with Republic Services.  
 
 
CONSIDER TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES TO HOOD ROOM  
 
Mr. Melton reviewed the Board’s desire to upgrade some elements of the technology located in the Hood meeting 
room. Commissioners Melton and Miller worked with staff to review options and vendor proposals. At minimum 
the projector and screen need to be improved or replaced. Other options to allow for better general 
communication include the addition of two monitors at the back of the room and one immediately outside it as well 
as potential repairs or upgrades to the audio system. Four vendors submitted proposals ranging from $24,000 to 
$54,000. Mr. Melton noted that the recommended motion in the memo is to engage Simply Smart Technology to 
finalize a scope of work and negotiate financial terms. Additional information regarding the existing screen has 
come in since then and he asked the Board instead to come to consensus on whether to move forward with 
replacements or investigate simply exchanging the screen through the manufacturer.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding possible room configurations and technology options. By consensus the Board 
agreed to have the group pursue replacement of the projector and screen and investigate replacement of the 
screen material itself as well as complete replacement of the entire unit. Any additional improvements will noted 
as alternate option. This will be discussed again at a future meeting. 
 
 
RECEIVE UPDATE ON 2016 PLANNING CONFERENCE TO DO LIST 
 
Town Manager Hazen Blodgett reviewed the list. He noted that more information will be coming regarding the 
total costs for the South Trade Street project. Mr. Miller asked about the traffic flow at Matthews Elementary 
School and the re-striping of Trade Street near Sadie Drive. Mr. Blodgett explained that staff plans to do the re-
striping sooner and is working on a quote for that work now. Mr. Miller asked about parking angles – diagonal 
rather than perpendicular – and Mr. Blodgett explained that once a design is complete the Town will contact the 
nearby property owners. The church has been opposed to angled parking in the past but Mayor Taylor will speak 
with them about it next week.  
 
Mr. Urban suggested holding a mini-Planning Conference on a Saturday in the fall and by consensus the Board 
agreed to that. Mr. Melton asked if the Town had received any response from the informational letter sent from 
the Town to the residents of Hampton Green regarding Talbot Court and a desired traffic signal. Mr. Blodgett said 
no one responded. ACTS is moving forward with Talbot Court.  
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
RECEIVE MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT 
 
Finance Director Chris Tucker was unable to attend the meeting but the report was presented. There were no 
comments or questions.  
 
 
 
 
 

4 
 



Board of Commissioners 
May 23, 2016 

 
ENTER INTO AGREEMENT WITH PARTNERS FOR PARKS 
 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Director Corey King explained the background of Partners for Parks 
(PfP), a non-profit organization that works in the Mecklenburg County area to help with fundraising efforts by 
providing a safe place to raise funds and offering grant assistance to area organizations. The organization raises 
funds for specific parks projects as an endowment of sorts and manages the funds until the project is ready to get 
off the ground. The funds would belong to the PfP 501(c)3 organization but those funds get transferred back out 
to the named project. PfP keeps only the interest and sales tax refund funds – there are no fees associated with 
the organization and it runs completely on volunteer efforts. This is done as an enhancement to what the 
municipality is already doing rather than as a replacement of those efforts. Many citizens prefer making donations 
to a specific park project rather than donating funds to the town itself. Discussion ensued regarding PfP’s history 
and the projects it has been involved in throughout the county.  
 
Motion by Mr. Ross to enter into an agreement with Partners for Parks to create a venue for citizens to donate 
directly to park projects. The motion was seconded by Mr. Miller and unanimously approved.  
 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Taylor thanked Planning Director Kathi Ingrish and her staff for their work on the solar game and education 
seminar that recently took place. There was a good turnout and the program was very enlightening. BeachFest 
was great with beautiful weather, a tremendous turnout and 103 antique car entrants in the car show. He also 
noted upcoming events: the Memorial Day service at 11:00 am in Stumptown Park, the Matthews Artist Guild 
showing through June at the Novant Health Matthews Medical Center lobby, Town Hall Day in Raleigh on June 
8th and the June 9th Matthews Day Chamber event at Charlotte Christian.  
 

 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Buckley will be out of town June 2-19.  

 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Blodgett provided an update on Home Place. Three existing street lights were removed as a result of the 
Wright case. Duke Energy is in the process of installing one light in a new location. There was a 
miscommunication by Duke Energy and they mistakenly attempted to install the light at the property of a resident 
who didn’t want it there.  It will be installed at the point where the road curves 90 degrees.  
 
Mr. Blodgett clarified the history of the Wright cases. In 1985 the Town approved two resolutions that accepted 
lists of streets into the Town’s street system. One of them included Home Place and one did not. When the court 
case came up the wrong resolution was entered into the legal record and once the first case started the Town 
was unable to get the correct one entered. As a result all of the litigation was based on the wrong resolution, but 
the resolution in which Home Place was listed clearly established Home Place as a public road over thirty years 
ago. The street is marked with a pink line to indicate the portion that belongs to the Wrights. Everything on the 
other side of the pink line is public property and that is why the Town is playing a role in having lights on the road. 
Attorney Buckley confirmed that the judge’s finding of no implied dedication was only for that portion of Home 
Place that lay within the Wrights’ deeded portion. Her area ran to the center line. The rest of Home Place was not 
litigated.  
 

5 
 



Board of Commissioners 
May 23, 2016 

 
Mayor Taylor noted that Duke Energy has removed all public lighting that was previously on the Wrights’ property. 
The Town is trying to reestablish at least some of the lighting conditions that were there for many years. This will 
be done by relocating lights to property that does not belong to the Wrights.  

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mr. Whitley to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ross and unanimously approved. The 
meeting adjourned at 8:45 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Lori Canapinno 
Town Clerk 
 

6 
 



The employees of the Matthews Police Department strive to promote a safe community by preventing crimes 

and reducing the fear of crime, while treating all individuals fairly and with respect.                                      

Our members will demonstrate honesty, professionalism and integrity,                                                           

while building the partnerships necessary to enhance the safety of our community. 

 

 

Agenda Item: Approve Police Department’s Special Olympics Activities  

Date: May 24, 2016 

Re: Consideration of Solicitation of Donations 

From: Chief Rob Hunter 
 

Background / Issue: 

NOTE: This request was previously approved by the Board for an event scheduled for May 21, 
2016, but that event was cancelled due to weather -  

Members of the Police Department have been active proponents of the Special Olympics of 

North Carolina for several years. In the past five years alone, through activities coordinated by 
members of the department, more than $28,000 has been raised for this organization. 

Our department’s activities also serve to strengthen the relationship among our citizens and the 
employees of the town. Much of the funds raised are through direct contributions of local 
businesses which have come to learn our commitment to service.  

Proposal / Solution:  

In addition to other activities we have planned throughout the year, we are planning a special 
day of activities on Saturday, June 18, 2016. Through our partnership with Chic-Fil-A of 
Matthews, we will have police officers in their parking lot throughout the day providing 
demonstrations (i.e. K-9, police vehicles) and soliciting donations from patrons. In addition, 
officers wish to stand in the intersection of Independence Blvd. and Windsor Square Drive to 
solicit donations from passing motorists. We will have signs explaining the activities to 
approaching motorists, police vehicles visible to approaching traffic, and our officers will be 
wearing their reflective safety vests. 

Financial Impact: 

There will be no additional financial impact upon the town. 

Related Town Goals:  
Small Town Feeling & Identity and Healthy Financial Footing  
 
Recommended Motion: Approve the request to allow police officers to stand in the intersection 
of Independence Bv. and Windsor Square Dr. between the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm of 
Saturday, June 18, 2016, for the solicitation of donations to the Special Olympics of North 

Carolina. 

1201 Crews Road 

Matthews, N.C. 28105 

704-847-4069 

 



 

 

  
 
Changes to Historic Preservation Action Committee Bylaws 
 
DATE: June 8, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue: 
It has been some time since the bylaws for this subcommittee were last reviewed. At the May 18th 
meeting of the Historic Preservation Action Committee, the group reviewed, revised and approved 
several minor changes to the bylaws. The revised bylaws are attached and summarized as follows: 
 

 Revised mission statement 
 Reduced number of members from 12 to 9  
 Set regular meetings as quarterly 

 
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
The revised bylaws ensure that an appropriate quorum is met for meetings and set forth a clear expectation 
for when meetings will occur throughout the calendar year.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
#5 Continue historic preservation initiative by identifying a prioritized list of historic properties 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Approve revised bylaws for the Historic Preservation Action Committee    



2016 
 Matthews Historic Preservation Advisory Committee 
 
 BYLAWS 
 
 
 ARTICLE I - NAME 
 
The Matthews Historic Preservation Advisory Committee hereinafter referred to as “HPAC”. 
 
 
 ARTICLE II - MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The mission of HPAC is to research, preserve, protect and promote the historic heritage of 
Matthews.  HPAC will focus on the preservation of properties and artifacts education of the 
community through partnerships with municipal and civic organizations, including the Matthews 
Historical Foundation and the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Historic Landmarks Commission, to 
advance the cause of historic preservation. 
 
 
 ARTICLE III - SCOPE OF WORK 
 
HPAC will focus its activities on the following areas: 
 
(1) To research and analyze the viability of creating a local Downtown Historic District; 
including expanding the current overlay to create wider area boundaries that would clearly define 
where a Downtown Historic District would be and which historic properties should be included 
in this new, expanded designation. 
 
(2) To examine the potential of historic downtown Matthews as an economic catalyst for the 
Town. 
 
(3) To initiate discussions about creating a unified area to serve as an attractive historic 
downtown district to showcase Matthews’ history of farming, railroads and mercantile. 
 
(4) To develop community education awareness and public support for Matthews history. 
 
(5) To research and catalogue historic properties that could be protected, preserved and 
adapted for reuse either by the Town, by commercial developers, or by private owners or 
investors. 
 
(6) To seek funding, either from public or private sources, to support historic preservation 
activities. 
 
 



HPAC Bylaws Page 2 
 
 
 ARTICLE IV - MEMBERSHIP 
 
Any member appointed to HPAC does not necessarily have to be a resident of the Town of 
Matthews.  However, a majority of members should be town residents. HPAC shall be 
comprised of a minimum of 12 9 members appointed by the Town Board of Commissioners, 3 of 
who would be board members of the Matthews Historical Foundation.  A Town staff member 
will serve as the Liaison to HPAC.  Each citizen shall be appointed to a two-year term, and may 
serve be reappointed an unlimited number of terms.  If a vacancy shall occur then that open 
position can be filled by the Town Board of Commissioners, upon the recommendation of the 
HPAC Liaison and Chairperson. 
 
 
 ARTICLE V - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
In order to avoid the appearance of a conflict of interest, members of HPAC shall refrain from 
voting on issues that can have a direct and narrow fiduciary effect on an organization by whom 
they are employed or for whom they serve as director.  Members of HPAC shall be prohibited 
from applying for, or receiving, grants from the Town as individuals.  
 
 
 ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS 
 
HPAC shall elect a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and a Secretary; the latter office need not be 
a member of HPAC. 
 
 
 ARTICLE VII - MEETINGS 
 
In accordance with the North Carolina Open Meetings Law (General Statute 143-318.10), all 
meetings of HPAC will be open to the public.  A quorum of five (5) six (6) members shall be 
necessary to take any official action authorized or required by the ordinance.  The Staff Liaison 
is considered a non-voting position.  Meetings will be held quarterly; January, April, July, and 
October.  Special meetings, as needed, may be called by the chair or staff liaison.  
 
 
 ARTICLE VIII - ATTENDANCE 
 
In order for HPAC to carry out its duties and responsibilities, it is necessary for all members to 
attend the meetings.  Any member who shall fail to attend at least 75% of the regular and special 
meetings of HPAC, during any one-year period, may be removed.  The Chairperson shall notify 
the Town Board of Commissioners of any member who shall so fail to attend.  The vacancy can 
be filled, upon recommendation of the HPAC Staff Liaison and Chairperson, by the Town Board 
of Commissioners. 
 



HPAC Bylaws Page 3 
 
 
 
 ARTICLE IX - ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
The Order of Business at meetings shall be: 
 

* Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 
* Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting 
* Unfinished Business 
* New Business 
* Adjournment 

 
Meeting agendas will be developed by the HPAC Chairperson and the Staff Liaison and 
distributed to members for review in advance of each scheduled meeting. 
 
 
 ARTICLE X - ADOPTION 
 
These bylaws are adopted by a majority vote of the Mayor and Town Board of Commissioners.  
Amendments/revisions to these rules shall only be made by the Mayor and Town Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Amended/revised bylaws adopted this ________ day of ____________________ 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
James P. Taylor - Mayor 

 
________________________ 
Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
  



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



APPLICATION FOR CHANGE IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION OR CONDITION, PAGE 4 

 
 

SUMMARY OF THE REZONING PROCESS 
 
 

PETITIONER: Fill in dates for each action below before filing application. Refer to the current Planning Department 
rezoning schedule for correct dates. 

PROPERTY OWNERS: These dates are assumed to be correct at the time of zoning application submittal but are 
subject to revision. Contact the Planning Department (704-847-4411 or email blynd@matthewsnc.gov) for verification. 

 
 

Application submitted to and accepted by the Town of Matthews___________________________________________ 

Town Board of Commissioners formally accepts application and sets Public Hearing date________________________ 

Notices sent via mail to affected/adjacent property owners on or before______________________________________ 

Protest petition filed with Planning Department by 5:00 pm on_____________________________________________ 

Public hearing: petitioner may give explanation of why s/he wishes to have property rezoned and neighboring owners 

 may ask questions and voice opinions on the proposed zoning ________________________________________ 

Town Planning Board reviews petition, information, and comments from the public hearing, then makes a 

 recommendation to the Board of Commissioners on whether to approve or deny the request_________________ 

Town Board of Commissioners approves or denies application_____________________________________________ 

 

 

GENERAL STATUTE 160A-385: CHANGES. 
(a) Zoning ordinances may from time to time be amended, supplemented, changed, modified or repealed. In case, however, of a 

qualified protest against a zoning map amendment, that amendment shall not become effective except by favorable vote of 
three-fourths of all the members of the city council. For the purposes of this subsection, vacant positions on the council and 
members who are excused from voting shall not be considered “members of the council” for calculation of the requisite 
supermajority. To qualify as a protest under this section, the petition must be signed by the owners of either (i) twenty percent 
(20%) or more of the area included in the proposed change or (ii) five percent (5%) of a 100-foot wide buffer extending along 
the entire boundary of each discrete or separate area proposed to be rezoned. A street right of way shall not be considered in 
computing the 100-foot buffer area as long as that street right of way is 100 feet wide or less. When less than an entire parcel of 
land is subject to the proposed zoning map amendment, the 100-foot buffer shall be measured from the property line of that 
parcel. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the city may rely on the county tax listing to determine the “owners” of 
potentially qualifying areas. The foregoing provisions concerning protests shall not be applicable to any amendment which 
initially zones property added to the territorial coverage of the ordinance as a result of annexation or otherwise, or to an 
amendment to an adopted (i) special use district, (ii) conditional use district, or (iii) conditional district if the amendment does not 
change the types of uses that are permitted within the district or increase the approved density for residential development, or 
increase the total approved size of nonresidential development, or reduce the size of any buffers or screening approved for the 
special use district, conditional use district, or conditional district. 

 
(b) Amendments in zoning ordinances shall not be applicable or enforceable without consent of the owner with regard to buildings 

and uses for which either (i) building permits have been issues pursuant to GS 160A-417 prior to the enactment of the 
ordinance making the change or changes so long as the permits remain valid and unexpired pursuant to GS 160A-418 and 
unrevoked pursuant to GS 160A-422 or (ii) a vested right has been established pursuant to GS 160A-385.1 and such vested 
right remains valid and unexpired pursuant to GS 160A-385.1 
 

Application number 
 
 
For office use only 

2016-646 
6-1-2016 

June 1, 2016
June 13, 2016

June 27, 2016
NA

July 11, 2016

July 26, 2016
August 8, 2016

2016-646



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

MATTHEWS, NC 28105
300 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS ROAD

LUTHERAN CHURCH

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT DIRECTORY

120' BELL TOWER

US-NC-5027

DRAWING INDEX

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

XXXXXX

T

E

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

SITE NAME :

OWNED BY: VERTICAL BRIDGE

WWW.VERICALBRIDGE.COM

TO BE LOCATED HERE
SITE # : TO BE LOCATED HERE

TO BE LOCATED HERE

TELEPHONE: 877-589-6411

SALES@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

OPERATIONS@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

PLANT LIST

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

MATTHEWS, NC 28105
300 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS ROAD

LUTHERAN CHURCH

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT DIRECTORY

120' BELL TOWER

US-NC-5027

DRAWING INDEX

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

XXXXXX

T

E

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

SITE NAME :

OWNED BY: VERTICAL BRIDGE

WWW.VERICALBRIDGE.COM

TO BE LOCATED HERE
SITE # : TO BE LOCATED HERE

TO BE LOCATED HERE

TELEPHONE: 877-589-6411

SALES@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

OPERATIONS@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

PLANT LIST

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:

Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number

404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
I
E

T
T

A
,
 
G

A
 
3

0
0

6
2

2
2

5
5

 
S

E
W

E
L

L
 
M

I
L

L
 
R

O
A

D
,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
1

3
0

O
f
f
i
c
e

 
#

 
(
6

7
8

)
 
4

4
4

-
4

4
6

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
Typewritten Text
R-12

srobertson
Typewritten Text
O (CD)

srobertson
Typewritten Text



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.
MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L
PRESSLEY, JERRY W
PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition
will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The
Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONSONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.
The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation
with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6
parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

EXISTING 1-STORY
RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF

(EXISTING)( )

26
'-7

"

84'-7"

29'-3"

EXISTING SINGLE
CAR DETACHED GARAGE EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

EXISTING SIDEWALK

REAR
PORCH

FRONT
PORCH

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
EA

R
 S

ET
BA

C
K:

 4
0'

-0
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

SE
TB

AC
K:

 2
0'

-0
"

M
AX

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

SE
TB

AC
K:

 3
0'

-0
"

EXISTING SITE PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED
ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.
HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

EXISTING SITE PLAN
SCALE: 3

32" = 1'-0"1
RZ-1

The Budd Law Group
Offices
352 E Charles St.
Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:
Checked:
Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE
richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

2016-648 
6-1-2016 



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.
MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L
PRESSLEY, JERRY W
PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition
will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The
Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONSONDITIONSONDITIONSONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.
The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation
with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6
parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

1-STORY
RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF
(EXISTING TO REMAIN)( )

26
'-7

"

84'-7"

8'-0"29'-3"32'-0"

DEMOLISH EXISTING SINGLE
CAR DETACHED GARAGE

NEW 8' FRONT PORCH

REMOVE EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

NEW 1,350 SF ADDITION

CONCRETE ACCESS
DRIVE

6'
-0

"
21

'-6
"

4' WALKWAY

DEMOLISH EXISTINGEE
REAR PORCHR A OR R

1:10 RAMP

 UP 33
RISERSRS

EXISTING SIDEWALK TODD
REMAIN

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
EA

R
 S

ET
BA

C
K:

 4
0'

-0
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

SE
TB

AC
K:

 2
0'

-0
"

M
AX

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

SE
TB

AC
K:

 3
0'

-0
"

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED
ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.
HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 3

32" = 1'-0"1
RZ-2

The Budd Law Group
Offices
352 E Charles St.
Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:
Checked:
Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE
richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

2016-648 
6-1-2016 



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.

MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L

PRESSLEY, JERRY W

PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition

will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The

Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.

The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation

with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6

parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

EXISTING 1-STORY

RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF

(EXISTING)

2
6

'
-
7

"

84'-7"

29'-3"

EXISTING SINGLE

CAR DETACHED GARAGE

EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

EXISTING SIDEWALK

REAR

PORCH

FRONT

PORCH

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
E

A
R

 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

:
 
4
0
'
-
0
"

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 
F

R
O

N
T

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
:
 
2
0
'
-
0
"

M
A

X
I
M

U
M

 
F

R
O

N
T

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
:
 
3
0
'
-
0
"

EXISTING SITE PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:

1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED

ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.

HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

EXISTING SITE PLAN

SCALE: 

3

32

" = 1'-0"

1

RZ-1

The Budd Law Group

Offices

352 E Charles St.

Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE

richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N40°15'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°15'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N48°07'17"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S48°07'17"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

srobertson
New Stamp



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.

MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L

PRESSLEY, JERRY W

PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition

will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The

Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.

The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation

with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6

parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

1-STORY

RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF

(EXISTING TO REMAIN)

2
6

'
-
7

"

84'-7"

8'-0"29'-3"32'-0"

DEMOLISH EXISTING SINGLE

CAR DETACHED GARAGE

NEW 8' FRONT PORCH

REMOVE EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

NEW 1,350 SF ADDITION

CONCRETE ACCESS

DRIVE

6
'
-
0

"

2
1

'
-
6

"

4' WALKWAY

DEMOLISH EXISTING
REAR PORCH

1:10 RAMP

 UP 3
RISERS

EXISTING SIDEWALK TO
REMAIN

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
E

A
R

 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

:
 
4

0
'
-
0

"

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 
F

R
O

N
T

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
:
 
2

0
'
-
0

"

M
A

X
I
M

U
M

 
F

R
O

N
T

S
E

T
B

A
C

K
:
 
3

0
'
-
0

"

PROPOSED SITE

PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:

1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED

ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.

HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

SITE PLAN

SCALE: 

3

32

" = 1'-0"

1

RZ-2

The Budd Law Group

Offices

352 E Charles St.

Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:

Checked:

Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE

richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N40°15'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°15'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N48°07'17"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S48°07'17"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

srobertson
New Stamp



 

 

 
 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 1998-Present. 

                                   

 
June 8, 2016 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Christopher Tucker, Finance Director 
 
CC: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager 
 Becky Hawke, Assistant Town Manager 
 Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
RE: Tax Refunds for 6/8/16 Agenda 
 
 
On last month’s finance report I presented the following item of note: 
 
Items of Note: 

2) Communications from the Tax Assessor’s office provided a remaining potential re-eval refund total of 
close to $30,000 from 500 appeals.  

 
For clarification, this amount was for remaining appeals. There are still several batches of refunds that have 
made it through the appeal process and will come before the Board for release.  
 
I made the ask for the County to provide the total of the outstanding batches. They responded that after this 
batch, there should be four batches totaling approx. $21,000 with a fifth and likely final batch that they have 
not completed but would estimate in the $15k to $18k range.  
 



 

 
 
 
 MEMORANDUM  
 

To:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners  
From:  Shelley Kerns, Finance Department 
CC:  Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager  
Date:  June 13, 2016 
Re:  Tax Refunds  
 

 
The Interlocal Agreement between Mecklenburg County and the Town of Matthews states they bill and collect the 
Ad Valorem taxes for Matthews. Upon collection, the County remits those to the Town. Matthews is responsible 
for issuing the refund if an adjustment occurs on the tax bill after the payment has been received. Refunds are 
issued for various reasons.  
 
Mecklenburg County Tax Office has submitted the attached list of taxpayers for refunds. The list reflects the tax 
year, taxpayer, location, adjustment made and reason for adjustment, along with the refund amount. G.S. 105 
requires that tax refunds or releases shall be approved by the governing body.  
 
These reports reflect tax appeals, settlements, and adjustments made, as received from the Mecklenburg County 
Tax Office.  
 
Total returns: $106,645.56 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: The Mayor and Board of Commissioners approve the tax refunds. 

 



Bill Number Parcel #
BOCC 
Month

Source 
Type Adjustment # Refund Recipient Name Address Line 1 Address Line 2 City State Zip Code

Payment Date For 
Interest Total Refund

 Int if pd by 
6/24/2016 

0002001083-2011-2011-0000-00 21501229 1/1/2015 REI 484515 111 MAT, LLC 3600 ARCO CORPORATE DR, SUITE 125 CHARLOTTE NC 28273 10/15/2012 38.73$              $                    7.15 45.88$              
0001933541-2011-2011-0000-00 19329164 1/1/2015 REI 484385 1450 MATTHEWS TOWNSHIP PARKWAY LP 275 SCIENTIFIC DR,STE 1000 SUITE 350 PEACHTREE CORNERS GA 30092 1/6/2012 96.80$              $                 21.63 118.43$           
0001937680-2012-2012-0000-00 19345153 11/1/2014 REI 515857 2012-B PROPERTY HOLDINGS LLC 10130 PERIMETER PKWY STE 200 CHARLOTTE NC 28216 1/8/2013 15.12$              $                    2.62 17.74$              
0001937680-2013-2013-0000-00 19345153 11/1/2014 REI 486309 2012-B PROPERTY HOLDINGS LLC 10130 PERIMETER PKWY STE 200 CHARLOTTE NC 28216 1/7/2014 15.87$              $                    1.95 17.82$              
0002001718-2013-2013-0000-00 21505111 2/1/2015 REI 416858 2425 EAST JOHN ST LLC 6300 CARMEL RD STE 110B CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/13/2014 60.89$              $                    7.45 68.34$              
0002001718-2014-2014-0000-00 21505111 2/1/2015 REI 414872 2425 EAST JOHN ST LLC 6300 CARMEL RD STE 110B CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2015 59.69$              $                    4.37 64.06$              
0002003421-2013-2013-0000-00 21519203 10/1/2014 REI 475119 ACOSTA, LILIYA V 2716 HEATHERSHIRE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 24.77$              $                    3.05 27.82$              
0002053169-2013-2013-0000-00 22737150 11/1/2014 REI 495345 ACQUAVIVA, JOHN 2017 FAIRCHELSEA WAY LN MATTHEW NC 28105 1/7/2014 36.19$              $                    4.46 40.65$              
0002053169-2014-2014-0000-00 22737150 11/1/2014 REI 310075 ACQUAVIVA, JOHN 2017 FAIRCHELSEA WAY LN MATTHEW NC 28105 1/6/2015 36.19$              $                    2.65 38.84$              
0002052616-2014-2014-0000-00 22734233 11/1/2014 REI 505213 ACTS RETIREMENT-LIFE COMMUNITIES INC 375 MORRIS RD WEST POINT PA 19486 1/6/2015 29.53$              $                    2.16 31.69$              
0002621345-2011-2011-0000-00 21503131 10/1/2014 REI 473906 ADRONG VY JU 500 MERANCAS CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/9/2012 1.25$                 $                    0.28 1.53$                
0002046925-2011-2011-0000-00 22702743 12/1/2014 REI 484605 ADULT COMMUNITIES TOTAL SERVICES PO BOX 90 WEST POINT PA 19486 1/6/2012 107.09$            $                 23.93 131.02$           
0001934416-2011-2011-0000-00 19333385 9/1/2014 REI 452209 AKBARI, ALI A 5819 NEWFIELDS LANE DUBLIN CA 94568 2/21/2012 13.98$              $                    3.04 17.02$              
0001934416-2012-2012-0000-01 19333385 9/1/2014 REI 240513 AKBARI, ALI A 5819 NEWFIELDS LANE DUBLIN CA 94568 1/8/2013 13.61$              $                    2.35 15.96$              
0001934416-2013-2013-0000-00 19333385 9/1/2014 REI 221016 AKBARI, ALI A 5819 NEWFIELDS LANE DUBLIN CA 94568 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0002001664-2011-2011-0000-00 21504158 3/1/2015 REI 491799 ALAN & JENNIFER WOLFE LLC 601 SMALL COUNTRY LN MIDLAND NC 28107 1/6/2012 146.11$            $                 32.64 178.75$           
0002001664-2012-2012-0000-00 21504158 3/1/2015 REI 453130 ALAN & JENNIFER WOLFE LLC 601 SMALL COUNTRY LN MIDLAND NC 28107 1/8/2013 145.81$            $                 25.23 171.04$           
0002001664-2013-2013-0000-00 21504158 3/1/2015 REI 453131 ALAN & JENNIFER WOLFE LLC 601 SMALL COUNTRY LN MIDLAND NC 28107 3/12/2014 158.40$            $                 18.12 176.52$           
0002001664-2014-2014-0000-00 21504158 3/1/2015 REI 433482 ALAN & JENNIFER WOLFE LLC 601 SMALL COUNTRY LN MIDLAND NC 28107 1/6/2015 153.04$            $                 11.22 164.26$           
0001936637-2011-2011-0000-00 19340622 9/1/2014 REI 452219 ALLEN TONY D 3325 WILLIAMS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 199.95$            $                 44.67 244.62$           
0001936637-2012-2012-0000-00 19340622 9/1/2014 REI 452397 ALLEN TONY D 3325 WILLIAMS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 199.95$            $                 34.59 234.54$           
0001936637-2013-2013-0000-00 19340622 9/1/2014 REI 452479 ALLEN TONY D 3325 WILLIAMS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 209.87$            $                 25.85 235.72$           
0001933143-2011-2011-0000-00 19325126 10/1/2014 REI 326973 ALLEN, CAROLYN C 733 PLANTATION ESTATES DR APT D 318 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 77.14$              $                 17.23 94.37$              
0001933143-2012-2012-0000-00 19325126 10/1/2014 REI 326642 ALLEN, CAROLYN C 733 PLANTATION ESTATES DR APT D 318 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 66.85$              $                 11.57 78.42$              
0001933143-2013-2013-0000-00 19325126 10/1/2014 REI 326896 ALLEN, CAROLYN C 733 PLANTATION ESTATES DR APT D 318 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 70.17$              $                    8.64 78.81$              
0002050222-2012-2012-0000-00 22722322 8/1/2014 REI 243998 ALLEN, RAYNOLD WORTH JR 3625 SAVANNAH HILLS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 71.39$              $                 12.35 83.74$              
0002003882-2011-2011-0000-00 21525107 10/1/2014 REI 473972 ALLEN, RUTH O 219 RIVER PARK DR GREAT FALLS VA 22066 1/6/2012 1.52$                 $                    0.34 1.86$                
0002002630-2012-2012-0000-00 21513186 11/1/2014 REI 506936 AMERICAN HOME REAL ESTATE PARTNERSH THE PO BOX 15470 ATLANTA GA 30333 1/8/2013 53.54$              $                    9.26 62.80$              
0002002630-2013-2013-0000-00 21513186 11/1/2014 REI 324480 AMERICAN HOME REAL ESTATE PARTNERSH THE PO BOX 15470 ATLANTA GA 30333 1/7/2014 0.95$                 $                    0.12 1.07$                
0002002630-2014-2014-0000-00 21513186 11/1/2014 REI 324530 AMERICAN HOME REAL ESTATE PARTNERSH THE PO BOX 15470 ATLANTA GA 30333 1/6/2015 0.95$                 $                    0.07 1.02$                
0002003664-2012-2012-0000-00 21520404 10/1/2014 REI 474779 AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL RELOCATION SOLUTIONS LLC 233 MCCOMBS ROAD VENETIA PA 15367 1/8/2013 10.89$              $                    1.88 12.77$              
0002052278-2014-2014-0000-00 22731318 11/1/2014 REI 500699 AMH 2014-2 BORROWER LLC . 30601 AGOURA RD SUITE 200 AGOURA HILLS CA 91301 1/6/2015 16.83$              $                    1.23 18.06$              
0002047238-2013-2013-0000-00 22703418 10/1/2014 REI 475158 ANDREWS, AMY HOWARD 401 CLAIRVIEW LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 25.08$              $                    3.09 28.17$              
0002047238-2014-2014-0000-00 22703418 10/1/2014 REI 268087 ANDREWS, AMY HOWARD 401 CLAIRVIEW LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 44.45$              $                    3.26 47.71$              
0002055410-2014-2014-0000-00 22752417 11/1/2014 REI 500701 ANDREWS, BETTE F 1219 HOLLY RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 1.59$                 $                    0.12 1.71$                
0002047238-2011-2011-0000-00 22703418 10/1/2014 REI 474078 ANDREWS,NEIL PATRICK 401 CLAIRVIEW LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 23.90$              $                    5.34 29.24$              
0002047238-2012-2012-0000-00 22703418 10/1/2014 REI 474821 ANDREWS,NEIL PATRICK 401 CLAIRVIEW LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 23.90$              $                    4.14 28.04$              
0002054518-2011-2011-0000-00 22746144 10/1/2014 REI 474193 ANIEL, JAN H 208 N. PLUM STREET RICHMOND VA 23220 2/8/2012 26.11$              $                    5.72 31.83$              
0002051612-2012-2012-0000-00 22728262 11/1/2014 REI 494937 APPLEYARD, KRISTEN DROZENSKI 333 LONGBRIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 20.27$              $                    3.51 23.78$              
0002051612-2013-2013-0000-00 22728262 11/1/2014 REI 309127 APPLEYARD, KRISTEN DROZENSKI 333 LONGBRIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 21.27$              $                    2.62 23.89$              
0002051612-2014-2014-0000-00 22728262 11/1/2014 REI 309910 APPLEYARD, KRISTEN DROZENSKI 333 LONGBRIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 21.27$              $                    1.56 22.83$              
0002047390-2011-2011-0000-00 22703585 10/1/2014 REI 474085 APPLEYARD, SCOTT D & APPLEYARD, KRISTEN D 333 LONGBRIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 15.73$              $                    3.51 19.24$              
0002047778-2011-2011-0000-00 22706248 3/1/2015 REI 484613 ARCADIA HOMES, INC 6428 BANNINGTON RD SUITE A CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2012 154.88$            $                 34.60 189.48$           
0002050240-2013-2013-0000-00 22722331 8/1/2014 REI 246758 ARMSTRONG, MARVIN C JR 3620 SAVANNAH HILLS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 70.17$              $                    8.64 78.81$              
0001933534-2012-2012-0000-00 19329157 12/1/2014 REI 342056 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/19/2013 56.25$              $                    9.41 65.66$              
0001933534-2013-2013-0000-00 19329157 12/1/2014 REI 342695 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/24/2014 58.86$              $                    7.11 65.97$              
0001933534-2014-2014-0000-00 19329157 12/1/2014 REI 343322 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/5/2015 16.06$              $                    1.11 17.17$              
0001933535-2012-2012-0000-00 19329158 12/1/2014 REI 342057 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/21/2013 24.44$              $                    3.99 28.43$              
0001933535-2013-2013-0000-00 19329158 12/1/2014 REI 342696 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 24.77$              $                    3.05 27.82$              
0001933535-2014-2014-0000-00 19329158 12/1/2014 REI 343323 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/9/2015 10.24$              $                    0.75 10.99$              
0001933536-2012-2012-0000-00 19329159 12/1/2014 REI 342058 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/19/2013 23.00$              $                    3.85 26.85$              
0001933536-2013-2013-0000-00 19329159 12/1/2014 REI 342697 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 23.50$              $                    2.89 26.39$              
0001933536-2014-2014-0000-00 19329159 12/1/2014 REI 343324 ARNONE, PHILIP A 10550 INDEPENDENCE PT PKWY MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/9/2015 9.56$                 $                    0.70 10.26$              
0002003184-2014-2014-0000-00 21517183 11/1/2014 REI 510008 ARROWOD KEVIN 677 COVE RD CANDLER NC 28715 1/6/2015 73.66$              $                    5.40 79.06$              
0002055315-2011-2011-0000-00 22752245 11/1/2014 REI 504628 ARTIGLIERE, JOHN 838 TILLER DR FORKED RIVER NJ 8731 1/6/2012 29.65$              $                    6.62 36.27$              
0002055315-2012-2012-0000-00 22752245 11/1/2014 REI 352319 ARTIGLIERE, JOHN 838 TILLER DR FORKED RIVER NJ 8731 1/8/2013 29.65$              $                    5.13 34.78$              
0002055315-2013-2013-0000-00 22752245 11/1/2014 REI 352369 ARTIGLIERE, JOHN 838 TILLER DR FORKED RIVER NJ 8731 1/7/2014 31.11$              $                    3.83 34.94$              
0002055315-2014-2014-0000-00 22752245 11/1/2014 REI 352406 ARTIGLIERE, JOHN 838 TILLER DR FORKED RIVER NJ 8731 1/6/2015 31.11$              $                    2.28 33.39$              
0008068965-2014-2014-0000-00 21301257 1/1/2015 REI 500667 ASHLEY ROBERT E III 629 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 116.20$            $                    8.52 124.72$           
0002055144-2013-2013-0000-00 22752105 11/1/2014 REI 486439 ASPINWALL, HAROLD 2806 NEWPORT LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 55.88$              $                    6.88 62.76$              
0001933473-2011-2011-0000-00 19329109 1/1/2015 REI 494313 ATLAS NC I SPE LLC . 200 WEST 2ND ST WINSTON-SALEM NC 27101 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002047159-2011-2011-0000-00 22703310 2/1/2015 REI 415542 AUSTIN, HOBART L &W 204 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-1576 1/30/2012 63.57$              $                 13.99 77.56$              
0002047159-2012-2012-0000-00 22703310 2/1/2015 REI 416320 AUSTIN, HOBART L &W 204 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-1576 1/8/2013 57.48$              $                    9.94 67.42$              
0002001648-2011-2011-0000-00 21504146 3/1/2015 REI 515392 AUTRY, EMMETT E JR 125 GEORGE CLAY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/9/2012 118.83$            $                 26.50 145.33$           
0002001648-2013-2013-0000-00 21504146 3/1/2015 REI 432670 AUTRY, EMMETT E JR 125 GEORGE CLAY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 120.33$            $                 14.82 135.15$           
0002001648-2014-2014-0000-00 21504146 3/1/2015 REI 433475 AUTRY, EMMETT E JR 125 GEORGE CLAY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 120.87$            $                    8.86 129.73$           
0002056304-2013-2013-0000-00 22760101 12/1/2014 REI 351172 AVA MANAGEMENT LLC 34 SYCAMORE DR EAST HAMPTON NY 11937 1/7/2014 66.04$              $                    8.13 74.17$              
0002056304-2014-2014-0000-00 22760101 12/1/2014 REI 351900 AVA MANAGEMENT LLC 34 SYCAMORE DR EAST HAMPTON NY 11937 1/6/2015 66.04$              $                    4.84 70.88$              
0002001041-2011-2011-0000-00 21501102 2/1/2015 REI 415222 AYCOTH, MARTHA S 400 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 6/25/2012 27.84$              $                    5.57 33.41$              
0002002626-2012-2012-0000-00 21513183 11/1/2014 REI 485541 BANAR, PAVEL 2709 FOX HOLLOW RD MINT HILL NC 28229 1/8/2013 40.84$              $                    7.07 47.91$              
0002002626-2013-2013-0000-00 21513183 11/1/2014 REI 465563 BANAR, PAVEL 2709 FOX HOLLOW RD MINT HILL NC 28227-9761 1/7/2014 42.86$              $                    5.28 48.14$              
0001933543-2011-2011-0000-00 19329166 12/1/2014 REI 496618 BANK OF GRANITE . 301 S MCDOWELL ST SUITE 100 CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/6/2012 66.55$              $                 14.87 81.42$              
0002050518-2012-2012-0000-00 22723410 11/1/2014 REI 502927 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 1270 NORTHLAND DR STE 200 MENDOTA HEIGHTS MN 55120 1/8/2013 19.36$              $                    3.35 22.71$              
0001992869-2013-2013-0000-00 21302209 9/1/2014 REI 451971 BARBARA P. PRICE ESTATE 312 CHARING CROSS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 1.90$                 $                    0.23 2.13$                
0008068955-2014-2014-0000-00 21301247 1/1/2015 REI 500658 BARNHILL GEORGIANNA PELTON 9507 REID HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 95.57$              $                    7.00 102.57$           
0002003111-2011-2011-0000-00 21517126 10/1/2014 REI 327128 BARRETT, JOSEPH R 6306 CARDINAL DR NEW BERN NC 28560 1/6/2012 24.20$              $                    5.41 29.61$              
0002003111-2012-2012-0000-00 21517126 10/1/2014 REI 326718 BARRETT, JOSEPH R 6306 CARDINAL DR NEW BERN NC 28560 1/8/2013 24.20$              $                    4.19 28.39$              
0001937690-2011-2011-0000-00 19345159 11/1/2014 REI 484407 BAUCOM, JUDY C 132 S TIMBER TOP RD THE WOODLANDS TX 77381 2/7/2012 0.32$                 $                    0.07 0.39$                
0002002572-2013-2013-0000-00 21513139 11/1/2014 REI 486359 BAXTER DAVID J 2510 CONNEMARA DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 58.74$              $                    7.23 65.97$              
0002002572-2014-2014-0000-00 21513139 11/1/2014 REI 306870 BAXTER, DAVID J 2510 CONNEMARA DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 67.31$              $                    4.93 72.24$              
0001936583-2012-2012-0000-01 19340602 9/1/2014 REI 240521 BAXTER, DONALD L 12320 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/4/2013 103.97$            $                 17.20 121.17$           
0001936583-2013-2013-0000-00 19340602 9/1/2014 REI 221033 BAXTER, DONALD L 12320 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/28/2014 108.31$            $                 12.57 120.88$           
0001935056-2013-2013-0000-00 19334234 11/1/2014 REI 305977 BEAMON, THOMAS RAYMOND  JR 11320 TORINO RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 47.94$              $                    5.90 53.84$              
0001935056-2014-2014-0000-00 19334234 11/1/2014 REI 306619 BEAMON, THOMAS RAYMOND  JR 11320 TORINO RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 47.62$              $                    3.49 51.11$              
0001935056-2012-2012-0000-00 19334234 11/1/2014 REI 504816 BEAMON, THOMAS RAYMOND JR & BEAMON, MARY TAYLOR 11320 TORINO RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 45.68$              $                    7.90 53.58$              
0001935078-2011-2011-0000-00 19334502 11/1/2014 REI 484393 BEATY, ALLISON M & ABOUDAKKA, HICHAM I 5325 STEVENS MILL ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 51.13$              $                 11.42 62.55$              
0001935078-2012-2012-0000-00 19334502 11/1/2014 REI 485485 BEATY, ALLISON M & ABOUDAKKA, HICHAM I 5325 STEVENS MILL ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 50.82$              $                    8.79 59.61$              
0001935078-2013-2013-0000-00 19334502 11/1/2014 REI 486307 BEATY, ALLISON M & ABOUDAKKA, HICHAM I 5325 STEVENS MILL ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014 53.34$              $                    6.57 59.91$              
0001934633-2012-2012-0000-00 19333616 11/1/2014 REI 497165 BECK, JESSIE A 900 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 3.93$                 $                    0.68 4.61$                
0001934633-2013-2013-0000-00 19333616 11/1/2014 REI 305866 BECK, JESSIE A 900 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 4.13$                 $                    0.51 4.64$                
0001934633-2014-2014-0000-00 19333616 11/1/2014 REI 306497 BECK, JESSIE A 900 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 4.13$                 $                    0.30 4.43$                
0002050448-2013-2013-0000-00 22723101 11/1/2014 REI 486426 BECKNER, MELINDA K 9119 HOLLY HILL FARM RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/7/2014 32.39$              $                    3.99 36.38$              
0001936600-2014-2014-0000-00 19340608 9/1/2014 REI 452538 BEHMOIRAS, JESSICA L 3417 LUDMAN WY MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 200.66$            $                 14.71 215.37$           
0002003034-2011-2011-0000-00 21516245 11/1/2014 REI 489028 BEJARANO, CARLOS A 13144 BLACKSMITH CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 48.10$              $                 10.75 58.85$              
0002003034-2012-2012-0000-00 21516245 11/1/2014 REI 305778 BEJARANO, CARLOS A 13144 BLACKSMITH CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 47.19$              $                    8.16 55.35$              
0002003034-2013-2013-0000-00 21516245 11/1/2014 REI 306422 BEJARANO, CARLOS A 13144 BLACKSMITH CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 49.53$              $                    6.10 55.63$              
0002003034-2014-2014-0000-00 21516245 11/1/2014 REI 307099 BEJARANO, CARLOS A 13144 BLACKSMITH CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 49.53$              $                    3.63 53.16$              
0002049795-2011-2011-0000-00 22721505 10/1/2014 REI 474104 BELK, LOIS H 15809 IDLEWILD RD INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2012 41.14$              $                    9.19 50.33$              
0002054189-2011-2011-0000-00 22743242 10/1/2014 REI 456824 BELLANCA, RICHARD S 502 GRAYSON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 5.45$                 $                    1.22 6.67$                
0002054189-2012-2012-0000-00 22743242 10/1/2014 REI 266327 BELLANCA, RICHARD S 502 GRAYSON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 5.56$                 $                    0.96 6.52$                
0002054189-2013-2013-0000-00 22743242 10/1/2014 REI 267360 BELLANCA, RICHARD S 502 GRAYSON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 5.71$                 $                    0.70 6.41$                
0002050824-2011-2011-0000-00 22723917 11/1/2014 REI 506592 BENTON, DIANNE 830 E. JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 38.41$              $                    8.58 46.99$              
0002050824-2012-2012-0000-00 22723917 11/1/2014 REI 506987 BENTON, DIANNE 830 E. JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 38.41$              $                    6.65 45.06$              
0002050824-2013-2013-0000-00 22723917 11/1/2014 REI 309073 BENTON, DIANNE 830 E. JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 40.32$              $                    4.97 45.29$              
0002050824-2014-2014-0000-00 22723917 11/1/2014 REI 309849 BENTON, DIANNE 830 E. JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 40.32$              $                    2.95 43.27$              
0002049705-2011-2011-0000-00 22721265 11/1/2014 REI 504617 BERGEMAN, KENNETH L 1533 WOODY CREEK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 27.22$              $                    6.08 33.30$              
0002049705-2012-2012-0000-00 22721265 11/1/2014 REI 308247 BERGEMAN, KENNETH L 1533 WOODY CREEK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 27.22$              $                    4.71 31.93$              
0002049705-2013-2013-0000-00 22721265 11/1/2014 REI 308955 BERGEMAN, KENNETH L 1533 WOODY CREEK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 28.58$              $                    3.52 32.10$              
0002049705-2014-2014-0000-00 22721265 11/1/2014 REI 309720 BERGEMAN, KENNETH L 1533 WOODY CREEK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 28.58$              $                    2.09 30.67$              
0002053249-2011-2011-0000-00 22737215 11/1/2014 REI 491854 BERGS, ALVIS E 2227 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 28.44$              $                    6.35 34.79$              
0002053249-2012-2012-0000-00 22737215 11/1/2014 REI 308580 BERGS, ALVIS E 2227 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 28.44$              $                    4.92 33.36$              
0002053249-2013-2013-0000-00 22737215 11/1/2014 REI 309313 BERGS, ALVIS E 2227 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 29.84$              $                    3.67 33.51$              
0002053249-2014-2014-0000-00 22737215 11/1/2014 REI 310108 BERGS, ALVIS E 2227 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 29.84$              $                    2.19 32.03$              
0002049634-2011-2011-0000-00 22721104 12/1/2014 REI 484633 BETTY SUZANNE BURTON, BRENDA BURTON, WILLIAM BURTON,    4626 ADDISON DR CHARLOTTE NC 28211 6/4/2012 69.35$              $                 14.07 83.42$              
0002002753-2012-2012-0000-00 21513402 11/1/2014 REI 515887 BICKFORD, CRAIG 2318 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 41.75$              $                    7.22 48.97$              
0002002753-2013-2013-0000-00 21513402 11/1/2014 REI 306308 BICKFORD, CRAIG 2318 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 43.81$              $                    5.40 49.21$              
0002002753-2014-2014-0000-00 21513402 11/1/2014 REI 306976 BICKFORD, CRAIG 2318 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 43.81$              $                    3.21 47.02$              
0002002907-2011-2011-0000-00 21515405 11/1/2014 REI 484525 BILES LEGACY TRUST 5170 HWY 49-E MT PLEASANT NC 28124 1/6/2012 54.45$              $                 12.17 66.62$              
0002047783-2011-2011-0000-00 22706250 3/1/2015 REI 506641 BILLIARD, WILLIAM J 1525  SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 224.16$            $                 50.08 274.24$           
0002047783-2012-2012-0000-00 22706250 3/1/2015 REI 431967 BILLIARD, WILLIAM J 1525  SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 210.54$            $                 36.43 246.97$           
0002047783-2013-2013-0000-00 22706250 3/1/2015 REI 432722 BILLIARD, WILLIAM J 1525  SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 220.98$            $                 27.21 248.19$           
0002047783-2014-2014-0000-00 22706250 3/1/2015 REI 433530 BILLIARD, WILLIAM J 1525  SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/9/2015 225.40$            $                 16.43 241.83$           
0001996689-2011-2011-0000-00 21324182 10/1/2014 REI 473869 BISSELL, LAURIS 12711 ATKINS CIRCLE DR UNIT 205 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 4.24$                 $                    0.95 5.19$                
0002046882-2014-2014-0000-00 22702710 2/1/2015 REI 487118 BJORK, BARBARA JEAN P 600 MARION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 64.77$              $                    4.75 69.52$              
0002046882-2011-2011-0000-00 22702710 2/1/2015 REI 415468 BJORK, JOHN L 600 MARION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 64.13$              $                 14.33 78.46$              
0002046882-2012-2012-0000-00 22702710 2/1/2015 REI 416245 BJORK, JOHN L 600 MARION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 61.71$              $                 10.68 72.39$              
0002003014-2013-2013-0000-00 21516230 11/1/2014 REI 516276 BLACKWELDER, PATTY L 13225 SADDLETREE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/7/2014 55.27$              $                    6.13 61.40$              
0002003014-2014-2014-0000-00 21516230 11/1/2014 REI 307087 BLACKWELDER, PATTY L 13225 SADDLETREE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 53.34$              $                    3.91 57.25$              
0001937507-2014-2014-0000-00 19344114 11/1/2014 REI 490289 BLANKFIELD, RACHEL 2832 WILLIAMS STATION RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 0.32$                 $                    0.02 0.34$                
0002002626-2011-2011-0000-00 21513183 11/1/2014 REI 484522 BONDURANT, WILLIAM HENRY & BONDURANT, MARTHA B 19800 WOODEN TEE DR DAVIDSON NC 28036 1/6/2012 40.84$              $                    9.12 49.96$              
0002002340-2013-2013-0000-00 21512304 3/1/2015 REI 500318 BONTERRA BUILDERS LLC 5615 POTTERS RD MATTHEWS NC 28104 12/9/2014 145.26$            $                 11.20 156.46$           
0002002340-2014-2014-0000-00 21512304 3/1/2015 REI 500676 BONTERRA BUILDERS LLC 5615 POTTERS RD MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2015 131.76$            $                    9.66 141.42$           
0002052962-2014-2014-0000-00 22736202 11/1/2014 REI 495655 BORKOWSKI, GENE M 625 STANHOPE LANE MATTHEWS NC 28105-1514 1/6/2015 51.75$              $                    3.79 55.54$              
0001934358-2012-2012-0000-00 19333361 9/1/2014 REI 452387 BOSS, ELSWORTH PRESTON 1230 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/16/2013 13.94$              $                    2.40 16.34$              
0001934358-2013-2013-0000-00 19333361 9/1/2014 REI 239346 BOSS, ELSWORTH PRESTON 1230 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.28$              $                    1.76 16.04$              
0002051664-2011-2011-0000-00 22728295 11/1/2014 REI 508785 BOSWORTH, JULIE D 234 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 2.72$                 $                    0.61 3.33$                



0001932969-2011-2011-0000-00 19322105 1/1/2015 REI 484379 BOYD, BRIAN T 179 NIBLICK RD,UNIT 430 PASO ROBLES CA 93446 1/6/2012 335.47$            $                 74.95 410.42$           
0001932969-2012-2012-0000-00 19322105 1/1/2015 REI 485478 BOYD, BRIAN T 179 NIBLICK RD,UNIT 430 PASO ROBLES CA 93446 1/8/2013 335.47$            $                 58.04 393.51$           
0002001265-2014-2014-0000-00 21502307 2/1/2015 REI 417528 BOYD, STEPHEN R 340 CLUB VIEW LN CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/6/2015 20.96$              $                    1.54 22.50$              
0002055192-2014-2014-0000-00 22752138 11/1/2014 REI 310139 BOYLAN, JOHN M 4900 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 31.12$              $                    2.28 33.40$              
0002055192-2013-2013-0000-00 22752138 11/1/2014 REI 503329 BOYLAN, JOHN M & BOYLAN, CAROL M 4900 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 31.12$              $                    3.83 34.95$              
0002002250-2011-2011-0000-00 21511117 10/1/2014 REI 473911 BRADSHAW, JULIA H & BRADSHAW, ERROL P.O. BOX 2314 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 20.57$              $                    4.60 25.17$              
0002002250-2012-2012-0000-00 21511117 10/1/2014 REI 474761 BRADSHAW, JULIA H & BRADSHAW, ERROL P.O. BOX 2314 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013 19.06$              $                    3.30 22.36$              
0002003025-2013-2013-0000-00 21516238 11/1/2014 REI 442929 BRANCH BANKING TRUST CO P O BOX 167 WINSTON SALEM NC 27102 10/13/2014 26.94$              $                    2.29 29.23$              
0002003025-2014-2014-0000-00 21516238 11/1/2014 REI 442930 BRANCH BANKING TRUST CO P O BOX 167 WINSTON SALEM NC 27102 1/6/2015 24.77$              $                    1.82 26.59$              
0001934399-2012-2012-0000-01 19333378 9/1/2014 REI 452389 BRANDT, MICHAEL J 2652 IVEY WOOD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 13.61$              $                    2.35 15.96$              
0001934399-2013-2013-0000-00 19333378 9/1/2014 REI 239348 BRANDT, MICHAEL J 2652 IVEY WOOD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0001934399-2014-2014-0000-00 19333378 9/1/2014 REI 239686 BRANDT, MICHAEL J 2652 IVEY WOOD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 14.29$              $                    1.05 15.34$              
0002053381-2011-2011-0000-00 22738165 10/1/2014 REI 474134 BREWER, VAUGHN A 175 SCHOONER BEND AVE SUMMERVILLE SC 29483 1/6/2012 3.33$                 $                    0.74 4.07$                
0002004025-2011-2011-0000-00 21525418 10/1/2014 REI 473980 BREZOVIC, VINCENT JOSEPH 14711 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 4.63$                 $                    1.03 5.66$                
0001992869-2014-2014-0000-00 21302209 9/1/2014 REI 452037 BROACH, DAVID L JR TRUST 100 CHARING CROSS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 1.90$                 $                    0.14 2.04$                
0001933722-2012-2012-0000-00 19331161 1/1/2015 REI 509159 BROOKESTAR INVESTMENTS, LLC 7412 BALINTOY LANE MATTHEWS NC 28104 4/12/2013 42.58$              $                    6.82 49.40$              
0001933722-2013-2013-0000-00 19331161 1/1/2015 REI 509589 BROOKESTAR INVESTMENTS, LLC 7412 BALINTOY LANE MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014 42.87$              $                    5.28 48.15$              
0002047688-2011-2011-0000-00 22706205 3/1/2015 REI 484607 BROOKS, J DANIEL (TRUST) 308 MANSFIELD CT FRANKLIN TN 37069 1/6/2012 72.90$              $                 16.29 89.19$              
0002047688-2012-2012-0000-00 22706205 3/1/2015 REI 485607 BROOKS, J DANIEL (TRUST) 308 MANSFIELD CT FRANKLIN TN 37069 1/8/2013 68.66$              $                 11.88 80.54$              
0002054254-2012-2012-0000-00 22743291 2/1/2015 REI 416497 BROOKS, JUSTIN T 801 LAUREL FORK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 89.84$              $                 15.54 105.38$           
0002054254-2013-2013-0000-00 22743291 2/1/2015 REI 417275 BROOKS, JUSTIN T 801 LAUREL FORK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 94.30$              $                 11.61 105.91$           
0002054254-2014-2014-0000-00 22743291 2/1/2015 REI 417954 BROOKS, JUSTIN T 801 LAUREL FORK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 94.30$              $                    6.91 101.21$           
0002055381-2012-2012-0000-00 22752334 11/1/2014 REI 504863 BROOMER, GERALD COLEMAN 5033 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 14.22$              $                    2.46 16.68$              
0002055381-2013-2013-0000-00 22752334 11/1/2014 REI 311895 BROOMER, GERALD COLEMAN 5033 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.92$              $                    1.84 16.76$              
0001934902-2014-2014-0000-00 19334119 11/1/2014 REI 493017 BROWN, CHAD M 11332 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 62.23$              $                    4.56 66.79$              
0002001295-2012-2012-0000-00 21503116 2/1/2015 REI 416053 BROWN, FAYE ANTHONY PO BOX 772 MATTHEWS NC 28106 3/18/2013 32.09$              $                    5.25 37.34$              
0002001653-2014-2014-0000-00 21504150 3/1/2015 REI 487081 BROWN, MAE FRANCIS 738 SELMA BURKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 136.84$            $                 10.03 146.87$           
0001996652-2011-2011-0000-00 21324157 10/1/2014 REI 473864 BROWN, TIMOTHY DANIEL 12984 OLD AQUADALE RD ALBEMARLE NC 28001 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0002050507-2014-2014-0000-00 22723402 11/1/2014 REI 497952 BROWN, WENDY J 309 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 0.96$                 $                    0.07 1.03$                
0001933093-2011-2011-0000-00 19324540 12/1/2014 REI 484383 BT MATTHEWS LLC 2819 BARNARD CASTLE LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 8.16$                 $                    1.82 9.98$                
0001933093-2012-2012-0000-00 19324540 12/1/2014 REI 485479 BT MATTHEWS LLC 2819 BARNARD CASTLE LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 2/11/2013 7.76$                 $                    1.31 9.07$                
0007270385-2011-2011-0000-00 21515179 2/1/2015 REI 496669 BUCHOLTZ, JAMES F 14200 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0001935039-2013-2013-0000-00 19334222 11/1/2014 REI 492662 BULLOCK, AMBER 11300 HALLMARK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 52.70$              $                    6.49 59.19$              
0001935039-2014-2014-0000-00 19334222 11/1/2014 REI 306611 BULLOCK, AMBER 11300 HALLMARK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 52.70$              $                    3.86 56.56$              
0002046554-2013-2013-0000-00 22701404 11/1/2014 REI 512419 BURKE FOLEY, KAREN 221 MATTHEWS CROSSING MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 18.42$              $                    2.27 20.69$              
0002046554-2014-2014-0000-00 22701404 11/1/2014 REI 309662 BURKE FOLEY, KAREN 221 MATTHEWS CROSSING MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 18.42$              $                    1.35 19.77$              
0002051861-2013-2013-0000-00 22730140 2/1/2015 REI 495341 BURKE, TRAVIS 327 MATTRIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 71.76$              $                    8.84 80.60$              
0002051861-2014-2014-0000-00 22730140 2/1/2015 REI 487140 BURKE, TRAVIS 327 MATTRIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 71.76$              $                    5.26 77.02$              
0002055172-2011-2011-0000-00 22752127 11/1/2014 REI 484654 BURLEY, PAUL S JR & BURLEY, ANDREA C 75 RIDGEPORT ROAD LAKE WYLIE SC 29710 1/6/2012 44.16$              $                    9.87 54.03$              
0002055172-2012-2012-0000-00 22752127 11/1/2014 REI 485640 BURLEY, PAUL S JR & BURLEY, ANDREA C 75 RIDGEPORT ROAD LAKE WYLIE SC 29710 1/8/2013 44.77$              $                    7.75 52.52$              
0002055172-2013-2013-0000-00 22752127 11/1/2014 REI 486440 BURLEY, PAUL S JR & BURLEY, ANDREA C 75 RIDGEPORT ROAD LAKE WYLIE SC 29710 1/7/2014 46.99$              $                    5.79 52.78$              
0001934375-2012-2012-0000-01 19333369 9/1/2014 REI 452388 BYRD, ANDREW G 1233 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 13.61$              $                    2.35 15.96$              
0001934375-2013-2013-0000-00 19333369 9/1/2014 REI 221004 BYRD, ANDREW G 1233 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0001934375-2014-2014-0000-00 19333369 9/1/2014 REI 224538 BYRD, ANDREW G 1233 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 14.29$              $                    1.05 15.34$              
0002053283-2011-2011-0000-00 22737242 11/1/2014 REI 484649 CALABRASI, AMANDA R & CALABRASI, JOSEPH MICHAEL 100 N. TRYON STREET STE B220, PMB 278 CHARLOTTE NC 28202 1/6/2012 30.56$              $                    6.83 37.39$              
0002053283-2012-2012-0000-00 22737242 11/1/2014 REI 485635 CALABRASI, AMANDA R. & CALABRASI, JOSEPH MICHAEL 100 N. TRYON STREET STE B220, PMB 278 CHARLOTTE NC 28202 1/8/2013 26.32$              $                    4.55 30.87$              
0002053283-2013-2013-0000-00 22737242 11/1/2014 REI 486436 CALABRASI, AMANDA R. & CALABRASI, JOSEPH MICHAEL 100 N. TRYON STREET STE B220, PMB 278 CHARLOTTE NC 28202 1/7/2014 27.62$              $                    3.40 31.02$              
0002049888-2013-2013-0000-00 22721569 11/1/2014 REI 308962 CAROLINA HOME HOLDINGS LLC 10003 SILVER LAKE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/7/2014 9.53$                 $                    1.17 10.70$              
0002049888-2014-2014-0000-00 22721569 11/1/2014 REI 309727 CAROLINA HOME HOLDINGS LLC 10003 SILVER LAKE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2015 9.53$                 $                    0.70 10.23$              
0002049888-2012-2012-0000-00 22721569 11/1/2014 REI 499949 CAROLINA HOME HOLDINGS LLC 10003 SILVER LAKE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/8/2013 9.08$                 $                    1.57 10.65$              
0002003533-2013-2013-0000-00 21519521 10/1/2014 REI 475120 CAROLINA WILLON 2013 LLC 53 FOREST AVE FLR 3 OLD GREENWICH CT 6870 1/7/2014 11.11$              $                    1.37 12.48$              
0002046946-2011-2011-0000-00 22702756 2/1/2015 REI 489071 CARRANO, DOROTHY M  H 408 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 88.63$              $                 19.80 108.43$           
0002046946-2014-2014-0000-00 22702756 2/1/2015 REI 414875 CARRANO, DOROTHY M  H 408 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEW NC 28105 1/6/2015 90.80$              $                    6.65 97.45$              
0001933654-2011-2011-0000-00 19330311 1/1/2015 REI 511394 CARROLL FAMILY INVESTMENTS LTD 2340 INTERSTATE 20 WEST STE 100 ARLINGTON TX 76017 1/6/2012 3.03$                 $                    0.68 3.71$                
0002050115-2011-2011-0000-00 22722136 1/1/2015 REI 508777 CARSILLO ENTITIES LLC . 1015 APPLEGATE PKWY WAXHAW NC 28173 5/21/2012 4.47$                 $                    0.92 5.39$                
0001934620-2014-2014-0000-00 19333606 11/1/2014 REI 497903 CARUSO, PAUL 1023 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 6.35$                 $                    0.47 6.82$                
0002003294-2013-2013-0000-00 21518209 10/1/2014 REI 475117 CASERIO, MICHAEL 2036 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 19.05$              $                    2.35 21.40$              
0002003294-2014-2014-0000-00 21518209 10/1/2014 REI 262721 CASERIO, MICHAEL 2036 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 19.05$              $                    1.40 20.45$              
0001932677-2012-2012-0000-00 19317150 9/1/2014 REI 452383 CASSEDAY, ADORA V 3103 WESTNEDGE DR, UNIT 1117 CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/8/2013 10.59$              $                    1.83 12.42$              
0001932677-2013-2013-0000-00 19317150 9/1/2014 REI 452470 CASSEDAY, ADORA V 3103 WESTNEDGE DR, UNIT 1117 CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/7/2014 11.12$              $                    1.37 12.49$              
0001932487-2011-2011-0000-00 19314132 9/1/2014 REI 452173 CASSIDY  EILEEN 1908 OVERHILL DR MONRE NC 28110 1/6/2012 95.89$              $                 21.42 117.31$           
0001932487-2012-2012-0000-00 19314132 9/1/2014 REI 234265 CASSIDY, EILEEN 3411 FAIRFAX WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2013 98.53$              $                 16.68 115.21$           
0001932487-2013-2013-0000-00 19314132 9/1/2014 REI 220935 CASSIDY, EILEEN 3411 FAIRFAX WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/4/2014 104.17$            $                 12.03 116.20$           
0001934822-2011-2011-0000-00 19333904 11/1/2014 REI 484389 CATTANEO, BRIAN C 7910 VININGS OAK LANE APT 224 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 8.77$                 $                    1.96 10.73$              
0001934822-2013-2013-0000-00 19333904 11/1/2014 REI 486305 CATTANEO, BRIAN C 7910 VININGS OAK LANE APT 224 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 8.26$                 $                    1.02 9.28$                
0001934822-2012-2012-0000-00 19333904 11/1/2014 REI 485482 CATTANEO,AMY S,CATTANEO,BRIAN C 21821 DUPREE DR LAND O LAKES FL 34639-3458 1/8/2013 7.86$                 $                    1.36 9.22$                
0001936613-2014-2014-0000-00 19340613 9/1/2014 REI 452539 CHANDLER, LEON M 3216 WILLIAMS RD CHARLOTTE NC 28105 1/6/2015 73.03$              $                    5.35 78.38$              
0002056605-2011-2011-0000-00 22761275 12/1/2014 REI 515466 CHANG, JASON J 1927 WEDDINGTON TD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 42.35$              $                    9.46 51.81$              
0002056605-2012-2012-0000-00 22761275 12/1/2014 REI 350531 CHANG, JASON J 1927 WEDDINGTON TD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 45.67$              $                    7.90 53.57$              
0002056605-2013-2013-0000-00 22761275 12/1/2014 REI 351177 CHANG, JASON J 1927 WEDDINGTON TD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 47.94$              $                    5.90 53.84$              
0002056605-2014-2014-0000-00 22761275 12/1/2014 REI 351905 CHANG, JASON J 1927 WEDDINGTON TD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 47.94$              $                    3.51 51.45$              
0001933435-2011-2011-0000-00 19328231 1/1/2015 REI 484384 CHAPS HOLDINGS LLC 17008 BELLE ISLE DR CORNELIUS NC 28031 1/6/2012 112.23$            $                 25.07 137.30$           
0001934292-2013-2013-0000-00 19333337 9/1/2014 REI 452471 CHARLES SINGLEY  & ALISA SINGLEY 2728 PHILLIPS WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0002003188-2011-2011-0000-00 21517186 11/1/2014 REI 499388 CHARLOTTE CHECKERS HOCKEY LLC 210 E TRADE ST STE E-480 CHARLOTTE NC 28202 1/6/2012 22.39$              $                    5.00 27.39$              
0002003188-2012-2012-0000-00 21517186 11/1/2014 REI 485547 CHARLOTTE CHECKERS HOCKEY LLC 210 E TRADE ST STE E-480 CHARLOTTE NC 28202 1/8/2013 11.79$              $                    2.04 13.83$              
0002003188-2013-2013-0000-00 21517186 11/1/2014 REI 486365 CHARLOTTE CHECKERS HOCKEY LLC 210 E TRADE ST STE E-480 CHARLOTTE NC 28202 1/7/2014 12.38$              $                    1.52 13.90$              
0001935047-2014-2014-0000-00 19334227 11/1/2014 REI 503630 CHARNOCK, DARREN 11329 TORINO RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 52.71$              $                    3.86 56.57$              
0002054556-2014-2014-0000-00 22746169 10/1/2014 REI 475379 CHASE, ALEXANDER W 1306 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 131.76$            $                    9.66 141.42$           
0002050418-2011-2011-0000-00 22722804 12/1/2014 REI 484635 CHAVEZ, RAMON 2208 TARLTON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 61.71$              $                 13.79 75.50$              
0002050418-2012-2012-0000-00 22722804 12/1/2014 REI 350510 CHAVEZ, RAMON 2208 TARLTON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 61.71$              $                 10.68 72.39$              
0002050418-2013-2013-0000-00 22722804 12/1/2014 REI 351156 CHAVEZ, RAMON 2208 TARLTON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 64.77$              $                    7.98 72.75$              
0002050418-2014-2014-0000-00 22722804 12/1/2014 REI 351882 CHAVEZ, RAMON 2208 TARLTON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 66.07$              $                    4.84 70.91$              
0002047784-2011-2011-0000-00 22706251 3/1/2015 REI 506584 CHEIFETZ, PAUL A 1535 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 7/20/2012 164.95$            $                 32.43 197.38$           
0002047784-2012-2012-0000-00 22706251 3/1/2015 REI 506982 CHEIFETZ, PAUL A 1535 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 154.88$            $                 26.80 181.68$           
0002047784-2013-2013-0000-00 22706251 3/1/2015 REI 453134 CHEIFETZ, PAUL A 1535 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 173.36$            $                 21.35 194.71$           
0001934836-2011-2011-0000-00 19333916 11/1/2014 REI 511399 CHESHIRE, GENORA LANE 1503 SOUTH POINT RD BELMONT NC 28012 1/6/2012 16.64$              $                    3.72 20.36$              
0001934836-2012-2012-0000-00 19333916 11/1/2014 REI 511948 CHESHIRE, GENORA LANE 1503 SOUTH POINT RD BELMONT NC 28012 1/8/2013 15.73$              $                    2.72 18.45$              
0001934836-2013-2013-0000-00 19333916 11/1/2014 REI 512346 CHESHIRE, GENORA LANE 1503 SOUTH POINT RD BELMONT NC 28012 1/7/2014 16.51$              $                    2.03 18.54$              
0002002041-2013-2013-0000-00 21510103 3/1/2015 REI 489957 CITIZENS SOUTH BANKING CORPORATION PO BOX 68 HIAWASSEE GA 30546 1/7/2014 340.68$            $                 41.95 382.63$           
0002002041-2012-2012-0000-00 21510103 3/1/2015 REI 506934 CITIZENS SOUTH BANKING CORPORATION . PO BOX 68 HIAWASSEE GA 30546 1/8/2013 324.58$            $                 56.16 380.74$           
0002053705-2013-2013-0000-00 22740252 10/1/2014 REI 475182 CLANCY, PATRICK 2350 WINTERBROOKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 36.83$              $                    4.54 41.37$              
0002053195-2013-2013-0000-00 22737167 11/1/2014 REI 505063 CLEMENTS, CATHERINE PETRIS 2000 SHANNON BRIDGE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 27.62$              $                    3.40 31.02$              
0002053195-2014-2014-0000-00 22737167 11/1/2014 REI 310090 CLEMENTS, CATHERINE PETRIS 2000 SHANNON BRIDGE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 27.62$              $                    2.02 29.64$              
0002047085-2011-2011-0000-00 22703241 2/1/2015 REI 415534 CLINE, KATHRYN F 429 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 44.77$              $                 10.00 54.77$              
0002047085-2012-2012-0000-00 22703241 2/1/2015 REI 416311 CLINE, KATHRYN F 429 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 41.75$              $                    7.22 48.97$              
0002001685-2011-2011-0000-00 21504206 2/1/2015 REI 502389 CLYBURN, JOHN 2608 SIERRA CHASE MONROE NC 28112 1/6/2012 40.23$              $                    8.99 49.22$              
0002046888-2011-2011-0000-00 22702712 2/1/2015 REI 415470 COAN, AMY K 200 MARION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-1527 1/6/2012 56.57$              $                 12.64 69.21$              
0002046888-2012-2012-0000-00 22702712 2/1/2015 REI 416247 COAN, AMY K 200 MARION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-1527 1/8/2013 50.52$              $                    8.74 59.26$              
0002046888-2013-2013-0000-00 22702712 2/1/2015 REI 417028 COAN, AMY K 200 MARION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-1527 1/7/2014 53.02$              $                    6.53 59.55$              
0002001190-2013-2013-0000-00 21502132 2/1/2015 REI 512382 COCHRANE, SHIRLEY THOMPSON & COCHRANE, RALPH N 2637 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 17.14$              $                    2.11 19.25$              
0002001190-2014-2014-0000-00 21502132 2/1/2015 REI 512718 COCHRANE, SHIRLEY THOMPSON & COCHRANE, RALPH N 2637 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 17.14$              $                    1.26 18.40$              
0002056757-2011-2011-0000-00 22764159 10/1/2014 REI 474231 COFFEY, DENNIS E 11424 BRANGUS LANE MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 26.92$              $                    6.01 32.93$              
0002056757-2012-2012-0000-00 22764159 10/1/2014 REI 474896 COFFEY, DENNIS E 11424 BRANGUS LN MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 26.92$              $                    4.66 31.58$              
0001937507-2012-2012-0000-00 19344114 11/1/2014 REI 489537 COLE, NOLAN CROMWELL 1815 ARMSTRONG PARK DR GASTONIA NC 28054 1/8/2013 0.30$                 $                    0.05 0.35$                
0001937507-2013-2013-0000-00 19344114 11/1/2014 REI 489936 COLE, NOLAN CROMWELL 1815 ARMSTRONG PARK DR GASTONIA NC 28054 1/7/2014 0.32$                 $                    0.04 0.36$                
0002051811-2014-2014-0000-00 22729262 10/1/2014 REI 475369 COLFIN AH NORTH CAROLINA 1 LLC . 9305 E VIA DE VENTURA STE 201 SCOTTSDALE AZ 85258 1/6/2015 205.10$            $                 15.03 220.13$           
0002056621-2013-2013-0000-00 22761294 12/1/2014 REI 351183 COMPOSITE WORKS LLC 977 US HWY 98 EASTPOINT FL 32328 1/7/2014 171.77$            $                 21.15 192.92$           
0002056621-2012-2012-0000-00 22761294 12/1/2014 REI 502948 COMPOSITE WORKS LLC 977 US HWY 98 EASTPOINT FL 32328 1/8/2013 187.24$            $                 32.40 219.64$           
0002050200-2014-2014-0000-00 22722308 12/1/2014 REI 495653 CONDELUCI, COLLETTE  KENNEY, DANIEL PATRICK  KENNEY, LAU 2300 HUNTERS BLUFF DR NC 1/6/2015 25.40$              $                    1.86 27.26$              
0002054556-2013-2013-0000-00 22746169 10/1/2014 REI 475204 CONOVER,DARREN L 7907 MONTANE RUN CT MARVIN NC 28173 1/7/2014 130.81$            $                 16.11 146.92$           
0002053775-2011-2011-0000-00 22740311 10/1/2014 REI 517712 CONYERS, JEFFREY K 2739 OXBOROUGH DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 45.08$              $                 10.07 55.15$              
0002053775-2012-2012-0000-00 22740311 10/1/2014 REI 266298 CONYERS, JEFFREY K 2739 OXBOROUGH DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 43.26$              $                    7.48 50.74$              
0002053775-2013-2013-0000-00 22740311 10/1/2014 REI 267331 CONYERS, JEFFREY K 2739 OXBOROUGH DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 45.40$              $                    5.59 50.99$              
0001934566-2013-2013-0000-00 19333486 9/1/2014 REI 221028 COPPINS, WILLIAM J 1343 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 305.44$            $                 37.62 343.06$           
0002055997-2011-2011-0000-00 22756210 7/1/2014 REI 516817 CORNELL, KENNETH L 3225 ABBEY WALK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 68.67$              $                 15.34 84.01$              
0002050448-2014-2014-0000-00 22723101 11/1/2014 REI 487135 COUICK, JEANNIE RENE 630 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2015 33.28$              $                    2.31 35.59$              
0002047042-2011-2011-0000-00 22703208 2/1/2015 REI 415509 COURTRIGHT, DAVID D JR 518 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2560 1/6/2012 72.60$              $                 16.22 88.82$              
0002047042-2012-2012-0000-00 22703208 2/1/2015 REI 416286 COURTRIGHT, DAVID D JR 518 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2560 1/8/2013 72.60$              $                 12.56 85.16$              
0002047042-2013-2013-0000-00 22703208 2/1/2015 REI 417068 COURTRIGHT, DAVID D JR 518 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2560 1/7/2014 76.20$              $                    9.38 85.58$              
0001992727-2011-2011-0000-00 21301217 1/1/2015 REI 508726 COVENANT DAY SCHOOL INC 800 FULLWOOD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 28.74$              $                    6.42 35.16$              
0002054518-2012-2012-0000-00 22746144 10/1/2014 REI 474880 CRAYTON, PETER D 81 FOSTER ST NEW HAVEN CT 6511 1/8/2013 24.81$              $                    4.29 29.10$              
0002054518-2013-2013-0000-00 22746144 10/1/2014 REI 475202 CRAYTON, PETER D 81 FOSTER ST NEW HAVEN CT 6511 1/7/2014 20.64$              $                    2.54 23.18$              
0002053196-2012-2012-0000-00 22737168 11/1/2014 REI 492331 CRESS, JOEL R 2001 GLENDALOUGH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 29.64$              $                    5.13 34.77$              
0002053196-2013-2013-0000-00 22737168 11/1/2014 REI 317741 CRESS, JOEL R 2001 GLENDALOUGH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 31.11$              $                    3.83 34.94$              
0002053196-2014-2014-0000-00 22737168 11/1/2014 REI 318226 CRESS, JOEL R 2001 GLENDALOUGH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 31.11$              $                    2.28 33.39$              
0002056349-2014-2014-0000-00 22760139 10/1/2014 REI 268617 CRONE, JOSEPH H III 1835 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 103.51$            $                    7.59 111.10$           
0002055194-2011-2011-0000-00 22752140 11/1/2014 REI 489100 CROSBY, DOROTHY 1101 CURRY WAY MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 32.67$              $                    7.30 39.97$              
0002001267-2011-2011-0000-00 21502309 2/1/2015 REI 415262 CROWELL, JAMES H SR 733 PLANTATION ESTATES APT B-105 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 22.39$              $                    5.00 27.39$              
0002001267-2012-2012-0000-00 21502309 2/1/2015 REI 416049 CROWELL, JAMES H SR 733 PLANTATION ESTATES APT B-105 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.06$              $                    3.30 22.36$              
0002001267-2013-2013-0000-00 21502309 2/1/2015 REI 416824 CROWELL, JAMES H SR 733 PLANTATION ESTATES APT B-105 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.00$              $                    2.46 22.46$              
0002049697-2011-2011-0000-00 22721244 11/1/2014 REI 489082 CROWGEY, MATTHEW T 2301 WINTERBROOKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 26.92$              $                    6.01 32.93$              
0002049697-2012-2012-0000-00 22721244 11/1/2014 REI 489605 CROWGEY, MATTHEW T 2301 WINTERBROOKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 26.92$              $                    4.66 31.58$              
0002053789-2011-2011-0000-00 22740325 10/1/2014 REI 264673 CULPEPPER, JOSEPH N 2501 WINTERBROOKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 103.46$            $                 23.12 126.58$           
0002053789-2012-2012-0000-00 22740325 10/1/2014 REI 266304 CULPEPPER, JOSEPH N 2501 WINTERBROOKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 103.46$            $                 17.90 121.36$           
0002053789-2013-2013-0000-00 22740325 10/1/2014 REI 267337 CULPEPPER, JOSEPH N 2501 WINTERBROOKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 108.58$            $                 13.37 121.95$           
0002003191-2011-2011-0000-00 21517187 11/1/2014 REI 489030 CURRY, STEPHEN J 45 CHAMBERLAIN DR SHELTON CT 6484 1/6/2012 21.78$              $                    4.87 26.65$              
0002003191-2012-2012-0000-00 21517187 11/1/2014 REI 489573 CURRY, STEPHEN J 45 CHAMBERLAIN DR SHELTON CT 6484 1/8/2013 20.57$              $                    3.56 24.13$              
0002001653-2012-2012-0000-00 21504150 3/1/2015 REI 485535 CURTINA ALLBROOKS & MAE FRANCES BROWN 738 SELMA BURKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 130.38$            $                 22.56 152.94$           



0002001653-2011-2011-0000-00 21504150 3/1/2015 REI 484516 CURTINA LLSBROOKS & MAE FRANCIS BROWN 738 SELMA BURKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/9/2012 133.31$            $                 29.73 163.04$           
0002001653-2013-2013-0000-00 21504150 3/1/2015 REI 486355 CURTINA LLSBROOKS & MAE FRANCIS BROWN 738 SELMA BURKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 136.84$            $                 16.85 153.69$           
0001933256-2011-2011-0000-00 19327102 10/1/2014 REI 326974 DAILEY, JACK REED JR 338 NORTH AMES ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 28.74$              $                    6.42 35.16$              
0001933256-2012-2012-0000-00 19327102 10/1/2014 REI 326644 DAILEY, JACK REED JR 338 NORTH AMES ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 26.02$              $                    4.50 30.52$              
0001933256-2013-2013-0000-00 19327102 10/1/2014 REI 251377 DAILEY, JACK REED JR 338 NORTH AMES ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 27.30$              $                    3.36 30.66$              
0002047764-2012-2012-0000-01 22706242 3/1/2015 REI 499936 DANIEL, PETER J 1343 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 4.54$                 $                    0.79 5.33$                
0002047764-2013-2013-0000-00 22706242 3/1/2015 REI 432717 DANIEL, PETER J 1343 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 4.77$                 $                    0.59 5.36$                
0002047764-2014-2014-0000-00 22706242 3/1/2015 REI 433526 DANIEL, PETER J 1343 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 4.77$                 $                    0.35 5.12$                
0001934148-2011-2011-0000-00 19333149 11/1/2014 REI 488943 DANNER, ROBERT M 2511 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-4064 1/6/2012 32.07$              $                    7.17 39.24$              
0001934148-2012-2012-0000-00 19333149 11/1/2014 REI 317006 DANNER, ROBERT M 2511 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-4064 1/8/2013 31.46$              $                    5.44 36.90$              
0001934148-2013-2013-0000-00 19333149 11/1/2014 REI 317460 DANNER, ROBERT M 2511 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-4064 1/7/2014 33.02$              $                    4.07 37.09$              
0001934148-2014-2014-0000-00 19333149 11/1/2014 REI 317932 DANNER, ROBERT M 2511 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-4064 1/6/2015 33.02$              $                    2.42 35.44$              
0001934572-2011-2011-0000-00 19333489 9/1/2014 REI 452212 DATSERIS, EVANGELOS S 332 ROSS MOORE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/6/2012 225.97$            $                 50.49 276.46$           
0002050832-2014-2014-0000-00 22723922 11/1/2014 REI 510028 DAUGHERTY, BRIAN J 918 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 18.41$              $                    1.35 19.76$              
0002055434-2011-2011-0000-00 22752434 11/1/2014 REI 489102 DAUPLAISE, TRACIE L & DAUPLAISE, MARK J 1999 ROYAL TROON COURT PORT ORANGE FL 32128 1/6/2012 47.19$              $                 10.54 57.73$              
0001934377-2011-2011-0000-00 19333370 9/1/2014 REI 452206 DAVANI, PARVANEH HASHEMI 1305 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 13.61$              $                    3.04 16.65$              
0001934377-2012-2012-0000-01 19333370 9/1/2014 REI 283907 DAVANI, PARVANEH HASHEMI 1305 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 13.61$              $                    2.35 15.96$              
0001934377-2013-2013-0000-00 19333370 9/1/2014 REI 239347 DAVANI, PARVANEH HASHEMI 1305 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0002047286-2013-2013-0000-00 22703447 10/1/2014 REI 475162 DAVID ROSS & AMANDA LEIGH ALGOOD 217 HAMPDEN LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 13.66$              $                    1.68 15.34$              
0002052326-2013-2013-0000-00 22731403 11/1/2014 REI 495342 DAVIDSON, CRYSTAL M 1016 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9614 1/7/2014 16.83$              $                    2.07 18.90$              
0002052326-2014-2014-0000-00 22731403 11/1/2014 REI 318186 DAVIDSON, CRYSTAL M 1016 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9614 1/6/2015 16.83$              $                    1.23 18.06$              
0002002703-2011-2011-0000-00 21513246 11/1/2014 REI 489021 DAVIDSON, WALTER H & DAVIDSON, JOAN B 8636 FAUNTLEROY PL SEATTLE WA 98136 1/6/2012 52.64$              $                 11.76 64.40$              
0001992948-2012-2012-0000-00 21302629 10/1/2014 REI 256088 DAVIES, FRANK D 9121 SARDIS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/21/2013 21.46$              $                    3.58 25.04$              
0001992948-2013-2013-0000-00 21302629 10/1/2014 REI 257136 DAVIES, FRANK D 9121 SARDIS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 21.91$              $                    2.70 24.61$              
0002055376-2011-2011-0000-00 22752329 11/1/2014 REI 489101 DAVIS, ANDREW M & DAVIS, KATHLEEN E 125 SULLIVAN DR CARTHAGE NC 28327 1/6/2012 28.14$              $                    6.29 34.43$              
0002055319-2012-2012-0000-00 22752248 11/1/2014 REI 506997 DAYTON, LAURA HART 1427 MATTHEWS PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 25.11$              $                    4.34 29.45$              
0002055319-2013-2013-0000-00 22752248 11/1/2014 REI 311862 DAYTON, LAURA HART 1427 MATTHEWS PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 26.36$              $                    3.25 29.61$              
0002055319-2014-2014-0000-00 22752248 11/1/2014 REI 312590 DAYTON, LAURA HART 1427 MATTHEWS PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.36$              $                    1.93 28.29$              
0002055041-2014-2014-0000-00 22750163 12/1/2014 REI 351895 DEAD GOOSE LLC 1220 HOME PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 121.29$            $                    8.89 130.18$           
0002002979-2011-2011-0000-00 21516158 11/1/2014 REI 489027 DEESE, OLETTA R; CREASMAN, TERESA D 42 BELLE RIVER CIRCLE MAUMELLE AR 72113 1/6/2012 41.75$              $                    9.33 51.08$              
0002002553-2011-2011-0000-00 21513113 11/1/2014 REI 515393 DESIMONE, MICHAEL J 14230 HIGH ECHELON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 65.34$              $                 14.60 79.94$              
0002002553-2012-2012-0000-00 21513113 11/1/2014 REI 305566 DESIMONE, MICHAEL J 14230 HIGH ECHELON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 65.34$              $                 11.30 76.64$              
0002002553-2013-2013-0000-00 21513113 11/1/2014 REI 306196 DESIMONE, MICHAEL J 14230 HIGH ECHELON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 68.58$              $                    8.45 77.03$              
0002002553-2014-2014-0000-00 21513113 11/1/2014 REI 306858 DESIMONE, MICHAEL J 14230 HIGH ECHELON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 68.58$              $                    5.03 73.61$              
0001934624-2013-2013-0000-00 19333609 11/1/2014 REI 500297 DEUTSCHE BANK NATIONAL TRUST COMPANY 1661 WORTHINGTON RD STE 100 WEST PALM BEACH FL 33409 1/7/2014 5.08$                 $                    0.63 5.71$                
0001937507-2011-2011-0000-00 19344114 11/1/2014 REI 488959 DEWS, CARL JUDSON 43781 APPLEWOOD ST HEMET CA 92544 1/6/2012 2.42$                 $                    0.54 2.96$                
0001934492-2012-2012-0000-00 19333440 11/1/2014 REI 509161 DICK, DENNIS J 1332 FOREST WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 4.23$                 $                    0.73 4.96$                
0001934492-2013-2013-0000-00 19333440 11/1/2014 REI 297467 DICK, DENNIS J 1332 FOREST WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 4.44$                 $                    0.55 4.99$                
0001934492-2014-2014-0000-00 19333440 11/1/2014 REI 298148 DICK, DENNIS J 1332 FOREST WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 4.44$                 $                    0.33 4.77$                
0002047269-2012-2012-0000-00 22703438 10/1/2014 REI 474824 DIERINGER, CHRISTOPHER 215 ROSEDALE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 7.56$                 $                    1.31 8.87$                
0002047269-2013-2013-0000-00 22703438 10/1/2014 REI 267001 DIERINGER, CHRISTOPHER 215 ROSEDALE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 7.94$                 $                    0.98 8.92$                
0008068973-2014-2014-0000-00 21301265 1/1/2015 REI 500674 DINESHKUMAR PATEL NAYANABEN 9512 REID HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 125.41$            $                    9.19 134.60$           
0002055219-2014-2014-0000-00 22752159 11/1/2014 REI 493081 DIRECT PROPERTIES NATIONWIDE LLC 3440 TORINGDON WAY CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2015 52.71$              $                    3.86 56.57$              
0001934579-2013-2013-0000-00 19333492 9/1/2014 REI 452476 DIX CHRISTOPHER WAYNE 1322 LIGHTWOOD DR CHARLOTTE NC 28105 1/7/2014 267.02$            $                 32.88 299.90$           
0001934579-2014-2014-0000-00 19333492 9/1/2014 REI 224566 DIX, CHRISTOPHER WAYNE 1322 LIGHTWOOD DR CHARLOTTE NC 28105 1/6/2015 267.02$            $                 19.57 286.59$           
0002053274-2014-2014-0000-00 22737235 11/1/2014 REI 507497 DODD, ABIGAIL E & ARTUS, ERIK 4421 HEDLEY WY ,UNIT 104 CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/6/2015 44.77$              $                    3.28 48.05$              
0002047465-2013-2013-0000-00 22703636 10/1/2014 REI 475165 DONNELLY, GERALD F & DONNELLY, DOREEN H 512 WILLOW BROOK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 21.90$              $                    2.70 24.60$              
0002053077-2014-2014-0000-00 22736315 11/1/2014 REI 497954 DOUB, DAVID MANNING JR 925 MANGIONNE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 62.23$              $                    4.56 66.79$              
0002004225-2012-2012-0000-00 21526192 11/1/2014 REI 442970 DUFFELL, BETTY J 13600 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 24.50$              $                    4.24 28.74$              
0002004225-2013-2013-0000-00 21526192 11/1/2014 REI 442977 DUFFELL, BETTY J 13600 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 25.72$              $                    3.17 28.89$              
0002004225-2014-2014-0000-00 21526192 11/1/2014 REI 442978 DUFFELL, BETTY J 13600 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 25.72$              $                    1.88 27.60$              
0002052593-2011-2011-0000-00 22734215 11/1/2014 REI 491851 DUMAIS, PETER A 1000 PARKVIEW DR APT 609 HALLANDALE FL 30009 1/6/2012 1.52$                 $                    0.34 1.86$                
0002046700-2011-2011-0000-00 22702435 12/1/2014 REI 506582 DUYKE, MARK ALLEN VON 427 E 53RD ST SAVANNAH GA 31405 1/6/2012 10.28$              $                    2.30 12.58$              
0002046700-2012-2012-0000-00 22702435 12/1/2014 REI 492320 DUYKE, MARK ALLEN VON 427 E 53RD ST SAVANNAH GA 31405 1/8/2013 10.28$              $                    1.78 12.06$              
0001937530-2011-2011-0000-00 19344127 11/1/2014 REI 491733 DYE, DAVID R 8401 CEDAR CHASE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 2.42$                 $                    0.54 2.96$                
0002056796-2014-2014-0000-00 22764189 10/1/2014 REI 475383 DYKSTRA CAROL C 1611 SILVER POINTE COURT  S ANDOVER KS 67002 1/6/2015 60.33$              $                    4.42 64.75$              
0002056798-2013-2013-0000-00 22764202 10/1/2014 REI 279989 EAGLES HEIGHTS,LLC 7301CARMEL EXECUTIVE PARK STE 310 CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/7/2014 429.26$            $                 52.86 482.12$           
0002056798-2012-2012-0000-00 22764202 10/1/2014 REI 474900 EAGLES HEIGHTS,LLC 7301CARMEL EXECUTIVE PARK STE 310 CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/8/2013 261.05$            $                 45.17 306.22$           
0002050360-2011-2011-0000-00 22722701 12/1/2014 REI 496731 EAST JOHN SYSTEMS LLC PO BOX 1919 HUNTERSVILLE NC 28070 1/16/2015 11.70$              $                    0.84 12.54$              
0002050360-2012-2012-0000-00 22722701 12/1/2014 REI 497227 EAST JOHN SYSTEMS LLC PO BOX 1919 HUNTERSVILLE NC 28070 1/16/2015 10.88$              $                    0.78 11.66$              
0002050360-2013-2013-0000-00 22722701 12/1/2014 REI 497616 EAST JOHN SYSTEMS LLC PO BOX 1919 HUNTERSVILLE NC 28070 1/16/2015 10.46$              $                    0.75 11.21$              
0002050360-2014-2014-0000-00 22722701 12/1/2014 REI 497951 EAST JOHN SYSTEMS LLC PO BOX 1919 HUNTERSVILLE NC 28070 1/16/2015 9.72$                 $                    0.70 10.42$              
0002047781-2011-2011-0000-00 22706249 3/1/2015 REI 491928 ECLEBERRY, JEFFERY L 1415 GLEN VALLEY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 202.67$            $                 45.28 247.95$           
0001934558-2012-2012-0000-00 19333481 9/1/2014 REI 234313 EDWARDS, DANIELLE F 1116 ACACIA ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 265.90$            $                 46.00 311.90$           
0001934558-2013-2013-0000-00 19333481 9/1/2014 REI 221025 EDWARDS, DANIELLE F 1116 ACACIA ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 279.08$            $                 34.37 313.45$           
0002001669-2014-2014-0000-00 21504160 3/1/2015 REI 495629 EDWARDS, GARY 8630 ELMSWORTH LN INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2015 146.36$            $                 10.73 157.09$           
0002055205-2012-2012-0000-00 22752149 11/1/2014 REI 492335 EDWARDS, KELLY K 4812 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 28.44$              $                    4.92 33.36$              
0002055205-2013-2013-0000-00 22752149 11/1/2014 REI 309350 EDWARDS, KELLY K 4812 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 29.85$              $                    3.68 33.53$              
0002055205-2014-2014-0000-00 22752149 11/1/2014 REI 310148 EDWARDS, KELLY K 4812 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 29.85$              $                    2.19 32.04$              
0002055205-2011-2011-0000-00 22752149 11/1/2014 REI 491858 EDWARDS, TIMOTHY M & EDWARDS, KELLY K 4812 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 28.44$              $                    6.35 34.79$              
0002050755-2011-2011-0000-00 22723808 11/1/2014 REI 491848 EGGLESON, GARY C JR PO BOX 1945 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 49.91$              $                 11.15 61.06$              
0002622063-2014-2014-0000-00 22760112 12/1/2014 REI 500704 ELP MATTHEWS LLC . 701 MAIDEN CHOICE LN BALTIMORE MD 21128 1/6/2015 1,132.84$        $                 83.02 1,215.86$        
0002054518-2014-2014-0000-00 22746144 10/1/2014 REI 475378 EMBRY, MICHELLE G 1019 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.64$              $                    1.51 22.15$              
0002051829-2011-2011-0000-00 22730114 2/1/2015 REI 415688 ENGSTROM, PAUL C 1103 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 42.65$              $                    9.53 52.18$              
0002051829-2012-2012-0000-00 22730114 2/1/2015 REI 416461 ENGSTROM, PAUL C 1103 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 42.65$              $                    7.38 50.03$              
0002051829-2013-2013-0000-00 22730114 2/1/2015 REI 417238 ENGSTROM, PAUL C 1103 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.77$              $                    5.51 50.28$              
0002002762-2013-2013-0000-00 21513409 11/1/2014 REI 306314 ESPIN, STEPHEN 3749 BRUSHY LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/7/2014 58.74$              $                    7.23 65.97$              
0002002762-2014-2014-0000-00 21513409 11/1/2014 REI 306983 ESPIN, STEPHEN 3749 BRUSHY LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2015 58.74$              $                    4.30 63.04$              
0002050448-2011-2011-0000-00 22723101 11/1/2014 REI 496733 ESTATE OF BETTY P KERLEY 9119 HOLLY HILL FARM RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 31.16$              $                    6.96 38.12$              
0002050448-2012-2012-0000-00 22723101 11/1/2014 REI 497228 ESTATE OF BETTY P KERLEY 9119 HOLLY HILL FARM RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/8/2013 30.85$              $                    5.34 36.19$              
0002055192-2011-2011-0000-00 22752138 11/1/2014 REI 502468 ESTATE OF BETTY S OLIVER P.O. BOX 2070 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 29.64$              $                    6.62 36.26$              
0002055192-2012-2012-0000-00 22752138 11/1/2014 REI 502937 ESTATE OF BETTY S OLIVER P.O. BOX 2070 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013 29.64$              $                    5.13 34.77$              
0002004108-2011-2011-0000-00 21526108 11/1/2014 REI 504593 ESTATE OF COSTAS PANOU 13744 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 74.11$              $                 16.56 90.67$              
0002004108-2012-2012-0000-00 21526108 11/1/2014 REI 504841 ESTATE OF COSTAS PANOU 13744 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 74.11$              $                 12.82 86.93$              
0002004108-2013-2013-0000-00 21526108 11/1/2014 REI 505050 ESTATE OF COSTAS PANOU 13744 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 77.78$              $                    9.58 87.36$              
0002055335-2011-2011-0000-00 22752259 11/1/2014 REI 502470 ESTATE OF ERNESTINE M NEVILS 1304 HOLLY RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 3.33$                 $                    0.74 4.07$                
0002055335-2012-2012-0000-00 22752259 11/1/2014 REI 502938 ESTATE OF ERNESTINE M NEVILS 1304 HOLLY RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 3.33$                 $                    0.58 3.91$                
0002001100-2011-2011-0000-00 21501303 1/1/2015 REI 506506 ESTATE OF FRANKLIN M RENFROW 809 SARDIS RD N CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 1.51$                 $                    0.34 1.85$                
0002001101-2011-2011-0000-00 21501304 1/1/2015 REI 506507 ESTATE OF FRANKLIN M RENFROW 809 SARDIS RD N CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 0.60$                 $                    0.13 0.73$                
0002002716-2011-2011-0000-00 21513258 11/1/2014 REI 506512 ESTATE OF FRANKLIN MACMILLIAN RENFROW 809 SARDIS RD N CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 60.20$              $                 13.45 73.65$              
0002002716-2012-2012-0000-00 21513258 11/1/2014 REI 506937 ESTATE OF FRANKLIN MACMILLIAN RENFROW 809 SARDIS RD N CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 60.20$              $                 10.42 70.62$              
0002046421-2012-2012-0000-00 22701312 11/1/2014 REI 504853 ESTATE OF GEORGIA PHARR 1612 LYNFORD DR CHARLOTTE NC 28215 1/8/2013 12.71$              $                    2.20 14.91$              
0002046405-2011-2011-0000-00 22701301 11/1/2014 REI 499440 ESTATE OF GLADYS MANESS 516 CATAWBA CIR N MATTHEWS NC 28104-5123 1/6/2012 24.80$              $                    5.54 30.34$              
0001934627-2011-2011-0000-00 19333612 11/1/2014 REI 508654 ESTATE OF GROVER LINWOOD SMITH 205 FANCY LADY DR YORK SC 29745 1/6/2012 6.96$                 $                    1.56 8.52$                
0001934627-2012-2012-0000-00 19333612 11/1/2014 REI 509163 ESTATE OF GROVER LINWOOD SMITH 205 FANCY LADY DR YORK SC 29745 1/8/2013 6.66$                 $                    1.15 7.81$                
0001934627-2013-2013-0000-00 19333612 11/1/2014 REI 509590 ESTATE OF GROVER LINWOOD SMITH 205 FANCY LADY DR YORK SC 29745 1/7/2014 6.98$                 $                    0.86 7.84$                
0002003025-2012-2012-0000-00 21516238 11/1/2014 REI 442928 ESTATE OF JOYCE  LITAKER 1421 DELANE AVE APT 3 LUMBERTON NC 28211 4/19/2013 27.79$              $                    4.42 32.21$              
0002046685-2011-2011-0000-00 22702421 1/1/2015 REI 499442 ESTATE OF KATHRYN M. LEMMOND 13116 LEMMOND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 19.36$              $                    4.33 23.69$              
0002046354-2011-2011-0000-00 22701204 11/1/2014 REI 511483 ESTATE OF VIOLET T TEAGUE 7123 ALEXANDER FARM RD MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 33.28$              $                    7.44 40.72$              
0002046354-2012-2012-0000-00 22701204 11/1/2014 REI 512028 ESTATE OF VIOLET T TEAGUE 7123 ALEXANDER FARM RD MONROE NC 28110 1/8/2013 31.46$              $                    5.44 36.90$              
0002002907-2012-2012-0000-00 21515405 11/1/2014 REI 485543 ESTATE OF WALTER DEBERRY BILES JR 5170 NORTH HIGHWAY 49 MOUNT PLEASANT NC 28124 1/8/2013 51.13$              $                    8.85 59.98$              
0002002907-2013-2013-0000-00 21515405 11/1/2014 REI 486362 ESTATE OF WALTER DEBERRY BILES JR 5170 NORTH HIGHWAY 49 MOUNT PLEASANT NC 28124 1/7/2014 53.66$              $                    6.61 60.27$              
0002055378-2011-2011-0000-00 22752331 11/1/2014 REI 511502 ESTATE OF WARREN EDWARD STEENLAND 8707 LAURELWOOD LN MARVIN NC 28173 1/6/2012 26.32$              $                    5.88 32.20$              
0002055378-2012-2012-0000-00 22752331 11/1/2014 REI 512041 ESTATE OF WARREN EDWARD STEENLAND 8707 LAURELWOOD LN MARVIN NC 28173 1/8/2013 19.97$              $                    3.46 23.43$              
0001934801-2011-2011-0000-00 19333803 11/1/2014 REI 508655 ESTATE OF WAYNE E SCHULTZ 12026 ULSTEN LN HUNTERSVILLE NC 28078 1/6/2012 8.17$                 $                    1.83 10.00$              
0001934801-2012-2012-0000-00 19333803 11/1/2014 REI 509164 ESTATE OF WAYNE E SCHULTZ 12026 ULSTEN LN HUNTERSVILLE NC 28078 1/8/2013 6.05$                 $                    1.05 7.10$                
0001934801-2013-2013-0000-00 19333803 11/1/2014 REI 509591 ESTATE OF WAYNE E SCHULTZ 12026 ULSTEN LN HUNTERSVILLE NC 28078 1/7/2014 6.35$                 $                    0.78 7.13$                
0001934673-2011-2011-0000-00 19333707 11/1/2014 REI 515321 ESTATE OF WILLIE MORGAN YANDLE 401 MEDEARIS DR CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2012 0.90$                 $                    0.20 1.10$                
0001934673-2012-2012-0000-00 19333707 11/1/2014 REI 515850 ESTATE OF WILLIE MORGAN YANDLE 401 MEDEARIS DR CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/8/2013 0.60$                 $                    0.10 0.70$                
0002003252-2012-2012-0000-00 21518109 10/1/2014 REI 279673 FAHM LLC 3919 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2013 27.98$              $                    4.74 32.72$              
0002003252-2013-2013-0000-00 21518109 10/1/2014 REI 279961 FAHM LLC 3919 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 28.57$              $                    3.52 32.09$              
0002003252-2011-2011-0000-00 21518109 10/1/2014 REI 473931 FAHM LLC . 3919 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 27.23$              $                    6.08 33.31$              
0002046428-2011-2011-0000-00 22701315 11/1/2014 REI 502431 FAHM LLC . 3919 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28104-5955 1/6/2012 26.92$              $                    6.01 32.93$              
0002046428-2012-2012-0000-00 22701315 11/1/2014 REI 317189 FAHM LLC, . 3919 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28104-5955 1/8/2013 26.92$              $                    4.66 31.58$              
0002046428-2013-2013-0000-00 22701315 11/1/2014 REI 317652 FAHM LLC, . 3919 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28104-5955 1/7/2014 28.25$              $                    3.48 31.73$              
0002046428-2014-2014-0000-00 22701315 11/1/2014 REI 318133 FAHM LLC, . 3919 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28104-5955 1/6/2015 28.25$              $                    2.07 30.32$              
0002053238-2011-2011-0000-00 22737207 11/1/2014 REI 484647 FALKENBERG, TERESA A 2111 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 70.18$              $                 15.68 85.86$              
0002053238-2012-2012-0000-00 22737207 11/1/2014 REI 308574 FALKENBERG, TERESA A 2111 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 70.18$              $                 12.14 82.32$              
0002053238-2013-2013-0000-00 22737207 11/1/2014 REI 309307 FALKENBERG, TERESA A 2111 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 73.66$              $                    9.07 82.73$              
0002053238-2014-2014-0000-00 22737207 11/1/2014 REI 310102 FALKENBERG, TERESA A 2111 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 73.66$              $                    5.40 79.06$              
0002051536-2011-2011-0000-00 22728209 11/1/2014 REI 508781 FALLS, RYAN D 1311 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 21.47$              $                    4.80 26.27$              
0002051536-2012-2012-0000-00 22728209 11/1/2014 REI 308371 FALLS, RYAN D 1311 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 20.26$              $                    3.51 23.77$              
0002051536-2013-2013-0000-00 22728209 11/1/2014 REI 309092 FALLS, RYAN D 1311 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 21.27$              $                    2.62 23.89$              
0002051536-2014-2014-0000-00 22728209 11/1/2014 REI 309874 FALLS, RYAN D 1311 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 21.27$              $                    1.56 22.83$              
0002046423-2011-2011-0000-00 22701313 11/1/2014 REI 484604 FAMILY TRUST OF FRANCIS B ALLEN 800 BLACK DAIRY RD LEXINGTON NC 27295 1/6/2012 54.76$              $                 12.23 66.99$              
0002046423-2012-2012-0000-00 22701313 11/1/2014 REI 485605 FAMILY TRUST OF FRANCIS B ALLEN 800 BLACK DAIRY RD LEXINGTON NC 27295 1/8/2013 54.15$              $                    9.37 63.52$              
0002047286-2011-2011-0000-00 22703447 10/1/2014 REI 474083 FARAH, NAGUIB H 410 CREEPING CEDAR COURT WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 13.01$              $                    2.91 15.92$              
0002047286-2012-2012-0000-00 22703447 10/1/2014 REI 474826 FARAH, NAGUIB H 410 CREEPING CEDAR COURT WAXHAW NC 28173 1/8/2013 13.01$              $                    2.25 15.26$              
0001935039-2012-2012-0000-00 19334222 11/1/2014 REI 509167 FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION 8250 JONES BRANCH DR MCLEAN VA 22101 1/8/2013 50.22$              $                    8.69 58.91$              
0001996608-2011-2011-0000-00 21324127 10/1/2014 REI 473863 FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION 8250 JONES BRANCH DR MCLEAN VA 22102 1/6/2012 5.14$                 $                    1.15 6.29$                
0001934902-2013-2013-0000-00 19334119 11/1/2014 REI 507219 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/7/2014 62.23$              $                    7.66 69.89$              
0002001636-2012-2012-0000-00 21504138 3/1/2015 REI 511982 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/8/2013 130.07$            $                 22.50 152.57$           
0002003328-2014-2014-0000-00 21519110 10/1/2014 REI 475349 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/6/2015 49.22$              $                    3.61 52.83$              
0002003421-2012-2012-0000-00 21519203 10/1/2014 REI 474773 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/8/2013 23.60$              $                    4.08 27.68$              
0002004210-2013-2013-0000-00 21526181 11/1/2014 REI 512385 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/7/2014 45.09$              $                    5.55 50.64$              
0002046931-2014-2014-0000-00 22702747 2/1/2015 REI 500691 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/6/2015 160.66$            $                 11.77 172.43$           
0002049615-2013-2013-0000-00 22717321 12/1/2014 REI 495337 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/7/2014 32.06$              $                    3.95 36.01$              
0002055233-2013-2013-0000-00 22752169 11/1/2014 REI 495349 FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE  ASSOCATION PO BOX 650043 DALLAS TX 75265 1/7/2014 20.64$              $                    2.54 23.18$              



0002053432-2011-2011-0000-00 22738225 10/1/2014 REI 474136 FEIL, F SCOTT 6717 FISHERS FARM LN APT F2 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0001937705-2011-2011-0000-00 19345168 11/1/2014 REI 491734 FENK, MICHAEL F 10552 FOREST HILL DRIVE WEXFORD PA 15090 1/6/2012 2.11$                 $                    0.47 2.58$                
0001937705-2012-2012-0000-00 19345168 11/1/2014 REI 492242 FENK, MICHAEL F 10552 FOREST HILL DRIVE WEXFORD PA 15090 1/8/2013 1.21$                 $                    0.21 1.42$                
0001937705-2013-2013-0000-00 19345168 11/1/2014 REI 492663 FENK, MICHAEL F 10552 FOREST HILL DRIVE WEXFORD PA 15090 1/7/2014 1.27$                 $                    0.16 1.43$                
0001937519-2011-2011-0000-00 19344122 11/1/2014 REI 491732 FERGUSON, DEBORAH D 3031 CROSS TIE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-1227 1/6/2012 1.81$                 $                    0.40 2.21$                
0002003103-2011-2011-0000-00 21517118 10/1/2014 REI 473922 FERRELL, STEFANY A 3035 WINDING TRL MATTHEWS NC 28105-3039 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002003731-2013-2013-0000-00 21520517 10/1/2014 REI 475124 FIDAI, SHAFIQUE & MAMDANI, FATIMA 4080 GOLDIE CT NORTH VANCOUVER BC 76284 1/7/2014 21.27$              $                    2.62 23.89$              
0002054500-2013-2013-0000-00 22746130 10/1/2014 REI 475201 FIELDER ELIZABETH H 406 BIRKENHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 102.24$            $                 12.59 114.83$           
0002003263-2014-2014-0000-00 21518117 10/1/2014 REI 475347 FIGUEROA, WILLIAM 2009 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 22.86$              $                    1.68 24.54$              
0001998220-2011-2011-0000-00 21334160 10/1/2014 REI 473890 FISS, EDWARD MATTHEW 9432 HUNTING CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002002586-2014-2014-0000-00 21513150 11/1/2014 REI 306881 FLAGSTAR BANK FSB 5151 CORPORATE DR TROY IL 48098 1/6/2015 65.73$              $                    4.82 70.55$              
0002002586-2013-2013-0000-00 21513150 11/1/2014 REI 486360 FLAGSTAR BANK FSB . 5151 CORPORATE DR TROY IL 48098 1/7/2014 65.73$              $                    8.09 73.82$              
0001932530-2012-2012-0000-00 19314164 9/1/2014 REI 452378 FLETCHER, RANDY MICHAEL 3639 STRAUSSBURG WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 94.38$              $                 16.33 110.71$           
0001932530-2013-2013-0000-00 19314164 9/1/2014 REI 239341 FLETCHER, RANDY MICHAEL 3639 STRAUSSBURG WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 99.70$              $                 12.28 111.98$           
0002002739-2014-2014-0000-00 21513307 11/1/2014 REI 516591 FLOWERS, LEROY JR 14421 POMMEL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 56.84$              $                    4.17 61.01$              
0001933740-2011-2011-0000-00 19331172 1/1/2015 REI 491719 FOULKE, RICHARD S 7721 MILL POND DR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002001400-2011-2011-0000-00 21503263 9/1/2014 REI 451362 FRANCIS & SHARON LAMKIN 1505 CAMERON MATTHEWS DR APT 204 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.61$                 $                    0.14 0.75$                
0002056310-2013-2013-0000-00 22760104 12/1/2014 REI 503335 FREEDMAN, KERRY R & FREEDMAN, THARA M 2600 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/10/2014 46.64$              $                    5.72 52.36$              
0008068964-2014-2014-0000-00 21301256 1/1/2015 REI 500666 FULGINITI ZACHARY 621 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 112.07$            $                    8.21 120.28$           
0002053261-2014-2014-0000-00 22737225 11/1/2014 REI 493077 FULLER, JAMES PAYNE 2009 DRAYMORE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 33.97$              $                    2.49 36.46$              
0002056022-2011-2011-0000-00 22756224 7/1/2014 REI 186274 FURR, EVELYN H 2006 WOODBURN TR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 74.71$              $                 16.69 91.40$              
0002055219-2012-2012-0000-00 22752159 11/1/2014 REI 492336 FUSSELL, CHARLES & FUSSEL, CASSANDRA MARIE 4932 DEER WALK AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 50.21$              $                    8.69 58.90$              
0002055219-2013-2013-0000-00 22752159 11/1/2014 REI 492733 FUSSELL, CHARLES & FUSSEL, CASSANDRA MARIE 4932 DEER WALK AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/7/2014 52.71$              $                    6.49 59.20$              
0002004121-2011-2011-0000-00 21526117 11/1/2014 REI 491802 GADDY, JOHNNIE L 7992 PRIMM SPRINGS RD PRIMM SPRINGS TN 38476 4/25/2012 5.68$                 $                    1.18 6.86$                
0002047288-2011-2011-0000-00 22703488 2/1/2015 REI 472144 GALLAGHER, TIMOTHY 709 SURREY PATH TRL WINSTON SALEM NC 27104-5036 1/6/2012 94.38$              $                 21.09 115.47$           
0002047288-2012-2012-0000-00 22703488 2/1/2015 REI 472145 GALLAGHER, TIMOTHY 709 SURREY PATH TRL WINSTON SALEM NC 27104-5036 1/8/2013 93.78$              $                 16.23 110.01$           
0002047288-2013-2013-0000-00 22703488 2/1/2015 REI 472146 GALLAGHER, TIMOTHY 709 SURREY PATH TRL WINSTON SALEM NC 27104-5036 1/7/2014 83.51$              $                 10.28 93.79$              
0008068960-2014-2014-0000-00 21301252 1/1/2015 REI 500662 GALLINEK TODD 604 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 114.94$            $                    8.42 123.36$           
0002049729-2011-2011-0000-00 22721308 10/1/2014 REI 474099 GARCIA, RICHARD LUNA JR PO BOX 292453 NASHVILLE TN 37229 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0002046431-2011-2011-0000-00 22701318 11/1/2014 REI 491841 GARNER, LONZO SCOTT JR 1718 EAST BLVD CHARLOTTE NC 28203 1/6/2012 1.51$                 $                    0.34 1.85$                
0002053196-2011-2011-0000-00 22737168 11/1/2014 REI 491853 GEISLER, MARK T & GEISLER, TERRY C 1025 REVELWOOD DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 29.64$              $                    6.62 36.26$              
0002051848-2012-2012-0000-00 22730130 2/1/2015 REI 506989 GELBMAN, MICHAEL D 1146 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 70.18$              $                 12.14 82.32$              
0002051848-2013-2013-0000-00 22730130 2/1/2015 REI 492728 GELBMAN, MICHAEL D 1146 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 73.66$              $                    9.07 82.73$              
0002051848-2014-2014-0000-00 22730130 2/1/2015 REI 493076 GELBMAN, MICHAEL D 1146 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 73.66$              $                    5.40 79.06$              
0002050504-2011-2011-0000-00 22723314 11/1/2014 REI 443186 GENES, PATRICIA ELAINE 2043 INFINITY LN SEVIERVILLE TN 37876 1/6/2012 15.73$              $                    3.51 19.24$              
0002050504-2012-2012-0000-00 22723314 11/1/2014 REI 443187 GENES, PATRICIA ELAINE 2043 INFINITY LN SEVIERVILLE TN 37876 1/8/2013 15.73$              $                    2.72 18.45$              
0002050504-2013-2013-0000-00 22723314 11/1/2014 REI 359274 GENES, PATRICIA ELAINE 2043 INFINITY LN SEVIERVILLE TN 37876-2498 1/7/2014 33.02$              $                    4.07 37.09$              
0008068972-2014-2014-0000-00 21301264 1/1/2015 REI 500673 GERCSAK INBAL 9518 REID HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 113.34$            $                    8.31 121.65$           
0002050755-2012-2012-0000-00 22723808 11/1/2014 REI 492327 GERSON, SYNTHIA J 612 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 49.61$              $                    8.58 58.19$              
0002050755-2013-2013-0000-00 22723808 11/1/2014 REI 317686 GERSON, SYNTHIA J 612 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5720 1/7/2014 52.07$              $                    6.41 58.48$              
0002050755-2014-2014-0000-00 22723808 11/1/2014 REI 318168 GERSON, SYNTHIA J 612 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5720 1/6/2015 52.07$              $                    3.82 55.89$              
0002003011-2013-2013-0000-00 21516228 11/1/2014 REI 495306 GIANNIBAS, TOM & GIANNIBAS, SOULA 7029 BURLWOOD RD CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/7/2014 33.02$              $                    4.07 37.09$              
0001934442-2011-2011-0000-00 19333403 11/1/2014 REI 494314 GIEKER, ROLLIN J 10609 FORTUNA CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 16.33$              $                    3.65 19.98$              
0001934442-2012-2012-0000-00 19333403 11/1/2014 REI 494875 GIEKER, ROLLIN J 10609 FORTUNA CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-3847 1/8/2013 9.98$                 $                    1.73 11.71$              
0001937562-2011-2011-0000-00 19344147 11/1/2014 REI 494326 GIGANTE, MICHAEL S 9037 BRIGADIER RD MECHANICSVILLE VA 23116 1/6/2012 0.61$                 $                    0.14 0.75$                
0002001669-2011-2011-0000-00 21504160 3/1/2015 REI 489020 GODWIN, RICKY B 8108 HAIGLER GIN RD MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 140.66$            $                 31.43 172.09$           
0002001669-2012-2012-0000-00 21504160 3/1/2015 REI 489567 GODWIN, RICKY B 8108 HAIGLER GIN RD MONROE TX 28110 1/8/2013 139.45$            $                 24.13 163.58$           
0002001669-2013-2013-0000-00 21504160 3/1/2015 REI 489956 GODWIN, RICKY B 8108 HAIGLER GIN RD MONROE NC 28110 1/7/2014 146.36$            $                 18.02 164.38$           
0002047762-2011-2011-0000-00 22706241 3/1/2015 REI 494422 GOLDSTEIN, JAY M 1337 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 364.52$            $                 81.44 445.96$           
0002047762-2012-2012-0000-01 22706241 3/1/2015 REI 431964 GOLDSTEIN, JAY M 1337 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 364.52$            $                 63.07 427.59$           
0002047762-2013-2013-0000-00 22706241 3/1/2015 REI 432716 GOLDSTEIN, JAY M 1337 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 382.59$            $                 47.12 429.71$           
0002047762-2014-2014-0000-00 22706241 3/1/2015 REI 433525 GOLDSTEIN, JAY M 1337 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 382.59$            $                 28.04 410.63$           
0002001047-2011-2011-0000-00 21501107 2/1/2015 REI 415225 GOLLADAY, C WILLIAM PO BOX 1234 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 18.15$              $                    4.06 22.21$              
0002001047-2012-2012-0000-00 21501107 2/1/2015 REI 416012 GOLLADAY, C WILLIAM PO BOX 1234 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013 18.15$              $                    3.14 21.29$              
0002001047-2013-2013-0000-00 21501107 2/1/2015 REI 416788 GOLLADAY, C WILLIAM PO BOX 1234 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 19.05$              $                    2.35 21.40$              
0008068958-2014-2014-0000-00 21301250 1/1/2015 REI 500660 GOMEZ MANUEL MARIANO 618 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 106.68$            $                    7.82 114.50$           
0002055233-2011-2011-0000-00 22752169 11/1/2014 REI 494447 GOMME, KIMBERLY N 8218 CLIFFSIDE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 19.66$              $                    4.39 24.05$              
0002055233-2012-2012-0000-00 22752169 11/1/2014 REI 494946 GOMME, KIMBERLY N 8218 CLIFFSIDE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 19.66$              $                    3.40 23.06$              
0002053275-2013-2013-0000-00 22737236 11/1/2014 REI 505064 GONZALEZ, CRISTHIAN A 1235 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 21.59$              $                    2.66 24.25$              
0002053275-2014-2014-0000-00 22737236 11/1/2014 REI 310115 GONZALEZ, CRISTHIAN A 1235 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 21.59$              $                    1.58 23.17$              
0002046900-2014-2014-0000-00 22702722 2/1/2015 REI 497943 GORDON, EMILYE E 2810 NORTH MAPLE RD ANN ARBOR MI 48103 1/6/2015 60.01$              $                    4.40 64.41$              
0002047669-2011-2011-0000-00 22706164 2/1/2015 REI 415601 GOULD, WAYNE K 908 REVERDY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 309.15$            $                 69.07 378.22$           
0002003184-2011-2011-0000-00 21517183 11/1/2014 REI 494383 GRAF, KENNETH R 979 BURRAGE RD NE CONCORD NC 28025 1/6/2012 71.39$              $                 15.95 87.34$              
0002003184-2012-2012-0000-00 21517183 11/1/2014 REI 494900 GRAF, KENNETH R 979 BURRAGE RD NE CONCORD NC 28025 1/8/2013 70.18$              $                 12.14 82.32$              
0002003184-2013-2013-0000-00 21517183 11/1/2014 REI 495308 GRAF, KENNETH R 979 BURRAGE RD NE CONCORD NC 28025 1/7/2014 73.66$              $                    9.07 82.73$              
0002050158-2012-2012-0000-00 22722212 12/1/2014 REI 427628 GRAY, CHARLES L 1212 RIDGEBURY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 3.03$                 $                    0.52 3.55$                
0002050158-2013-2013-0000-00 22722212 12/1/2014 REI 427629 GRAY, CHARLES L 1212 RIDGEBURY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/19/2014 3.29$                 $                    0.37 3.66$                
0002050158-2014-2014-0000-00 22722212 12/1/2014 REI 351849 GRAY, CHARLES L 1212 RIDGEBURY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 3.18$                 $                    0.23 3.41$                
0002046354-2013-2013-0000-00 22701204 11/1/2014 REI 512418 GREEN HOME RENOVATIONS, LLC 924 LAUREL PARK LANE CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/7/2014 33.02$              $                    4.07 37.09$              
0002046354-2014-2014-0000-00 22701204 11/1/2014 REI 309646 GREEN HOME RENOVATIONS, LLC 924 LAUREL PARK LANE CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2015 33.02$              $                    2.42 35.44$              
0002053136-2013-2013-0000-00 22737125 11/1/2014 REI 492729 GREEN, MICHAEL T 2314 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 41.60$              $                    5.12 46.72$              
0002053136-2014-2014-0000-00 22737125 11/1/2014 REI 310063 GREEN, MICHAEL T 2314 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 40.64$              $                    2.98 43.62$              
0002051612-2011-2011-0000-00 22728262 11/1/2014 REI 494436 GREENFIELD, SAMUEL E 12316 OLD PRAIRIE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 20.57$              $                    4.60 25.17$              
0008068971-2014-2014-0000-00 21301263 1/1/2015 REI 500672 GREGORY, JOSEPH R JR 9524 REID HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 15.24$              $                    1.12 16.36$              
0002004200-2011-2011-0000-00 21526172 11/1/2014 REI 494384 GREY, STEPHEN B 15 TALLASSEE ST BADIN NC 28009 1/6/2012 83.19$              $                 18.59 101.78$           
0002004200-2012-2012-0000-00 21526172 11/1/2014 REI 494901 GREY, STEPHEN B 15 TALLASSEE ST BADIN NC 28009 1/8/2013 73.81$              $                 12.77 86.58$              
0002004200-2013-2013-0000-00 21526172 11/1/2014 REI 495309 GREY, STEPHEN B 15 TALLASSEE ST BADIN NC 28009 1/7/2014 77.47$              $                    9.54 87.01$              
0001934663-2013-2013-0000-00 19333638 11/1/2014 REI 516255 GRIFFIN, NATHAN DAVID 10510 PACES AVE UNIT 1322 MATTHEWS NC 28105-0860 1/7/2014 6.67$                 $                    0.82 7.49$                
0001934663-2014-2014-0000-00 19333638 11/1/2014 REI 306506 GRIFFIN, NATHAN DAVID 10510 PACES AVE UNIT 1322 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 6.67$                 $                    0.49 7.16$                
0002050508-2014-2014-0000-00 22723403 11/1/2014 REI 503661 GRIFFITH, BRADLEY & GRIFFITH, DRU J 301 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 34.60$              $                    2.54 37.14$              
0002001614-2011-2011-0000-00 21504120 2/1/2015 REI 471986 GRIFFITH, THOMAS W 225 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5737 1/6/2012 67.16$              $                 15.01 82.17$              
0002001614-2012-2012-0000-00 21504120 2/1/2015 REI 471987 GRIFFITH, THOMAS W 225 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5737 1/8/2013 66.55$              $                 11.51 78.06$              
0002001614-2013-2013-0000-00 21504120 2/1/2015 REI 471989 GRIFFITH, THOMAS W 225 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5737 1/7/2014 69.85$              $                    8.60 78.45$              
0001933129-2011-2011-0000-00 19325117 1/1/2015 REI 494311 GRIMES, THOMAS D 4 RIDGELAND ST PINEHURST NC 28374 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002003263-2011-2011-0000-00 21518117 10/1/2014 REI 473933 GULLEY, SUZANNE H TRUSTEE 801 CLOISTERS CT APT 11 CONCORD NC 28027 1/6/2012 21.78$              $                    4.87 26.65$              
0002003263-2012-2012-0000-00 21518117 10/1/2014 REI 474767 GULLEY, SUZANNE H TRUSTEE 801 CLOISTERS CT APT 11 CONCORD NC 28027 1/8/2013 21.78$              $                    3.77 25.55$              
0002003263-2013-2013-0000-00 21518117 10/1/2014 REI 475114 GULLEY, SUZANNE H TRUSTEE 801 CLOISTERS ST APT 11 CONCORD NC 28207 1/7/2014 22.86$              $                    2.82 25.68$              
0002047781-2012-2012-0000-00 22706249 3/1/2015 REI 492321 GULLICKSON, MATTHEW 1517 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 188.15$            $                 32.55 220.70$           
0002047781-2013-2013-0000-00 22706249 3/1/2015 REI 432721 GULLICKSON, MATTHEW 1517 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 197.49$            $                 24.32 221.81$           
0002047781-2014-2014-0000-00 22706249 3/1/2015 REI 433529 GULLICKSON, MATTHEW 1517 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 126.37$            $                    9.26 135.63$           
0002053131-2014-2014-0000-00 22737121 11/1/2014 REI 497955 GUNN, JASON T 1101 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 14.93$              $                    1.09 16.02$              
0002052962-2011-2011-0000-00 22736202 11/1/2014 REI 494439 GUNN, TIMOTHY J & GUNN, TRACY W 501 FENTON PLACE, UNIT K CHARLOTTE NC 28207 1/6/2012 51.12$              $                 11.42 62.54$              
0002052962-2012-2012-0000-00 22736202 11/1/2014 REI 494940 GUNN, TIMOTHY J & GUNN, TRACY W 501 FENTON PLACE, UNIT K CHARLOTTE NC 28207 1/8/2013 49.31$              $                    8.53 57.84$              
0002052962-2013-2013-0000-00 22736202 11/1/2014 REI 495344 GUNN, TIMOTHY J & GUNN, TRACY W 501 FENTON PLACE, UNIT K CHARLOTTE NC 28207 1/7/2014 51.75$              $                    6.37 58.12$              
0001932521-2013-2013-0000-00 19314155 9/1/2014 REI 452466 GUZMAN SANTOS M 3525 STRAUSSBURG WOOD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 93.98$              $                 11.57 105.55$           
0002050191-2014-2014-0000-00 22722301 12/1/2014 REI 503660 HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF MATTHEWS IN . 136 E CHARLES ST MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 23.82$              $                    1.75 25.57$              
0002001850-2013-2013-0000-00 21506439 3/1/2015 REI 512383 HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF MATTHEWS INC PO BOX 2008 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 150.81$            $                 18.57 169.38$           
0002054254-2011-2011-0000-00 22743291 2/1/2015 REI 504625 HAGA, CATHY L 5702 VERDUCCI LN WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 94.08$              $                 21.02 115.10$           
0001933432-2011-2011-0000-00 19328230 1/1/2015 REI 494312 HAGER MARHTA M 17008 BELLE ISLE DR CORNELIUS NC 28031 1/6/2012 140.36$            $                 31.36 171.72$           
0002002252-2013-2013-0000-02 21511119 10/1/2014 REI 445514 HAGER, ANNIE L C/O MICHAEL HAGER 669 SUTTLES RD ELLENBORO NC 28040 1/7/2014 10.95$              $                    1.35 12.30$              
0002002252-2014-2014-0000-01 21511119 10/1/2014 REI 445516 HAGER, FANNIE L C/O MICHAEL HAGER 669 SUTTLES RD ELLENBORO NC 28040 3/7/2015 11.34$              $                    0.74 12.08$              
0002002252-2011-2011-0000-00 21511119 10/1/2014 REI 258649 HAGER, PAUL REVERE 1901 SWAIM DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 29.04$              $                    6.49 35.53$              
0002002252-2012-2012-0000-00 21511119 10/1/2014 REI 260778 HAGER, PAUL REVERE 1901 SWAIM DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 21.28$              $                    3.68 24.96$              
0002053169-2011-2011-0000-00 22737150 11/1/2014 REI 494440 HAMMOND, FRANCIS JOSEPH JR & HAMMOND, CHARLOTTE M 210 LINVILLE DR MATTHEW NC 28105 1/9/2012 34.96$              $                    7.80 42.76$              
0002053169-2012-2012-0000-00 22737150 11/1/2014 REI 506991 HAMMOND, FRANCIS JOSEPH JR & HAMMOND, CHARLOTTE M 210 LINVILLE DR MATTHEW NC 28105 1/8/2013 34.19$              $                    5.92 40.11$              
0008068963-2014-2014-0000-00 21301255 1/1/2015 REI 500665 HANCOCK STEPHEN D 611 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 114.62$            $                    8.40 123.02$           
0008068956-2014-2014-0000-00 21301248 1/1/2015 REI 500659 HANEBUTT RICK L 9517 REID HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 103.51$            $                    7.59 111.10$           
0002052326-2011-2011-0000-00 22731403 11/1/2014 REI 494437 HANNAH, KENNETH W 306 MEETING HALL DR MOORISVILLE NC 27560 1/6/2012 16.03$              $                    3.58 19.61$              
0002052326-2012-2012-0000-00 22731403 11/1/2014 REI 494938 HANNAH, KENNETH W 306 MEETING HALL DR MORRISVILLE NC 27560 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0002055274-2012-2012-0000-00 22752217 11/1/2014 REI 492337 HANSEN, SUSAN  & HANSEN, TODD 3204 SU SAN FARMS ROAD GASTONIA NC 28056 1/8/2013 34.79$              $                    6.02 40.81$              
0002055274-2011-2011-0000-00 22752217 11/1/2014 REI 491860 HANSEN, SUSAN & HANSEN, TODD 3204 SU SAN FARMS ROAD GASTONIA NC 28056 1/6/2012 40.84$              $                    9.12 49.96$              
0002050495-2011-2011-0000-00 22723308 11/1/2014 REI 494431 HARDING, NANCY B 200 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 32.06$              $                    7.16 39.22$              
0002050495-2012-2012-0000-00 22723308 11/1/2014 REI 494934 HARDING, NANCY B 200 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 32.06$              $                    5.55 37.61$              
0002050495-2013-2013-0000-00 22723308 11/1/2014 REI 495339 HARDING, NANCY B 200 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 33.65$              $                    4.14 37.79$              
0002050495-2014-2014-0000-00 22723308 11/1/2014 REI 495654 HARDING, NANCY B 200 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 33.97$              $                    2.49 36.46$              
0002049615-2011-2011-0000-00 22717321 12/1/2014 REI 494429 HARGETT, BRANDON G & HARGETT, RACHEL L 6132 ROBLEY TATE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 30.55$              $                    6.83 37.38$              
0002049615-2012-2012-0000-00 22717321 12/1/2014 REI 494932 HARGETT, BRANDON G & HARGETT, RACHEL L 6132 ROBLEY TATE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 30.55$              $                    5.29 35.84$              
0002001956-2011-2011-0000-00 21508109 1/1/2015 REI 494378 HARPER, JEANNE S 144 SARDIS VIEW LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0001935073-2011-2011-0000-00 19334311 11/1/2014 REI 494315 HARRIS, BRIAN K & HARRIS, ELIZABETH G 7300 CANTERWAY DR MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 52.64$              $                 11.76 64.40$              
0001935073-2012-2012-0000-00 19334311 11/1/2014 REI 494876 HARRIS, BRIAN K & HARRIS, ELIZABETH G 7300 CANTERWAY DR MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 47.50$              $                    8.22 55.72$              
0001935073-2013-2013-0000-00 19334311 11/1/2014 REI 495284 HARRIS, BRIAN K & HARRIS, ELIZABETH G 7300 CANTERWAY DR MINT HILL NC 28227 1/7/2014 49.85$              $                    6.14 55.99$              
0002056342-2014-2014-0000-00 22760132 10/1/2014 REI 268613 HARRIS, CATHLEEN R 1818 KINGS MANOR CR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 98.75$              $                    7.24 105.99$           
0001935073-2014-2014-0000-00 19334311 11/1/2014 REI 495607 HARRIS, DAVID W & HARRIS, MARY P 11405 GLADEWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 49.85$              $                    3.65 53.50$              
0002003060-2012-2012-0000-00 21516403 11/1/2014 REI 494899 HARRISON, GARY R. & HARRISON ANN T. 5609 MATTHEWS-MINT HILL RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 17.54$              $                    3.03 20.57$              
0002003060-2011-2011-0000-00 21516403 11/1/2014 REI 494382 HARRISON, GARY R. & HARRISON, ANN T. 5609 MATTHEWS-MINT HILL RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 17.84$              $                    3.99 21.83$              
0002003060-2013-2013-0000-00 21516403 11/1/2014 REI 495307 HARRISON, GARY R. & HARRISON, ANN T. 5609 MATTHEWS-MINT HILL RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/7/2014 18.41$              $                    2.27 20.68$              
0001934716-2012-2012-0000-00 19333738 11/1/2014 REI 511945 HART, SUSAN O 1306 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 7.26$                 $                    1.26 8.52$                
0001934716-2013-2013-0000-00 19333738 11/1/2014 REI 305885 HART, SUSAN O 1306 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 7.62$                 $                    0.94 8.56$                
0001934716-2014-2014-0000-00 19333738 11/1/2014 REI 306519 HART, SUSAN O 1306 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 7.62$                 $                    0.56 8.18$                
0002004227-2011-2011-0000-00 21526193 11/1/2014 REI 494385 HASTINGS, THOMAS EUGENE TRUST PO BOX 49555 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 40.83$              $                    9.12 49.95$              
0002004227-2012-2012-0000-00 21526193 11/1/2014 REI 308001 HASTINGS, THOMAS EUGENE TRUST PO BOX 49555 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/8/2013 40.83$              $                    7.06 47.89$              
0002004227-2013-2013-0000-00 21526193 11/1/2014 REI 308688 HASTINGS, THOMAS EUGENE TRUST PO BOX 49555 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/7/2014 42.86$              $                    5.28 48.14$              
0002004227-2014-2014-0000-00 21526193 11/1/2014 REI 309426 HASTINGS, THOMAS EUGENE TRUST PO BOX 49555 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2015 42.86$              $                    3.14 46.00$              
0002050200-2011-2011-0000-00 22722308 12/1/2014 REI 494430 HAWKS, JAMES MARK 1909 SANDY RIDGE RD MONROE NC 28112 12/14/2012 26.68$              $                    4.71 31.39$              
0002050200-2012-2012-0000-00 22722308 12/1/2014 REI 494933 HAWKS, JAMES MARK 1909 SANDY RIDGE RD MONROE NC 28112 1/8/2013 24.20$              $                    4.19 28.39$              
0001934308-2012-2012-0000-01 19333342 9/1/2014 REI 283906 HAWORTH, JOHN M 9 MARION AVE ESSEX JUNCTION VT 5452 1/8/2013 13.61$              $                    2.35 15.96$              
0001934308-2013-2013-0000-00 19333342 9/1/2014 REI 239345 HAWORTH, JOHN M 9 MARION AVE ESSEX JUNCTION VT 5452 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0002002772-2011-2011-0000-00 21513415 11/1/2014 REI 508729 HAYES, CURTIS B SR 14462 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 85.01$              $                 18.99 104.00$           



0002002772-2012-2012-0000-00 21513415 11/1/2014 REI 465580 HAYES, CURTIS B SR 14462 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3988 1/8/2013 84.09$              $                 14.55 98.64$              
0002002772-2013-2013-0000-00 21513415 11/1/2014 REI 465582 HAYES, CURTIS B SR 14462 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3988 1/7/2014 88.27$              $                 10.87 99.14$              
0001933093-2014-2014-0000-00 19324540 12/1/2014 REI 343320 HAZCOLEGARY LLC 1238 MANN DR #100 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 7.93$                 $                    0.58 8.51$                
0001933093-2013-2013-0000-00 19324540 12/1/2014 REI 486303 HAZCOLEGARY LLC . 1238 MANN DR UNIT 100 MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/24/2014 8.15$                 $                    0.95 9.10$                
0002002616-2014-2014-0000-00 21513173 11/1/2014 REI 306899 HAZEN, GAIL L 14122 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 45.08$              $                    3.30 48.38$              
0001935056-2011-2011-0000-00 19334234 11/1/2014 REI 504557 HAZEN, TASSIE C 13641 STRATHAVEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 45.68$              $                 10.21 55.89$              
0001932807-2011-2011-0000-00 19320211 9/1/2014 REI 284124 HEALD, RALPH E 3422 TRACELAKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/19/2012 20.98$              $                    4.65 25.63$              
0001932807-2012-2012-0000-00 19320211 9/1/2014 REI 234301 HEALD, RALPH E 3422 TRACELAKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/21/2013 20.67$              $                    3.37 24.04$              
0001932807-2013-2013-0000-00 19320211 9/1/2014 REI 220973 HEALD, RALPH E 3422 TRACELAKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/28/2014 21.53$              $                    2.50 24.03$              
0002053259-2012-2012-0000-00 22737223 11/1/2014 REI 489614 HELMER, MARK A 1147 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 34.49$              $                    5.97 40.46$              
0002053259-2013-2013-0000-00 22737223 11/1/2014 REI 309316 HELMER, MARK A 1147 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 36.19$              $                    4.46 40.65$              
0002053259-2014-2014-0000-00 22737223 11/1/2014 REI 310111 HELMER, MARK A 1147 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 36.19$              $                    2.65 38.84$              
0002046417-2011-2011-0000-00 22701308 11/1/2014 REI 494419 HELMS, HENRY RUSSELL 3009 GRIFFITH ST CHARLOTTE NC 28203 11/15/2012 61.61$              $                 11.12 72.73$              
0002046661-2011-2011-0000-00 22702402 12/1/2014 REI 494420 HELMS, NEAL G 7120 WALTON HEATH LN CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 25.72$              $                    5.75 31.47$              
0002046661-2012-2012-0000-00 22702402 12/1/2014 REI 494924 HELMS, NEAL G 7120 WALTON HEATH LN CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/8/2013 25.11$              $                    4.34 29.45$              
0002046661-2013-2013-0000-00 22702402 12/1/2014 REI 495329 HELMS, NEAL G 7120 WALTON HEATH LN CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/7/2014 26.83$              $                    3.30 30.13$              
0002056347-2014-2014-0000-00 22760137 10/1/2014 REI 268615 HENDRIX, DEBORAH HARRELL 1712 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 110.49$            $                    8.10 118.59$           
0002051697-2014-2014-0000-00 22728314 11/1/2014 REI 500698 HERLONG, NATHAN W 121 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-2595 1/6/2015 18.41$              $                    1.35 19.76$              
0002051622-2014-2014-0000-00 22728268 11/1/2014 REI 512751 HERRADA, ALEJANDRO HECTOR 922 JAYWOOD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/29/2015 25.91$              $                    1.82 27.73$              
0001934801-2014-2014-0000-00 19333803 11/1/2014 REI 509972 HERRIN, CHARLES ROBERT 1114 KALE WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 6.35$                 $                    0.47 6.82$                
0001937662-2011-2011-0000-00 19345141 11/1/2014 REI 494328 HEWITT, SEAN A 11127 BERKLEY SQUARE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.61$                 $                    0.14 0.75$                
0002056745-2012-2012-0000-00 22764149 10/1/2014 REI 474895 HIGHTOWER, TODD D 2401 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 9.68$                 $                    1.67 11.35$              
0002056745-2013-2013-0000-00 22764149 10/1/2014 REI 475212 HIGHTOWER, TODD D 2401 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 10.16$              $                    1.25 11.41$              
0001934880-2014-2014-0000-00 19334105 11/1/2014 REI 509973 HILL, ANNE MARIE MORTON 11201 HALLMARK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-1200 1/6/2015 62.87$              $                    4.61 67.48$              
0001934442-2013-2013-0000-00 19333403 11/1/2014 REI 495283 HILL, JOHN O PO BOX 387 BLAIRSVILLE GA 30514 1/7/2014 10.48$              $                    1.29 11.77$              
0001934442-2014-2014-0000-00 19333403 11/1/2014 REI 317937 HILL, JOHN O PO BOX 387 BLAIRSVILLE GA 30514-0387 1/6/2015 10.48$              $                    0.77 11.25$              
0001932530-2011-2011-0000-00 19314164 9/1/2014 REI 452181 HILL, WILLIAM R IV 13320 FAIRINGTON OAKS MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 94.38$              $                 21.09 115.47$           
0002053108-2011-2011-0000-00 22737107 11/1/2014 REI 496750 HINSON, KEVIN W 6736 CONCORD HWY MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 15.13$              $                    3.38 18.51$              
0002053108-2012-2012-0000-00 22737107 11/1/2014 REI 497239 HINSON, KEVIN W 6736 CONCORD HWY MONROE NC 28110 1/8/2013 15.13$              $                    2.62 17.75$              
0002053108-2013-2013-0000-00 22737107 11/1/2014 REI 497624 HINSON, KEVIN W 6736 CONCORD HWY MONROE NC 28110 1/7/2014 15.88$              $                    1.96 17.84$              
0002046950-2011-2011-0000-00 22702759 2/1/2015 REI 496720 HODGE, JO ANN 440 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 122.51$            $                 27.37 149.88$           
0002046950-2013-2013-0000-00 22702759 2/1/2015 REI 497610 HODGE, MARTY PAUL 440 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5683 2/11/2014 126.58$            $                 14.98 141.56$           
0002046950-2014-2014-0000-00 22702759 2/1/2015 REI 497944 HODGE, MARTY PAUL 440 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5683 1/6/2015 148.07$            $                 10.85 158.92$           
0002046950-2012-2012-0000-00 22702759 2/1/2015 REI 416267 HODGE, NANCY S 440 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 117.37$            $                 20.31 137.68$           
0002049694-2011-2011-0000-00 22721241 11/1/2014 REI 502451 HOLBROOK, ANDREW S 4289 CHARLES FREER LANE JOHNS ISLAND SC 29455 1/6/2012 35.40$              $                    7.91 43.31$              
0002049694-2012-2012-0000-00 22721241 11/1/2014 REI 308242 HOLBROOK, ANDREW S 4289 CHARLES FREER LANE JOHNS ISLAND SC 29455 1/8/2013 35.40$              $                    6.12 41.52$              
0002049694-2013-2013-0000-00 22721241 11/1/2014 REI 308950 HOLBROOK, ANDREW S 4289 CHARLES FREER LANE JOHNS ISLAND SC 29455 1/7/2014 37.15$              $                    4.58 41.73$              
0001937983-2011-2011-0000-00 19346170 11/1/2014 REI 496632 HOLLINGSWORTH, DWIGHT V 7310 EDGEFIELD CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 2.72$                 $                    0.61 3.33$                
0002053012-2011-2011-0000-00 22736238 11/1/2014 REI 496746 HOOD, GEORGE ROBBIE 6812 SUMMERHILL RIDGE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/6/2012 60.81$              $                 13.59 74.40$              
0002053012-2012-2012-0000-00 22736238 11/1/2014 REI 497237 HOOD, GEORGE ROBBIE 6812 SUMMERHILL RIDGE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/8/2013 60.81$              $                 10.52 71.33$              
0002046900-2011-2011-0000-00 22702722 2/1/2015 REI 415475 HOPKINS, EMILYE E 329 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5682 1/6/2012 62.92$              $                 14.06 76.98$              
0002046900-2012-2012-0000-00 22702722 2/1/2015 REI 416252 HOPKINS, EMILYE E 329 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5682 1/8/2013 57.17$              $                    9.89 67.06$              
0002046900-2013-2013-0000-00 22702722 2/1/2015 REI 417034 HOPKINS, EMILYE E 329 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5682 1/7/2014 60.01$              $                    7.39 67.40$              
0001936589-2011-2011-0000-00 19340604 9/1/2014 REI 517713 HORTON, WILLIAM A 3420 LUMAN WAY MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 159.85$            $                 35.71 195.56$           
0002050383-2011-2011-0000-00 22722711 12/1/2014 REI 496732 HOUGH, SUSAN J 4809 FORRESTMONT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5818 1/6/2012 1.22$                 $                    0.27 1.49$                
0002050383-2012-2012-0000-00 22722711 12/1/2014 REI 350508 HOUGH, SUSAN J 4809 FORRESTMONT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5818 1/8/2013 1.21$                 $                    0.21 1.42$                
0002050383-2013-2013-0000-00 22722711 12/1/2014 REI 351154 HOUGH, SUSAN J 4809 FORRESTMONT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5818 1/7/2014 1.27$                 $                    0.16 1.43$                
0002050383-2014-2014-0000-00 22722711 12/1/2014 REI 351880 HOUGH, SUSAN J 4809 FORRESTMONT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-5818 1/6/2015 1.27$                 $                    0.09 1.36$                
0008068625-2014-2014-0000-00 19328113 10/1/2014 REI 475338 HOUSTON, ROSE & AHMED, MARGARET 10731 FOUR LAKES DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 32.07$              $                    2.35 34.42$              
0002047734-2011-2011-0000-00 22706229 3/1/2015 REI 496722 HOWARD, JASON ANDREW & HOWARD, ANGELA 1404 ELMSFORD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/31/2012 42.27$              $                    9.30 51.57$              
0002052584-2011-2011-0000-00 22734208 11/1/2014 REI 496744 HUBBARD, MICHAEL T & LATHAN, JULIA SUSAN 910 EVIAN LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002053017-2011-2011-0000-00 22736241 11/1/2014 REI 496747 HUFF, STEPHEN M 14228 PLANTATION PARK BLVD APT 1423 CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 5.14$                 $                    1.15 6.29$                
0001934393-2011-2011-0000-00 19333376 9/1/2014 REI 454872 HUGGINS, NATHANIEL 1329 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 14.22$              $                    3.18 17.40$              
0001934393-2012-2012-0000-00 19333376 9/1/2014 REI 454937 HUGGINS, NATHANIEL 1329 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 13.61$              $                    2.35 15.96$              
0001934393-2013-2013-0000-00 19333376 9/1/2014 REI 221010 HUGGINS, NATHANIEL 1329 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0002053131-2011-2011-0000-00 22737121 11/1/2014 REI 496751 HYDE, WILSON P 6280 ST JOHNS WOOD WILLIAMSBURG VA 23188-1796 1/6/2012 14.22$              $                    3.18 17.40$              
0002053131-2012-2012-0000-00 22737121 11/1/2014 REI 497240 HYDE, WILSON P 6280 ST JOHNS WOOD WILLIAMSBURG VA 23188-1796 1/8/2013 14.22$              $                    2.46 16.68$              
0002053131-2013-2013-0000-00 22737121 11/1/2014 REI 497625 HYDE, WILSON P 6280 ST JOHNS WOOD WILLIAMSBURG VA 23188-1796 1/7/2014 14.93$              $                    1.84 16.77$              
0002050818-2011-2011-0000-00 22723914 11/1/2014 REI 496739 HYDRA III INC 2624 WEST BLVD CHARLOTTE NC 28208 1/6/2012 1.21$                 $                    0.27 1.48$                
0002050818-2012-2012-0000-00 22723914 11/1/2014 REI 497233 HYDRA III INC 2624 WEST BLVD CHARLOTTE NC 28208 1/8/2013 0.91$                 $                    0.16 1.07$                
0002053705-2012-2012-0000-00 22740252 10/1/2014 REI 474854 I-25 R38 LLC . 403 MADISON AVE  N STE 230 BAINBRIDGE ISLAND WA 98110 1/9/2013 35.80$              $                    6.19 41.99$              
0002001609-2011-2011-0000-00 21504117 2/1/2015 REI 496826 IDEAL INVESTMENTS &  PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1331 EMERALD SHORES RD MT GILEAD NC 27306 1/6/2012 34.79$              $                    7.77 42.56$              
0002001609-2012-2012-0000-00 21504117 2/1/2015 REI 497188 IDEAL INVESTMENTS & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1331 EMERALD SHORES RD MT GILEAD NC 27306 1/8/2013 34.18$              $                    5.91 40.09$              
0002001609-2013-2013-0000-00 21504117 2/1/2015 REI 497584 IDEAL INVESTMENTS & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1331 EMERALD SHORES RD MT GILEAD NC 27306 1/13/2014 36.60$              $                    4.48 41.08$              
0002001609-2014-2014-0000-00 21504117 2/1/2015 REI 497926 IDEAL INVESTMENTS & PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1331 EMERALD SHORES RD MT GILEAD NC 27306 1/6/2015 35.88$              $                    2.63 38.51$              
0002003003-2013-2013-0000-00 21516221 11/1/2014 REI 497585 IH2 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 9335 HARRIS CORNERS PARKWAY SUITE 100 CHARLOTTE NC 28269 1/7/2014 110.81$            $                 13.65 124.46$           
0002003003-2014-2014-0000-00 21516221 11/1/2014 REI 497927 IH2 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 9335 HARRIS CORNERS PARKWAY SUITE 100 CHARLOTTE NC 28269 1/6/2015 110.81$            $                    8.12 118.93$           
0002046421-2013-2013-0000-00 22701312 11/1/2014 REI 505058 IH2 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 901 S MAIN ST  SUITE 4700 DALLAS TX 75202 1/7/2014 13.33$              $                    1.64 14.97$              
0002046421-2014-2014-0000-00 22701312 11/1/2014 REI 497941 IH2 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 901 S MAIN ST  SUITE 4700 DALLAS TX 75202 1/6/2015 13.33$              $                    0.98 14.31$              
0002050818-2013-2013-0000-00 22723914 11/1/2014 REI 497620 IH2 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 901 S MAIN ST  SUITE 4700 DALLAS TX 75202 1/7/2014 0.96$                 $                    0.12 1.08$                
0002050818-2014-2014-0000-00 22723914 11/1/2014 REI 497953 IH2 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 901 S MAIN ST  SUITE 4700 DALLAS TX 75202 1/6/2015 0.96$                 $                    0.07 1.03$                
0002055345-2014-2014-0000-00 22752306 11/1/2014 REI 497959 IH2 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 901 S MAIN ST  SUITE 4700 DALLAS TX 75202 1/6/2015 46.04$              $                    3.37 49.41$              
0002003191-2013-2013-0000-00 21517187 11/1/2014 REI 489961 IH3 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP 2100 N TATUM BLVD STE 1630-630 PHOENIX AZ 85050 1/7/2014 21.59$              $                    2.66 24.25$              
0001937954-2014-2014-0000-00 19346146 11/1/2014 REI 352900 IH3 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLINA LP, . 2100 N TATUM BLVD STE 1630-630 PHOENIX AZ 85050 1/6/2015 10.80$              $                    0.79 11.59$              
0002051659-2014-2014-0000-00 22728291 11/1/2014 REI 510030 IH3 PROPERTY NORTH CAROLONA L P . 2100 N TATUM BLVD STE 1630-630 PHOENIX AZ 85050 1/6/2015 20.32$              $                    1.49 21.81$              
0002050112-2011-2011-0000-00 22722134 12/1/2014 REI 511492 INDIAN TRAIL PLAZA LLC PO BOX 3196 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 19.66$              $                    4.39 24.05$              
0002050112-2012-2012-0000-00 22722134 12/1/2014 REI 350476 INDIAN TRAIL PLAZA LLC PO BOX 3196 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013 18.15$              $                    3.14 21.29$              
0002050112-2013-2013-0000-00 22722134 12/1/2014 REI 351120 INDIAN TRAIL PLAZA LLC PO BOX 3196 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 19.05$              $                    2.35 21.40$              
0002050112-2014-2014-0000-00 22722134 12/1/2014 REI 351843 INDIAN TRAIL PLAZA LLC PO BOX 3196 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 19.05$              $                    1.40 20.45$              
0002052276-2012-2012-0000-00 22731317 11/1/2014 REI 506990 INDOVINA, MATTHEW T 913 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0002052276-2013-2013-0000-00 22731317 11/1/2014 REI 309190 INDOVINA, MATTHEW T 913 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 16.82$              $                    2.07 18.89$              
0002052276-2014-2014-0000-00 22731317 11/1/2014 REI 309979 INDOVINA, MATTHEW T 913 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 16.82$              $                    1.23 18.05$              
0002053289-2013-2013-0000-00 22737245 11/1/2014 REI 512427 INGRAM, TERESA C 1315 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 86.67$              $                 10.67 97.34$              
0002053289-2014-2014-0000-00 22737245 11/1/2014 REI 310120 INGRAM, TERESA C 1315 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 86.67$              $                    6.35 93.02$              
0002046736-2011-2011-0000-00 22702512 1/1/2015 REI 496719 INLAND AMERICAN ST PORTFOLIO LLC 2901 BUTTERFIELD RD OAKBROOK IL 60523 1/6/2012 108.00$            $                 24.13 132.13$           
0001934352-2011-2011-0000-00 19333358 9/1/2014 REI 452202 IVIE, WILLIAM E 19640 BURGUNDY FARMS RD ESTERO FL 33928 1/6/2012 13.62$              $                    3.04 16.66$              
0001934352-2012-2012-0000-01 19333358 9/1/2014 REI 452386 IVIE, WILLIAM E 19640 BURGUNDY FARMS RD ESTERO FL 33928 1/8/2013 13.62$              $                    2.36 15.98$              
0002056685-2013-2013-0000-00 22764102 10/1/2014 REI 475206 JACKSON MICHAEL F 1401 REVERDY OAKS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 60.33$              $                    7.43 67.76$              
0002056685-2014-2014-0000-00 22764102 10/1/2014 REI 268621 JACKSON, MICHAEL F 1401 REVERDY OAKS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 107.64$            $                    7.89 115.53$           
0002002103-2014-2014-0000-00 21510229 10/1/2014 REI 262687 JACKSON, ROBERT E 1840 DANNY CT CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/6/2015 17.47$              $                    1.28 18.75$              
0002053077-2011-2011-0000-00 22736315 11/1/2014 REI 496749 JACOBS, DAVID GEORGE 634 WACO ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/6/2012 59.29$              $                 13.25 72.54$              
0002053077-2012-2012-0000-00 22736315 11/1/2014 REI 497238 JACOBS, DAVID GEORGE 634 WACO ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/8/2013 59.29$              $                 10.26 69.55$              
0002053077-2013-2013-0000-00 22736315 11/1/2014 REI 497623 JACOBS, DAVID GEORGE 634 WACO ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/7/2014 62.23$              $                    7.66 69.89$              
0002053072-2011-2011-0000-00 22736310 11/1/2014 REI 496748 JAGODINSKI, JON PO BOX 6995 PORTLAND OR 97228 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002050532-2011-2011-0000-00 22723421 11/1/2014 REI 496735 JAHN, JULIE 206 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5706 1/6/2012 19.66$              $                    4.39 24.05$              
0002050532-2012-2012-0000-00 22723421 11/1/2014 REI 497230 JAHN, JULIE 206 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5706 1/8/2013 19.36$              $                    3.35 22.71$              
0002050532-2013-2013-0000-00 22723421 11/1/2014 REI 497618 JAHN, JULIE 206 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5706 1/7/2014 20.32$              $                    2.50 22.82$              
0002050532-2014-2014-0000-00 22723421 11/1/2014 REI 318150 JAHN, JULIE 206 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-5706 1/6/2015 20.32$              $                    1.49 21.81$              
0002056357-2014-2014-0000-00 22760147 10/1/2014 REI 268620 JAIN, SUMIT K 2412 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 113.67$            $                    8.33 122.00$           
0002002891-2011-2011-0000-00 21515171 11/1/2014 REI 442907 JAMES, BARBARA A L/T 14214 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-6420 1/6/2012 7.56$                 $                    1.69 9.25$                
0002002891-2013-2013-0000-00 21515171 11/1/2014 REI 442909 JAMES, BARBARA A L/T 14214 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-6420 1/7/2014 7.30$                 $                    0.90 8.20$                
0002002891-2014-2014-0000-00 21515171 11/1/2014 REI 442910 JAMES, BARBARA A L/T 14214 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-6420 1/6/2015 7.30$                 $                    0.54 7.84$                
0002053140-2011-2011-0000-00 22737127 11/1/2014 REI 496752 JAMES, MICHAEL A & JAMES, SUSAN Y 2300 KILKENNEY HILL ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 26.31$              $                    5.88 32.19$              
0002053140-2012-2012-0000-00 22737127 11/1/2014 REI 497241 JAMES, MICHAEL A & JAMES, SUSAN Y 2300 KILKENNEY HILL ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 26.31$              $                    4.55 30.86$              
0002053140-2013-2013-0000-00 22737127 11/1/2014 REI 497626 JAMES, MICHAEL A & JAMES, SUSAN Y 2300 KILKENNEY HILL ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 27.62$              $                    3.40 31.02$              
0002053140-2014-2014-0000-00 22737127 11/1/2014 REI 497956 JAMES, MICHAEL A & JAMES, SUSAN Y 2300 KILKENNEY HILL ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 27.62$              $                    2.02 29.64$              
0002047582-2011-2011-0000-00 22705128 2/1/2015 REI 415586 JAMISON, PAUL W SR 1200 HOME PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 29.04$              $                    6.49 35.53$              
0002047582-2012-2012-0000-00 22705128 2/1/2015 REI 416361 JAMISON, PAUL W SR 1200 HOME PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 23.29$              $                    4.03 27.32$              
0001934358-2011-2011-0000-00 19333361 9/1/2014 REI 452204 JEAN E. DAVIS REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 5201 CORONADO DR CHARLOTTE NC 28212 1/6/2012 13.61$              $                    3.04 16.65$              
0001933186-2011-2011-0000-00 19326104 10/1/2014 REI 279389 JIMAANA PROPERTIES, INC, . 130 LIBRARY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 321.55$            $                 71.84 393.39$           
0002003071-2011-2011-0000-00 21516412 11/1/2014 REI 496671 JMA HOLDINGS LLC 301 SOUTH MCDOWELL ST, SUITE 410 CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/6/2012 34.79$              $                    7.77 42.56$              
0001992691-2011-2011-0000-00 21301107 1/1/2015 REI 496668 JOHN STREET PROPERTIES LLC 6247 GLYNMOOR LAKES DR CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 3.63$                 $                    0.81 4.44$                
0001934812-2013-2013-0000-00 19333812 11/1/2014 REI 516258 JOHNSON, DANNY E 1115 BLOOMWOOD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-3864 1/7/2014 9.21$                 $                    1.13 10.34$              
0001934812-2014-2014-0000-00 19333812 11/1/2014 REI 306549 JOHNSON, DANNY E 1115 BLOOMWOOD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 9.21$                 $                    0.67 9.88$                
0001934641-2014-2014-0000-00 19333622 11/1/2014 REI 317959 JOHNSON, DARRELL W 814 WINTERWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-0823 1/6/2015 6.99$                 $                    0.51 7.50$                
0001934620-2011-2011-0000-00 19333606 11/1/2014 REI 496620 JOHNSON, LEWIS H. 1951 WEXFORD COURT GASTONIA NC 28054 1/6/2012 6.36$                 $                    1.42 7.78$                
0001934620-2012-2012-0000-00 19333606 11/1/2014 REI 497164 JOHNSON, LEWIS H. 1951 WEXFORD COURT GASTONIA NC 28054 1/8/2013 6.05$                 $                    1.05 7.10$                
0001934620-2013-2013-0000-00 19333606 11/1/2014 REI 497565 JOHNSON, LEWIS H. 1951 WEXFORD COURT GASTONIA NC 28054 1/7/2014 6.35$                 $                    0.78 7.13$                
0002055180-2011-2011-0000-00 22752131 11/1/2014 REI 496759 JONES, JEFFREY B & JONES, CAROLYN W 1416 PARKVIEW CIRCLE, APT 105 WILMINGTON NC 28405 1/6/2012 33.57$              $                    7.50 41.07$              
0002055180-2012-2012-0000-00 22752131 11/1/2014 REI 497247 JONES, JEFFREY B & JONES, CAROLYN W 1416 PARKVIEW CIRCLE, APT 105 WILMINGTON NC 28405 1/8/2013 33.57$              $                    5.81 39.38$              
0002055180-2013-2013-0000-00 22752131 11/1/2014 REI 497632 JONES, JEFFREY B & JONES, CAROLYN W 1416 PARKVIEW CIRCLE, APT 105 WILMINGTON NC 28405 1/7/2014 35.24$              $                    4.34 39.58$              
0001934670-2011-2011-0000-00 19333704 11/1/2014 REI 496622 JONES, KARI D 1001 MIDWOOD DR MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 6.96$                 $                    1.56 8.52$                
0001934670-2012-2012-0000-00 19333704 11/1/2014 REI 497166 JONES, KARI D 1001 MIDWOOD DR MONROE NC 28110 1/8/2013 6.05$                 $                    1.05 7.10$                
0001934670-2013-2013-0000-00 19333704 11/1/2014 REI 497566 JONES, KARI D 1001 MIDWOOD DR MONROE NC 28110 1/7/2014 6.35$                 $                    0.78 7.13$                
0001934147-2011-2011-0000-00 19333148 11/1/2014 REI 496619 JONES, LARRY CARLETON 414 SW KESTREL DR SHALLOTTE NC 28470 1/6/2012 11.20$              $                    2.50 13.70$              
0001934147-2012-2012-0000-00 19333148 11/1/2014 REI 497163 JONES, LARRY CARLETON 414 SW KESTREL DRIVE SHALLOTTE NC 28470 1/8/2013 10.29$              $                    1.78 12.07$              
0002047736-2012-2012-0000-00 22706230 3/1/2015 REI 509232 JORDAN, PHILLIP W 819 WISMAR CT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 171.22$            $                 29.62 200.84$           
0002047736-2013-2013-0000-00 22706230 3/1/2015 REI 432709 JORDAN, PHILLIP W 819 WISMAR CT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/7/2014 179.70$            $                 22.13 201.83$           
0002047736-2014-2014-0000-00 22706230 3/1/2015 REI 433517 JORDAN, PHILLIP W 819 WISMAR CT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2015 226.06$            $                 16.57 242.63$           
0002001541-2011-2011-0000-00 21503365 9/1/2014 REI 451383 JOSHUA & AMATA ROBERTS 7810 VININGS OAK LN APT 219 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.21$                 $                    0.27 1.48$                
0008068967-2014-2014-0000-00 21301259 1/1/2015 REI 500669 JOUBERT, BRADLEY 9537 REID HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 15.24$              $                    1.12 16.36$              
0002003128-2013-2013-0000-00 21517135 10/1/2014 REI 475113 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 3415 VISION DRIVE COLUMBUS OH 43219 1/7/2014 19.69$              $                    2.42 22.11$              
0002003409-2012-2012-0000-00 21519164 10/1/2014 REI 474772 JUDGE, KATHERINE E 2725 KIRKHOLM DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 4.53$                 $                    0.78 5.31$                
0002003409-2013-2013-0000-00 21519164 10/1/2014 REI 261735 JUDGE, KATHERINE E 2725 KIRKHOLM DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 4.76$                 $                    0.59 5.35$                
0002003409-2014-2014-0000-00 21519164 10/1/2014 REI 262733 JUDGE, KATHERINE E 2725 KIRKHOLM DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 4.76$                 $                    0.35 5.11$                
0002056336-2013-2013-0000-00 22760126 10/1/2014 REI 267492 JUSTICE, STEVEN MICHAEL 1924 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 101.92$            $                 12.55 114.47$           
0002056336-2014-2014-0000-00 22760126 10/1/2014 REI 268611 JUSTICE, STEVEN MICHAEL 1924 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 101.92$            $                    7.47 109.39$           
0002050452-2011-2011-0000-00 22723106 11/1/2014 REI 443033 KALE, BETTY R 615 SADIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 15.43$              $                    3.45 18.88$              



0002050452-2012-2012-0000-00 22723106 11/1/2014 REI 443705 KALE, BETTY R 615 SADIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 15.43$              $                    2.67 18.10$              
0002050452-2013-2013-0000-00 22723106 11/1/2014 REI 443036 KALE, BETTY R 615 SADIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 16.19$              $                    1.99 18.18$              
0002051547-2011-2011-0000-00 22728217 11/1/2014 REI 497980 KASTRICHES, DENNIS J 7140 STARVALLEY DR CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/6/2012 19.96$              $                    4.46 24.42$              
0002046896-2014-2014-0000-00 22702719 2/1/2015 REI 497942 KAZEMIAN, SHAUN 225 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 37.46$              $                    2.75 40.21$              
0002054483-2014-2014-0000-00 22746119 10/1/2014 REI 475377 KEHR, JOHN A 930 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2502 1/6/2015 78.74$              $                    5.77 84.51$              
0001932563-2011-2011-0000-00 19314220 9/1/2014 REI 452185 KELLER, MARY MOON 13221 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 93.77$              $                 20.95 114.72$           
0001932563-2012-2012-0000-00 19314220 9/1/2014 REI 452381 KELLER, MARY MOON 13221 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 93.77$              $                 16.22 109.99$           
0002052284-2011-2011-0000-00 22731322 11/1/2014 REI 496743 KELLOGG, BRUCE RANDALL 2000 ECHO FOREST DR,APT 107 CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 16.33$              $                    3.65 19.98$              
0002003299-2012-2012-0000-00 21518214 10/1/2014 REI 474770 KEMMERLING, SAVANNAH EM 1924 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.36$              $                    3.35 22.71$              
0002003299-2013-2013-0000-00 21518214 10/1/2014 REI 261726 KEMMERLING, SAVANNAH EM 1924 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.64$              $                    2.54 23.18$              
0001937733-2011-2011-0000-00 19345201 11/1/2014 REI 496630 KENDALL, NATHANIEL LEE 23 DOGWOOD DR HENDERSONVILLE NC 28791 1/6/2012 0.31$                 $                    0.07 0.38$                
0002051686-2011-2011-0000-00 22728309 11/1/2014 REI 496741 KENIK, LAURIE JO 16222 MILSFORD CT CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 21.78$              $                    4.87 26.65$              
0002056796-2013-2013-0000-00 22764189 10/1/2014 REI 475216 KENNETH DYKSTRA & CAROL DYKSTRA 1611 SILVER POINTE COURT  S ANDOVER KS 67002 1/7/2014 60.33$              $                    7.43 67.76$              
0002051839-2014-2014-0000-00 22730122 2/1/2015 REI 516621 KENNEY, CHRISTOPHER E 1217 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 40.32$              $                    2.95 43.27$              
0002046896-2011-2011-0000-00 22702719 2/1/2015 REI 472104 KENYON, GORDON H 10043 IDLEWILD RD APT 234 MATTHEWS NC 28105-2013 1/6/2012 37.51$              $                    8.38 45.89$              
0002046896-2012-2012-0000-00 22702719 2/1/2015 REI 472106 KENYON, GORDON H 10043 IDLEWILD RD APT 234 MATTHEWS NC 28105-2013 1/8/2013 35.69$              $                    6.17 41.86$              
0002046896-2013-2013-0000-00 22702719 2/1/2015 REI 472108 KENYON, GORDON H 10043 IDLEWILD RD APT 234 MATTHEWS NC 28105-2013 2/19/2014 38.49$              $                    4.51 43.00$              
0002002688-2013-2013-0000-00 21513237 11/1/2014 REI 500319 KESLER, DONALD C 13910 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 59.69$              $                    7.35 67.04$              
0001934890-2011-2011-0000-00 19334111 11/1/2014 REI 304251 KEZIAH, KEVIN L 11241 HALLMARK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 45.98$              $                 10.27 56.25$              
0001934890-2012-2012-0000-00 19334111 11/1/2014 REI 497167 KEZIAH, KEVIN L 11241 HALLMARK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 45.98$              $                    7.96 53.94$              
0001934890-2013-2013-0000-00 19334111 11/1/2014 REI 305945 KEZIAH, KEVIN L 11241 HALLMARK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 48.26$              $                    5.94 54.20$              
0001934890-2014-2014-0000-00 19334111 11/1/2014 REI 306585 KEZIAH, KEVIN L 11241 HALLMARK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 48.26$              $                    3.54 51.80$              
0001934774-2012-2012-0000-00 19333780 11/1/2014 REI 515852 KILGO, PAUL F 807 WINTERWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/12/2014 6.51$                 $                    0.72 7.23$                
0001934774-2013-2013-0000-00 19333780 11/1/2014 REI 516257 KILGO, PAUL F 807 WINTERWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/18/2014 6.20$                 $                    0.73 6.93$                
0001934774-2014-2014-0000-00 19333780 11/1/2014 REI 306541 KILGO, PAUL F 807 WINTERWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 6.04$                 $                    0.44 6.48$                
0001935049-2013-2013-0000-00 19334228 11/1/2014 REI 500299 KIMBELRY  WHITE & JOHN WHITE 1903 KENILWORTH AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28203 1/7/2014 60.64$              $                    7.47 68.11$              
0001934686-2011-2011-0000-00 19333716 11/1/2014 REI 499335 KIMMLINGEN, MICHAEL & KIMMLINGEN, KATHY & KIMMLINGEN  1010 CRAVEN ST INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2012 5.45$                 $                    1.22 6.67$                
0001934686-2012-2012-0000-00 19333716 11/1/2014 REI 499872 KIMMLINGEN, MICHAEL & KIMMLINGEN, KATHY & KIMMLINGEN  1010 CRAVEN ST INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/8/2013 5.45$                 $                    0.94 6.39$                
0002053111-2011-2011-0000-00 22737109 11/1/2014 REI 499482 KING, JERRY L 14823 DAVIS TRACE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 15.12$              $                    3.38 18.50$              
0002053111-2012-2012-0000-00 22737109 11/1/2014 REI 499964 KING, JERRY L 14823 DAVIS TRACE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/8/2013 15.12$              $                    2.62 17.74$              
0002004157-2014-2014-0000-00 21526143 11/1/2014 REI 309391 KINGSTON, ANTHONY A 14225 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 36.19$              $                    2.65 38.84$              
0002050141-2011-2011-0000-00 22722203 12/1/2014 REI 499467 KIRBY, EVELYN T 1424 HENSLEY RD FORT MILL SC 29715 2/21/2012 47.56$              $                 10.33 57.89$              
0001934354-2011-2011-0000-00 19333359 9/1/2014 REI 452203 KISCHA  MURIEL & ANDRE MURIEL 1306 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 13.62$              $                    3.04 16.66$              
0002046653-2014-2014-0000-00 22702314 12/1/2014 REI 351781 KLEIN, KATHERINE PHELAN 407 MAIN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 4.76$                 $                    0.35 5.11$                
0002055304-2012-2012-0000-00 22752236 11/1/2014 REI 515929 KLEIN, TRAVIS G 2908 JARRETT CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 27.83$              $                    4.81 32.64$              
0002055304-2013-2013-0000-00 22752236 11/1/2014 REI 311855 KLEIN, TRAVIS G 2908 JARRETT CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 29.21$              $                    3.60 32.81$              
0002055304-2014-2014-0000-00 22752236 11/1/2014 REI 312584 KLEIN, TRAVIS G 2908 JARRETT CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 29.21$              $                    2.14 31.35$              
0001937687-2011-2011-0000-00 19345156 11/1/2014 REI 499341 KLEINLERCHER, MELISSA L 10934 FLINTSHIRE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 46.59$              $                 10.41 57.00$              
0001937687-2012-2012-0000-00 19345156 11/1/2014 REI 499873 KLEINLERCHER, MELISSA L 10934 FLINTSHIRE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/8/2013 45.38$              $                    7.85 53.23$              
0002002749-2011-2011-0000-00 21513312 11/1/2014 REI 305076 KOCH, ANGELA L 14326 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 24.80$              $                    5.54 30.34$              
0002002749-2012-2012-0000-00 21513312 11/1/2014 REI 499900 KOCH, ANGELA L 14326 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.06$              $                    3.30 22.36$              
0002002749-2013-2013-0000-00 21513312 11/1/2014 REI 306307 KOCH, ANGELA L 14326 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.01$              $                    2.46 22.47$              
0002002749-2014-2014-0000-00 21513312 11/1/2014 REI 306975 KOCH, ANGELA L 14326 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.01$              $                    1.47 21.48$              
0002051821-2014-2014-0000-00 22730108 2/1/2015 REI 503662 KOCYLOWSKY, MICHAEL & KOCYLOWSKY, DEANA QUEEN 205 MATTRIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 44.13$              $                    3.23 47.36$              
0001932494-2013-2013-0000-00 19314137 9/1/2014 REI 452464 KOIRALA MITRA 2240 CANDLELIGHT WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 100.01$            $                 12.32 112.33$           
0002003132-2012-2012-0000-00 21517140 11/1/2014 REI 305788 KOMST, DELORES M 2821 KATIE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 35.39$              $                    6.12 41.51$              
0002003132-2013-2013-0000-00 21517140 11/1/2014 REI 306433 KOMST, DELORES M 2821 KATIE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 37.14$              $                    4.57 41.71$              
0002003132-2014-2014-0000-00 21517140 11/1/2014 REI 307112 KOMST, DELORES M 2821 KATIE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 37.14$              $                    2.72 39.86$              
0002001824-2011-2011-0000-00 21506431 3/1/2015 REI 508728 KPA, Y KIA 3035 RAINBOW RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/9/2012 25.31$              $                    5.64 30.95$              
0002001824-2012-2012-0000-00 21506431 3/1/2015 REI 431947 KPA, Y KIA 3035 RAINBOW RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 135.21$            $                 23.39 158.60$           
0002001824-2013-2013-0000-00 21506431 3/1/2015 REI 432692 KPA, Y KIA 3035 RAINBOW RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 141.92$            $                 17.48 159.40$           
0002001824-2014-2014-0000-00 21506431 3/1/2015 REI 433498 KPA, Y KIA 3035 RAINBOW RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 141.92$            $                 10.40 152.32$           
0001934624-2011-2011-0000-00 19333609 11/1/2014 REI 499334 KRALL, JENNIFER LORENA 1400 REID HARKEY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-3808 1/6/2012 4.84$                 $                    1.08 5.92$                
0001934624-2012-2012-0000-00 19333609 11/1/2014 REI 499871 KRALL, SHARLEINE 1400 REID HARKEY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 4.84$                 $                    0.84 5.68$                
0001934710-2013-2013-0000-00 19333734 11/1/2014 REI 516256 KRASEN, CASEY K 309 SARDIS GROVE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 5.71$                 $                    0.70 6.41$                
0001934710-2014-2014-0000-00 19333734 11/1/2014 REI 306516 KRASEN, CASEY K 309 SARDIS GROVE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 5.71$                 $                    0.42 6.13$                
0002001623-2011-2011-0000-00 21504127 2/1/2015 REI 415281 KROLL, REBECCA M 9924 FOUR MILE CREEK RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277-9037 5/4/2012 78.46$              $                 16.25 94.71$              
0002001623-2012-2012-0000-00 21504127 2/1/2015 REI 416069 KROLL, REBECCA M 9924 FOUR MILE CREEK RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277-9037 2/4/2013 76.78$              $                 13.00 89.78$              
0002001623-2013-2013-0000-00 21504127 2/1/2015 REI 416841 KROLL, REBECCA M 9924 FOUR MILE CREEK RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277-9037 1/7/2014 78.42$              $                    9.66 88.08$              
0002053087-2011-2011-0000-00 22736324 11/1/2014 REI 499481 KRONOVET, NEIL E 9003 MASTERS CT WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 60.20$              $                 13.45 73.65$              
0002047390-2013-2013-0000-00 22703585 10/1/2014 REI 475163 KUHLMAN, TODD L 514 LAUREL FORK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 16.51$              $                    2.03 18.54$              
0002047390-2014-2014-0000-00 22703585 10/1/2014 REI 268132 KUHLMAN, TODD L 514 LAUREL FORK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 16.51$              $                    1.21 17.72$              
0002047220-2013-2013-0000-00 22703402 10/1/2014 REI 475156 KUMAR, SANDIP 230 LINVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 5.40$                 $                    0.67 6.07$                
0002047220-2014-2014-0000-00 22703402 10/1/2014 REI 268082 KUMAR, SANDIP 230 LINVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 9.85$                 $                    0.72 10.57$              
0002056757-2013-2013-0000-00 22764159 10/1/2014 REI 475213 KUNZ, JEREMY 1418 REVERDY OAKS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 28.26$              $                    3.48 31.74$              
0002047841-2011-2011-0000-00 22706279 3/1/2015 REI 506586 KUWADA, TIMOTHY S 1509 ELMSFORD LN CHARLOTTE NC 28105 1/6/2012 171.22$            $                 38.25 209.47$           
0002047841-2012-2012-0000-00 22706279 3/1/2015 REI 453136 KUWADA, TIMOTHY S 1509 ELMSFORD LN CHARLOTTE NC 28105 1/8/2013 171.22$            $                 29.62 200.84$           
0002047841-2013-2013-0000-00 22706279 3/1/2015 REI 453137 KUWADA, TIMOTHY S 1509 ELMSFORD LN CHARLOTTE NC 28105 3/15/2014 185.99$            $                 21.20 207.19$           
0002047841-2014-2014-0000-00 22706279 3/1/2015 REI 433546 KUWADA, TIMOTHY S 1509 ELMSFORD LN CHARLOTTE NC 28105 1/6/2015 179.70$            $                 13.17 192.87$           
0002051523-2011-2011-0000-00 22728132 2/1/2015 REI 511493 KY INVESTMENT  MANAGEMENT INC. 5720 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DR CHARLOTTE NC 28213 1/6/2012 144.29$            $                 32.24 176.53$           
0002051523-2013-2013-0000-00 22728132 2/1/2015 REI 500357 KY INVESTMENT  MANAGEMENT INC. 5720 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DR CHARLOTTE NC 28213 1/7/2014 151.45$            $                 18.65 170.10$           
0002051523-2014-2014-0000-00 22728132 2/1/2015 REI 500696 KY INVESTMENT  MANAGEMENT INC. 5720 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DR CHARLOTTE NC 28213 1/6/2015 151.45$            $                 11.10 162.55$           
0002051697-2011-2011-0000-00 22728314 11/1/2014 REI 499476 LAATZ, DEBORAH L 3 ABERDEEN AVE DAYTON OH 45419 1/6/2012 17.55$              $                    3.92 21.47$              
0002051697-2012-2012-0000-00 22728314 11/1/2014 REI 499959 LAATZ, DEBORAH L 3 ABERDEEN AVE DAYTON OH 45419 1/8/2013 17.55$              $                    3.04 20.59$              
0002051697-2013-2013-0000-00 22728314 11/1/2014 REI 500359 LAATZ, DEBORAH L 3 ABERDEEN AVE DAYTON OH 45419 1/7/2014 18.41$              $                    2.27 20.68$              
0002056620-2014-2014-0000-00 22761293 3/1/2015 REI 516629 LABREE, LAURELI 1508 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 158.44$            $                 11.61 170.05$           
0002055352-2011-2011-0000-00 22752312 11/1/2014 REI 499484 LACHESKY, MICHEAL 2507 KINSEY DR SUMMERFIELD NC 27358 1/6/2012 8.17$                 $                    1.83 10.00$              
0002055352-2012-2012-0000-00 22752312 11/1/2014 REI 499966 LACHESKY, MICHEAL 2507 KINSEY DR SUMMERFIELD NC 27358 1/8/2013 8.17$                 $                    1.41 9.58$                
0001935060-2011-2011-0000-00 19334301 11/1/2014 REI 465403 LALL, GIRDHARRY 1183 ROBINHOOD CIR CHARLOTTE NC 28227-4034 9/16/2013 70.78$              $                    9.81 80.59$              
0002622063-2011-2011-0000-00 22760112 12/1/2014 REI 499578 LAND HOLDING LLC 1900 E. 9TH STREET, 22ND FLOOR MAIL STOP B7-YB13-22 CLEVELAND OH 44114 1/6/2012 1,563.92$        $               349.42 1,913.34$        
0002622063-2012-2012-0000-00 22760112 12/1/2014 REI 499973 LAND HOLDING LLC 1900 E. 9TH STREET, 22ND FLOOR MAIL STOP B7-YB13-22 CLEVELAND OH 44114 1/8/2013 1,563.92$        $               270.58 1,834.50$        
0002622063-2013-2013-0000-00 22760112 12/1/2014 REI 500370 LAND HOLDING LLC 1900 E. 9TH STREET, 22ND FLOOR MAIL STOP B7-YB13-22 CLEVELAND OH 44114 1/7/2014 1,094.43$        $               134.78 1,229.21$        
0002056690-2011-2011-0000-00 22764107 10/1/2014 REI 474224 LANGLEY MICHAEL G,LANGLEY,CYNTHIA B 1605 GUPTON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 11.19$              $                    2.50 13.69$              
0002056690-2012-2012-0000-00 22764107 10/1/2014 REI 474890 LANGLEY, CYNTHIA B 1605 GUPTON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 11.19$              $                    1.94 13.13$              
0002056690-2013-2013-0000-00 22764107 10/1/2014 REI 267501 LANGLEY, CYNTHIA B 1605 GUPTON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 11.75$              $                    1.45 13.20$              
0002001413-2011-2011-0000-00 21503268 9/1/2014 REI 451364 LASSITER, CHRISTY 4204 GRIFFITH RD MONROE NC 28112 1/6/2012 3.02$                 $                    0.67 3.69$                
0002051811-2012-2012-0000-00 22729262 10/1/2014 REI 474844 LATHE, KEVIN SCOTT 3526 CHARLES RAPER JONAS HY STANLEY NC 28164 1/8/2013 195.41$            $                 33.81 229.22$           
0002051547-2012-2012-0000-00 22728217 11/1/2014 REI 497979 LATTIMORE, AMY 1316 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.96$              $                    3.45 23.41$              
0002051547-2013-2013-0000-00 22728217 11/1/2014 REI 309099 LATTIMORE, AMY 1316 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.96$              $                    2.58 23.54$              
0002051547-2014-2014-0000-00 22728217 11/1/2014 REI 309881 LATTIMORE, AMY 1316 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.96$              $                    1.54 22.50$              
0002001071-2014-2014-0000-00 21501217 2/1/2015 REI 500675 LAWS, HEATHER SPICER 924 GLENSHANNON RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.00$              $                    1.47 21.47$              
0002050812-2011-2011-0000-00 22723912 11/1/2014 REI 499471 LAYUG, DANIELLE MARIE 110 ICHABOD TRAIL LONGWOOD FL 32750 1/6/2012 31.77$              $                    7.10 38.87$              
0002050812-2012-2012-0000-00 22723912 11/1/2014 REI 499954 LAYUG, DANIELLE MARIE 110 ICHABOD TRAIL LONGWOOD FL 32750 1/8/2013 31.77$              $                    5.50 37.27$              
0002050812-2013-2013-0000-00 22723912 11/1/2014 REI 352439 LAYUG, DANIELLE MARIE 110 ICHABOD TRAIL LONGWOOD FL 32750 1/7/2014 33.34$              $                    4.11 37.45$              
0002051860-2014-2014-0000-00 22730139 2/1/2015 REI 507494 LEAVY DANIEL P 319 MATTRIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 100.01$            $                    7.33 107.34$           
0002001147-2011-2011-0000-00 21501421 2/1/2015 REI 499384 LEFLER MYRTLE D 325 MIDDLETON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 90.15$              $                 20.14 110.29$           
0002001147-2012-2012-0000-00 21501421 2/1/2015 REI 416030 LEFLER, MYRTLE D 325 MIDDLETON DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 90.15$              $                 15.60 105.75$           
0002001147-2013-2013-0000-00 21501421 2/1/2015 REI 416806 LEFLER, MYRTLE D 325 MIDDLETON DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014 94.61$              $                 11.65 106.26$           
0002001147-2014-2014-0000-00 21501421 2/1/2015 REI 417511 LEFLER, MYRTLE D 325 MIDDLETON DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2015 94.61$              $                    6.93 101.54$           
0002055410-2011-2011-0000-00 22752417 11/1/2014 REI 499485 LEGGETT, MARIA & CREAMER, KEVIN J 2821 POLO CLUB BLVD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51$                 $                    0.34 1.85$                
0002055410-2012-2012-0000-00 22752417 11/1/2014 REI 499967 LEGGETT, MARIA & CREAMER, KEVIN J 2821 POLO CLUB BLVD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 1.51$                 $                    0.26 1.77$                
0002055410-2013-2013-0000-00 22752417 11/1/2014 REI 500366 LEGGETT, MARIA & CREAMER, KEVIN J 2821 POLO CLUB BLVD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 1.59$                 $                    0.20 1.79$                
0002002874-2011-2011-0000-00 21515160 11/1/2014 REI 499387 LEIGH, RYAN D & LEIGH, STEPHANIE F 12238 HICKORY KNOLL CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 47.19$              $                 10.54 57.73$              
0002002874-2012-2012-0000-00 21515160 11/1/2014 REI 499903 LEIGH, RYAN D & LEIGH, STEPHANIE F 12238 HICKORY KNOLL CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 46.59$              $                    8.06 54.65$              
0002046687-2011-2011-0000-00 22702422 1/1/2015 REI 499443 LEMMOND, DAVID REA 2144 KIRKWOOD AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28203 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0002003551-2012-2012-0000-00 21520110 10/1/2014 REI 260822 LEMMOND, SUSAN L 2400 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 15.73$              $                    2.72 18.45$              
0002003551-2013-2013-0000-00 21520110 10/1/2014 REI 261753 LEMMOND, SUSAN L 2400 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 16.51$              $                    2.03 18.54$              
0002003551-2014-2014-0000-00 21520110 10/1/2014 REI 262753 LEMMOND, SUSAN L 2400 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 16.51$              $                    1.21 17.72$              
0002002388-2011-2011-0000-00 21512327 10/1/2014 REI 473917 LERCH BRETT J 8702 CASTLE CLIFF DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 2.42$                 $                    0.54 2.96$                
0001935049-2012-2012-0000-00 19334228 11/1/2014 REI 485484 LESLEY JARVIS B & WIFE VIVIAN N 8103 HUNLEY RIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 57.77$              $                 10.00 67.77$              
0002055172-2014-2014-0000-00 22752127 11/1/2014 REI 487148 LEVETT, DAVID B & LEVETT, JEAN G 5034 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 46.99$              $                    3.44 50.43$              
0001932540-2011-2011-0000-00 19314172 9/1/2014 REI 452182 LEWIS JASPER C 2127 CANDLELIGHT WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 90.75$              $                 20.28 111.03$           
0001932540-2012-2012-0000-00 19314172 9/1/2014 REI 234287 LEWIS, JASPER C 2127 CANDLELIGHT WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 90.75$              $                 15.70 106.45$           
0001932540-2013-2013-0000-00 19314172 9/1/2014 REI 220957 LEWIS, JASPER C 2127 CANDLELIGHT WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 95.25$              $                 11.73 106.98$           
0002001221-2011-2011-0000-00 21502153 1/1/2015 REI 499385 LGM PROPERTIES LLC 2715 PLANTATION RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002053030-2013-2013-0000-00 22736251 11/1/2014 REI 509666 LILLIE, ELIZABETH K 1220 MANICOTT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 49.85$              $                    6.14 55.99$              
0002053030-2014-2014-0000-00 22736251 11/1/2014 REI 318205 LILLIE, ELIZABETH K 1220 MANICOTT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 49.85$              $                    3.65 53.50$              
0002050796-2011-2011-0000-00 22723901 11/1/2014 REI 496738 LINEBERGER, TAMMY 926 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 15.12$              $                    3.38 18.50$              
0002050796-2012-2012-0000-00 22723901 11/1/2014 REI 308345 LINEBERGER, TAMMY 926 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 14.52$              $                    2.51 17.03$              
0002050796-2013-2013-0000-00 22723901 11/1/2014 REI 309064 LINEBERGER, TAMMY 926 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 15.24$              $                    1.88 17.12$              
0002050796-2014-2014-0000-00 22723901 11/1/2014 REI 309839 LINEBERGER, TAMMY 926 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 15.24$              $                    1.12 16.36$              
0001933271-2011-2011-0000-00 19327112 1/1/2015 REI 499331 LINGLE, AMEILIA P 3100 VALENTINE LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002002872-2011-2011-0000-00 21515159 11/1/2014 REI 305111 LITTON, JAMES LARRY 14027 HORSEBACK CIR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 36.30$              $                    8.11 44.41$              
0002002872-2012-2012-0000-00 21515159 11/1/2014 REI 499902 LITTON, JAMES LARRY 14027 HORSEBACK CIR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 36.30$              $                    6.28 42.58$              
0002002872-2013-2013-0000-00 21515159 11/1/2014 REI 306347 LITTON, JAMES LARRY 14027 HORSEBACK CIR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 38.42$              $                    4.73 43.15$              
0002002872-2014-2014-0000-00 21515159 11/1/2014 REI 307018 LITTON, JAMES LARRY 14027 HORSEBACK CIR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 38.42$              $                    2.82 41.24$              
0002053086-2011-2011-0000-00 22736323 11/1/2014 REI 499480 LIU, QUANG LUONG 4115 DAWN VALLEY CT CHANTILLY VA 20151 1/6/2012 49.92$              $                 11.15 61.07$              
0002053086-2012-2012-0000-00 22736323 11/1/2014 REI 499962 LIU, QUANG LUONG 4115 DAWN VALLEY CT CHANTILLY VA 20151 1/8/2013 49.92$              $                    8.64 58.56$              
0002053086-2013-2013-0000-00 22736323 11/1/2014 REI 500362 LIU, QUANG LUONG 4115 DAWN VALLEY CT CHANTILLY VA 20151 1/7/2014 52.39$              $                    6.45 58.84$              
0002002223-2011-2011-0000-00 21510304 10/1/2014 REI 473910 LOCICERO, FRANK J PO BOX 248 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0001932494-2012-2012-0000-00 19314137 9/1/2014 REI 452373 LOFTON, SHERIA 9425 EAGLE FEATHERS DR CHARLOTTE NC 28214 2/26/2013 97.91$              $                 16.28 114.19$           
0002001636-2013-2013-0000-00 21504138 3/1/2015 REI 492694 LOGAN, TANISHA R 105 GEORGE CLAY LN MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 55.88$              $                    6.88 62.76$              
0002001636-2014-2014-0000-00 21504138 3/1/2015 REI 433470 LOGAN, TANISHA R 105 GEORGE CLAY LN MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 139.70$            $                 10.24 149.94$           
0002047738-2011-2011-0000-00 22706231 3/1/2015 REI 484609 LONG, STEPHEN E 5301 BERITSTRASSE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 35.69$              $                    7.97 43.66$              
0002001560-2011-2011-0000-00 21503373 9/1/2014 REI 451387 LOPEZ, DIEGO FERNANDO SAA 7905 VINNINGS OAK LN ,UNIT 621 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.81$                 $                    0.40 2.21$                
0002047764-2011-2011-0000-00 22706242 3/1/2015 REI 499444 LUBITZ, BARRY 4233 GREENBRIAR HILLS PLANTATION RD CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 4.54$                 $                    1.01 5.55$                
0002051539-2012-2012-0000-00 22728211 11/1/2014 REI 502931 LUCAS, MARK A 22 DOVER CIRCLE BOSSIER CITY LA 71111 1/8/2013 18.46$              $                    3.19 21.65$              
0002051539-2013-2013-0000-00 22728211 11/1/2014 REI 500358 LUCAS, MARK A 22 DOVER CIRCLE BOSSIER CITY LA 71111 1/7/2014 19.37$              $                    2.39 21.76$              



0002046409-2011-2011-0000-00 22701303 11/1/2014 REI 307474 LUDWICK, ALLISON 447 SADIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 27.83$              $                    6.22 34.05$              
0002046409-2012-2012-0000-00 22701303 11/1/2014 REI 308189 LUDWICK, ALLISON 447 SADIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 25.71$              $                    4.45 30.16$              
0002046409-2013-2013-0000-00 22701303 11/1/2014 REI 308894 LUDWICK, ALLISON 447 SADIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 26.99$              $                    3.32 30.31$              
0002046409-2014-2014-0000-00 22701303 11/1/2014 REI 500690 LUDWICK, ALLISON 447 SADIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.99$              $                    1.98 28.97$              
0002047688-2013-2013-0000-00 22706205 3/1/2015 REI 432704 MACCHIAVERNA, MICHAEL 823 ARBORFIELD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 72.07$              $                    8.88 80.95$              
0002047688-2014-2014-0000-00 22706205 3/1/2015 REI 433512 MACCHIAVERNA, MICHAEL 823 ARBORFIELD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 72.07$              $                    5.28 77.35$              
0002049697-2013-2013-0000-00 22721244 11/1/2014 REI 489987 MACCONNACHIE, CAMERON 707 CHARLES AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/7/2014 28.26$              $                    3.48 31.74$              
0002049697-2014-2014-0000-00 22721244 11/1/2014 REI 309716 MACCONNACHIE, CAMERON 707 CHARLES AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/6/2015 30.48$              $                    2.23 32.71$              
0002052969-2011-2011-0000-00 22736206 11/1/2014 REI 499479 MACMINN, WILLIAM J & MACMINN, CONNIE S 306 DEMAREE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 43.87$              $                    9.80 53.67$              
0002052969-2012-2012-0000-00 22736206 11/1/2014 REI 499961 MACMINN, WILLIAM J & MACMINN, CONNIE S 306 DEMAREE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 42.35$              $                    7.33 49.68$              
0002046417-2012-2012-0000-00 22701308 11/1/2014 REI 494923 MADISON JRH PROPERTIES LLC . 3009 GRIFFITH ST CHARLOTTE NC 28203 7/12/2013 59.60$              $                    8.80 68.40$              
0002002858-2011-2011-0000-00 21515148 11/1/2014 REI 494380 MAHER, THOMAS D 14122 HONEYSUCKLE RIDGE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 50.51$              $                 11.29 61.80$              
0002002858-2012-2012-0000-00 21515148 11/1/2014 REI 317129 MAHER, THOMAS D 14122 HONEYSUCKLE RDG MATTHEWS NC 28105-6402 1/8/2013 50.51$              $                    8.74 59.25$              
0002002858-2013-2013-0000-00 21515148 11/1/2014 REI 317588 MAHER, THOMAS D 14122 HONEYSUCKLE RDG MATTHEWS NC 28105-6402 1/7/2014 54.93$              $                    6.76 61.69$              
0002002858-2014-2014-0000-00 21515148 11/1/2014 REI 318068 MAHER, THOMAS D 14122 HONEYSUCKLE RDG MATTHEWS NC 28105-6402 1/6/2015 54.93$              $                    4.03 58.96$              
0002055213-2011-2011-0000-00 22752155 11/1/2014 REI 502469 MALIK, CAROLYN ANN 4800 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 30.55$              $                    6.83 37.38$              
0002055213-2012-2012-0000-00 22752155 11/1/2014 REI 308615 MALIK, CAROLYN ANN 4800 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 30.55$              $                    5.29 35.84$              
0002055213-2013-2013-0000-00 22752155 11/1/2014 REI 309355 MALIK, CAROLYN ANN 4800 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 32.06$              $                    3.95 36.01$              
0002055213-2014-2014-0000-00 22752155 11/1/2014 REI 310153 MALIK, CAROLYN ANN 4800 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 32.06$              $                    2.35 34.41$              
0001934844-2013-2013-0000-00 19333920 11/1/2014 REI 486306 MANLEY, EILEEN R 608 WINTERWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3812 1/7/2014 7.94$                 $                    0.98 8.92$                
0001934844-2014-2014-0000-00 19333920 11/1/2014 REI 306565 MANLEY, EILEEN R 608 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 7.94$                 $                    0.58 8.52$                
0002047220-2011-2011-0000-00 22703402 10/1/2014 REI 474076 MANN, JAMES E 6710 NORTHBURY LN APT. 218 CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2012 5.14$                 $                    1.15 6.29$                
0002047220-2012-2012-0000-00 22703402 10/1/2014 REI 474819 MANN, JAMES E 6710 NORTHBURY LN APT. 218 CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/8/2013 5.14$                 $                    0.89 6.03$                
0002004121-2012-2012-0000-00 21526117 11/1/2014 REI 492287 MANTILLA, ALVARO & RAMOS, GUADALUPE REYES 3006 CROSS TIE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 4/17/2013 5.67$                 $                    0.90 6.57$                
0002047596-2011-2011-0000-00 22706103 2/1/2015 REI 415589 MARGARET T STEVENS REVOCABLE, TRUST 6604 LOWESVILLE LN STANLEY NC 28164 1/6/2012 47.19$              $                 10.54 57.73$              
0002047596-2012-2012-0000-00 22706103 2/1/2015 REI 416363 MARGARET T STEVENS REVOCABLE, TRUST 6604 LOWESVILLE LN STANLEY NC 28164 1/8/2013 45.08$              $                    7.80 52.88$              
0002047596-2013-2013-0000-00 22706103 2/1/2015 REI 417142 MARGARET T STEVENS REVOCABLE, TRUST 6604 LOWESVILLE LN STANLEY NC 28164 1/7/2014 47.31$              $                    5.83 53.14$              
0002046931-2011-2011-0000-00 22702747 2/1/2015 REI 415484 MARINO, MATTHEW A 105 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9153 1/6/2012 154.58$            $                 34.54 189.12$           
0002046931-2012-2012-0000-00 22702747 2/1/2015 REI 416262 MARINO, MATTHEW A 105 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9153 1/8/2013 153.07$            $                 26.48 179.55$           
0002046931-2013-2013-0000-00 22702747 2/1/2015 REI 417044 MARINO, MATTHEW A 105 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9153 1/7/2014 160.66$            $                 19.79 180.45$           
0002047775-2011-2011-0000-00 22706247 3/1/2015 REI 496724 MARK HOSTAK & RITA HOSTAK 9635 WHITE HEMLOCK LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 367.23$            $                 82.05 449.28$           
0002047775-2012-2012-0000-00 22706247 3/1/2015 REI 497222 MARK HOSTAK & RITA HOSTAK 9635 WHITE HEMLOCK LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 346.97$            $                 60.03 407.00$           
0002047775-2013-2013-0000-00 22706247 3/1/2015 REI 497611 MARK HOSTAK & RITA HOSTAK 9635 WHITE HEMLOCK LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/7/2014 364.18$            $                 44.85 409.03$           
0001934489-2011-2011-0000-00 19333438 11/1/2014 REI 499332 MARSHALL, CAROL A 1216 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 7.57$                 $                    1.69 9.26$                
0001934489-2012-2012-0000-00 19333438 11/1/2014 REI 499870 MARSHALL, CHRISTOPHER R 1216 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 7.57$                 $                    1.31 8.88$                
0001934489-2013-2013-0000-00 19333438 11/1/2014 REI 297465 MARSHALL, CHRISTOPHER R 1216 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 7.94$                 $                    0.98 8.92$                
0001934489-2014-2014-0000-00 19333438 11/1/2014 REI 298146 MARSHALL, CHRISTOPHER R 1216 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 7.94$                 $                    0.58 8.52$                
0001932499-2012-2012-0000-00 19314141 9/1/2014 REI 452375 MARSHALL, GREGORY N 2214 CANDLELIGHT WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 96.50$              $                 16.70 113.20$           
0001932499-2013-2013-0000-00 19314141 9/1/2014 REI 239337 MARSHALL, GREGORY N 2214 CANDLELIGHT WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 101.28$            $                 12.47 113.75$           
0002049580-2011-2011-0000-00 22717210 12/1/2014 REI 499463 MARSHALL, ROBERT C 5206 GREENWOOD LN MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 3.02$                 $                    0.67 3.69$                
0002056745-2014-2014-0000-00 22764149 10/1/2014 REI 475382 MARTIN, JERRY CLINTON 1714 REVERDY OAKS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 10.16$              $                    0.74 10.90$              
0002053264-2014-2014-0000-00 22737227 11/1/2014 REI 310113 MARTIN, MATHEW ROBERT 2025 DRAYMORE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 37.15$              $                    2.72 39.87$              
0002049795-2013-2013-0000-00 22721505 10/1/2014 REI 475172 MARTIN, THOMAS E 4535 ELDERBERRY CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 2/19/2014 39.15$              $                    4.59 43.74$              
0002049795-2014-2014-0000-00 22721505 10/1/2014 REI 268265 MARTIN, THOMAS E 4535 ELDERBERRY CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2015 38.10$              $                    2.79 40.89$              
0002002979-2012-2012-0000-00 21516158 11/1/2014 REI 489571 MARTIN, TIMOTHY KEITH 13104 SADDLETREE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 41.75$              $                    7.22 48.97$              
0002002979-2013-2013-0000-00 21516158 11/1/2014 REI 306396 MARTIN, TIMOTHY KEITH 13104 SADDLETREE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 43.82$              $                    5.40 49.22$              
0002002979-2014-2014-0000-00 21516158 11/1/2014 REI 307069 MARTIN, TIMOTHY KEITH 13104 SADDLETREE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 43.82$              $                    3.21 47.03$              
0002047596-2014-2014-0000-00 22706103 2/1/2015 REI 500692 MATTHEWS ARBORFIELD LLC . 121 W TRADE ST 27TH FL CHARLOTTE NC 28202-5399 1/6/2015 47.31$              $                    3.47 50.78$              
0001933118-2011-2011-0000-00 19325107 1/1/2015 REI 499329 MATTHEWS FOUNDRY INC THE 834 CHEROKEE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28207 1/10/2012 2.78$                 $                    0.62 3.40$                
0001933146-2011-2011-0000-00 19325128 3/1/2015 REI 499330 MATTHEWS HEALTH CLINIC 196 S TRADE ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 2.42$                 $                    0.54 2.96$                
0002620727-2011-2011-0000-00 19324307 1/1/2015 REI 499328 MATTHEWS PARKWAY CORPORATE CENTER PO BOX 12571 CHARLOTTE NC 28220 5/15/2012 949.38$            $               195.21 1,144.59$        
0002620727-2012-2012-0000-00 19324307 1/1/2015 REI 499869 MATTHEWS PARKWAY CORPORATE CENTER PO BOX 12571 CHARLOTTE NC 28220 3/6/2013 924.24$            $               152.69 1,076.93$        
0002620727-2013-2013-0000-00 19324307 1/1/2015 REI 500296 MATTHEWS PARKWAY CORPORATE CENTER PO BOX 12571 CHARLOTTE NC 28220 1/7/2014 937.26$            $               115.42 1,052.68$        
0002620727-2014-2014-0000-00 19324307 1/1/2015 REI 500639 MATTHEWS PARKWAY CORPORATE CENTER PO BOX 12571 CHARLOTTE NC 28220 1/6/2015 937.26$            $                 68.69 1,005.95$        
0002053283-2014-2014-0000-00 22737242 11/1/2014 REI 487145 MATTHEWS, HELEN C PO BOX 1301 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 27.62$              $                    2.02 29.64$              
0002051660-2012-2012-0000-00 22728292 11/1/2014 REI 504856 MAYER, CORY TYLER 326 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.97$              $                    3.46 23.43$              
0002051660-2013-2013-0000-00 22728292 11/1/2014 REI 309140 MAYER, CORY TYLER 326 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.95$              $                    2.58 23.53$              
0002051660-2014-2014-0000-00 22728292 11/1/2014 REI 309925 MAYER, CORY TYLER 326 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.95$              $                    1.54 22.49$              
0001934213-2014-2014-0000-00 19333218 11/1/2014 REI 507451 MAYFIELD, PAUL DEAN 524 FENCE POST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 15.56$              $                    1.14 16.70$              
0002050085-2011-2011-0000-00 22722116 12/1/2014 REI 499466 MAYNOR, NANCY BEA 14014 WOODSTAR RD MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 4.54$                 $                    1.01 5.55$                
0002050085-2012-2012-0000-00 22722116 12/1/2014 REI 499950 MAYNOR, NANCY BEA 14014 WOODSTAR RD MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013 4.69$                 $                    0.81 5.50$                
0002055997-2013-2013-0000-00 22756210 7/1/2014 REI 237218 MAYO, BENJAMIN 3225 ABBEY WALK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 72.08$              $                    8.88 80.96$              
0002053734-2012-2012-0000-00 22740272 10/1/2014 REI 474857 MAYSE, NATHAN 2710 OXBOROUGH DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 38.41$              $                    6.65 45.06$              
0002053734-2013-2013-0000-00 22740272 10/1/2014 REI 267319 MAYSE, NATHAN 2710 OXBOROUGH DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 40.32$              $                    4.97 45.29$              
0002053734-2014-2014-0000-00 22740272 10/1/2014 REI 268436 MAYSE, NATHAN 2710 OXBOROUGH DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 40.32$              $                    2.95 43.27$              
0001937930-2011-2011-0000-00 19346132 11/1/2014 REI 484413 MCALLISTER, SHANNON C 8842 WINDING WAY APT 221 FAIR OAKS CA 95628 4/27/2012 2.20$                 $                    0.46 2.66$                
0001937930-2012-2012-0000-00 19346132 11/1/2014 REI 499874 MCALLISTER, SHANNON C 8842 WINDING WAY APT 221 FAIR OAKS CA 95628 1/8/2013 1.21$                 $                    0.21 1.42$                
0001937930-2013-2013-0000-00 19346132 11/1/2014 REI 500301 MCALLISTER, SHANNON C 8842 WINDING WAY APT 221 FAIR OAKS CA 95628 1/7/2014 1.27$                 $                    0.16 1.43$                
0001932972-2011-2011-0000-00 19322107 1/1/2015 REI 496825 MCCORKLE PROPERTIES LLC 9028 E INDEPENDENCE BLVD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 43.56$              $                    9.73 53.29$              
0002051821-2011-2011-0000-00 22730108 2/1/2015 REI 415684 MCCULLOUGH, GEORGE L 205 MATTRIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 43.25$              $                    9.66 52.91$              
0002051821-2012-2012-0000-00 22730108 2/1/2015 REI 416457 MCCULLOUGH, GEORGE L 205 MATTRIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 42.04$              $                    7.27 49.31$              
0002051821-2013-2013-0000-00 22730108 2/1/2015 REI 417234 MCCULLOUGH, GEORGE L 205 MATTRIDGE RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.13$              $                    5.43 49.56$              
0002001308-2011-2011-0000-00 21503208 2/1/2015 REI 471984 MCDOW, TERESA H 10826 N KEMPTOWN SQUARE RD MINT HILL NC 28227-5042 1/6/2012 26.84$              $                    6.00 32.84$              
0002001308-2012-2012-0000-00 21503208 2/1/2015 REI 416058 MCDOW, TERESA H 3315 HAYWOOD RD MONROE NC 28110 1/8/2013 26.53$              $                    4.59 31.12$              
0002001308-2013-2013-0000-00 21503208 2/1/2015 REI 416831 MCDOW, TERESA H 3315 HAYWOOD RD MONROE NC 28110 1/7/2014 27.84$              $                    3.43 31.27$              
0002003109-2012-2012-0000-00 21517124 10/1/2014 REI 474763 MCDOWELL, CAROL S 3119 WINDING TRL MATTHEWS NC 28105-3038 1/8/2013 5.74$                 $                    0.99 6.73$                
0002003109-2013-2013-0000-00 21517124 10/1/2014 REI 277824 MCDOWELL, CAROL S 3119 WINDING TRL MATTHEWS NC 28105-3038 1/7/2014 6.03$                 $                    0.74 6.77$                
0002003109-2014-2014-0000-00 21517124 10/1/2014 REI 278918 MCDOWELL, CAROL S 3119 WINDING TRL MATTHEWS NC 28105-3038 1/6/2015 6.03$                 $                    0.44 6.47$                
0001934724-2013-2013-0000-00 19333744 11/1/2014 REI 512344 MCFADDEN, MICHAEL 1323 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 16.83$              $                    2.07 18.90$              
0001934724-2014-2014-0000-00 19333744 11/1/2014 REI 306523 MCFADDEN, MICHAEL 1323 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 16.83$              $                    1.23 18.06$              
0002046610-2014-2014-0000-00 22702209 12/1/2014 REI 351771 MCGEE, JAMES J JR 449 S FREEMONT ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 34.93$              $                    2.56 37.49$              
0001934200-2012-2012-0000-00 19333210 11/1/2014 REI 506893 MCGEE, MATTHEW S 630 FENCE POST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 1.52$                 $                    0.26 1.78$                
0001934200-2013-2013-0000-00 19333210 11/1/2014 REI 297433 MCGEE, MATTHEW S 630 FENCE POST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 1.59$                 $                    0.20 1.79$                
0001934200-2014-2014-0000-00 19333210 11/1/2014 REI 298110 MCGEE, MATTHEW S 630 FENCE POST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 1.59$                 $                    0.12 1.71$                
0002002666-2012-2012-0000-00 21513219 11/1/2014 REI 515885 MCINTYRE, BRIAN KEITH 14009 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 72.00$              $                 12.46 84.46$              
0002002666-2013-2013-0000-00 21513219 11/1/2014 REI 306259 MCINTYRE, BRIAN KEITH 14009 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 75.56$              $                    9.31 84.87$              
0002002666-2014-2014-0000-00 21513219 11/1/2014 REI 306926 MCINTYRE, BRIAN KEITH 14009 HACKAMORE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 75.56$              $                    5.54 81.10$              
0001937954-2011-2011-0000-00 19346146 11/1/2014 REI 502330 MCKINNEY, RANDY SCOTT 2100 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 11.49$              $                    2.57 14.06$              
0001937954-2012-2012-0000-00 19346146 11/1/2014 REI 502853 MCKINNEY, RANDY SCOTT 2100 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 10.28$              $                    1.78 12.06$              
0001937954-2013-2013-0000-00 19346146 11/1/2014 REI 503266 MCKINNEY, RANDY SCOTT 2100 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 10.80$              $                    1.33 12.13$              
0002055434-2012-2012-0000-00 22752434 11/1/2014 REI 489623 MCLAUGHLIN, SHARI SUE 4647 WALNUT KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 47.19$              $                    8.16 55.35$              
0002055434-2013-2013-0000-00 22752434 11/1/2014 REI 311916 MCLAUGHLIN, SHARI SUE 4647 WALNUT KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 49.53$              $                    6.10 55.63$              
0002055434-2014-2014-0000-00 22752434 11/1/2014 REI 312646 MCLAUGHLIN, SHARI SUE 4647 WALNUT KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 49.53$              $                    3.63 53.16$              
0002049572-2011-2011-0000-00 22717203 12/1/2014 REI 502449 MCLENDON, JUDITH W 317 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 3.63$                 $                    0.81 4.44$                
0002049572-2012-2012-0000-00 22717203 12/1/2014 REI 502923 MCLENDON, JUDITH W 317 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 3.63$                 $                    0.63 4.26$                
0001934639-2014-2014-0000-00 19333621 11/1/2014 REI 516569 MCLENDON, LEWIS H 822 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 14.28$              $                    1.05 15.33$              
0001934670-2014-2014-0000-00 19333704 11/1/2014 REI 497904 MCMANUS, KIERAN 1100 BENT PINE CR CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2015 6.35$                 $                    0.47 6.82$                
0002055180-2014-2014-0000-00 22752131 11/1/2014 REI 497958 MEARS, BEN D 5010 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 35.24$              $                    2.58 37.82$              
0002050085-2013-2013-0000-00 22722116 12/1/2014 REI 500354 MEDINA, SARAHI G HERNANDEZ 4908 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/11/2014 4.90$                 $                    0.58 5.48$                
0002050085-2014-2014-0000-00 22722116 12/1/2014 REI 500695 MEDINA, SARAHI G HERNANDEZ 4908 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/22/2015 4.87$                 $                    0.35 5.22$                
0002050076-2011-2011-0000-00 22722112 12/1/2014 REI 427625 MEDLIN, JOHN 7230 COBBLE CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 5/24/2012 8.57$                 $                    1.75 10.32$              
0002046661-2014-2014-0000-00 22702402 12/1/2014 REI 495644 MEFFORD. JOHN S. 424 MAIN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.35$              $                    1.93 28.28$              
0002049572-2013-2013-0000-00 22717203 12/1/2014 REI 503320 MELANCON, ROBERT L 1817 FAIR FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 3.81$                 $                    0.47 4.28$                
0002049572-2014-2014-0000-00 22717203 12/1/2014 REI 351802 MELANCON, ROBERT L 1817 FAIR FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 3.81$                 $                    0.28 4.09$                
0002002591-2012-2012-0000-00 21513154 11/1/2014 REI 502885 MELTON, TIM & MELTON, SHELBY 8209 VICTORIA LAKE ROAD WAXHAW NC 28173 1/8/2013 43.56$              $                    7.54 51.10$              
0008068959-2014-2014-0000-00 21301251 1/1/2015 REI 500661 MELVIN DARRELL MATTHEW 610 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 109.22$            $                    8.00 117.22$           
0002050064-2011-2011-0000-00 22722102 12/1/2014 REI 502452 MENDENHALL, DAVID L & MENDENHALL, KAREN B 10526 HADLOW CT CHARLOTTE NC 28278 1/6/2012 12.10$              $                    2.70 14.80$              
0002046423-2013-2013-0000-00 22701313 11/1/2014 REI 486410 MENDEZ, DANIELLE CARMEN MOYA 448 E. JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/17/2014 58.40$              $                    6.86 65.26$              
0002047518-2011-2011-0000-00 22703664 10/1/2014 REI 474096 MENG, LAN 818 GRAND PROVINCIAL AV MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 132.19$            $                 29.53 161.72$           
0002047518-2012-2012-0000-00 22703664 10/1/2014 REI 266705 MENG, LAN 818 GRAND PROVINCIAL AV MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 18.45$              $                    3.19 21.64$              
0002047518-2013-2013-0000-00 22703664 10/1/2014 REI 267090 MENG, LAN 818 GRAND PROVINCIAL AV MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 19.37$              $                    2.39 21.76$              
0002047518-2014-2014-0000-00 22703664 10/1/2014 REI 268188 MENG, LAN 818 GRAND PROVINCIAL AV MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 19.37$              $                    1.42 20.79$              
0002051539-2014-2014-0000-00 22728211 11/1/2014 REI 500697 METCALF, JOHN T 1325 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 19.37$              $                    1.42 20.79$              
0002004129-2013-2013-0000-00 21526122 11/1/2014 REI 492697 MEYKO ANATOLIY 6221 GOLD WAGON LN CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/7/2014 67.00$              $                    8.25 75.25$              
0002004129-2014-2014-0000-00 21526122 11/1/2014 REI 309376 MEYKO, ANATOLIY 6221 GOLD WAGON LN MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2015 22.86$              $                    1.68 24.54$              
0002049615-2014-2014-0000-00 22717321 12/1/2014 REI 493073 MIDDLETON, LISA S & MIDDLETON, JEFFREY S 4122 MEDOC MOUNTAIN DR CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2015 32.06$              $                    2.35 34.41$              
0002047659-2013-2013-0000-00 22706159 2/1/2015 REI 503311 MILLER, BILLY JR 1000 REVERDY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 63.81$              $                    7.86 71.67$              
0002047659-2014-2014-0000-00 22706159 2/1/2015 REI 503651 MILLER, BILLY JR 1000 REVERDY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 63.81$              $                    4.68 68.49$              
0002046942-2014-2014-0000-00 22702753 2/1/2015 REI 503650 MILLER, CHRISTOPHER C 300 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28210 1/6/2015 200.02$            $                 14.66 214.68$           
0002050209-2013-2013-0000-00 22722315 8/1/2014 REI 246752 MILLER, JOHN A 3541 SAVANNAH HILLS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 75.25$              $                    9.27 84.52$              
0002046653-2011-2011-0000-00 22702314 12/1/2014 REI 502433 MILLER, JOHN DAVID 4823 SYLVAN CT SYLVANIA OH 43560 1/6/2012 10.59$              $                    2.37 12.96$              
0002051488-2011-2011-0000-00 22728106 2/1/2015 REI 502460 MISLE, MARY JANE T 742 ELIZABETH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2544 1/6/2012 133.40$            $                 29.80 163.20$           
0002051488-2012-2012-0000-00 22728106 2/1/2015 REI 416444 MISLE, MARY JANE T 742 ELIZABETH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2544 1/8/2013 133.40$            $                 23.08 156.48$           
0002051488-2013-2013-0000-00 22728106 2/1/2015 REI 417221 MISLE, MARY JANE T 742 ELIZABETH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2544 1/7/2014 141.93$            $                 17.48 159.41$           
0002051488-2014-2014-0000-00 22728106 2/1/2015 REI 417905 MISLE, MARY JANE T 742 ELIZABETH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2544 1/6/2015 141.93$            $                 10.40 152.33$           
0002003249-2011-2011-0000-00 21518107 10/1/2014 REI 473930 MITCHELL, PAUL B JR PO BOX 78483 CHARLOTTE NC 28217 1/6/2012 45.38$              $                 10.14 55.52$              
0002003249-2012-2012-0000-00 21518107 10/1/2014 REI 474766 MITCHELL, PAUL B JR PO BOX 78483 CHARLOTTE NC 28217 1/8/2013 45.08$              $                    7.80 52.88$              
0001934844-2012-2012-0000-00 19333920 11/1/2014 REI 485483 MLA INCOME PROPERTIES LLC 3129 SPRINGBANK LN CHARLOTTE NC 28226 2/28/2013 7.78$                 $                    1.29 9.07$                
0002052274-2011-2011-0000-00 22731316 11/1/2014 REI 484641 MOLLAHAN, BARBARA A 909 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/6/2012 13.31$              $                    2.97 16.28$              
0002052274-2012-2012-0000-00 22731316 11/1/2014 REI 485631 MOLLAHAN, BARBARA A 909 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/8/2013 12.70$              $                    2.20 14.90$              
0002052274-2013-2013-0000-00 22731316 11/1/2014 REI 486431 MOLLAHAN, BARBARA A 909 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/7/2014 13.34$              $                    1.64 14.98$              
0002052274-2014-2014-0000-00 22731316 11/1/2014 REI 487141 MOLLAHAN, BARBARA A 909 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/6/2015 13.34$              $                    0.98 14.32$              
0002050518-2011-2011-0000-00 22723410 11/1/2014 REI 502455 MONCRIEF, TONY 700 ASHLEY WILKES WY LOGANVILLE GA 30052 1/6/2012 19.36$              $                    4.33 23.69$              
0001937914-2011-2011-0000-00 19346123 11/1/2014 REI 304717 MONTALVO, ELADIO 3030 WINDSOR CHASE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 6.05$                 $                    1.35 7.40$                
0001937914-2012-2012-0000-00 19346123 11/1/2014 REI 502852 MONTALVO, ELADIO 3030 WINDSOR CHASE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 1.21$                 $                    0.21 1.42$                
0001937914-2013-2013-0000-00 19346123 11/1/2014 REI 306038 MONTALVO, ELADIO 3030 WINDSOR CHASE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 1.29$                 $                    0.16 1.45$                
0001937914-2014-2014-0000-00 19346123 11/1/2014 REI 306689 MONTALVO, ELADIO 3030 WINDSOR CHASE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 1.27$                 $                    0.09 1.36$                
0001934834-2013-2013-0000-00 19333915 11/1/2014 REI 516259 MOORE KEVIN M & ROSE MEGAN E 1111 KALE WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-0820 1/7/2014 2.54$                 $                    0.31 2.85$                



0002056310-2011-2011-0000-00 22760104 12/1/2014 REI 502479 MOORE, DAREN L 13800 OLDHAM PL MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 43.56$              $                    9.73 53.29$              
0002056310-2012-2012-0000-00 22760104 12/1/2014 REI 502947 MOORE, DAREN L 13800 OLDHAM PL MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 43.56$              $                    7.54 51.10$              
0002049597-2011-2011-0000-00 22717309 12/1/2014 REI 502450 MOORE, JACK HOWARD 2132 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 81.67$              $                 18.25 99.92$              
0002049597-2012-2012-0000-00 22717309 12/1/2014 REI 502996 MOORE, JACK HOWARD 2132 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/20/2013 45.42$              $                    7.59 53.01$              
0002049597-2013-2013-0000-00 22717309 12/1/2014 REI 503321 MOORE, JACK HOWARD 2132 PLEASANT PLAINS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 47.94$              $                    5.90 53.84$              
0002050191-2011-2011-0000-00 22722301 12/1/2014 REI 502453 MOORE, JUDY B 2439 CLARKS WYND MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 22.69$              $                    5.07 27.76$              
0002050191-2012-2012-0000-00 22722301 12/1/2014 REI 502925 MOORE, JUDY B 2439 CLARKS WYND MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 22.69$              $                    3.93 26.62$              
0002050191-2013-2013-0000-00 22722301 12/1/2014 REI 503322 MOORE, JUDY B 2439 CLARKS WYND MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 23.82$              $                    2.93 26.75$              
0001934834-2014-2014-0000-00 19333915 11/1/2014 REI 306562 MOORE, KEVIN M 1111 KALE WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 2.54$                 $                    0.19 2.73$                
0002055335-2013-2013-0000-00 22752259 11/1/2014 REI 311866 MOORE, MICHAEL STEVEN 1304 HOLLY RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2014 3.56$                 $                    0.44 4.00$                
0002055335-2014-2014-0000-00 22752259 11/1/2014 REI 312594 MOORE, MICHAEL STEVEN 1304 HOLLY RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 3.49$                 $                    0.26 3.75$                
0002055272-2013-2013-0000-01 22752216 3/1/2015 REI 514622 MOORISH HOLY TEMPLE OF SCIENCE.MOORISH SCIENCE TEMPL 1201 GIFFORD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 10/2/2014 41.10$              $                    3.55 44.65$              
0001933007-2011-2011-0000-00 19323123 1/1/2015 REI 502317 MORNINGSTAR  OFFICE LLC 725 PARK CENTER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-8398 1/6/2012 2.42$                 $                    0.54 2.96$                
0001992752-2011-2011-0000-00 21301230 1/1/2015 REI 502387 MORNINGSTAR ANIMAL HOSPITAL 1332 RIDGECREST AVE BURLINGTON NC 27215 1/6/2012 0.29$                 $                    0.06 0.35$                
0002049597-2014-2014-0000-00 22717309 12/1/2014 REI 503659 MORRE, KENT E 113 TRADITIONAL LN CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2015 47.94$              $                    3.51 51.45$              
0001934572-2012-2012-0000-00 19333489 9/1/2014 REI 452392 MORRELL, EDUARDO V 1342 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 225.97$            $                 39.10 265.07$           
0001934572-2013-2013-0000-00 19333489 9/1/2014 REI 239349 MORRELL, EDUARDO V 1342 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 237.18$            $                 29.21 266.39$           
0002004200-2014-2014-0000-00 21526172 11/1/2014 REI 495631 MORRISON, DANIEL JAMES 2928 WINDROW LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 77.47$              $                    5.68 83.15$              
0002055136-2012-2012-0000-00 22752101 11/1/2014 REI 512040 MORTON, MARK BARRETT 517 ORANGE AVE NEW PORT BEACH CA 92663 1/8/2013 27.23$              $                    4.71 31.94$              
0002055136-2013-2013-0000-00 22752101 11/1/2014 REI 309324 MORTON, MARK BARRETT 517 ORANGE AVE NEW PORT BEACH CA 92663 1/7/2014 28.58$              $                    3.52 32.10$              
0002055136-2014-2014-0000-00 22752101 11/1/2014 REI 310121 MORTON, MARK BARRETT 517 ORANGE AVE NEW PORT BEACH CA 92663 1/6/2015 28.58$              $                    2.09 30.67$              
0002002703-2012-2012-0000-00 21513246 11/1/2014 REI 489568 MOSER, WALTER 401 NE WAVECREST CT BOCA RATON FL 33432 1/8/2013 52.64$              $                    9.11 61.75$              
0002002703-2013-2013-0000-00 21513246 11/1/2014 REI 306282 MOSER, WALTER 401 NE WAVECREST CT BOCA RATON FL 33432 1/7/2014 55.24$              $                    6.80 62.04$              
0002002703-2014-2014-0000-00 21513246 11/1/2014 REI 306949 MOSER, WALTER 401 NE WAVECREST CT BOCA RATON FL 33432 1/6/2015 55.24$              $                    4.05 59.29$              
0002001162-2012-2012-0000-00 21502110 2/1/2015 REI 511981 MOUNT MORIAH MISSIONARY BAPTIST CHURCH  INC 381 CRESTDALE  RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 30.85$              $                    5.34 36.19$              
0002002633-2011-2011-0000-00 21513189 11/1/2014 REI 502391 MOWERY, MICHAEL S 1807 MANASOTA BEACH RD ENGLEWOOD FL 34223 1/6/2012 59.29$              $                 13.25 72.54$              
0002002633-2012-2012-0000-00 21513189 11/1/2014 REI 502886 MOWERY, MICHAEL S 1807 MANASOTA BEACH RD ENGLEWOOD FL 34223 1/8/2013 49.91$              $                    8.64 58.55$              
0002002633-2013-2013-0000-00 21513189 11/1/2014 REI 503287 MOWERY, MICHAEL S 1807 MANASOTA BEACH RD ENGLEWOOD FL 34223 1/7/2014 52.39$              $                    6.45 58.84$              
0002001850-2014-2014-0000-00 21506439 3/1/2015 REI 433503 MSR 1 ASSETS COMPANY LLC 5001 PLAZA ON THE LAKE SUITE 250 AUSTIN TX 78746 1/6/2015 150.81$            $                 11.05 161.86$           
0001935049-2014-2014-0000-00 19334228 11/1/2014 REI 493018 MULHEARN, CASEY RYAN 11337 TORINO RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 60.64$              $                    4.44 65.08$              
0002002917-2011-2011-0000-00 21515415 11/1/2014 REI 494381 MULL, SHEILA A 14131 HONEYSUCKLE RDG ,UNIT  D MATTHEWS NC 28105-6405 1/6/2012 90.44$              $                 20.21 110.65$           
0002002917-2012-2012-0000-00 21515415 11/1/2014 REI 324229 MULL, SHEILA A 14131 HONEYSUCKLE RDG # D MATTHEWS NC 28105-6405 1/8/2013 90.44$              $                 15.65 106.09$           
0002002917-2013-2013-0000-00 21515415 11/1/2014 REI 324279 MULL, SHEILA A 14131 HONEYSUCKLE RDG # D MATTHEWS NC 28105-6405 1/7/2014 94.93$              $                 11.69 106.62$           
0002002917-2014-2014-0000-00 21515415 11/1/2014 REI 324331 MULL, SHEILA A 14131 HONEYSUCKLE RDG # D MATTHEWS NC 28105-6405 1/6/2015 94.93$              $                    6.96 101.89$           
0002051539-2011-2011-0000-00 22728211 11/1/2014 REI 508782 MULL, WILLIAM A 413 HAMMOND OAK LN WAKE FOREST NC 27587 1/6/2012 18.46$              $                    4.12 22.58$              
0002052607-2011-2011-0000-00 22734225 11/1/2014 REI 508790 MULLINS, DAVID W 909 EVIAN LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 31.46$              $                    7.03 38.49$              
0002052607-2012-2012-0000-00 22734225 11/1/2014 REI 308477 MULLINS, DAVID W 909 EVIAN LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 29.34$              $                    5.08 34.42$              
0002052607-2013-2013-0000-00 22734225 11/1/2014 REI 309208 MULLINS, DAVID W 909 EVIAN LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 30.80$              $                    3.79 34.59$              
0002052607-2014-2014-0000-00 22734225 11/1/2014 REI 309998 MULLINS, DAVID W 909 EVIAN LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 30.80$              $                    2.26 33.06$              
0002050828-2012-2012-0000-00 22723920 11/1/2014 REI 502930 MULLIS, DONNA A 906 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 0.61$                 $                    0.11 0.72$                
0002050828-2011-2011-0000-00 22723920 11/1/2014 REI 502457 MULLIS, JAMES T JR & MULLIS, DONNA A 906 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/28/2012 0.64$                 $                    0.14 0.78$                
0001934354-2012-2012-0000-01 19333359 9/1/2014 REI 240499 MURIEL, KISCHA 1306 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 13.62$              $                    2.36 15.98$              
0001934354-2013-2013-0000-00 19333359 9/1/2014 REI 220997 MURIEL, KISCHA 1306 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0001932499-2011-2011-0000-00 19314141 9/1/2014 REI 452177 MURPHY, JOHN 704 FIVE LEAF LN WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 96.50$              $                 21.56 118.06$           
0002052282-2011-2011-0000-00 22731320 11/1/2014 REI 496742 MURRAY, MATTHEW 925 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/6/2012 16.94$              $                    3.78 20.72$              
0002052282-2012-2012-0000-00 22731320 11/1/2014 REI 317229 MURRAY, MATTHEW 925 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0002052282-2013-2013-0000-00 22731320 11/1/2014 REI 317695 MURRAY, MATTHEW 925 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/7/2014 16.82$              $                    2.07 18.89$              
0002052282-2014-2014-0000-00 22731320 11/1/2014 REI 318177 MURRAY, MATTHEW 925 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9613 1/6/2015 16.82$              $                    1.23 18.05$              
0002053581-2011-2011-0000-00 22739247 10/1/2014 REI 474143 MURRAY, STANLEY L 6658 S ALKIRE ST ,UNIT 1431 LITTLETON CO 80127 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002050806-2011-2011-0000-00 22723908 11/1/2014 REI 307640 MURRILL, ANTHONY J 901  MARKWELL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 17.55$              $                    3.92 21.47$              
0002050806-2012-2012-0000-00 22723908 11/1/2014 REI 502929 MURRILL, ANTHONY J 901  MARKWELL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 17.55$              $                    3.04 20.59$              
0002050806-2013-2013-0000-00 22723908 11/1/2014 REI 309068 MURRILL, ANTHONY J 901  MARKWELL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 18.41$              $                    2.27 20.68$              
0002050806-2014-2014-0000-00 22723908 11/1/2014 REI 309843 MURRILL, ANTHONY J 901  MARKWELL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 18.41$              $                    1.35 19.76$              
0002002591-2013-2013-0000-00 21513154 11/1/2014 REI 306217 MYERS, RACHEL L 14035 PHILLIPH RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 45.72$              $                    5.63 51.35$              
0002002591-2014-2014-0000-00 21513154 11/1/2014 REI 306883 MYERS, RACHEL L 14035 PHILLIPH RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 45.72$              $                    3.35 49.07$              
0002055170-2011-2011-0000-00 22752126 11/1/2014 REI 515459 NADEL, MICHAEL 5040 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 38.11$              $                    8.51 46.62$              
0002055170-2012-2012-0000-00 22752126 11/1/2014 REI 317286 NADEL, MICHAEL 5040 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2864 1/8/2013 38.11$              $                    6.59 44.70$              
0002055170-2013-2013-0000-00 22752126 11/1/2014 REI 317755 NADEL, MICHAEL 5040 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2864 1/7/2014 40.01$              $                    4.93 44.94$              
0002055170-2014-2014-0000-00 22752126 11/1/2014 REI 318239 NADEL, MICHAEL 5040 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2864 1/6/2015 40.01$              $                    2.93 42.94$              
0002055176-2011-2011-0000-00 22752129 11/1/2014 REI 502467 NANTZ, MARK STEPHEN & NANTZ, AMY CATHERINE 501 TOWNES STREET GREENVILLE SC 29601 1/6/2012 35.69$              $                    7.97 43.66$              
0002055176-2012-2012-0000-00 22752129 11/1/2014 REI 502936 NANTZ, MARK STEPHEN & NANTZ, AMY CATHERINE 501 TOWNES STREET GREENVILLE SC 29601 1/8/2013 31.76$              $                    5.49 37.25$              
0002055176-2013-2013-0000-00 22752129 11/1/2014 REI 503328 NANTZ, MARK STEPHEN & NANTZ, AMY CATHERINE 501 TOWNES STREET GREENVILLE SC 29601 1/7/2014 33.33$              $                    4.10 37.43$              
0001932569-2014-2014-0000-00 19314224 9/1/2014 REI 452533 NATALIA INVESTMENT TRUST 2012, . 2315 HARGETT RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 99.38$              $                    7.28 106.66$           
0002046440-2011-2011-0000-00 22701326 1/1/2015 REI 502432 NATIONAL RETAIL PROPERTIES LP 450 S ORANGE AVE SUITE 900 ORLANDO FL 32801 1/6/2012 26.62$              $                    5.95 32.57$              
0002046688-2011-2011-0000-00 22702423 1/1/2015 REI 502434 NEAL, WILLIAM ARTHUR JR 4716 WYNDFIELD LN CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 0.61$                 $                    0.14 0.75$                
0002047840-2011-2011-0000-00 22706278 3/1/2015 REI 502436 NEALE, WIRT T 5512 STRABANE DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 154.88$            $                 34.60 189.48$           
0002047840-2012-2012-0000-00 22706278 3/1/2015 REI 453192 NEALE, WIRT T 5512 STRABANE DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 154.88$            $                 26.80 181.68$           
0002047840-2013-2013-0000-00 22706278 3/1/2015 REI 453135 NEALE, WIRT T 5512 STRABANE DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014 24.45$              $                    3.01 27.46$              
0002001204-2011-2011-0000-00 21502143 2/1/2015 REI 471964 NELSON, ALBERT DEFOREST JR 340 MCLEOD ST MATTHEWS NC 28105-4760 1/6/2012 19.36$              $                    4.33 23.69$              
0002001204-2012-2012-0000-00 21502143 2/1/2015 REI 471965 NELSON, ALBERT DEFOREST JR 340 MCLEOD ST MATTHEWS NC 28105-4760 1/8/2013 19.36$              $                    3.35 22.71$              
0002056621-2011-2011-0000-00 22761294 12/1/2014 REI 502480 NESHAT, BIJAN PO BOX 601 EASTPOINT FL 32328 1/6/2012 187.85$            $                 41.97 229.82$           
0002004159-2012-2012-0000-00 21526144 11/1/2014 REI 502888 NEWSOM, YVETTE 14217 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2013 5.59$                 $                    0.95 6.54$                
0002004159-2013-2013-0000-00 21526144 11/1/2014 REI 308653 NEWSOM, YVETTE 14217 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2014 5.86$                 $                    0.70 6.56$                
0002004159-2011-2011-0000-00 21526144 11/1/2014 REI 502393 NEWSOME, PRINCE G & NEWSOME, YVETTE 14217 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/28/2012 5.90$                 $                    1.28 7.18$                
0002001628-2012-2012-0000-00 21504131 2/1/2015 REI 416071 NGO, JAMES P 2901 CHATELAINE PL RALEIGH NC 27614 1/8/2013 39.33$              $                    6.80 46.13$              
0002001628-2013-2013-0000-00 21504131 2/1/2015 REI 416843 NGO, JAMES P 2901 CHATELAINE PL RALEIGH NC 27614 1/7/2014 41.27$              $                    5.08 46.35$              
0002001628-2014-2014-0000-00 21504131 2/1/2015 REI 417549 NGO, JAMES P 2901 CHATELAINE PL RALEIGH NC 27614 1/6/2015 41.27$              $                    3.02 44.29$              
0001934713-2011-2011-0000-00 19333737 11/1/2014 REI 316423 NICHOLS, J MARVIN 1300 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/6/2012 8.77$                 $                    1.96 10.73$              
0001934713-2012-2012-0000-00 19333737 11/1/2014 REI 317051 NICHOLS, J MARVIN 1300 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/8/2013 7.56$                 $                    1.31 8.87$                
0001934713-2013-2013-0000-00 19333737 11/1/2014 REI 317507 NICHOLS, J MARVIN 1300 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/7/2014 7.94$                 $                    0.98 8.92$                
0001934713-2014-2014-0000-00 19333737 11/1/2014 REI 503629 NICHOLS, J MARVIN 1300 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/6/2015 7.94$                 $                    0.58 8.52$                
0002050508-2011-2011-0000-00 22723403 11/1/2014 REI 502454 NUNZIATA, PAUL M & NUNZIATA, KAREN S 1819 CLOUDBURST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 32.97$              $                    7.37 40.34$              
0002050508-2012-2012-0000-00 22723403 11/1/2014 REI 502926 NUNZIATA, PAUL M & NUNZIATA, KAREN S 1819 CLOUDBURST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 32.97$              $                    5.70 38.67$              
0002050508-2013-2013-0000-00 22723403 11/1/2014 REI 503323 NUNZIATA, PAUL M & NUNZIATA, KAREN S 1819 CLOUDBURST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 34.60$              $                    4.26 38.86$              
0002055194-2012-2012-0000-00 22752140 11/1/2014 REI 489621 O'BRIEN, BRIAN 4810 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 32.67$              $                    5.65 38.32$              
0002055194-2013-2013-0000-00 22752140 11/1/2014 REI 309343 O'BRIEN, BRIAN 4810 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 34.29$              $                    4.22 38.51$              
0002055194-2014-2014-0000-00 22752140 11/1/2014 REI 310141 O'BRIEN, BRIAN 4810 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 34.29$              $                    2.51 36.80$              
0001933054-2011-2011-0000-00 19324305 1/1/2015 REI 502318 OCRE I LLC . 710 PARK CENTER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 66.85$              $                 14.94 81.79$              
0002004210-2014-2014-0000-00 21526181 11/1/2014 REI 493049 OGINO, GUY C 13612 CAPRIOLE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 45.09$              $                    3.30 48.39$              
0002004206-2012-2012-0000-00 21526178 11/1/2014 REI 515889 OGINO, MARY W 13807 JONTHANS RIDGE MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 54.15$              $                    9.37 63.52$              
0002004206-2013-2013-0000-00 21526178 11/1/2014 REI 308679 OGINO, MARY W 13807 JONTHANS RIDGE MINT HILL NC 28227 1/7/2014 56.84$              $                    7.00 63.84$              
0002004206-2014-2014-0000-00 21526178 11/1/2014 REI 309415 OGINO, MARY W 13807 JONTHANS RIDGE MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2015 56.83$              $                    4.16 60.99$              
0001937705-2014-2014-0000-00 19345168 11/1/2014 REI 493019 OLIVEIRA, ADRIANO J 11100 ATRIUM WAY MATTHEWS NC 28105-1251 1/6/2015 1.27$                 $                    0.09 1.36$                
0001934574-2011-2011-0000-00 19333490 9/1/2014 REI 441314 OMARI, MERCEDES N 1336 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 121.31$            $                 27.10 148.41$           
0001934574-2012-2012-0000-00 19333490 9/1/2014 REI 441315 OMARI, MERCEDES N 1336 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 121.31$            $                 20.99 142.30$           
0001934574-2013-2013-0000-00 19333490 9/1/2014 REI 221030 OMARI, MERCEDES N 1336 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 254.64$            $                 31.36 286.00$           
0002053275-2011-2011-0000-00 22737236 11/1/2014 REI 504623 O'NEILL, MARTIN JAMES 3527 SOUTH BANK CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 20.57$              $                    4.60 25.17$              
0002053275-2012-2012-0000-00 22737236 11/1/2014 REI 504859 O'NEILL, MARTIN JAMES 3527 SOUTH BANK CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 20.57$              $                    3.56 24.13$              
0001934721-2011-2011-0000-00 19333742 11/1/2014 REI 511396 ONUZURIKE, EMILY I 1328 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/6/2012 14.22$              $                    3.18 17.40$              
0001934721-2012-2012-0000-00 19333742 11/1/2014 REI 504815 ONUZURUIKE, JOHN & ONUZURUIKE, EMILY 1328 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/8/2013 12.71$              $                    2.20 14.91$              
0001934721-2013-2013-0000-00 19333742 11/1/2014 REI 505021 ONUZURUIKE, JOHN & ONUZURUIKE, EMILY 1328 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/7/2014 13.34$              $                    1.64 14.98$              
0001934721-2014-2014-0000-00 19333742 11/1/2014 REI 317982 ONUZURUIKE, JOHN O 1328 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-0854 1/6/2015 13.34$              $                    0.98 14.32$              
0002055345-2011-2011-0000-00 22752306 11/1/2014 REI 504629 OPYRCHAL, JERRY & GIBSON, VIRGINIA B 3003 CAMROSE CROSSING LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 44.16$              $                    9.87 54.03$              
0002055345-2012-2012-0000-00 22752306 11/1/2014 REI 504862 OPYRCHAL, JERRY & GIBSON, VIRGINIA B 3003 CAMROSE CROSSING LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 44.16$              $                    7.64 51.80$              
0002002079-2012-2012-0000-00 21510213 2/1/2015 REI 416107 ORR, JOE E 1813 DANNY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 49.91$              $                    8.64 58.55$              
0002002079-2013-2013-0000-00 21510213 2/1/2015 REI 416880 ORR, JOE E 1813 DANNY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 52.39$              $                    6.45 58.84$              
0002002079-2014-2014-0000-00 21510213 2/1/2015 REI 417584 ORR, JOE E 1813 DANNY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 52.39$              $                    3.84 56.23$              
0002003797-2013-2013-0000-00 21520703 10/1/2014 REI 261778 OSMANN, DONALD R 13812 PORTPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 26.35$              $                    3.25 29.60$              
0002003797-2014-2014-0000-00 21520703 10/1/2014 REI 262780 OSMANN, DONALD R 13812 PORTPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.35$              $                    1.93 28.28$              
0002003833-2011-2011-0000-00 21520728 10/1/2014 REI 473971 OSORIO RANDI B 13506 O`TOOLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 28.43$              $                    6.35 34.78$              
0002003833-2012-2012-0000-00 21520728 10/1/2014 REI 260853 OSORIO, RANDI B 13506 O`TOOLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 28.43$              $                    4.92 33.35$              
0002003833-2013-2013-0000-00 21520728 10/1/2014 REI 261785 OSORIO, RANDI B 13506 O`TOOLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 29.85$              $                    3.68 33.53$              
0002003833-2014-2014-0000-00 21520728 10/1/2014 REI 262786 OSORIO, RANDI B 13506 O`TOOLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 29.85$              $                    2.19 32.04$              
0002049622-2011-2011-0000-00 22718204 11/1/2014 REI 499464 OWENBY, LANELL THOMAS 1524 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 35.69$              $                    7.97 43.66$              
0002049622-2012-2012-0000-00 22718204 11/1/2014 REI 317195 OWENBY, LANELL THOMAS 1524 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-2483 1/8/2013 35.39$              $                    6.12 41.51$              
0002049622-2013-2013-0000-00 22718204 11/1/2014 REI 317658 OWENBY, LANELL THOMAS 1524 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-2483 1/7/2014 37.14$              $                    4.57 41.71$              
0002049622-2014-2014-0000-00 22718204 11/1/2014 REI 318139 OWENBY, LANELL THOMAS 1524 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-2483 1/6/2015 37.14$              $                    2.72 39.86$              
0001931827-2011-2011-0000-00 19305112 9/1/2014 REI 454870 PACESETTER INC HWY 13 S MEMORIAL DRIVE AHOSKIE NC 29710 11/20/2014 48.99$              $                    3.91 52.90$              
0001931827-2012-2012-0000-00 19305112 9/1/2014 REI 454935 PACESETTER INC HWY 13 S MEMORIAL DRIVE AHOSKIE NC 29710 11/20/2014 43.37$              $                    3.46 46.83$              
0001931827-2013-2013-0000-00 19305112 9/1/2014 REI 454964 PACESETTER INC HWY 13 S MEMORIAL DRIVE AHOSKIE NC 29710 11/20/2014 42.07$              $                    3.35 45.42$              
0002055136-2011-2011-0000-00 22752101 11/1/2014 REI 511501 PADDY FRANKS MORTON ESTATE 517 ORANGE AVE NEW PORT BEACH CA 92663 1/6/2012 27.83$              $                    6.22 34.05$              
0002003075-2011-2011-0000-00 21516415 11/1/2014 REI 504592 PAK, KIM H 1300 RAMA ROAD CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2012 45.07$              $                 10.07 55.14$              
0002003075-2012-2012-0000-00 21516415 11/1/2014 REI 504840 PAK, KIM H 1300 RAMA ROAD CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/8/2013 43.86$              $                    7.59 51.45$              
0001937627-2011-2011-0000-00 19345121 11/1/2014 REI 504562 PALMER, KATHY 3573 E LINDA LN GILBERT AZ 85234 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0002004108-2014-2014-0000-00 21526108 11/1/2014 REI 505203 PANOU SAMMY K 13744 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 73.34$              $                    5.37 78.71$              
0002002041-2011-2011-0000-00 21510103 3/1/2015 REI 506508 PARK STERLING BANK 1043 EAST MOREHEAD ST SUITE 201 CHARLOTTE NC 28204 5/29/2012 340.81$            $                 69.42 410.23$           
0002051660-2011-2011-0000-00 22728292 11/1/2014 REI 504619 PARKER, CYNTHIA E & HURLEIGH, STEVEN L 4809 CARSONS POND RD CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2012 19.97$              $                    4.46 24.43$              
0002047153-2011-2011-0000-00 22703303 2/1/2015 REI 472141 PARKER, LAWRENCE JR 1760 WALL ST HEBER CITY UT 84032-5595 1/6/2012 34.49$              $                    7.71 42.20$              
0002047153-2012-2012-0000-00 22703303 2/1/2015 REI 472142 PARKER, LAWRENCE JR 1760 WALL ST HEBER CITY UT 84032-5595 1/8/2013 33.88$              $                    5.86 39.74$              
0002047153-2013-2013-0000-00 22703303 2/1/2015 REI 472143 PARKER, LAWRENCE JR 1760 WALL ST HEBER CITY UT 84032-5595 1/7/2014 35.56$              $                    4.38 39.94$              
0002051582-2014-2014-0000-00 22728239 11/1/2014 REI 490318 PARKER, NISA A . 1119 THORNSBURG LANE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 23.18$              $                    1.70 24.88$              
0002051686-2012-2012-0000-00 22728309 11/1/2014 REI 497235 PARR, RACHEL A 401  LEIGHTON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 20.27$              $                    3.51 23.78$              
0002051686-2013-2013-0000-00 22728309 11/1/2014 REI 309148 PARR, RACHEL A 401  LEIGHTON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 21.27$              $                    2.62 23.89$              
0002051686-2014-2014-0000-00 22728309 11/1/2014 REI 309934 PARR, RACHEL A 401  LEIGHTON CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 21.27$              $                    1.56 22.83$              
0002003431-2011-2011-0000-00 21519209 10/1/2014 REI 473951 PARRISH, RICKIE CURTIS 419 BRANCHWOOD DRIVE WINTERVILLE NC 28590 1/6/2012 25.41$              $                    5.68 31.09$              
0002055183-2011-2011-0000-00 22752133 11/1/2014 REI 515460 PASQUA, JENNIFER K 4924 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 39.02$              $                    8.72 47.74$              
0002055183-2012-2012-0000-00 22752133 11/1/2014 REI 308602 PASQUA, JENNIFER K 4924 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 39.02$              $                    6.75 45.77$              
0002055183-2013-2013-0000-00 22752133 11/1/2014 REI 309339 PASQUA, JENNIFER K 4924 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 40.96$              $                    5.04 46.00$              



0002055183-2014-2014-0000-00 22752133 11/1/2014 REI 310136 PASQUA, JENNIFER K 4924 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 40.96$              $                    3.00 43.96$              
0002052969-2013-2013-0000-00 22736206 11/1/2014 REI 500361 PATTON, CLAY A 707 STANHOPE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.45$              $                    5.47 49.92$              
0002052969-2014-2014-0000-00 22736206 11/1/2014 REI 310021 PATTON, CLAY A 707 STANHOPE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 44.45$              $                    3.26 47.71$              
0002002716-2013-2013-0000-00 21513258 11/1/2014 REI 306291 PCM HOLDINGS LLC PO BOX 67 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 63.19$              $                    7.78 70.97$              
0002002716-2014-2014-0000-00 21513258 11/1/2014 REI 306959 PCM HOLDINGS LLC PO BOX 67 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 63.19$              $                    4.63 67.82$              
0002046700-2014-2014-0000-00 22702435 12/1/2014 REI 351789 PCM HOLDINGS LLC PO BOX 67 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 10.80$              $                    0.79 11.59$              
0002046700-2013-2013-0000-00 22702435 12/1/2014 REI 492721 PCM HOLDINGS LLC PO BOX 67 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 10.80$              $                    1.33 12.13$              
0002001203-2011-2011-0000-00 21502142 2/1/2015 REI 415254 PEARSON, J VAUGHN 1220 MATTHEWS-PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 16.64$              $                    3.72 20.36$              
0002001203-2012-2012-0000-00 21502142 2/1/2015 REI 416041 PEARSON, J VAUGHN 1220 MATTHEWS-PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 16.64$              $                    2.88 19.52$              
0002001203-2013-2013-0000-00 21502142 2/1/2015 REI 416816 PEARSON, J VAUGHN 1220 MATTHEWS-PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 17.46$              $                    2.15 19.61$              
0002001203-2014-2014-0000-00 21502142 2/1/2015 REI 505201 PEARSON, JOSEPH VAUGH 4361 PERTH RD INDIAN LAND SC 29707 1/6/2015 17.46$              $                    1.28 18.74$              
0002050748-2011-2011-0000-00 22723801 11/1/2014 REI 504618 PEAY, WOODWARD 500 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 29.95$              $                    6.69 36.64$              
0002050748-2013-2013-0000-00 22723801 11/1/2014 REI 465685 PEAY, WOODWARD 500 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 31.12$              $                    3.83 34.95$              
0002004215-2011-2011-0000-00 21526185 11/1/2014 REI 504594 PELTIER, KENNETH MARK & PELTIER, JEANNE PAULETTE 10000 SNOWFLAKE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28215 1/6/2012 36.60$              $                    8.18 44.78$              
0002052616-2011-2011-0000-00 22734233 11/1/2014 REI 504620 PEPPERS, RALPH E 810 ODELL CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 27.83$              $                    6.22 34.05$              
0002052616-2012-2012-0000-00 22734233 11/1/2014 REI 504857 PEPPERS, RALPH E 810 ODELL CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 27.83$              $                    4.81 32.64$              
0002052616-2013-2013-0000-00 22734233 11/1/2014 REI 505062 PEPPERS, RALPH E 810 ODELL CT MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014 29.53$              $                    3.64 33.17$              
0002051743-2014-2014-0000-00 22729207 11/1/2014 REI 309950 PEREZ, JORGE 1455 BRITTLE CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.99$              $                    1.98 28.97$              
0002051743-2013-2013-0000-00 22729207 11/1/2014 REI 512426 PEREZ, JORGE & PEREZ, ZARAY 1455 BRITTLE CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.13$              $                    5.43 49.56$              
0001932563-2013-2013-0000-00 19314220 9/1/2014 REI 452468 PETRENKO PAVLO 3428 FAIRFAX WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 98.43$              $                 12.12 110.55$           
0002053195-2012-2012-0000-00 22737167 11/1/2014 REI 504858 PETRIS, PAUL D 2000 SHANNON BRIDGE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 26.32$              $                    4.55 30.87$              
0002053195-2011-2011-0000-00 22737167 11/1/2014 REI 504621 PETRIS, PAUL D REVOCABLE TST 2000 SHANNON BRIDGE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 26.32$              $                    5.88 32.20$              
0002047669-2012-2012-0000-00 22706164 2/1/2015 REI 494925 PFALZGRAF, TODD 5417 ALBEMARLE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28212 1/8/2013 309.15$            $                 53.49 362.64$           
0002047669-2013-2013-0000-00 22706164 2/1/2015 REI 505059 PFALZGRAF, TODD 5417 ALBEMARLE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28212 3/4/2014 335.85$            $                 38.78 374.63$           
0002047669-2014-2014-0000-00 22706164 2/1/2015 REI 505209 PFALZGRAF, TODD 5417 ALBEMARLE RD CHARLOTTE NC 28212 1/6/2015 324.49$            $                 23.78 348.27$           
0002055395-2013-2013-0000-00 22752407 11/1/2014 REI 509669 PFEIFFER, KEVIN M 1128 HOLLY RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 7.94$                 $                    0.98 8.92$                
0002055395-2014-2014-0000-00 22752407 11/1/2014 REI 312631 PFEIFFER, KEVIN M 1128 HOLLY RIDGE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 7.94$                 $                    0.58 8.52$                
0002047538-2011-2011-0000-00 22704215 2/1/2015 REI 415556 PFEIFFER, PAUL H 925 REVERDY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 57.78$              $                 12.91 70.69$              
0002047538-2012-2012-0000-00 22704215 2/1/2015 REI 416333 PFEIFFER, PAUL H 925 REVERDY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 57.78$              $                 10.00 67.78$              
0002047538-2013-2013-0000-00 22704215 2/1/2015 REI 417113 PFEIFFER, PAUL H 925 REVERDY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 60.64$              $                    7.47 68.11$              
0002047538-2014-2014-0000-00 22704215 2/1/2015 REI 505208 PFEIFFER, VIRGINIA L 925 REVERDY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 60.64$              $                    4.44 65.08$              
0002055381-2011-2011-0000-00 22752334 11/1/2014 REI 504630 PHAM, D LOI 2620 WALKER RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 14.22$              $                    3.18 17.40$              
0002001626-2012-2012-0000-00 21504129 2/1/2015 REI 504839 PHAM, MINH 815 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 62.32$              $                 10.78 73.10$              
0002001626-2013-2013-0000-00 21504129 2/1/2015 REI 505047 PHAM, MINH 815 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 65.40$              $                    8.05 73.45$              
0002001626-2014-2014-0000-00 21504129 2/1/2015 REI 505202 PHAM, MINH 815 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 65.40$              $                    4.79 70.19$              
0002046421-2011-2011-0000-00 22701312 11/1/2014 REI 504613 PHARR, GEORGIA 1612 LYNFORD DR CHARLOTTE NC 28215 1/6/2012 13.31$              $                    2.97 16.28$              
0002004102-2012-2012-0000-00 21526104 11/1/2014 REI 502887 PHELPS STUART DALE 13700 IDLEWILD RD CHARLOTTE NC 28105 3/29/2013 57.61$              $                    9.34 66.95$              
0002004102-2013-2013-0000-00 21526104 11/1/2014 REI 505049 PHELPS, STUART DALE 13700 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 58.42$              $                    7.19 65.61$              
0002004102-2014-2014-0000-00 21526104 11/1/2014 REI 309363 PHELPS, STUART DALE 13700 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 52.14$              $                    3.82 55.96$              
0002004104-2011-2011-0000-00 21526105 2/1/2015 REI 415349 PHELPS, STUART DALE 13700 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 219.01$            $                 48.93 267.94$           
0001937762-2011-2011-0000-00 19345219 11/1/2014 REI 504563 PHILLIPS, JENNIFER 5700 SM BENTON LN MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 0.61$                 $                    0.14 0.75$                
0002047288-2014-2014-0000-00 22703488 2/1/2015 REI 505207 PHILLIPS, ROBERT M 11570 DESTIN LN CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2015 83.51$              $                    6.12 89.63$              
0002001159-2013-2013-0000-00 21502106 2/1/2015 REI 509627 PITTMAN, JERRY LEE & GADDY, CHRISTINE RAY 1207 ECHO GLEN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28213 1/31/2014 28.83$              $                    3.46 32.29$              
0002001159-2014-2014-0000-00 21502106 2/1/2015 REI 507482 PITTMAN, JERRY LEE & GADDY, CHRISTINE RAY 1207 ECHO GLEN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28213 4/27/2015 29.46$              $                    1.71 31.17$              
0002001331-2013-2013-0000-00 21503220 2/1/2015 REI 509630 PITTMAN, JERRY LEE & GADDY, CHRISTINE RAY 1207 ECHO GLEN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28213 1/31/2014 36.91$              $                    4.42 41.33$              
0002001331-2014-2014-0000-00 21503220 2/1/2015 REI 507483 PITTMAN, JERRY LEE & GADDY, CHRISTINE RAY 1207 ECHO GLEN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28213 4/1/2015 37.73$              $                    2.33 40.06$              
0001937687-2014-2014-0000-00 19345156 11/1/2014 REI 318018 PLANTE, JASON R 11127 ATRIUM WAY MATTHEWS NC 28105-1252 1/6/2015 48.26$              $                    3.54 51.80$              
0001937687-2013-2013-0000-00 19345156 11/1/2014 REI 500300 PLANTE, JASON R & PLANTE, SARA 11127 ATRIUM WAY MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 47.62$              $                    5.86 53.48$              
0002001079-2011-2011-0000-00 21501224 3/1/2015 REI 506505 PLAXCO, R FRANK 36 HARVEST LN GREENVILLE SC 29601 1/6/2012 50.21$              $                 11.22 61.43$              
0002001079-2012-2012-0000-00 21501224 3/1/2015 REI 506933 PLAXCO, R FRANK 36 HARVEST LN GREENVILLE SC 29601 1/8/2013 49.91$              $                    8.64 58.55$              
0001932752-2011-2011-0000-00 19319211 1/1/2015 REI 506445 PLEASANTS, WILLIAM J PO BOX 18624 CHARLOTTE NC 28218 1/6/2012 27.53$              $                    6.15 33.68$              
0002056800-2011-2011-0000-00 22764204 10/1/2014 REI 474238 POLLACK STEPHEN J 19127 YOUNGBLOOD RD CHARLOTTE NC 28278 5/9/2013 137.59$            $                 21.52 159.11$           
0002056800-2012-2012-0000-00 22764204 10/1/2014 REI 474902 POLLACK STEPHEN J 19127 YOUNGBLOOD RD CHARLOTTE NC 28278 5/9/2013 126.72$            $                 19.82 146.54$           
0002056800-2013-2013-0000-00 22764204 10/1/2014 REI 475217 POLLACK STEPHEN J 19127 YOUNGBLOOD RD CHARLOTTE NC 28278 2/20/2014 130.16$            $                 15.24 145.40$           
0002055376-2012-2012-0000-00 22752329 11/1/2014 REI 489622 PONS, SARAH 4921 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 28.14$              $                    4.87 33.01$              
0002055376-2013-2013-0000-00 22752329 11/1/2014 REI 311890 PONS, SARAH 4921 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 29.53$              $                    3.64 33.17$              
0002055376-2014-2014-0000-00 22752329 11/1/2014 REI 312620 PONS, SARAH 4921 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 29.53$              $                    2.16 31.69$              
0002054483-2011-2011-0000-00 22746119 10/1/2014 REI 474189 POOLE, MICHAEL KEITH 814 VINTAGE DR MOORESVILLE NC 28115 1/6/2012 79.25$              $                 17.71 96.96$              
0001934200-2011-2011-0000-00 19333210 11/1/2014 REI 506446 PORTER, MYRTLE ACHIE 3920 MALLARD WAY LITTLE RIVER SC 29566 1/6/2012 2.73$                 $                    0.61 3.34$                
0002002064-2011-2011-0000-00 21510119 1/1/2015 REI 506509 POULOS ENTERPRISES INC 3900 WESLEY CHAPEL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/11/2012 15.96$              $                    3.55 19.51$              
0002051860-2011-2011-0000-00 22730139 2/1/2015 REI 415705 PRENTICE, MYSIE A 8433 SARDIS RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 95.59$              $                 21.36 116.95$           
0002051860-2012-2012-0000-00 22730139 2/1/2015 REI 416477 PRENTICE, MYSIE A 8433 SARDIS RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 95.29$              $                 16.49 111.78$           
0002051860-2013-2013-0000-00 22730139 2/1/2015 REI 417255 PRENTICE, MYSIE A 8433 SARDIS RD CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/7/2014 100.01$            $                 12.32 112.33$           
0001934836-2014-2014-0000-00 19333916 11/1/2014 REI 512690 PRESIAR, LAURA R 1115 KALE WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 16.51$              $                    1.21 17.72$              
0002001123-2011-2011-0000-00 21501408 2/1/2015 REI 415239 PRESSLEY, JERRY W PO BOX 2440 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 50.82$              $                 11.35 62.17$              
0002001123-2012-2012-0000-00 21501408 2/1/2015 REI 416027 PRESSLEY, JERRY W PO BOX 2440 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013 48.10$              $                    8.32 56.42$              
0002001123-2013-2013-0000-00 21501408 2/1/2015 REI 416803 PRESSLEY, JERRY W PO BOX 2440 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 50.49$              $                    6.22 56.71$              
0002001123-2014-2014-0000-00 21501408 2/1/2015 REI 507481 PRESSLEY, JUDY L PO BOX 2440 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 50.49$              $                    3.70 54.19$              
0002003044-2011-2011-0000-00 21516302 2/1/2015 REI 506513 PRICE, TAMMY JO 7157 COBBLE CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 62.92$              $                 14.06 76.98$              
0002003044-2012-2012-0000-00 21516302 2/1/2015 REI 416618 PRICE, TAMMY JO 7157 COBBLE CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 27.83$              $                    4.81 32.64$              
0002003044-2013-2013-0000-00 21516302 2/1/2015 REI 416899 PRICE, TAMMY JO 7157 COBBLE CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 2/27/2014 30.01$              $                    3.49 33.50$              
0008068968-2014-2014-0000-00 21301260 1/1/2015 REI 500670 PRIETO, FIDEL A 9538 REID HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28227 1/6/2015 15.24$              $                    1.12 16.36$              
0002052278-2011-2011-0000-00 22731318 11/1/2014 REI 499477 PRITCHARD, JACLYN 6330 36TH CT E ELLENTON FL 34222 1/6/2012 16.03$              $                    3.58 19.61$              
0002052278-2012-2012-0000-00 22731318 11/1/2014 REI 499960 PRITCHARD, JACLYN 6330 36TH CT E ELLENTON FL 34222 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0002052278-2013-2013-0000-00 22731318 11/1/2014 REI 500360 PRITCHARD, JACLYN 6330 36TH CT E ELLENTON FL 34222 1/7/2014 16.83$              $                    2.07 18.90$              
0002052276-2011-2011-0000-00 22731317 11/1/2014 REI 506594 PROANO, NELSON & ENRIQUEZ, LIGIA 249 AZTECA DR STALLINGS NC 28104 1/6/2012 16.03$              $                    3.58 19.61$              
0001934902-2011-2011-0000-00 19334119 11/1/2014 REI 506449 PROTSYUK, OLEG 132 S SUTTON RD FORT MILL SC 29708 1/6/2012 59.29$              $                 13.25 72.54$              
0001934902-2012-2012-0000-00 19334119 11/1/2014 REI 506897 PROTSYUK, OLEG 132 S SUTTON RD FORT MILL SC 29708 1/8/2013 59.29$              $                 10.26 69.55$              
0002047774-2011-2011-0000-00 22706246 3/1/2015 REI 506660 PROVIDENT DEVELOPMENT GROUP INC 6707-B FAIRVIEW RD CHARLOTTE NC 28210 11/2/2012 161.31$            $                 29.39 190.70$           
0002049790-2014-2014-0000-00 22721502 10/1/2014 REI 475368 QARRI GJERGJI 524 WILCREST DR MATTHEWS SC 28105 1/6/2015 18.73$              $                    1.37 20.10$              
0002046416-2014-2014-0000-00 22701307 11/1/2014 REI 510025 QUEEN, ABEL CHRISTOPHER 116 KENT DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 3.81$                 $                    0.28 4.09$                
0002001071-2011-2011-0000-00 21501217 2/1/2015 REI 415234 QUERY, WILLIAM KRESS 14122 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 19.06$              $                    4.26 23.32$              
0002001071-2012-2012-0000-00 21501217 2/1/2015 REI 416022 QUERY, WILLIAM KRESS 14122 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.06$              $                    3.30 22.36$              
0002001071-2013-2013-0000-00 21501217 2/1/2015 REI 416798 QUERY, WILLIAM KRESS 14122 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.00$              $                    2.46 22.46$              
0008068961-2014-2014-0000-00 21301253 1/1/2015 REI 500663 QUESENBERRY DAVID H 600 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 114.61$            $                    8.40 123.01$           
0002002630-2011-2011-0000-00 21513186 11/1/2014 REI 506511 QUICKLINK+CAPITAL LLC 727 VALLEY VIEW RD BLOWING ROCK NC 28605 3/28/2012 273.32$            $                 58.00 331.32$           
0001937982-2011-2011-0000-00 19346169 11/1/2014 REI 506455 RAMEY, PATRICIA 280 DUCKET TOP TOWER RD HOT SPRINGS NC 28743 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0001934352-2013-2013-0000-00 19333358 9/1/2014 REI 452473 RAUL L. LLISO & LESLIE E. LLISO 1310 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0001934693-2011-2011-0000-00 19333721 11/1/2014 REI 316414 RAYMOND, JOHN G 1019 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3807 1/6/2012 5.45$                 $                    1.22 6.67$                
0001934693-2012-2012-0000-00 19333721 11/1/2014 REI 506895 RAYMOND, JOHN G 1019 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3807 1/8/2013 5.45$                 $                    0.94 6.39$                
0001934693-2013-2013-0000-00 19333721 11/1/2014 REI 317498 RAYMOND, JOHN G 1019 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3807 1/7/2014 5.71$                 $                    0.70 6.41$                
0001934693-2014-2014-0000-00 19333721 11/1/2014 REI 317972 RAYMOND, JOHN G 1019 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3807 1/6/2015 5.71$                 $                    0.42 6.13$                
0002056798-2011-2011-0000-00 22764202 10/1/2014 REI 474236 RBC BANK ATTN;LEASE ADMIN 1525 WT HARRIS BLVD CHARLOTTE NC 28262 1/6/2012 262.87$            $                 58.73 321.60$           
0002051484-2013-2013-0000-00 22728102 2/1/2015 REI 417219 REAVES, JOHN 828 ELIZABETH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 79.37$              $                    9.77 89.14$              
0002051484-2014-2014-0000-00 22728102 2/1/2015 REI 417903 REAVES, JOHN 828 ELIZABETH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 79.37$              $                    5.82 85.19$              
0002053197-2011-2011-0000-00 22737169 11/1/2014 REI 506596 REBER, ROBERT HAROLD JR & REBER, ANDREA HUSTAK 2009 GLENDALOUGH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 34.49$              $                    7.71 42.20$              
0002053197-2012-2012-0000-00 22737169 11/1/2014 REI 506992 REBER, ROBERT HAROLD JR & REBER, ANDREA HUSTAK 2009 GLENDALOUGH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 35.39$              $                    6.12 41.51$              
0002053197-2013-2013-0000-00 22737169 11/1/2014 REI 507268 REBER, ROBERT HAROLD JR & REBER, ANDREA HUSTAK 2009 GLENDALOUGH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 37.15$              $                    4.58 41.73$              
0002053197-2014-2014-0000-00 22737169 11/1/2014 REI 507496 REBER, ROBERT HAROLD JR & REBER, ANDREA HUSTAK 2009 GLENDALOUGH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 37.15$              $                    2.72 39.87$              
0001937930-2014-2014-0000-00 19346132 11/1/2014 REI 500640 REED, HELEN D 2922 WINDSOR CHASE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 1.27$                 $                    0.09 1.36$                
0001998228-2011-2011-0000-00 21334166 10/1/2014 REI 473891 REGISFORD, JOSLYN HAYDEN PO BOX 1457 WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 0.31$                 $                    0.07 0.38$                
0002054484-2013-2013-0000-00 22746120 10/1/2014 REI 475200 REHG, KIMBERLY 924 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2502 1/7/2014 57.78$              $                    7.12 64.90$              
0002051880-2011-2011-0000-00 22730155 2/1/2015 REI 415716 REICHLE, JOYCE ANN 824 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/31/2012 60.73$              $                 12.86 73.59$              
0002051880-2012-2012-0000-00 22730155 2/1/2015 REI 416486 REICHLE, JOYCE ANN 824 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/22/2013 56.98$              $                    9.29 66.27$              
0002051880-2013-2013-0000-00 22730155 2/1/2015 REI 417264 REICHLE, JOYCE ANN 824 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 57.78$              $                    7.12 64.90$              
0002051880-2014-2014-0000-00 22730155 2/1/2015 REI 507495 REICHLE, MATTHEW MACRAE 824 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 57.78$              $                    4.23 62.01$              
0001934755-2013-2013-0000-00 19333766 11/1/2014 REI 512345 REILL, FRED 627 WINTERWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3811 1/7/2014 6.04$                 $                    0.74 6.78$                
0001934755-2014-2014-0000-00 19333766 11/1/2014 REI 317995 REILL, FRED 627 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-3811 1/6/2015 6.04$                 $                    0.44 6.48$                
0002053143-2011-2011-0000-00 22737130 11/1/2014 REI 506595 REPP, KRISTI L 2220 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 10.29$              $                    2.30 12.59$              
0002053143-2012-2012-0000-00 22737130 11/1/2014 REI 308542 REPP, KRISTI L 2220 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 9.68$                 $                    1.67 11.35$              
0002053143-2013-2013-0000-00 22737130 11/1/2014 REI 309275 REPP, KRISTI L 2220 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 10.16$              $                    1.25 11.41$              
0002053143-2014-2014-0000-00 22737130 11/1/2014 REI 310066 REPP, KRISTI L 2220 KILKENNEY HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 10.16$              $                    0.74 10.90$              
0002053274-2013-2013-0000-00 22737235 11/1/2014 REI 507269 REZNICK, LAURA J  & ZHU, ZHIMING 13412 FAIRINGTON OAKS DRIVE MINT HILL NC 28227 1/7/2014 44.77$              $                    5.51 50.28$              
0002053274-2011-2011-0000-00 22737235 11/1/2014 REI 506597 REZNICK, LAURA J & ZHU, ZHIMING 13412 FAIRINGTON OAKS DRIVE MINT HILL NC 28227 1/10/2012 43.50$              $                    9.70 53.20$              
0002053274-2012-2012-0000-00 22737235 11/1/2014 REI 506993 REZNICK, LAURA J & ZHU, ZHIMING 13412 FAIRINGTON OAKS DRIVE MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 42.65$              $                    7.38 50.03$              
0001934900-2011-2011-0000-00 19334117 11/1/2014 REI 484391 RHODES MELINDA FRANCES 3105 PIENTYWOOD  DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 47.19$              $                 10.54 57.73$              
0001934900-2012-2012-0000-00 19334117 11/1/2014 REI 324436 RHODES, MELINDA FRANCES 3105 PIENTYWOOD  DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 47.19$              $                    8.16 55.35$              
0001934900-2013-2013-0000-00 19334117 11/1/2014 REI 324478 RHODES, MELINDA FRANCES 3105 PIENTYWOOD  DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 49.53$              $                    6.10 55.63$              
0001934900-2014-2014-0000-00 19334117 11/1/2014 REI 324528 RHODES, MELINDA FRANCES 3105 PIENTYWOOD  DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 49.53$              $                    3.63 53.16$              
0002051848-2011-2011-0000-00 22730130 2/1/2015 REI 415700 RHODES, THOMAS M 1146 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 70.18$              $                 15.68 85.86$              
0002055352-2013-2013-0000-00 22752312 11/1/2014 REI 500365 RICH, RACHEL L 4606 JAMESVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 8.57$                 $                    1.06 9.63$                
0002055352-2014-2014-0000-00 22752312 11/1/2014 REI 312604 RICH, RACHEL L 4606 JAMESVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 8.57$                 $                    0.63 9.20$                
0002055230-2011-2011-0000-00 22752167 11/1/2014 REI 506602 RITTER, GREGORY L 1507 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 15.73$              $                    3.51 19.24$              
0002055230-2012-2012-0000-00 22752167 11/1/2014 REI 311190 RITTER, GREGORY L 1507 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 15.73$              $                    2.72 18.45$              
0002055230-2013-2013-0000-00 22752167 11/1/2014 REI 311826 RITTER, GREGORY L 1507 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 21.91$              $                    2.70 24.61$              
0002055230-2014-2014-0000-00 22752167 11/1/2014 REI 312552 RITTER, GREGORY L 1507 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 21.91$              $                    1.61 23.52$              
0001937785-2012-2012-0000-00 19345236 11/1/2014 REI 506898 RIVERA, NELSON 10914 BALLARDS POND LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 1.21$                 $                    0.21 1.42$                
0001937785-2013-2013-0000-00 19345236 11/1/2014 REI 507220 RIVERA, NELSON 10914 BALLARDS POND LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 1.27$                 $                    0.16 1.43$                
0002055163-2011-2011-0000-00 22752120 11/1/2014 REI 506601 RIZK, ANTOINE N 1200 MATTHEWS PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 42.05$              $                    9.40 51.45$              
0002055163-2012-2012-0000-00 22752120 11/1/2014 REI 308595 RIZK, ANTOINE N 1200 MATTHEWS PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 42.05$              $                    7.28 49.33$              
0002055163-2013-2013-0000-00 22752120 11/1/2014 REI 309331 RIZK, ANTOINE N 1200 MATTHEWS PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.13$              $                    5.43 49.56$              
0002055163-2014-2014-0000-00 22752120 11/1/2014 REI 310128 RIZK, ANTOINE N 1200 MATTHEWS PLANTATION DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 44.13$              $                    3.23 47.36$              
0002002572-2011-2011-0000-00 21513139 11/1/2014 REI 484520 ROBERT BIELECKI & DEBORAH WILSON 18855 SILVER QUAY DR CORNELIUS NC 28031 1/6/2012 55.97$              $                 12.51 68.48$              
0002002572-2012-2012-0000-00 21513139 11/1/2014 REI 485539 ROBERT BIELECKI & DEBORAH WILSON 18855 SILVER QUAY DR CORNELIUS NC 28031 1/8/2013 55.97$              $                    9.68 65.65$              
0002051541-2011-2011-0000-00 22728212 11/1/2014 REI 506593 ROBERTS, JEFFREY A & ROBERTS, TELEA T 8020 AGAPE LANE WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 39.93$              $                    8.92 48.85$              
0002002616-2011-2011-0000-00 21513173 11/1/2014 REI 506510 ROBILLARD, LEON A 3210 QUILTING RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 45.38$              $                 10.14 55.52$              
0002002616-2012-2012-0000-00 21513173 11/1/2014 REI 506935 ROBILLARD, LEON A 3210 QUILTING RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 42.96$              $                    7.43 50.39$              
0002002616-2013-2013-0000-00 21513173 11/1/2014 REI 507251 ROBILLARD, LEON A 3210 QUILTING RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 45.08$              $                    5.55 50.63$              



0002047738-2012-2012-0000-00 22706231 3/1/2015 REI 499935 ROBINSON, WESLEY 10829 SYCAMORE CLUB DR MINT HILL NC 28227 4/22/2013 37.20$              $                    5.91 43.11$              
0002047738-2013-2013-0000-00 22706231 3/1/2015 REI 500344 ROBINSON, WESLEY 10829 SYCAMORE CLUB DR MINTHILL NC 28227 1/7/2014 37.47$              $                    4.61 42.08$              
0002003075-2013-2013-0000-00 21516415 11/1/2014 REI 505048 ROBOWSKY, MARTA 13512 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/17/2014 47.30$              $                    5.56 52.86$              
0002003075-2014-2014-0000-00 21516415 11/1/2014 REI 307111 ROBOWSKY, MARTA 13512 IDLEWILD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 53.03$              $                    3.89 56.92$              
0002055319-2011-2011-0000-00 22752248 11/1/2014 REI 506603 RODERMUND, JOHN C 6002 SENTINEL DR INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2012 25.11$              $                    5.61 30.72$              
0001934213-2011-2011-0000-00 19333218 11/1/2014 REI 506447 ROE, GUELDA ANN 934 ELIZABETH RD SHELBY NC 28150 1/6/2012 16.04$              $                    3.58 19.62$              
0001934213-2012-2012-0000-00 19333218 11/1/2014 REI 506894 ROE, GUELDA ANN 934 ELIZABETH RD SHELBY NC 28150 1/8/2013 14.83$              $                    2.57 17.40$              
0001934213-2013-2013-0000-00 19333218 11/1/2014 REI 507217 ROE, GUELDA ANN 934 ELIZABETH RD SHELBY NC 28150 1/7/2014 15.56$              $                    1.92 17.48$              
0002051674-2011-2011-0000-00 22728301 11/1/2014 REI 508786 ROHAN, BRIAN A 6813 PORCHER DR, UNIT 24 MYTLE BEACH SC 29572 1/6/2012 17.85$              $                    3.99 21.84$              
0002051674-2012-2012-0000-00 22728301 11/1/2014 REI 509248 ROHAN, BRIAN A 6813 PORCHER DR, UNIT 24 MYRTLE REACH SC 29572 1/8/2013 17.85$              $                    3.09 20.94$              
0002051674-2013-2013-0000-00 22728301 11/1/2014 REI 509664 ROHAN, BRIAN A 6813 PORCHER DR, UNIT 24 MYRTLE BEACH SC 29572 1/7/2014 18.73$              $                    2.31 21.04$              
0002001720-2014-2014-0000-00 21505112 2/1/2015 REI 510007 ROKTAL PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT  DEVELOPMENT LLC PO BOX 964 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 75.56$              $                    5.54 81.10$              
0002051541-2012-2012-0000-00 22728212 11/1/2014 REI 506988 ROSENBAUM, JESSICA 1331 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 38.42$              $                    6.65 45.07$              
0002051541-2013-2013-0000-00 22728212 11/1/2014 REI 309094 ROSENBAUM, JESSICA 1331 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 40.32$              $                    4.97 45.29$              
0002051541-2014-2014-0000-00 22728212 11/1/2014 REI 309876 ROSENBAUM, JESSICA 1331 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 40.32$              $                    2.95 43.27$              
0002047063-2011-2011-0000-00 22703222 2/1/2015 REI 415518 ROUTH, MARK J 200 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 42.05$              $                    9.40 51.45$              
0002047063-2012-2012-0000-00 22703222 2/1/2015 REI 416294 ROUTH, MARK J 200 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 42.05$              $                    7.28 49.33$              
0002047063-2013-2013-0000-00 22703222 2/1/2015 REI 417076 ROUTH, MARK J 200 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.14$              $                    5.44 49.58$              
0002047063-2014-2014-0000-00 22703222 2/1/2015 REI 510026 ROUTH, MARK J 200 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 44.14$              $                    3.23 47.37$              
0002050249-2012-2012-0000-00 22722338 8/1/2014 REI 513824 ROYER, MAX E(REVOC LIVING TRUST) 3615 BELFIELD COMMONS CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 77.74$              $                 13.45 91.19$              
0002050249-2013-2013-0000-00 22722338 8/1/2014 REI 246759 ROYER, MAX E(REVOC LIVING TRUST) 3615 BELFIELD COMMONS CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 81.60$              $                 10.05 91.65$              
0001933543-2012-2012-0000-00 19329166 12/1/2014 REI 485480 RSB HOLDINGS LLC 10550 INDEPENDENCE POINTE PKWY STE 300 MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 66.55$              $                 11.51 78.06$              
0001933543-2013-2013-0000-00 19329166 12/1/2014 REI 342698 RSB HOLDINGS LLC 10550 INDEPENDENCE POINTE PKWY STE 300 MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/31/2014 72.29$              $                    8.08 80.37$              
0002002915-2011-2011-0000-00 21515413 11/1/2014 REI 508730 RYAN, HELEN BARBARA 4810 DRAKESTONE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28226-6445 4/4/2014 57.63$              $                    6.41 64.04$              
0002055199-2011-2011-0000-00 22752144 11/1/2014 REI 307925 RYAN, WILLIAM G 4803 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 43.56$              $                    9.73 53.29$              
0002055199-2012-2012-0000-00 22752144 11/1/2014 REI 509256 RYAN, WILLIAM G 4803 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 43.56$              $                    7.54 51.10$              
0002055199-2013-2013-0000-00 22752144 11/1/2014 REI 309347 RYAN, WILLIAM G 4803 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 45.72$              $                    5.63 51.35$              
0002055199-2014-2014-0000-00 22752144 11/1/2014 REI 310145 RYAN, WILLIAM G 4803 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 45.72$              $                    3.35 49.07$              
0001937795-2012-2012-0000-00 19345242 11/1/2014 REI 489538 SALAS, EMILIO OSWALDO 2523 FITZPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/29/2013 7.82$                 $                    1.27 9.09$                
0001937795-2013-2013-0000-00 19345242 11/1/2014 REI 465492 SALAS, EMILIO OSWALDO 2523 FITZPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/19/2014 8.22$                 $                    0.93 9.15$                
0001937795-2014-2014-0000-00 19345242 11/1/2014 REI 465493 SALAS, EMILIO OSWALDO 2523 FITZPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/22/2015 8.10$                 $                    0.58 8.68$                
0002053086-2014-2014-0000-00 22736323 11/1/2014 REI 500700 SANDERS, DARYL BRUCE 1006 CHELSEA PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6573 1/6/2015 52.39$              $                    3.84 56.23$              
0002053267-2011-2011-0000-00 22737230 11/1/2014 REI 504622 SANGERMANO, NICHOLAS V 2028 DRAYMORE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 35.39$              $                    7.91 43.30$              
0002053267-2012-2012-0000-00 22737230 11/1/2014 REI 317278 SANGERMANO, NICHOLAS V 2028 DRAYMORE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-5892 1/8/2013 41.74$              $                    7.22 48.96$              
0002053267-2013-2013-0000-00 22737230 11/1/2014 REI 317747 SANGERMANO, NICHOLAS V 2028 DRAYMORE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-5892 1/7/2014 43.82$              $                    5.40 49.22$              
0002053267-2014-2014-0000-00 22737230 11/1/2014 REI 318231 SANGERMANO, NICHOLAS V 2028 DRAYMORE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-5892 1/6/2015 43.82$              $                    3.21 47.03$              
0001932553-2013-2013-0000-00 19314215 9/1/2014 REI 452467 SAVENKO OLEKSANDR M 3508 FAIRFAX WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 93.66$              $                 11.53 105.19$           
0001937680-2014-2014-0000-00 19345153 11/1/2014 REI 487017 SBY 2014-1 BORROWER LLC . 3300 FERNBROOK LN N STE 210 PLYMOUTH MI 55447 1/6/2015 15.87$              $                    1.16 17.03$              
0002052979-2011-2011-0000-00 22736216 11/1/2014 REI 508793 SCANLON, JOHN J JR 2237 WENTZ LN SCHWENKSVILLE PA 19473 1/6/2012 55.36$              $                 12.37 67.73$              
0002052979-2012-2012-0000-00 22736216 11/1/2014 REI 509250 SCANLON, JOHN J JR 2237 WENTZ LN SCHWENKSVILLE PA 19473 1/8/2013 55.36$              $                    9.58 64.94$              
0002052979-2013-2013-0000-00 22736216 11/1/2014 REI 509665 SCANLON, JOHN J JR 2237 WENTZ LN SCHWENKSVILLE PA 19473 1/7/2014 58.11$              $                    7.16 65.27$              
0002054458-2012-2012-0000-00 22746104 10/1/2014 REI 474873 SCHIRRA ROBERT WESLEY 1212 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2500 1/8/2013 198.13$            $                 34.28 232.41$           
0002054458-2013-2013-0000-00 22746104 10/1/2014 REI 267420 SCHIRRA, ROBERT WESLEY 1212 GATESHEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 203.20$            $                 25.02 228.22$           
0002054458-2014-2014-0000-00 22746104 10/1/2014 REI 268539 SCHIRRA, ROBERT WESLEY 1212 GATESHEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 203.20$            $                 14.89 218.09$           
0002003431-2012-2012-0000-00 21519209 10/1/2014 REI 474774 SCHLOTTMAN, JONATHAN A 2600 HEATHERSHIRE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.96$              $                    3.45 23.41$              
0002003431-2013-2013-0000-00 21519209 10/1/2014 REI 261737 SCHLOTTMAN, JONATHAN A 2600 HEATHERSHIRE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.95$              $                    2.58 23.53$              
0002003431-2014-2014-0000-00 21519209 10/1/2014 REI 262736 SCHLOTTMAN, JONATHAN A 2600 HEATHERSHIRE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.95$              $                    1.54 22.49$              
0002003409-2011-2011-0000-00 21519164 10/1/2014 REI 473947 SCHMITT, ERIC K 7417 GOLF COURSE DR S DENVER NC 28037 1/6/2012 4.53$                 $                    1.01 5.54$                
0002051727-2011-2011-0000-00 22728334 11/1/2014 REI 508787 SCHODERBEK, JOHN C 100 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 42.95$              $                    9.60 52.55$              
0002051727-2012-2012-0000-00 22728334 11/1/2014 REI 308431 SCHODERBEK, JOHN C 100 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 42.05$              $                    7.28 49.33$              
0002051727-2013-2013-0000-00 22728334 11/1/2014 REI 309159 SCHODERBEK, JOHN C 100 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.14$              $                    5.44 49.58$              
0002051727-2014-2014-0000-00 22728334 11/1/2014 REI 309944 SCHODERBEK, JOHN C 100 SANDYMEAD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 44.14$              $                    3.23 47.37$              
0002052992-2011-2011-0000-00 22736224 11/1/2014 REI 508794 SCHOECK, BRIAN 1065 E MOREHEAD ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0002046405-2012-2012-0000-00 22701301 11/1/2014 REI 499934 SCHOECK, BRIAN J 1065 E MOREHEAD ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/8/2013 23.89$              $                    4.13 28.02$              
0002046405-2013-2013-0000-00 22701301 11/1/2014 REI 353064 SCHOECK, BRIAN J 1065 E MOREHEAD ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/7/2014 25.08$              $                    3.09 28.17$              
0002046405-2014-2014-0000-00 22701301 11/1/2014 REI 353065 SCHOECK, BRIAN J 1065 E MOREHEAD ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/6/2015 25.08$              $                    1.84 26.92$              
0001934614-2011-2011-0000-00 19333602 11/1/2014 REI 499333 SCHWOB, ANN L 6117 SETTLERS TRAIL STANFIELD NC 28163 1/6/2012 14.22$              $                    3.18 17.40$              
0002047736-2011-2011-0000-00 22706230 3/1/2015 REI 506583 SEGETTI, DAMON 1312 GRAYCROFT DR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 171.22$            $                 38.25 209.47$           
0002004147-2014-2014-0000-00 21526138 11/1/2014 REI 510009 SEIDL, JAMIE 14003 MARESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 28.26$              $                    2.07 30.33$              
0001937746-2011-2011-0000-00 19345209 11/1/2014 REI 508671 SELAN, STANLEY T JR 566 SUGAR TREE DR ROCK HILL SC 29732 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0001935029-2011-2011-0000-00 19334215 11/1/2014 REI 508657 SELLS CORINNA C 3007 PLENTYWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 65.34$              $                 14.60 79.94$              
0001935029-2012-2012-0000-00 19334215 11/1/2014 REI 509166 SELLS CORINNA C 3007 PLENTYWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/28/2013 66.82$              $                 11.09 77.91$              
0001935029-2013-2013-0000-00 19334215 11/1/2014 REI 509594 SELLS CORINNA C 3007 PLENTYWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 68.26$              $                    8.41 76.67$              
0001935029-2014-2014-0000-00 19334215 11/1/2014 REI 306604 SELLS, CORINNA C 3007 PLENTYWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 68.26$              $                    5.00 73.26$              
0001932677-2014-2014-0000-00 19317150 9/1/2014 REI 452534 SERGE & ELENA BAYGULOW 3047 PINEWOOD HILL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 11.12$              $                    0.81 11.93$              
0001937689-2011-2011-0000-00 19345158 11/1/2014 REI 508669 SERWIN, ELIZABETH K 108 W CLARKSVILLE CT CARY NC 27513-5628 1/6/2012 0.60$                 $                    0.13 0.73$                
0002056686-2013-2013-0000-00 22764103 10/1/2014 REI 475207 SEVERSON, KEVIN J 1411 REVERDY OAKS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 26.35$              $                    3.25 29.60$              
0002056686-2014-2014-0000-00 22764103 10/1/2014 REI 268622 SEVERSON, KEVIN J 1411 REVERDY OAKS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.35$              $                    1.93 28.28$              
0002050832-2011-2011-0000-00 22723922 11/1/2014 REI 508779 SEYMOUR, KRISTEN W 5000 SCALEYBARK CT INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2012 17.24$              $                    3.85 21.09$              
0002050832-2012-2012-0000-00 22723922 11/1/2014 REI 509244 SEYMOUR, KRISTEN W 5000 SCALEYBARK CT INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/8/2013 17.24$              $                    2.98 20.22$              
0002050832-2013-2013-0000-00 22723922 11/1/2014 REI 509660 SEYMOUR, KRISTEN W 5000 SCALEYBARK CT INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/7/2014 18.10$              $                    2.23 20.33$              
0002003533-2014-2014-0000-00 21519521 10/1/2014 REI 475350 SFR 2014-NC LLC . 53 FOREST AVE OLD GREENWICH CT 6870 1/6/2015 11.11$              $                    0.81 11.92$              
0002001302-2013-2013-0000-00 21503204 2/1/2015 REI 509629 SFRH CHARLOTTE FLIP LLC 5531 EQUIPMENT DR, SUITE B CHARLOTTE NC 28262 1/7/2014 16.82$              $                    2.07 18.89$              
0002001302-2014-2014-0000-00 21503204 2/1/2015 REI 510006 SFRH CHARLOTTE RENTAL LP 5531 EQUIPMENT DR, SUITE B CHARLOTTE NC 28262 1/6/2015 16.82$              $                    1.23 18.05$              
0002046975-2011-2011-0000-00 22702781 2/1/2015 REI 415503 SHAW, W ARNOLD 207 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/17/2012 42.89$              $                    9.34 52.23$              
0002046975-2012-2012-0000-00 22702781 2/1/2015 REI 416281 SHAW, W ARNOLD 207 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 9/30/2013 39.85$              $                    5.45 45.30$              
0002046975-2013-2013-0000-00 22702781 2/1/2015 REI 417063 SHAW, W ARNOLD 207 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 38.73$              $                    4.77 43.50$              
0001934558-2011-2011-0000-00 19333481 9/1/2014 REI 452210 SHELDON EDWARDS & DANIELLE SHELDON 1116 ACACIA ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 264.69$            $                 59.14 323.83$           
0002002905-2011-2011-0000-00 21515403 11/1/2014 REI 491801 SHEPHERD JACK P III 14116 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 64.74$              $                 14.46 79.20$              
0002002905-2012-2012-0000-00 21515403 11/1/2014 REI 305718 SHEPHERD, JACK P III 14116 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 57.78$              $                 10.00 67.78$              
0002002905-2013-2013-0000-00 21515403 11/1/2014 REI 306360 SHEPHERD, JACK P III 14116 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 60.64$              $                    7.47 68.11$              
0002002905-2014-2014-0000-00 21515403 11/1/2014 REI 307031 SHEPHERD, JACK P III 14116 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 60.64$              $                    4.44 65.08$              
0001932494-2011-2011-0000-00 19314137 9/1/2014 REI 452175 SHERIA LOFTON & CLARENCE LOFTON 9425 EAGLE FEATHERS DR CHARLOTTE NC 28214 2/13/2012 97.90$              $                 21.36 119.26$           
0001937648-2011-2011-0000-00 19345134 11/1/2014 REI 508668 SHILYUK, PETR 4513 DOVES NEST CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.60$                 $                    0.13 0.73$                
0002053003-2012-2012-0000-00 22736233 11/1/2014 REI 509251 SHIPFERLING, BARBARA (REV LVG TST) 1207 MANICOTT LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 56.57$              $                    9.79 66.36$              
0002053003-2013-2013-0000-00 22736233 11/1/2014 REI 309245 SHIPFERLING, BARBARA (REV LVG TST) 1207 MANICOTT LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 59.69$              $                    7.35 67.04$              
0002053003-2014-2014-0000-00 22736233 11/1/2014 REI 310034 SHIPFERLING, BARBARA (REV LVG TST) 1207 MANICOTT LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 59.69$              $                    4.37 64.06$              
0002053003-2011-2011-0000-00 22736233 11/1/2014 REI 508795 SHIPFERLING, ROBERT L 1207 MANICOTT LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-1502 1/6/2012 56.57$              $                 12.64 69.21$              
0002051674-2014-2014-0000-00 22728301 11/1/2014 REI 309930 SHISHIDO, DIANE 924 SOMERSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 18.73$              $                    1.37 20.10$              
0002053030-2011-2011-0000-00 22736251 11/1/2014 REI 508796 SHONE, EILEEN S 1114 LONG GATE WAY APEX NC 27502 1/6/2012 47.50$              $                 10.61 58.11$              
0002053030-2012-2012-0000-00 22736251 11/1/2014 REI 509252 SHONE, EILEEN S 1114 LONG GATE WAY APEX NC 27502 1/8/2013 47.50$              $                    8.22 55.72$              
0002002633-2014-2014-0000-00 21513189 11/1/2014 REI 503643 SHRADER, KENNETH R & ROGERS, DONNA G 2214 CANNONADE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 52.39$              $                    3.84 56.23$              
0002047532-2011-2011-0000-00 22704211 2/1/2015 REI 415552 SHUFORD, A BURTON 5820 FOXCREST DR MINT HILL NC 28277 2/14/2012 26.11$              $                    5.69 31.80$              
0002047532-2012-2012-0000-00 22704211 2/1/2015 REI 416330 SHUFORD, A BURTON 5820 FOXCREST DR MINT HILL NC 28277 1/8/2013 25.41$              $                    4.40 29.81$              
0001937827-2011-2011-0000-00 19345262 11/1/2014 REI 508672 SIELAFF, JOSEPH 11025 BALLARDS POND LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.90$                 $                    0.20 1.10$                
0002002115-2011-2011-0000-00 21510237 10/1/2014 REI 473907 SILLEMAN, DONALD J 58 MAGNOLIA CREEK LN MARTIN GA 90557 1/6/2012 1.21$                 $                    0.27 1.48$                
0001933722-2011-2011-0000-00 19331161 1/1/2015 REI 508651 SILVERSTONE VENTURES LLC 2409-B PLANTATION CENTER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 5/10/2012 43.20$              $                    8.91 52.11$              
0002001331-2011-2011-0000-00 21503220 2/1/2015 REI 471985 SIMS, ESTER MAE P PO BOX 964 MATTHEWS NC 28106-0964 4/2/2012 39.42$              $                    8.34 47.76$              
0002001331-2012-2012-0000-00 21503220 2/1/2015 REI 416061 SIMS, ESTER MAE P PO BOX 964 MATTHEWS NC 28106-0964 4/10/2013 35.95$              $                    5.77 41.72$              
0002001159-2011-2011-0000-00 21502106 2/1/2015 REI 471957 SIMS, MARSHALL 1133 TANK TOWN RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-2757 1/6/2012 31.20$              $                    6.97 38.17$              
0002001159-2012-2012-0000-00 21502106 2/1/2015 REI 471958 SIMS, MARSHALL 1133 TANK TOWN RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-2757 4/10/2013 28.07$              $                    4.50 32.57$              
0002001270-2011-2011-0000-00 21502311 2/1/2015 REI 471973 SINGH, BHUPINDER 2536 ASHBY WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-1262 1/6/2012 20.27$              $                    4.53 24.80$              
0002001270-2012-2012-0000-00 21502311 2/1/2015 REI 471974 SINGH, BHUPINDER 2536 ASHBY WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-1262 1/8/2013 15.13$              $                    2.62 17.75$              
0002001270-2013-2013-0000-00 21502311 2/1/2015 REI 471976 SINGH, BHUPINDER 2536 ASHBY WOODS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-1262 1/11/2014 16.19$              $                    1.98 18.17$              
0001937712-2012-2012-0000-00 19345173 11/1/2014 REI 509168 SINGLETARY TIMOTHY J,SINGLETARY KAREN K 4204 HOUNDS RUN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 0.60$                 $                    0.10 0.70$                
0001937712-2013-2013-0000-00 19345173 11/1/2014 REI 509595 SINGLETARY, KAREN K 4204 HOUNDS RUN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 0.64$                 $                    0.08 0.72$                
0001937712-2014-2014-0000-00 19345173 11/1/2014 REI 306670 SINGLETARY, KAREN K 4204 HOUNDS RUN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 0.64$                 $                    0.05 0.69$                
0001937712-2011-2011-0000-00 19345173 11/1/2014 REI 508670 SINGLETARY, TIMOTHY & SINGLETARY, KAREN 4204 HOUNDS RUN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51$                 $                    0.34 1.85$                
0002002250-2013-2013-0000-00 21511117 10/1/2014 REI 475111 SIPES, KIMBERLY 1815 SWAIM DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.01$              $                    2.46 22.47$              
0002002250-2014-2014-0000-00 21511117 10/1/2014 REI 262694 SIPES, KIMBERLY 1815 SWAIM DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.01$              $                    1.47 21.48$              
0002004215-2013-2013-0000-00 21526185 11/1/2014 REI 509632 SIPPRELL, ROB 3206 WINDROW LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 38.42$              $                    4.73 43.15$              
0002004215-2014-2014-0000-00 21526185 11/1/2014 REI 309419 SIPPRELL, ROB 3206 WINDROW LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 38.42$              $                    2.82 41.24$              
0002004215-2012-2012-0000-00 21526185 11/1/2014 REI 504842 SIPPRELL, ROBERT D 4125 BRIAR CREEK RD CLEMMONS NC 27012 1/8/2013 36.60$              $                    6.33 42.93$              
0002002965-2011-2011-0000-00 21516141 11/1/2014 REI 511443 SKINNER, SHERYL LEE 3724 SINGLETREE RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 44.16$              $                    9.87 54.03$              
0002002965-2012-2012-0000-00 21516141 11/1/2014 REI 305744 SKINNER, SHERYL LEE 3724 SINGLETREE RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 43.56$              $                    7.54 51.10$              
0002002965-2013-2013-0000-00 21516141 11/1/2014 REI 306386 SKINNER, SHERYL LEE 3724 SINGLETREE RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/7/2014 45.72$              $                    5.63 51.35$              
0002002965-2014-2014-0000-00 21516141 11/1/2014 REI 307059 SKINNER, SHERYL LEE 3724 SINGLETREE RD MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2015 45.72$              $                    3.35 49.07$              
0002003060-2014-2014-0000-00 21516403 11/1/2014 REI 495630 SLADE, ANDREW L 3300 TRACELAKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 18.41$              $                    1.35 19.76$              
0002002554-2013-2013-0000-00 21513114 11/1/2014 REI 486358 SLOBODYANIK, SERGEY 14220 HIGH ECHELON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 13.97$              $                    1.72 15.69$              
0002002554-2014-2014-0000-00 21513114 11/1/2014 REI 306859 SLOBODYANIK, SERGEY 14220 HIGH ECHELON DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 13.97$              $                    1.02 14.99$              
0002001720-2011-2011-0000-00 21505112 2/1/2015 REI 415295 SLUSARSKI, JAMES EDWIN 9005 TENBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 9/10/2013 84.94$              $                 11.85 96.79$              
0002001720-2012-2012-0000-00 21505112 2/1/2015 REI 416085 SLUSARSKI, JAMES EDWIN 9005 TENBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 9/10/2013 78.41$              $                 10.93 89.34$              
0002001720-2013-2013-0000-00 21505112 2/1/2015 REI 416859 SLUSARSKI, JAMES EDWIN 9005 TENBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/7/2014 76.20$              $                    9.38 85.58$              
0002047659-2011-2011-0000-00 22706159 2/1/2015 REI 415596 SMITH, C TODD 2222 CANTERBURY DR BURLINGTON NC 27218 1/6/2012 61.40$              $                 13.72 75.12$              
0002047659-2012-2012-0000-00 22706159 2/1/2015 REI 416369 SMITH, C TODD 2222 CANTERBURY DR BURLINGTON NC 27218 1/8/2013 60.80$              $                 10.52 71.32$              
0002051677-2014-2014-0000-00 22728304 11/1/2014 REI 487138 SMITH, CLAYTON T & SMITH, TERRICA A 8339 OLD STONEGATE LN MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2015 55.56$              $                    4.07 59.63$              
0001935023-2011-2011-0000-00 19334210 11/1/2014 REI 442841 SMITH, PEGGY C 5413 FIELDSTONE DR RALEIGH NC 27609-4713 3/20/2012 29.46$              $                    6.28 35.74$              
0001934880-2011-2011-0000-00 19334105 11/1/2014 REI 508656 SMITH, SHELTON 12731 MISSION CH RD LOCUST NC 28097 1/6/2012 59.90$              $                 13.38 73.28$              
0001934880-2012-2012-0000-00 19334105 11/1/2014 REI 509165 SMITH, SHELTON 12731 MISSION CH RD LOCUST NC 28097 4/8/2013 62.44$              $                 10.03 72.47$              
0001934880-2013-2013-0000-00 19334105 11/1/2014 REI 509592 SMITH, SHELTON 12731 MISSION CH RD LOCUST NC 28097 1/15/2014 64.13$              $                    7.83 71.96$              
0001934627-2014-2014-0000-00 19333612 11/1/2014 REI 509971 SMITH, WILLIAM DOUGLAS 1101 DARK WOOD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-3867 1/6/2015 6.98$                 $                    0.51 7.49$                
0008068970-2014-2014-0000-00 21301262 1/1/2015 REI 500671 SNAPPER RYAN C 9530 REID  HALL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/20/2015 114.44$            $                    8.17 122.61$           
0001934242-2011-2011-0000-00 19333316 11/1/2014 REI 508652 SOTTILO, PATRICIA 1521 SQUIRREL LAKE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28105 1/6/2012 12.10$              $                    2.70 14.80$              
0002050499-2011-2011-0000-00 22723311 11/1/2014 REI 508778 SOUTHERLAND, JOHN C 217 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 32.97$              $                    7.37 40.34$              
0002050499-2012-2012-0000-00 22723311 11/1/2014 REI 509243 SOUTHERLAND, JOHN C 217 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 32.67$              $                    5.65 38.32$              
0002050499-2013-2013-0000-00 22723311 11/1/2014 REI 509659 SOUTHERLAND, JOHN C 217 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 34.29$              $                    4.22 38.51$              
0002050499-2014-2014-0000-00 22723311 11/1/2014 REI 309766 SOUTHERLAND, JOHN C 217 DEER CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 34.29$              $                    2.51 36.80$              
0002052273-2011-2011-0000-00 22731315 11/1/2014 REI 508789 SOWERS, WANDA EILEEN 568 FOND DU LAC DR CENTRAL SC 29630 1/6/2012 1.21$                 $                    0.27 1.48$                



0002001204-2013-2013-0000-00 21502143 2/1/2015 REI 509628 SPEIGHTS JR, SAMUEL JOHNSON 3405 CATSKILL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.32$              $                    2.50 22.82$              
0002001204-2014-2014-0000-00 21502143 2/1/2015 REI 510005 SPEIGHTS JR, SAMUEL JOHNSON 3405 CATSKILL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.32$              $                    1.49 21.81$              
0002004147-2012-2012-0000-00 21526138 11/1/2014 REI 509199 SPIVEY, JOHN W JR & GOUDE, JANICE 1708 WINTHROP LN MONROE NC 28110 1/8/2013 26.93$              $                    4.66 31.59$              
0002004147-2011-2011-0000-00 21526138 11/1/2014 REI 508731 SPIVEY, JOHN W JR & SPIVEY, JANICE G 13330 STEELCROFT PKWY, UNIT 305 CHARLOTTE NC 28278 1/6/2012 29.65$              $                    6.62 36.27$              
0002050200-2013-2013-0000-00 22722308 12/1/2014 REI 495338 SPRINGLEAF FINANCIAL SERVICES OF NORTH CAROLINA INC. 601 NW SECOND ST EVANSVILLE IN 47708 4/21/2014 26.48$              $                    2.88 29.36$              
0002055378-2013-2013-0000-00 22752331 11/1/2014 REI 311892 SPRINKLE, BIRAN L 5007 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.95$              $                    2.58 23.53$              
0002055378-2014-2014-0000-00 22752331 11/1/2014 REI 312622 SPRINKLE, BIRAN L 5007 BILTMORE FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.95$              $                    1.54 22.49$              
0002052594-2011-2011-0000-00 22734216 11/1/2014 REI 511497 SQUIRE, GLENN & SQUIRE, ELIZABETH P 2362 WEDGEWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 4.23$                 $                    0.95 5.18$                
0002050141-2012-2012-0000-00 22722203 12/1/2014 REI 499951 SRIVASTAV, NEETA 3411 BRAEFIELD DR INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/8/2013 46.29$              $                    8.01 54.30$              
0002050141-2013-2013-0000-00 22722203 12/1/2014 REI 351124 SRIVASTAV, NEETA 3411 BRAEFIELD DR INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/7/2014 48.58$              $                    5.98 54.56$              
0002050141-2014-2014-0000-00 22722203 12/1/2014 REI 351848 SRIVASTAV, NEETA 3411 BRAEFIELD DR INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2015 48.58$              $                    3.56 52.14$              
0001934204-2013-2013-0000-00 19333212 11/1/2014 REI 516253 STAFEL, DAVID A 618 FENCE POST  LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 16.51$              $                    2.03 18.54$              
0001937895-2011-2011-0000-00 19346109 11/1/2014 REI 511403 STAFFORD, PAUL H 2900 WILLIAMS STATION RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-0778 1/6/2012 1.21$                 $                    0.27 1.48$                
0001937625-2011-2011-0000-00 19345120 11/1/2014 REI 511402 STAUDINGER, NICOLA 2113 BLUESTONE CT WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 1.51$                 $                    0.34 1.85$                
0002055198-2011-2011-0000-00 22752143 11/1/2014 REI 508800 STEINER, KIRK M 4800 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 35.09$              $                    7.84 42.93$              
0002055198-2012-2012-0000-00 22752143 11/1/2014 REI 308608 STEINER, KIRK M 4800 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 34.79$              $                    6.02 40.81$              
0002055198-2013-2013-0000-00 22752143 11/1/2014 REI 309346 STEINER, KIRK M 4800 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 36.52$              $                    4.50 41.02$              
0002055198-2014-2014-0000-00 22752143 11/1/2014 REI 310144 STEINER, KIRK M 4800 HICKORY GLEN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 36.52$              $                    2.68 39.20$              
0002056796-2011-2011-0000-00 22764189 10/1/2014 REI 474235 STERLING TRUST CO 3623 LATROBE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2012 57.48$              $                 12.84 70.32$              
0002056796-2012-2012-0000-00 22764189 10/1/2014 REI 474899 STERLING TRUST CO 3623 LATROBE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/8/2013 57.48$              $                    9.94 67.42$              
0002047774-2012-2012-0000-00 22706246 3/1/2015 REI 506981 STERLING, BRIAN P 1367 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 147.32$            $                 25.49 172.81$           
0002047774-2013-2013-0000-00 22706246 3/1/2015 REI 432720 STERLING, BRIAN P 1367 WYNDMERE HILLS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 154.62$            $                 19.04 173.66$           
0002047460-2011-2011-0000-00 22703634 10/1/2014 REI 264250 STEWART, JANE L 528 WILLOW BROOK DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 16.03$              $                    3.58 19.61$              
0002047460-2012-2012-0000-00 22703634 10/1/2014 REI 266050 STEWART, JANE L 528 WILLOW BROOK DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0002047460-2013-2013-0000-00 22703634 10/1/2014 REI 267066 STEWART, JANE L 528 WILLOW BROOK DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 16.83$              $                    2.07 18.90$              
0002001162-2011-2011-0000-00 21502110 2/1/2015 REI 415246 STITT, ELNORA 617 MATTHEWS CHAPEL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/29/2012 34.51$              $                    7.46 41.97$              
0001936600-2012-2012-0000-00 19340608 9/1/2014 REI 452395 STONE, ASHLEY J 18709 JOHN CONNOR RD CORNELIUS NC 28031 1/8/2013 191.18$            $                 33.08 224.26$           
0001936600-2013-2013-0000-00 19340608 9/1/2014 REI 452478 STONE, ASHLEY J 18709 JOHN CONNOR RD CORNELIUS NC 28031 1/7/2014 200.66$            $                 24.71 225.37$           
0002051622-2011-2011-0000-00 22728268 11/1/2014 REI 511494 STONE, BOBBY J JR 1340 DEERRIDGE NEW RICHMOND OH 45157 1/6/2012 27.53$              $                    6.15 33.68$              
0002051622-2012-2012-0000-00 22728268 11/1/2014 REI 512035 STONE, BOBBY J JR 1340 DEERRIDGE NEW RICHMOND OH 45157 1/8/2013 24.20$              $                    4.19 28.39$              
0002051622-2013-2013-0000-00 22728268 11/1/2014 REI 512425 STONE, BOBBY J JR 1340 DEERRIDGE NEW RICHMOND OH 45157 1/7/2014 25.40$              $                    3.13 28.53$              
0002002561-2013-2013-0000-00 21513124 11/1/2014 REI 512384 STONE, STEVEN W 2325 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 44.45$              $                    5.47 49.92$              
0002002561-2014-2014-0000-00 21513124 11/1/2014 REI 306865 STONE, STEVEN W 2325 LIGHT BRIGADE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 44.45$              $                    3.26 47.71$              
0002047456-2012-2012-0000-00 22703632 10/1/2014 REI 474831 STOOGENKE, JASON M 542 WILLOW BROOK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 17.54$              $                    3.03 20.57$              
0002047456-2013-2013-0000-00 22703632 10/1/2014 REI 267064 STOOGENKE, JASON M 542 WILLOW BROOK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 18.41$              $                    2.27 20.68$              
0002047456-2014-2014-0000-00 22703632 10/1/2014 REI 268159 STOOGENKE, JASON M 542 WILLOW BROOK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 18.41$              $                    1.35 19.76$              
0001934204-2014-2014-0000-00 19333212 11/1/2014 REI 352827 STRAFEL, DAVID A 618 FENCE POST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 16.51$              $                    1.21 17.72$              
0001933544-2012-2012-0000-00 19329167 12/1/2014 REI 342059 STUBBS  BUDD HOLDINGS LLC STUBBS  BUDD HOLDINGS LLC 10550 INDEPENDENCE  UNIT 13-B NC 28105 1/18/2013 42.59$              $                    7.31 49.90$              
0001933544-2013-2013-0000-00 19329167 12/1/2014 REI 342699 STUBBS  BUDD HOLDINGS LLC STUBBS  BUDD HOLDINGS LLC 10550 INDEPENDENCE  UNIT 13-B NC 28105 1/7/2014 42.55$              $                    5.24 47.79$              
0001933544-2011-2011-0000-00 19329167 12/1/2014 REI 515316 STUBBS  BUDD HOLDINGS LLC . STUBBS  BUDD HOLDINGS LLC 10550 INDEPENDENCE  UNIT 13-B NC 28105 2/23/2012 41.65$              $                    9.03 50.68$              
0002003128-2014-2014-0000-00 21517135 10/1/2014 REI 475346 STUTEKNIK, VEACESLAV 13401 PHILLIPS RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 19.69$              $                    1.44 21.13$              
0002053721-2013-2013-0000-00 22740263 10/1/2014 REI 475184 SUMRALL REESE W,III 2828 OXBOROUGH DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-8854 1/7/2014 40.01$              $                    4.93 44.94$              
0002003249-2013-2013-0000-00 21518107 10/1/2014 REI 261708 SURFACE, WARREN D 2224 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 47.31$              $                    5.83 53.14$              
0002003249-2014-2014-0000-00 21518107 10/1/2014 REI 262701 SURFACE, WARREN D 2224 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 47.31$              $                    3.47 50.78$              
0002049916-2013-2013-0000-00 22721589 11/1/2014 REI 516303 SWIM, MICHAEL A JR 711 MOSS CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 4.45$                 $                    0.55 5.00$                
0002002561-2011-2011-0000-00 21513124 11/1/2014 REI 511442 SYKES, JASON SCOTT & SYKES, KATHERINE 2005 ALTARA LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 43.87$              $                    9.80 53.67$              
0002002561-2012-2012-0000-00 21513124 11/1/2014 REI 511984 SYKES, JASON SCOTT & SYKES, KATHERINE 2005 ALTARA LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/8/2013 42.35$              $                    7.33 49.68$              
0001934724-2011-2011-0000-00 19333744 11/1/2014 REI 511397 SZCZODROWSKI, SARAH 1107 BALDWIN LN WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 16.94$              $                    3.78 20.72$              
0001934724-2012-2012-0000-00 19333744 11/1/2014 REI 511946 SZCZODROWSKI, SARAH 1107 BALDWIN LN WAXHAW NC 28173 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0002052284-2012-2012-0000-00 22731322 11/1/2014 REI 497236 TACKSON, CHRISTOPHER 1003 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9615 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0002052284-2013-2013-0000-00 22731322 11/1/2014 REI 317697 TACKSON, CHRISTOPHER 1003 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9615 1/7/2014 16.82$              $                    2.07 18.89$              
0002052284-2014-2014-0000-00 22731322 11/1/2014 REI 318179 TACKSON, CHRISTOPHER 1003 CLEARBROOK RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-9615 1/6/2015 16.82$              $                    1.23 18.05$              
0002054483-2013-2013-0000-00 22746119 10/1/2014 REI 475199 TAFT, MONICA R 1206 SHELLY WOODS DR FORT MILL SC 29707 1/7/2014 78.74$              $                    9.70 88.44$              
0001992869-2012-2012-0000-00 21302209 9/1/2014 REI 451852 TAMMY L. PRICE 312 CHARING CROSS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 1.81$                 $                    0.31 2.12$                
0002047775-2014-2014-0000-00 22706247 3/1/2015 REI 497945 TAMY L ELAM TRUST 1503 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 364.18$            $                 26.69 390.87$           
0002050457-2011-2011-0000-00 22723110 11/1/2014 REI 489084 TANNIR, ELLEN D 636 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 17.24$              $                    3.85 21.09$              
0002050457-2012-2012-0000-00 22723110 11/1/2014 REI 489606 TANNIR, ELLEN D 636 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 16.64$              $                    2.88 19.52$              
0002050457-2013-2013-0000-00 22723110 11/1/2014 REI 489988 TANNIR, ELLEN D 636 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 17.47$              $                    2.15 19.62$              
0002050457-2014-2014-0000-00 22723110 11/1/2014 REI 309748 TANNIR, ELLEN D 636 E JOHN ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 17.47$              $                    1.28 18.75$              
0001934686-2013-2013-0000-00 19333716 11/1/2014 REI 500298 TARLTON, ZACHARY R 1029 TIMBERWOOD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-3865 1/7/2014 5.72$                 $                    0.70 6.42$                
0001934686-2014-2014-0000-00 19333716 11/1/2014 REI 317969 TARLTON, ZACHARY R 1029 TIMBERWOOD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105-3865 1/6/2015 5.72$                 $                    0.42 6.14$                
0002047159-2013-2013-0000-00 22703310 2/1/2015 REI 512420 TAYLOR, ADRIAN W 204 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 60.33$              $                    7.43 67.76$              
0002047159-2014-2014-0000-00 22703310 2/1/2015 REI 512747 TAYLOR, ADRIAN W 204 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 60.33$              $                    4.42 64.75$              
0002051486-2011-2011-0000-00 22728104 2/1/2015 REI 472192 TAYLOR, CHARLES N 331 N SHADY REST RD STATESVILLE NC 28677-9603 5/9/2012 56.86$              $                 11.74 68.60$              
0002051486-2012-2012-0000-00 22728104 2/1/2015 REI 472194 TAYLOR, CHARLES N 331 N SHADY REST RD STATESVILLE NC 28677-9603 1/8/2013 53.54$              $                    9.26 62.80$              
0002051486-2013-2013-0000-00 22728104 2/1/2015 REI 472195 TAYLOR, CHARLES N 331 N SHADY REST RD STATESVILLE NC 28677-9603 1/7/2014 56.20$              $                    6.92 63.12$              
0002051743-2011-2011-0000-00 22729207 11/1/2014 REI 511495 TAYLOR, JOHN W & TAYLOR, PATSY H 10529 OLD BRASSLE DR MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 42.05$              $                    9.40 51.45$              
0002051743-2012-2012-0000-00 22729207 11/1/2014 REI 512036 TAYLOR, JOHN W & TAYLOR, PATSY H 10529 OLD BRASSLE DR MINT HILL NC 28227 1/8/2013 42.05$              $                    7.28 49.33$              
0002046560-2011-2011-0000-00 22701408 11/1/2014 REI 499441 TEDDER, JENNIFER M 6 E WHITECLIFF WAY FARMINDALE NJ 7727 1/6/2012 3.33$                 $                    0.74 4.07$                
0002053012-2013-2013-0000-00 22736238 11/1/2014 REI 497622 THAMES LARRY DAVID JR 1315 MANICOTT LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-1551 1/7/2014 63.82$              $                    7.86 71.68$              
0002053012-2014-2014-0000-00 22736238 11/1/2014 REI 318197 THAMES, LARRY DAVID JR 1315 MANICOTT LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-1551 1/6/2015 63.82$              $                    4.68 68.50$              
0002050812-2014-2014-0000-00 22723912 11/1/2014 REI 309845 THE DANIELLE MARIE LAYUG, REVOCABLE TRUST 110 ICHABOD TRAIL LONGWOOD FL 32750 1/6/2015 33.34$              $                    2.44 35.78$              
0002046554-2011-2011-0000-00 22701404 11/1/2014 REI 511484 THE DAVIS REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 46866 GRISSOM STREET STERLING VA 20165 1/6/2012 18.76$              $                    4.19 22.95$              
0002046554-2012-2012-0000-00 22701404 11/1/2014 REI 512029 THE DAVIS REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 46866 GRISSOM STREET STERLING VA 20165 1/8/2013 17.55$              $                    3.04 20.59$              
0001934716-2011-2011-0000-00 19333738 11/1/2014 REI 324379 THE SUSAN O HART TRUST, . 1306 FALKENBURG CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 7.56$                 $                    1.69 9.25$                
0002049790-2013-2013-0000-00 22721502 10/1/2014 REI 475171 THEOBALD, LANCE P & THEOBALD, KELLY 558 N ELM MARSHFIELD MO 65706 1/7/2014 18.73$              $                    2.31 21.04$              
0002055233-2014-2014-0000-00 22752169 11/1/2014 REI 312554 THIRUMURTHY, THIRUMAGEL 1519 WICKERBY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.64$              $                    1.51 22.15$              
0001937848-2011-2011-0000-00 19345277 11/1/2014 REI 496631 THOMPSON, DEBORAH MARTIN 3030 INGELOW LN CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2012 0.61$                 $                    0.14 0.75$                
0002001190-2011-2011-0000-00 21502132 2/1/2015 REI 415248 THOMPSON, JERRY L PO BOX 1181 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 16.33$              $                    3.65 19.98$              
0002001190-2012-2012-0000-00 21502132 2/1/2015 REI 416036 THOMPSON, JERRY L PO BOX 1181 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/8/2013 16.33$              $                    2.83 19.16$              
0002053111-2013-2013-0000-00 22737109 11/1/2014 REI 500363 THOMPSON, RYAN 1224 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 15.87$              $                    1.95 17.82$              
0002053111-2014-2014-0000-00 22737109 11/1/2014 REI 310052 THOMPSON, RYAN 1224 ASHLEY CREEK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 15.87$              $                    1.16 17.03$              
0002047056-2011-2011-0000-00 22703218 2/1/2015 REI 502435 TIAGHA, EDWARD A 232 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2554 1/6/2012 25.71$              $                    5.74 31.45$              
0002047056-2012-2012-0000-00 22703218 2/1/2015 REI 416293 TIAGHA, EDWARD A 232 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2554 1/8/2013 25.71$              $                    4.45 30.16$              
0002047056-2013-2013-0000-00 22703218 2/1/2015 REI 417075 TIAGHA, EDWARD A 232 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2554 1/7/2014 26.99$              $                    3.32 30.31$              
0002047056-2014-2014-0000-00 22703218 2/1/2015 REI 417772 TIAGHA, EDWARD A 232 LAKENHEATH LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2554 1/6/2015 26.99$              $                    1.98 28.97$              
0002051653-2011-2011-0000-00 22728288 11/1/2014 REI 508783 TILLERY, JACQUELINE C 1026 THORNSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 32.67$              $                    7.30 39.97$              
0002051653-2012-2012-0000-00 22728288 11/1/2014 REI 509246 TILLERY, JACQUELINE C 1026 THORNSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 26.62$              $                    4.61 31.23$              
0002051653-2013-2013-0000-00 22728288 11/1/2014 REI 509662 TILLERY, JACQUELINE C 1026 THORNSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 27.94$              $                    3.44 31.38$              
0002051653-2014-2014-0000-00 22728288 11/1/2014 REI 309922 TILLERY, JACQUELINE C 1026 THORNSBY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 27.94$              $                    2.05 29.99$              
0001999430-2011-2011-0000-00 21342101 10/1/2014 REI 473900 TILLOTSON, ESTHER M 5934 PORTBURN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2012 75.32$              $                 16.83 92.15$              
0001999430-2012-2012-0000-00 21342101 10/1/2014 REI 474759 TILLOTSON, ESTHER M 5934 PORTBURN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/8/2013 72.90$              $                 12.61 85.51$              
0001999430-2013-2013-0000-00 21342101 10/1/2014 REI 475109 TILLOTSON, ESTHER M 5934 PORTBURN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/7/2014 76.52$              $                    9.42 85.94$              
0001999430-2014-2014-0000-00 21342101 10/1/2014 REI 475345 TILLOTSON, ESTHER M 5934 PORTBURN RD CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2015 76.52$              $                    5.61 82.13$              
0001933511-2011-2011-0000-00 19329144 1/1/2015 REI 511393 TMV PARTNERS IN MATTHEWS LLC 1960 OVERHILL DR CHARLOTTE NC 28207 1/6/2012 11.19$              $                    2.50 13.69$              
0002049634-2012-2012-0000-00 22721104 12/1/2014 REI 485624 TOFANO MARK E 259 S TRADE ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 9/26/2013 69.92$              $                    9.60 79.52$              
0002003664-2013-2013-0000-00 21520404 10/1/2014 REI 475123 TOURLOUKIS, DEMETRIA 2500 HEATHERSHIRE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 11.43$              $                    1.41 12.84$              
0002003664-2014-2014-0000-00 21520404 10/1/2014 REI 262765 TOURLOUKIS, DEMETRIA 2500 HEATHERSHIRE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 11.43$              $                    0.84 12.27$              
0002001883-2012-2012-0000-00 21507212 2/1/2015 REI 416095 TOWER, STEPHEN 417 CHESTNUT LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 5/9/2013 48.92$              $                    7.65 56.57$              
0002001884-2012-2012-0000-00 21507213 2/1/2015 REI 416096 TOWER, STEPHEN 417 CHESTNUT LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 5/9/2013 84.48$              $                 13.22 97.70$              
0002001884-2013-2013-0000-00 21507213 2/1/2015 REI 416869 TOWER, STEPHEN 417 CHESTNUT LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 4/7/2014 88.05$              $                    9.76 97.81$              
0002001302-2011-2011-0000-00 21503204 2/1/2015 REI 415268 TPM PROPERTIES 3816 MOORELAND FARMS RD CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2012 16.03$              $                    3.58 19.61$              
0002001302-2012-2012-0000-00 21503204 2/1/2015 REI 416055 TPM PROPERTIES 3816 MOORELAND FARMS RD CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/8/2013 16.03$              $                    2.77 18.80$              
0001934755-2011-2011-0000-00 19333766 11/1/2014 REI 511398 TREADAWAY, JOHNNY B 5709 SUSTAR DR MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 5.75$                 $                    1.28 7.03$                
0001934755-2012-2012-0000-00 19333766 11/1/2014 REI 511947 TREADAWAY, JOHNNY B 5709 SUSTAR DR MONROE NC 28110 1/8/2013 5.75$                 $                    0.99 6.74$                
0001934614-2012-2012-0000-00 19333602 11/1/2014 REI 509162 TREJO, MARTHA R 1123 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 8.77$                 $                    1.52 10.29$              
0001934614-2013-2013-0000-00 19333602 11/1/2014 REI 305860 TREJO, MARTHA R 1123 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 9.21$                 $                    1.13 10.34$              
0001934614-2014-2014-0000-00 19333602 11/1/2014 REI 306491 TREJO, MARTHA R 1123 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 9.21$                 $                    0.67 9.88$                
0001934147-2013-2013-0000-00 19333148 11/1/2014 REI 497564 TRUONG, TERESA THANH 2501 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-4064 1/7/2014 10.79$              $                    1.33 12.12$              
0001934147-2014-2014-0000-00 19333148 11/1/2014 REI 317931 TRUONG, TERESA THANH 2501 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-4064 1/6/2015 10.79$              $                    0.79 11.58$              
0002054465-2013-2013-0000-00 22746110 10/1/2014 REI 475197 TURNER ANTHONY QUENTIN 1108 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 41.27$              $                    5.08 46.35$              
0002054465-2014-2014-0000-00 22746110 10/1/2014 REI 268543 TURNER, ANTHONY QUENTIN 1108 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 41.60$              $                    3.05 44.65$              
0002001267-2014-2014-0000-00 21502309 2/1/2015 REI 512719 TURNER, LESTER WAYNE 324 CLUBVIEW ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.00$              $                    1.47 21.47$              
0002053289-2011-2011-0000-00 22737245 11/1/2014 REI 511498 TWIST, LEO F 359 PARK SQUARE PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 82.58$              $                 18.45 101.03$           
0002053289-2012-2012-0000-00 22737245 11/1/2014 REI 512037 TWIST, LEO F 359 PARK SQUARE PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 82.58$              $                 14.29 96.87$              
0002002907-2014-2014-0000-00 21515405 11/1/2014 REI 487084 UPCHURCH, BRAD & UPCHURCH, REBEKAH 14132 SPRINGWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 53.66$              $                    3.93 57.59$              
0002050064-2012-2012-0000-00 22722102 12/1/2014 REI 502924 URQUIETA, RAMIRO A 5200 MORNINGWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 12.34$              $                    2.13 14.47$              
0002002762-2012-2012-0000-00 21513409 11/1/2014 REI 499901 US BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION . 3476 STATEVIEW BLVD FORT MILL SC 29715 1/8/2013 55.97$              $                    9.68 65.65$              
0002055347-2011-2011-0000-00 22752308 11/1/2014 REI 310392 VAN GINHOVEN, PAUL 4630 JAMESVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 18.45$              $                    4.12 22.57$              
0002055347-2012-2012-0000-00 22752308 11/1/2014 REI 515930 VAN GINHOVEN, PAUL 4630 JAMESVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 18.45$              $                    3.19 21.64$              
0002055347-2013-2013-0000-00 22752308 11/1/2014 REI 311872 VAN GINHOVEN, PAUL 4630 JAMESVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 19.36$              $                    2.38 21.74$              
0002055347-2014-2014-0000-00 22752308 11/1/2014 REI 312600 VAN GINHOVEN, PAUL 4630 JAMESVILLE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 19.36$              $                    1.42 20.78$              
0002055164-2011-2011-0000-00 22752121 11/1/2014 REI 515458 VANN, CHRISTOPHER M & VANN, TANYA M 5039 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 35.39$              $                    7.91 43.30$              
0002055164-2012-2012-0000-00 22752121 11/1/2014 REI 515928 VANN, CHRISTOPHER M & VANN, TANYA M 5039 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 35.39$              $                    6.12 41.51$              
0002055164-2013-2013-0000-00 22752121 11/1/2014 REI 309332 VANN, TANYA M 5039 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 37.14$              $                    4.57 41.71$              
0002055164-2014-2014-0000-00 22752121 11/1/2014 REI 310129 VANN, TANYA M 5039 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 37.14$              $                    2.72 39.86$              
0002002753-2011-2011-0000-00 21513402 11/1/2014 REI 515398 VERRYT, EDWARD & VERRYT, ANNE M 337 RATTLESNAKE HILL RD AUBURN NH 3032 1/6/2012 42.05$              $                    9.40 51.45$              
0001936611-2013-2013-0000-00 19340612 9/1/2014 REI 239350 VESCOVI, ADELMO R (TRUST) 6053 WILORA LAKE DR, #333 CHARLOTTE NC 28212 1/7/2014 116.20$            $                 14.31 130.51$           
0001936611-2014-2014-0000-00 19340612 9/1/2014 REI 224576 VESCOVI, ADELMO R (TRUST) 6053 WILORA LAKE DR #333 CHARLOTTE NC 28212 1/6/2015 116.20$            $                    8.52 124.72$           
0002047575-2014-2014-0000-00 22705101 2/1/2015 REI 516607 VICUS BUILDERS INC . 2201 EAST 7TH ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/6/2015 1,427.80$        $               104.64 1,532.44$        
0002047577-2014-2014-0000-00 22705105 2/1/2015 REI 516608 VICUS BUILDERS INC . 2201 EAST 7TH ST CHARLOTTE NC 28204 1/6/2015 69.85$              $                    5.12 74.97$              
0002051858-2011-2011-0000-00 22730137 2/1/2015 REI 472197 VOGEL, JON W 1020 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 58.08$              $                 12.98 71.06$              
0002051858-2012-2012-0000-00 22730137 2/1/2015 REI 515918 VOGEL, JON W 1020 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 58.08$              $                 10.05 68.13$              
0002051858-2013-2013-0000-00 22730137 2/1/2015 REI 417254 VOGEL, JON W 1020 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 60.96$              $                    7.51 68.47$              
0002051858-2014-2014-0000-00 22730137 2/1/2015 REI 417935 VOGEL, JON W 1020 HOLLEYBANK DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 60.96$              $                    4.47 65.43$              
0002002593-2011-2011-0000-00 21513155 11/1/2014 REI 515394 VOLOSTNOVA, LILIYA 14101 PHILLIPS ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 41.44$              $                    9.26 50.70$              
0002002593-2012-2012-0000-00 21513155 11/1/2014 REI 305586 VOLOSTNOVA, LILIYA 14101 PHILLIPS ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 40.84$              $                    7.07 47.91$              
0002002593-2013-2013-0000-00 21513155 11/1/2014 REI 306218 VOLOSTNOVA, LILIYA 14101 PHILLIPS ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 42.86$              $                    5.28 48.14$              



0002002593-2014-2014-0000-00 21513155 11/1/2014 REI 306884 VOLOSTNOVA, LILIYA 14101 PHILLIPS ROAD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 42.86$              $                    3.14 46.00$              
0002047733-2012-2012-0000-00 22706228 3/1/2015 REI 453132 VONDER, JOHN D 1410 ELMSFORD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 28.73$              $                    4.97 33.70$              
0002047733-2013-2013-0000-00 22706228 3/1/2015 REI 432708 VONDER, JOHN D 1410 ELMSFORD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 143.83$            $                 17.71 161.54$           
0002047733-2014-2014-0000-00 22706228 3/1/2015 REI 433516 VONDER, JOHN D 1410 ELMSFORD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 143.83$            $                 10.54 154.37$           
0002047733-2011-2011-0000-00 22706228 3/1/2015 REI 496721 VONDER, JOHN D & VONDER, KIM E 1410 ELMSFORD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 28.73$              $                    6.42 35.15$              
0001998153-2011-2011-0000-00 21334110 10/1/2014 REI 473889 WALKER, JOSEPH DEAN 1026 PROGRESS STREET B104 PITTSBURG PA 15212 1/6/2012 5.45$                 $                    1.22 6.67$                
0001934774-2011-2011-0000-00 19333780 11/1/2014 REI 515323 WALLACE, WILLIAM HENRY 5641 ROCKY TRAIL COURT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 4/27/2013 6.52$                 $                    1.03 7.55$                
0001934624-2014-2014-0000-00 19333609 11/1/2014 REI 490286 WALLING, TIFFANY MARIE 1000 WINTER WOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 5.08$                 $                    0.37 5.45$                
0002047778-2012-2012-0000-00 22706248 3/1/2015 REI 485610 WALSH, KEVIN MICHAEL 7931 ELPHIN CT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/8/2013 154.88$            $                 26.80 181.68$           
0002047778-2013-2013-0000-00 22706248 3/1/2015 REI 473245 WALSH, KEVIN MICHAEL 7931 ELPHIN CT CHARLOTTE NC 28270 4/7/2014 187.68$            $                 20.80 208.48$           
0002050518-2014-2014-0000-00 22723410 11/1/2014 REI 309773 WALTERS, DAVID R 133 EDGELAND DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.32$              $                    1.49 21.81$              
0001934861-2011-2011-0000-00 19333930 11/1/2014 REI 506448 WALTON, LORI A 9727 TOUCHTON RD APT 1919 JACKSONVILLE FL 32246 1/6/2012 15.43$              $                    3.45 18.88$              
0001934861-2012-2012-0000-00 19333930 11/1/2014 REI 506896 WALTON, LORI A 9727 TOUCHTON ROAD APT 1919 JACKSONVILLE FL 32246 1/8/2013 14.83$              $                    2.57 17.40$              
0001934861-2013-2013-0000-00 19333930 11/1/2014 REI 507218 WALTON, LORI A 9727 TOUCHTON ROAD APT 1919 JACKSONVILLE FL 32246 1/7/2014 15.56$              $                    1.92 17.48$              
0001934861-2014-2014-0000-00 19333930 11/1/2014 REI 507452 WALTON, TODD W 9727 TOUCHTON RD,APT 1919 JACKSONVILLE FL 32246 1/6/2015 15.56$              $                    1.14 16.70$              
0001935023-2012-2012-0000-00 19334210 11/1/2014 REI 442842 WANG MENG JIANG 11325 GLADWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/26/2013 27.20$              $                    4.52 31.72$              
0001935023-2013-2013-0000-00 19334210 11/1/2014 REI 509593 WANG, MENG JIANG 11325 GLADWATER DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 55.57$              $                    6.84 62.41$              
0002056428-2011-2011-0000-00 22761148 10/1/2014 REI 474216 WARD, ELIZABETH B 1771-4 NEW RIVER INLET RD TOPSAIL NC 28460 1/6/2012 2.72$                 $                    0.61 3.33$                
0001933742-2011-2011-0000-00 19331174 1/1/2015 REI 515317 WARD, ERIC 2950 SENNA DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.30$                 $                    0.07 0.37$                
0001937817-2011-2011-0000-00 19345257 11/1/2014 REI 499342 WARD, KRISTIN B 14211 CREEKSIDE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.81$                 $                    0.40 2.21$                
0002052596-2011-2011-0000-00 22734217 11/1/2014 REI 499478 WARD, WESLEY B 10019 DEVEREAUX DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 24.81$              $                    5.54 30.35$              
0002052596-2012-2012-0000-00 22734217 11/1/2014 REI 308475 WARD, WESLEY B 10019 DEVEREAUX DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 24.81$              $                    4.29 29.10$              
0002052596-2013-2013-0000-00 22734217 11/1/2014 REI 309206 WARD, WESLEY B 10019 DEVEREAUX DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 26.03$              $                    3.21 29.24$              
0002052596-2014-2014-0000-00 22734217 11/1/2014 REI 309996 WARD, WESLEY B 10019 DEVEREAUX DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.03$              $                    1.91 27.94$              
0002052966-2011-2011-0000-00 22736204 11/1/2014 REI 515448 WASHOFSKY, ROSE J 124 FLINT POINT LN HOLLY SPRINGS NC 27540 1/6/2012 1.21$                 $                    0.27 1.48$                
0002003798-2011-2011-0000-00 21520704 10/1/2014 REI 258785 WATSON, ELIZABETH M 13806 PORTPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 35.09$              $                    7.84 42.93$              
0002003798-2012-2012-0000-00 21520704 10/1/2014 REI 260846 WATSON, ELIZABETH M 13806 PORTPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 33.58$              $                    5.81 39.39$              
0002003798-2013-2013-0000-00 21520704 10/1/2014 REI 261779 WATSON, ELIZABETH M 13806 PORTPATRICK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 35.25$              $                    4.34 39.59$              
0001934812-2011-2011-0000-00 19333812 11/1/2014 REI 515324 WEBSTER, ROBERT D SR 6053 WILORA LAKE RD ROOM 402 CHARLOTTE NC 28212 1/6/2012 8.78$                 $                    1.96 10.74$              
0001934812-2012-2012-0000-00 19333812 11/1/2014 REI 515853 WEBSTER, ROBERT D SR 6053 WILORA LAKE RD ROOM 402 CHARLOTTE NC 28212 1/8/2013 8.78$                 $                    1.52 10.30$              
0002046383-2011-2011-0000-00 22701221 11/1/2014 REI 515430 WELDON, JULIE A 20 ELLEN AVE MOUNT PLEASANT SC 29464 1/6/2012 9.38$                 $                    2.10 11.48$              
0002046939-2013-2013-0000-00 22702752 2/1/2015 REI 516290 WELLS, JERRY LEE 226 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 108.58$            $                 13.37 121.95$           
0002046939-2014-2014-0000-00 22702752 2/1/2015 REI 516603 WELLS, JERRY LEE 226 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 108.58$            $                    7.96 116.54$           
0002046754-2011-2011-0000-00 22702618 12/1/2014 REI 515431 WESSEL'S NURSING HOME OF 600 FULLWOOD RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-2659 1/6/2012 81.37$              $                 18.18 99.55$              
0002047575-2011-2011-0000-00 22705101 2/1/2015 REI 415582 WEST PACIFIC LAND CO LLC 24436 VAN BORN DEARBORN HEIGHTS MI 48125 3/26/2012 1,415.15$        $               300.67 1,715.82$        
0002047575-2012-2012-0000-00 22705101 2/1/2015 REI 416357 WEST PACIFIC LAND CO LLC 24436 VAN BORN DEARBORN HEIGHTS MI 48125 6/20/2013 1,438.57$        $               216.77 1,655.34$        
0002047575-2013-2013-0000-00 22705101 2/1/2015 REI 417137 WEST PACIFIC LAND CO LLC 24436 VAN BORN DEARBORN HEIGHTS MI 48125 1/7/2014 1,427.80$        $               175.83 1,603.63$        
0002047577-2011-2011-0000-00 22705105 2/1/2015 REI 415583 WEST PACIFIC LAND CO LLC 24436 VAN BORN DEARBORN HEIGHTS MI 48125 3/26/2012 74.20$              $                 15.76 89.96$              
0002047577-2012-2012-0000-00 22705105 2/1/2015 REI 416358 WEST PACIFIC LAND CO LLC 24436 VAN BORN DEARBORN HEIGHTS MI 48125 4/8/2013 64.92$              $                 10.43 75.35$              
0002047577-2013-2013-0000-00 22705105 2/1/2015 REI 417138 WEST PACIFIC LAND CO LLC 24436 VAN BORN DEARBORN HEIGHTS MI 48125 1/7/2014 69.85$              $                    8.60 78.45$              
0002050507-2011-2011-0000-00 22723402 11/1/2014 REI 496734 WHATLEY, AANA LISA C 733 PLANTATION ESTATES DR UNIT B411 MATTHEWS NC 28105-5871 1/6/2012 0.91$                 $                    0.20 1.11$                
0002050507-2012-2012-0000-00 22723402 11/1/2014 REI 497229 WHATLEY, AANA LISA C 733 PLANTATION ESTATES DR UNIT B411 MATTHEWS NC 28105-5871 1/8/2013 0.91$                 $                    0.16 1.07$                
0002050507-2013-2013-0000-00 22723402 11/1/2014 REI 497617 WHATLEY, AANA LISA C 733 PLANTATION ESTATES DR UNIT B411 MATTHEWS NC 28105-5871 1/7/2014 0.96$                 $                    0.12 1.08$                
0002002635-2012-2012-0000-00 21513192 11/1/2014 REI 515884 WHITE, ROBERT MARTIN 14105 MILL HOUSE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 31.76$              $                    5.49 37.25$              
0002002635-2013-2013-0000-00 21513192 11/1/2014 REI 306246 WHITE, ROBERT MARTIN 14105 MILL HOUSE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 30.79$              $                    3.79 34.58$              
0002002635-2014-2014-0000-00 21513192 11/1/2014 REI 306912 WHITE, ROBERT MARTIN 14105 MILL HOUSE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 30.79$              $                    2.26 33.05$              
0002055176-2014-2014-0000-00 22752129 11/1/2014 REI 503665 WHITE, SHAUN 5022 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 33.33$              $                    2.44 35.77$              
0002050158-2011-2011-0000-00 22722212 12/1/2014 REI 515442 WHITEHEAD, PATRICIA; SINAY, KATHLEEN; THOMAS, MARY; INN    220 CHAUCER LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 3.03$                 $                    0.68 3.71$                
0002051839-2011-2011-0000-00 22730122 2/1/2015 REI 415694 WHITEHURST, ROBERT D 29 TIMBER MOSS DR WOODFIN NC 28804 1/6/2012 43.56$              $                    9.73 53.29$              
0002051839-2012-2012-0000-00 22730122 2/1/2015 REI 416467 WHITEHURST, ROBERT D 29 TIMBER MOSS DR WOODFIN NC 28804 1/8/2013 38.42$              $                    6.65 45.07$              
0002051839-2013-2013-0000-00 22730122 2/1/2015 REI 417244 WHITEHURST, ROBERT D 29 TIMBER MOSS DR WOODFIN NC 28804 1/7/2014 40.32$              $                    4.97 45.29$              
0001937644-2011-2011-0000-00 19345131 11/1/2014 REI 515335 WHITLEY, JOHN & WHITLEY, MARK 11106 MUSES CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.21$                 $                    0.27 1.48$                
0002053721-2011-2011-0000-00 22740263 10/1/2014 REI 474156 WIELAND, KENNETH R 2803 BELLASERA WY MATTHEWS NC 28105-8854 1/6/2012 38.12$              $                    8.52 46.64$              
0002053721-2012-2012-0000-00 22740263 10/1/2014 REI 474856 WIELAND, KENNETH R 2803 BELLASERA WY MATTHEWS NC 28105-8854 1/8/2013 38.89$              $                    6.73 45.62$              
0001934566-2012-2012-0000-00 19333486 9/1/2014 REI 441313 WILLIAM J COPPINS & KIMBERLY W COPPINS 1343 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 145.51$            $                 25.18 170.69$           
0002046956-2012-2012-0000-00 22702764 2/1/2015 REI 416617 WILLIAMS, BARBARA FAULKNER 616 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 299.17$            $                 51.76 350.93$           
0002046956-2013-2013-0000-00 22702764 2/1/2015 REI 417050 WILLIAMS, BARBARA FAULKNER 616 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 314.00$            $                 38.67 352.67$           
0002046956-2014-2014-0000-00 22702764 2/1/2015 REI 417747 WILLIAMS, BARBARA FAULKNER 616 BUBBLING WELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 314.00$            $                 23.01 337.01$           
0002003014-2011-2011-0000-00 21516230 11/1/2014 REI 484527 WILLIAMS, GLORIA S 3420 TRACELAKE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 54.15$              $                 12.10 66.25$              
0002003014-2012-2012-0000-00 21516230 11/1/2014 REI 515888 WILLIAMS, GLORIA S 3420 TRACELAKE DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 50.52$              $                    8.74 59.26$              
0001934639-2011-2011-0000-00 19333621 11/1/2014 REI 515319 WILLIAMS, JOANNE R & WILLIAMS, CARL R & WILLIAMS, BRETON 1402 HOLGATE DR GREENSBORO NC 27410 1/6/2012 13.91$              $                    3.11 17.02$              
0001934639-2012-2012-0000-00 19333621 11/1/2014 REI 515848 WILLIAMS, JOANNE R & WILLIAMS, CARL R & WILLIAMS, BRETON 1402 HOLGATE DR GREENSBORO NC 27410 1/8/2013 13.61$              $                    2.35 15.96$              
0001934639-2013-2013-0000-00 19333621 11/1/2014 REI 516254 WILLIAMS, JOANNE R & WILLIAMS, CARL R & WILLIAMS, BRETON 1402 HOLGATE DR GREENSBORO NC 27410 1/7/2014 14.28$              $                    1.76 16.04$              
0001934663-2011-2011-0000-00 19333638 11/1/2014 REI 515320 WILLIAMS, ROBERT E JR 6650 LANCER DR CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2012 6.96$                 $                    1.56 8.52$                
0001934663-2012-2012-0000-00 19333638 11/1/2014 REI 515849 WILLIAMS, ROBERT E JR 6650 LANCER DR CHARLOTTE NC 28266 1/8/2013 6.35$                 $                    1.10 7.45$                
0002053081-2011-2011-0000-00 22736319 11/1/2014 REI 515449 WILLIAMS, STARR B 625 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 51.13$              $                 11.42 62.55$              
0002053081-2012-2012-0000-00 22736319 11/1/2014 REI 515920 WILLIAMS, STARR B 625 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 50.22$              $                    8.69 58.91$              
0002053081-2013-2013-0000-00 22736319 11/1/2014 REI 516307 WILLIAMS, STARR B 625 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 54.61$              $                    6.73 61.34$              
0002053081-2014-2014-0000-00 22736319 11/1/2014 REI 516623 WILLIAMS, STARR B 625 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6552 1/6/2015 54.61$              $                    4.00 58.61$              
0001934322-2011-2011-0000-00 19333348 9/1/2014 REI 452201 WILSON, JERRY B 1420 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 13.62$              $                    3.04 16.66$              
0001934322-2012-2012-0000-01 19333348 9/1/2014 REI 452385 WILSON, JERRY B 1420 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 13.62$              $                    2.36 15.98$              
0001934322-2013-2013-0000-00 19333348 9/1/2014 REI 452472 WILSON, JERRY B 1420 COCHRANE WOODS LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 14.29$              $                    1.76 16.05$              
0002003071-2012-2012-0000-00 21516412 11/1/2014 REI 497190 WINDROW ESTATES HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC 13600 ANDULUSIAN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 34.79$              $                    6.02 40.81$              
0002003071-2014-2014-0000-00 21516412 11/1/2014 REI 324531 WINDROW ESTATES HOME OWNERS, ASSOCIATION INC 13600 ANDULUSIAN DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 36.51$              $                    2.68 39.19$              
0002002739-2012-2012-0000-00 21513307 11/1/2014 REI 515886 WINDT, THOMAS J 7005 YUKON CT INDIAN NC 29707 1/8/2013 54.15$              $                    9.37 63.52$              
0002051774-2011-2011-0000-00 22729233 11/1/2014 REI 515446 WINTERS, STEPHEN M 10211 WHITETHORN DR CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 6.36$                 $                    1.42 7.78$                
0002053087-2012-2012-0000-00 22736324 11/1/2014 REI 499963 WIRTZ, JAMES F 1000 CHELSEA PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 60.20$              $                 10.42 70.62$              
0002053087-2013-2013-0000-00 22736324 11/1/2014 REI 309260 WIRTZ, JAMES F 1000 CHELSEA PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 63.18$              $                    7.78 70.96$              
0002053087-2014-2014-0000-00 22736324 11/1/2014 REI 310049 WIRTZ, JAMES F 1000 CHELSEA PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 63.18$              $                    4.63 67.81$              
0002047085-2013-2013-0000-00 22703241 2/1/2015 REI 489983 WISE, CANDACE CLINE 429 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/4/2014 45.02$              $                    5.37 50.39$              
0002047085-2014-2014-0000-00 22703241 2/1/2015 REI 516605 WISE, CANDACE CLINE 429 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 5/4/2015 46.00$              $                    2.63 48.63$              
0002055304-2011-2011-0000-00 22752236 11/1/2014 REI 515461 WITHROW, THOMAS W II PO BOX 65 LEWISBURG WV 24901 1/6/2012 27.83$              $                    6.22 34.05$              
0001933002-2011-2011-0000-00 19323121 1/1/2015 REI 515314 WJB REALTY LP 3000 REDBUD BV MCKINNEY TX 75069 1/6/2012 2.42$                 $                    0.54 2.96$                
0001937785-2014-2014-0000-00 19345236 11/1/2014 REI 507453 WOLFORD, BRYAN 6810 POPPY HILLS LN APT 922 CHARLOTTE NC 28226 1/6/2015 1.27$                 $                    0.09 1.36$                
0001934710-2011-2011-0000-00 19333734 11/1/2014 REI 515322 WOODWARD, MICHAEL JR 258 FINESTRA DR HENDERSON NV 89074 1/6/2012 6.65$                 $                    1.49 8.14$                
0001934710-2012-2012-0000-00 19333734 11/1/2014 REI 515851 WOODWARD, MICHAEL JR 258 FINESTRA DR HENDERSON NV 89074 1/8/2013 5.44$                 $                    0.94 6.38$                
0001934660-2013-2013-0000-00 19333635 11/1/2014 REI 512343 WOOTEN, TIMOTHY W 919 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 7.62$                 $                    0.94 8.56$                
0001934660-2014-2014-0000-00 19333635 11/1/2014 REI 306504 WOOTEN, TIMOTHY W 919 LIGHTWOOD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 7.62$                 $                    0.56 8.18$                
0001935078-2014-2014-0000-00 19334502 11/1/2014 REI 487015 WORKMAN HARRY R & WORKMAN, CARLA C 11114 BRANDONWOOD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 53.34$              $                    3.91 57.25$              
0002003289-2011-2011-0000-00 21518205 10/1/2014 REI 473937 WORLEY, ELEANOR D 1944 SPRING ROAD CARLISLE PA 17013 1/6/2012 6.96$                 $                    1.56 8.52$                
0002052581-2012-2012-0000-00 22734207 11/1/2014 REI 515919 WOZNIAK, SHARON DARLEEN 110 RIVER LN HEATH OH 43506 1/8/2013 15.73$              $                    2.72 18.45$              
0002052581-2013-2013-0000-00 22734207 11/1/2014 REI 516306 WOZNIAK, SHARON DARLEEN 110 RIVER LN HEATH OH 43056 1/7/2014 16.51$              $                    2.03 18.54$              
0002052581-2014-2014-0000-00 22734207 11/1/2014 REI 516622 WOZNIAK, SHARON DARLEEN 110 RIVER LANE HEATH OH 43056 1/6/2015 16.51$              $                    1.21 17.72$              
0001934204-2011-2011-0000-00 19333212 11/1/2014 REI 515318 WRANGHAM, TRAVIS 6321 GOLDEN EAGLE LN MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 16.94$              $                    3.78 20.72$              
0001934204-2012-2012-0000-00 19333212 11/1/2014 REI 515847 WRANGHAM, TRAVIS 6321 GOLDEN EAGLE LN MATTHEWS NC 28227 1/8/2013 15.73$              $                    2.72 18.45$              
0002047807-2011-2011-0000-00 22706264 3/1/2015 REI 506585 WRIGHT, BENJAMIN D 1741 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 187.25$            $                 41.84 229.09$           
0002047807-2013-2013-0000-00 22706264 3/1/2015 REI 482025 WRIGHT, BENJAMIN D 1741 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-7225 1/7/2014 362.59$            $                 44.65 407.24$           
0002047807-2014-2014-0000-00 22706264 3/1/2015 REI 433608 WRIGHT, BENJAMIN D 1741 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/11/2015 372.56$            $                 25.47 398.03$           
0001934822-2014-2014-0000-00 19333904 11/1/2014 REI 487014 WRIGHT, CORY 523 FENCE POST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 8.26$                 $                    0.61 8.87$                
0002001631-2011-2011-0000-00 21504134 2/1/2015 REI 504591 WRIGHT, TANDRALA M PO BOX 284 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2012 59.29$              $                 13.25 72.54$              
0002001631-2012-2012-0000-00 21504134 2/1/2015 REI 472005 WRIGHT, TANDRALA M PO BOX 1581 MATTHEWS NC 28106-1581 1/8/2013 59.29$              $                 10.26 69.55$              
0002001631-2013-2013-0000-00 21504134 2/1/2015 REI 416845 WRIGHT, TANDRALA M PO BOX 284 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/7/2014 62.23$              $                    7.66 69.89$              
0002001631-2014-2014-0000-00 21504134 2/1/2015 REI 417551 WRIGHT, TANDRALA M PO BOX 284 MATTHEWS NC 28106 1/6/2015 62.23$              $                    4.56 66.79$              
0002047082-2011-2011-0000-00 22703239 2/1/2015 REI 415532 YANDLE, EARL M 701 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2535 1/6/2012 42.35$              $                    9.46 51.81$              
0002047082-2012-2012-0000-00 22703239 2/1/2015 REI 416309 YANDLE, EARL M 701 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2535 1/8/2013 41.45$              $                    7.17 48.62$              
0002047082-2013-2013-0000-00 22703239 2/1/2015 REI 417091 YANDLE, EARL M 701 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105-2535 1/7/2014 43.50$              $                    5.36 48.86$              
0001934673-2013-2013-0000-00 19333707 11/1/2014 REI 317492 YANDLE, JAMES DOWD JR 401 MEDEARIS DR CHARLOTTE NC 28211-6068 1/7/2014 0.63$                 $                    0.08 0.71$                
0001934673-2014-2014-0000-00 19333707 11/1/2014 REI 317965 YANDLE, JAMES DOWD JR 401 MEDEARIS DR CHARLOTTE NC 28211-6068 1/6/2015 0.63$                 $                    0.05 0.68$                
0002047082-2014-2014-0000-00 22703239 2/1/2015 REI 516604 YANDLE, MARY ANN 701 COURTNEY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 43.50$              $                    3.19 46.69$              
0002004206-2011-2011-0000-00 21526178 11/1/2014 REI 515399 YOUNG, GREG D 257 STEEPLECHASE CR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 54.45$              $                 12.17 66.62$              
0002055203-2014-2014-0000-00 22752148 11/1/2014 REI 493080 YOUNTZ, CHRISTOPHER A & YOUNTZ, MIRANDA P 4816 HICKORY LAKE LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 35.56$              $                    2.61 38.17$              
0002047532-2013-2013-0000-00 22704211 2/1/2015 REI 516291 YU, DAVID M 1316 NORTHFIELD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 26.67$              $                    3.28 29.95$              
0002047532-2014-2014-0000-00 22704211 2/1/2015 REI 516606 YU, DAVID M 1316 NORTHFIELD CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 26.67$              $                    1.95 28.62$              
0002052332-2011-2011-0000-00 22731501 11/1/2014 REI 465704 YUE, SINGBAI 1605 JEFFERS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 16.04$              $                    3.58 19.62$              
0002052332-2012-2012-0000-00 22731501 11/1/2014 REI 465705 YUE, SINGBAI 1605 JEFFERS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/25/2013 16.61$              $                    2.70 19.31$              
0002052332-2013-2013-0000-00 22731501 11/1/2014 REI 309192 YUE, SINGBAI 1605 JEFFERS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/4/2014 17.42$              $                    2.01 19.43$              
0001934242-2012-2012-0000-00 19333316 11/1/2014 REI 509160 ZACCARO, DONALD 1513 REID HARKEY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 11.50$              $                    1.99 13.49$              
0001934242-2013-2013-0000-00 19333316 11/1/2014 REI 297448 ZACCARO, DONALD 1513 REID HARKEY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 10.16$              $                    1.25 11.41$              
0001934242-2014-2014-0000-00 19333316 11/1/2014 REI 298126 ZACCARO, DONALD 1513 REID HARKEY RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 10.16$              $                    0.74 10.90$              
0002055274-2013-2013-0000-00 22752217 11/1/2014 REI 492734 ZAWATSKY, TIMOTHY A 1207 GIFFORD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 36.51$              $                    4.50 41.01$              
0002055274-2014-2014-0000-00 22752217 11/1/2014 REI 312574 ZAWATSKY, TIMOTHY A 1207 GIFFORD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 37.14$              $                    2.72 39.86$              
0002053099-2011-2011-0000-00 22737101 11/1/2014 REI 515450 ZAYATZ, VERONICA A R/T 6741 CISCAYNE PL CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2012 8.17$                 $                    1.83 10.00$              
0002049916-2011-2011-0000-00 22721589 11/1/2014 REI 515441 ZBOCH, TRVIS E 7638 CARRINGTON FOREST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 4.24$                 $                    0.95 5.19$                
0002049916-2012-2012-0000-00 22721589 11/1/2014 REI 515913 ZBOCH, TRVIS E 7638 CARRINGTON FOREST LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 4.24$                 $                    0.73 4.97$                
0008068966-2014-2014-0000-00 21301258 1/1/2015 REI 500668 ZEIGLER KATHRYN KING 637 PLEASANT PINE CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 103.51$            $                    7.59 111.10$           
0001932602-2011-2011-0000-00 19315119 9/1/2014 REI 455233 ZINN, AARON DANEIL 1508 KEE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28203-4480 1/6/2012 32.37$              $                    7.23 39.60$              
0001932602-2012-2012-0000-00 19315119 9/1/2014 REI 455234 ZINN, AARON DANEIL 1508 KEE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28203-4480 1/8/2013 31.76$              $                    5.49 37.25$              
0001932602-2013-2013-0000-00 19315119 9/1/2014 REI 455235 ZINN, AARON DANEIL 1508 KEE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28203-4480 1/7/2014 33.34$              $                    4.11 37.45$              
0002002635-2011-2011-0000-00 21513192 11/1/2014 REI 515395 ZINN, ELIZABETH D 1515 KARI ANN DRIVE CEDAR HILL TX 75104 1/6/2012 31.76$              $                    7.10 38.86$              
0002002874-2013-2013-0000-00 21515160 11/1/2014 REI 500320 ZMYSLOWSKA, SARAH ANN 2012 SERENITY PL STALLINGS NC 28104 1/7/2014 48.89$              $                    6.02 54.91$              
0002002874-2014-2014-0000-00 21515160 11/1/2014 REI 307019 ZMYSLOWSKA, SARAH ANN 2012 SERENITY PL STALLINGS NC 28104 1/6/2015 48.89$              $                    3.58 52.47$              

93,064.36$     13,581.20$         106,645.56$   



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10434400-4916 Operations & Safety Grant  $21,600.00 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10434400-5809 Equipment    $21,600.00 
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Assistance to 
Firefighters grant from FEMA to purchase 20 tablets to be used on scene. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 13th day of June 2016.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-4419 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TAX $5,447.50 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5270 CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TAX $5,447.50 
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Controlled 
Substance Tax Assessment revenues received in excess of budgeted amount. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 13th day of June 2016.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-4420  DARE PROGRAM  $560.00 
  
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431400-5231  DARE PROGRAM  $560.00 
  

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize donations received 
in excess of budgeted revenues used for DARE program. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 13th day of June 2016.  
    
 
            
     ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-4417 Clerk of Court Fees   $ 38.00 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10438000-5300 Professional Services   $38.00    
    
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize court ordered 
restitution payments. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 13th day of June 2016.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-4417 Clerk of Court Fees   $256.50 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431100-5252 Auto Parts    $256.50   
     
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize court ordered 
restitution payments. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 13th day of June 2016.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To establish a Special Revenue fund for a SAFER Incentives Grant 
received from FEMA. The Revenues are to be established as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
20434300-4924 SAFER Incentives Grant  $91,990.00 
 
 SECTION 2:  To establish a Special Revenue fund for a SAFER Incentives Grant 
received from FEMA. The Expenditures are to be established as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
20434300-547010  Childcare   $51,840.00 
20434300-547020  Training Hours per Qtr. $  2,400.00 
20434300-547030  Shift Hours per Qtr.  $  4,000.00 
20434300-547040  Hours Run per Yr.-Fire $10,000.00 
20434300-547050  Hours Run per Yr.-EMS $10,000.00 
20434300-547060  R & R Award   $13,750.00 
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Safer Incentives 
Grant from FEMA for Fire/EMS. (EMW-2014-FF-00478) 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 13th day of June 2016.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 



 

           PROCLAMATION 
 

IN RECOGNITION OF BEE CITY USA NATIONAL POLLINATOR WEEK 
 

 WHEREAS, pollinator species such as thousands of species of bees are essential partners in 
producing much of our food supply; and  

 WHEREAS, pollinator species provide significant environmental benefits that are necessary for 

maintaining healthy, diverse urban and suburban ecosystems; and  

 WHEREAS, pollination plays a vital role for the trees and plants of our community, enhancing our 

quality of life, and creating recreational and economic development opportunities; and 

 WHEREAS, for decades the Town of Matthews has managed urban landscapes and public lands that 

include many municipal parks and greenways, as well as wildlife habitats; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Matthews provides recommendations to developers and residents regarding 

landscaping to promote wise conservation stewardship, including the protection of pollinators and maintenance 

of their habitats in urban and suburban environments. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, James P. Taylor, Mayor of the Town of Matthews do hereby proclaim the week 

of June 20 – 25, 2016 as 

National Pollinator Week 
in the Town of Matthews and urge all citizens to recognize this observance. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the Town of Matthews to be 

affixed this 13th day of June, 2016.  
     

                

                Mayor James P. Taylor 



 

 

  
Agenda Item:   Consider Revisions to Fee Schedule for Administrative  
   Amendments 
 
DATE: June 8, 2016 
FROM: Kathi Ingrish 
 
Background/Issue: 

 Town Board approved a comprehensive update to Planning-related fees in June 2015. 
 Prior to then most of our department’s fees were unchanged since 2002, with a few revisions in 2009. 
 In presenting our suggested updates during last year’s budget review session, we showed comparison of similar 

fees to a number of nearby communities, and stated our intent was neither to cover full Town costs nor to be a 
significant revenue source.  (Two tables of comparison 2015 fee schedules are attached here.) 

 Many of the fees were reorganized last year to match the procedures now allowed/required by the UDO, 
including Administrative Amendments. 

 Prior to the UDO, they were only handled by the Planning Board or went through a full new rezoning action, 
while under the UDO they can be handled by Planning staff, Planning Board, or Town Board. 

 Administrative Amendments are “minor changes in the detail of the approved plan which will not alter the basic 
relationship of the proposed development to adjacent property, will not alter the uses permitted or increase the 
density or intensity of development, or will not decrease the off-street parking ratio or reduce the yards provided 
at the boundary of the site”. 

 The current fee schedule calls for $50 for staff approval of an Administrative Amendment (no more than 2 note or 
drawing changes). 

 The current fee schedule calls for $100 for Planning Board or Town Board action on an Administrative 
Amendment. 

 During the 6-6-16 budget work session, there was a request to consider increasing the fees for Administrative 
Amendment requests  that require significantly more staff time to prepare than typical. 

 The suggestion to add an hourly rate to the fee schedule is not possible due to statutory limitations – funds for 
Planning & Development department come from the general fund, not a self-funded Enterprise fund, and 
therefore staff time cannot be used as the basis for payment. 

 Many requests for Administrative Amendments are for relatively small revisions to plans that legitimately could 
not have been known or anticipated prior to zoning approval.  Examples are: location of unidentified underground 
utilities where a dumpster or new landscaping was expected to be placed; change in architect after zoning 
approval and resulting revisions to proposed building footprint; request to switch brick and stone on a portion of a 
building face; storm water detention refinements that will now require minor revisions in parking lot layout. (See 
list on next page of all Administrative Amendment requests from 2014 to present.) 

 There is a balancing act between the desire to increase fees for Administrative Amendment requests to limit the 
occasional intentional after-the-fact revision that should have been acknowledged and dealt with during the 
zoning approval process, and to keep a reasonable fee for the common “couldn’t have anticipated it earlier” 
events. 

 
Proposal/Solution: 
If the underlying intent is to discourage property owners and developers from applying for changes to their approved 
zoning conditions through the Administrative Amendment process that should be dealt with during the initial zoning 
action, here are some options: 

1. We can return to the previous process where if the Planning Board does not grant a request, then it must 
be applied for as a completely new rezoning case; 
2. We can increase the fee for Administrative Amendments heard by either Planning or Town Board; or 
3. We can substantially increase the fee for any Administrative Amendment that Planning Board refers to 

the Town Board.  



Financial Impact: 
Minimal – Planning-related fees are a relatively small percentage of all Town revenue. 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
1) Determine if Town Board wishes to continue hearing occasional Administrative Amendment requests referred to them 
by the Planning Board.  Eden Hall and Fullwood Station are two examples of this process. 
 
2) Determine what increase would be appropriate in fees charged for Administrative Amendments that may go before 
Planning Board only, or may be referred on to Town Board,  
  OR 
  Determine what increase would be appropriate in fees charged only for those Administrative Amendments that are 
referred up to Town Board. 
 
3) If additional options are offered during discussion, explore them and/or send them to staff for additional assessment.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Administrative Amendments from 2014 to present 
 
2-14 Erickson Living   Reduce Independent Living Units by 200 and misc note changes 
8-14 ACTS    Revise timing for Talbot Ct extension 
 The Fountains Apts  Misc note and drawing changes  
9-14 The Fountains Apts  Misc note and drawing changes 
 Erickson Living   Allow permanent marketing center 
1-15 Novant Hospital   Note and drawing changes for Women’s Center expansion 
3-15 Eden Hall   Revisions to Fullwood Ln frontage landscaping/sidewalk 
6-15 The Crossing Shopping Center Building elevation and note changes to accommodate new tenants 
7-15 Sycamore Commons  Change restriction to single tenant to any commercial tenant(s) on 1 pad 
1-16 Elevation Church  ** parking lot and building elevation changes 
2-16 Fullwood Station  Changes to S Trade frontage landscaping/berm and misc note revisions 
4-16 Windsor Square   Revisions to roundabout (denied by Planning Board) 
 Liberty Healthcare  McEwen-Moore Farmhouse timing for Certificate of Occupancy 
5-16 ACTS    ** Provisions for Hampton Green sign on Talbot Ct extension 
 
** staff approval 
 
 
 
Admin amend fees memo 6-8-16 

















 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________________________ 
 
 
 

FYE JUNE 30, 2017 
OPERATING BUDGET ORDINANCE 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, North 
Carolina, that the following anticipated fund revenues and departmental 
expenditures, Fee and Charge Schedule, Property Tax rate levy and certain 
authorizations and restrictions for the Town’s Budget Officer, are hereby 
appropriated and approved for the operation of the Town Government and its 
activities for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017. 
 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 

General Fund 20,676,749$                                                
Tourism Fund 1,395,000$                                                  

22,071,749$                                                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 1: BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GENERAL FUND

REVENUES

Ad Valorem Taxes
2016 Taxes 10,407,000$                      
Prior Years -$                                  
Tax Interest 30,000$                             
Tax Penalties 10,000$                             
Vehicle Taxes 850,000$                           
Auto Tag Fee 570,000$                           

11,867,000$                      

Local Option Sales Taxes
1% Sales Tax - Art. 39 1,463,840$                        
0.5% Sales Tax - Art. 40 461,595$                           
0.5% Sales Tax - Art. 42 731,920$                           
Hold Harmless Tax 279,590$                           

2,936,945$                        

Unrestricted Intergovernmental
Utility Sales Tax 1,357,700$                        
Telecommuncations Sales Tax 300,000$                           
Cable TV Franchise Tax 210,000$                           
Piped Natural Gas Excise Tax 40,000$                             
Beer and Wine Tax 140,000$                           
Solid Waste Disposal Tax 15,000$                             
Rental Vehicle Tax 35,000$                             
ABC Distributions 95,000$                             
State Mowing Contract 19,000$                             
Library Lease (CharMeck) 78,724$                             

2,290,424$                        

Restricted Intergovernmental
Powell Bill 772,000$                           
CMUD Bond Payments 408,238$                           
Local/County Grants

CATS Transit Grant 15,000$                             
State Appropriations / Grants -$                                  
Federal Appropriations/Grants -$                                  

1,195,238$                        

Restricted / Committed to Public Safety
HIDTA Program -$                                  
HIDTA OT Program 4,000$                               
TKTF OT Program -$                                  
Federal Taskforce Reimbursemets -$                                  
Controlled Substance Tax 5,000$                               
DARE Assistance 12,000$                             
Police Donations 1,500$                               
School Resouce Officer 137,000$                           
Misc. Police Grants -$                                  
Explorers Program 1,500$                               
Alarm Ordinance Fees 4,000$                               
Wrecker Service Fees 3,500$                               
Fire / EMS (Mecklenburg Co) 90,000$                             
SAFER Staff Grant -$                                  
SAFER Volunteer Grant 217,000$                           
Fireman's Relief Fund 30,000$                             
Fire/EMS Donations -$                                  

505,500$                           



Permits and Fees
Animal Tags / Fees / Fines 25,000$                             
Zoning Development Fees 20,000$                             
Permit Parking Fees 2,000$                               

47,000$                             

Stormwater Fees
Stormwater Fees 733,333$                           

Sales and Services
Recreation Program Fees

Community Center Programs 225,000$                           
Crews Center Programs 85,000$                             
Special Events 30,000$                             
Recreation Program Fees 15,000$                             

Facility Rentals 25,000$                             
Depot Lease (Chamber) 9,000$                               
CATS Bus Passes 1,500$                               

390,500$                           

Investment Earnings
Investment Earnings 5,000$                               

Miscellaneous Revenues
Miscellaneous Revenues 30,000$                             
Sale of Fixed Assets 10,000$                             
Celebration Trees 1,000$                               
Matthews Alive 23,430$                             

64,430$                             

Other Financing Sources
Transfer from Tourism Fund 641,379$                           
Transfer from CIP Fund -$                                  
Loan Proceeds -$                                  
Insurance Proceeds -$                                  
Assigned SW Fund Balance Appropriated -$                                  
GF Fund Balance Appropriated -$                                  

641,379$                           

TOTAL REVENUES 20,676,749$                     

EXPENDITURES

Governing Body 233,278$                           
Administration 457,402$                           
Human Resources 1,333,435$                        
Finance 427,561$                           
Information Systems 351,428$                           
Safety & Risk Management 447,854$                           
Police - Adminstration 488,073$                           
Police - Patrol 2,821,635$                        
Police - Criminal Investigations 903,020$                           
Police - Telecommunications 519,813$                           
Police - Support Services 965,762$                           
Police - Animal Control 78,866$                             
Fire / EMS 1,726,615$                        
Fire - Staffing Grant -$                                  
Fire - Volunteer grant 217,380$                           
Public Works - Adminstration 562,886$                           
Public Works - Streets & Sidewalks 1,456,000$                        
Public Works - Fleet Maintenance 283,338$                           
Public Works - Landscaping 500,850$                           
Public Works - Facilities Maintenance 281,233$                           
Stormwater 733,333$                           
Sanitation 1,615,344$                        
Planning Development 466,807$                           
Economic Development 40,000$                             



Parks & Recreation - Adminstration 158,867$                           
Parks & Recreation - Recreation Centers 221,874$                           
Parks & Recreation - Cultural Arts 565,756$                           
Parks & Recreation - Special Events 330,623$                           
Depot / Miscellaneous 9,000$                               
Debt Service 1,973,436$                        
Contingency 25,000$                             
Transfer to Capital Facility Plan 28,030$                             
Transfer to Capital Improvements Plan 452,250$                           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,676,749$                     

TOURISM FUND

REVENUES

Occupancy Tax 500,000$                           
Prepared Food & Beverage Tax 800,000$                           
Rental Car Tax 95,000$                             
Tourism Merchandise -$                                  
Miscellaneous Revenues -$                                  
Transfer From General Fund -$                                  
Transfer From CIP -$                                  
Fund Balance Appropriated -$                                  

TOTAL REVENUES 1,395,000$                        

EXPENDITURES

Marketing 6,500$                               
Merchandise 1,000$                               
Landscaping 6,000$                               
Tourism Projects -$                                  
Sportsplex 249,200$                           
Fullwood Theatre 10,000$                             
Outen Pottery 55,000$                             
Matthews Alive 60,000$                             
Historical Foundation 40,000$                             
Tourism Grants 63,000$                             
Arts and Science Council 25,000$                             
Decorations Banners & Flags 5,000$                               
Transfer to General Fund 641,379$                           
Transfer to CIP Fund 10,000$                             
Debt Service 129,897$                           
Contingency 93,024$                             

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,395,000$                        



 

 

SECTION 2: FEE SCHEDULE 
 
There is hereby established, for the fiscal year 2016-2017, various fees and 
charges as scheduled are contained in Attachment A. 
 

 
 

SECTION 3: LEVY OF TAXES 
 
There is hereby levied, for the fiscal year 2016-2017, an ad valorem tax rate of 
$0.3400 per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation of taxable property as listed for 
taxation as of January 1, 2016. 

 
 

SECTION 4: LEVY OF VEHICLE TAG FEE 
 
There is hereby levied, for the fiscal year 2016-2017, a fee of $25.00 for 
automobiles and trucks registered in Matthews. 

 
 

SECTION 5: SPECIAL AUTHORIZATIONS – BUDGET OFFICER 
 
A. The Budget Officer shall be authorized to reallocate appropriations within 

departments, and among the various line accounts not organized by 
departments, as he deems necessary. 

 
B. The Budget Officer shall be authorized to execute interdepartmental 

transfers, within the same fund, not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the 
appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is reduced. 
Notification of all such transfers shall be made to the Town Board at its 
next meeting following the date of the transfer. 

 
C. Interfund transfers as established in the Budget Ordinance, may be 

accomplished without additional approval from the Town Board. 
 

 
SECTION 6: RESTRICTIONS – BUDGET OFFICER 

 
A. Interfund and interdepartmental transfer of monies, except as noted in 

Section 5, shall be accomplished by Town Board authorizations only. 
 
B. Utilization of appropriations contained in contingencies may be 

accomplished only with specific approval of the Town Board. 
 
 

SECTION 7: UTILIZATION OF BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 
This ordinance shall be the basis of the financial plan for the Town of Matthews 
municipal government during the 2016-2017 fiscal year. The budget officer shall 
administer the budget and he shall ensure that operating officials are provided 



 

 

guidance and sufficient details to implement their appropriate portion of the 
budget. 
 
The finance department shall establish and maintain all records, which are in 
accordance with this Budget Ordinance, and the appropriate statutes of the 
State of North Carolina. 

 
 

 
Adopted this 13th day of June 2016. 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
           James P Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
         Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 



SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FY 2016 – 2017 
 
 
COPIES: 

Per page .10 
Oversized copies (greater than 11 x 17) $10.00 
Audio cassette 2.50 
CD 2.00 
DVD 3.00 
Maps (from Planning Department) 10.00 

 
 

APPLICATIONS: 
Zoning - Residential 

Traditional District (no CD) 400.00 
Parallel Traditional District 600.00 
Conditional-only District (CrC, R-VS, SRN, C-MF) 800.00 

 
Zoning - Non-residential 

Traditional (No CD) 600.00 
Parallel Traditional 800.00 
Conditional Only, Mixed Use and Nonresidential Districts 1,000.00 

 

Change of Text 
Add any permitted use 100.00 
Any other reason, few than three paragraphs affected 250.00 
Any other reason, three or more paragraphs affected 400.00 

 
Zoning Variance 

Residential 150.00 
Nonresidential or mixed use 350.00 

 
Zoning Appeal 

Residential 150.00 
Nonresidential or mixed use 350.00 

 
Zoning Interpretation 

Residential 150.00 
Nonresidential or mixed use 350.00 

 
Site Plan Approval (required by zoning conditions) 200.00 

SP approval through EPM (not Preliminary Plat) 400.00 
 
Master Sign Plan  

Initial Submission 150.00 
Revision   75.00 

 
Other Site Plan Review (i.e. change of use or occupancy, parking 

sufficiency, etc.) 100.00 
 

Subdivision 
Sketch Plan 100.00 



 

Preliminary 
 

400.00 
 

Final - Minor 
 

50.00 
Final - Major 100.00 

 

Public Improvement Variance 350.00 
 

Downtown Overlay Compliance Review 
When separate from other EPM site plan reviews 

 
 

250.00 
Abbreviated or minor revision separate from other 

EPM site review 
 

75.00 
 

Highway Overlay Compliance Review 
Abbreviated or minor revision separate from other 

EPM site plan review 250.00 
 

Highway Overlay Abbreviated 
Abbreviated or minor revision separate from other 

EPM site plan review 75.00 
 

Landscape/Lighting combined plan review separate from 
other EPM reviews 250.00 

Landscape Only, separate from other EPM reviews 200.00 
Lighting Only, separate from other EPM reviews 200.00 

 

Abbreviated or minor revision separate from 
other EPM site plan review 75.00 

 
Third or later submittal of any above action 150.00 

 
Administrative Amendment – staff review level 50.00 
Administrative Amendment – PB or TB review level 100.00 

 
Sign Permit Review Prior to Permit Issuance 25.00 

 
Zoning Verification Letter 20.00 

 
Driveway Permit Review – single site 25.00 
Driveway Permit Review – blanket 50.00 

 
 
FEES: 

 
 
Return check fee 30.00 
Peddlers, Solicitors - Admin fee 10.00 
Itinerant Merchants 100.00 
Admin fee for repairs, damaged by citizens, for signs, sidewalks, 

driveway pipe, etc. Actual cost plus 10% or $10, whichever is greater  
Sanitation – Additional Recycling Cart 40.00 
Parade Permit  100.00 
Pavement Degradation Fees                     Calculated by PW policy – see attached 



 
 
TOURISM MERCHANDISE: (prices subject to change upon vendor availability) 

Trivet 10.00 
Beverage glass - individual 5.00 

Boxed set of 4 20.00 
“Discover Matthews” book 15.00 

 

Train Engineer’s Cap (child or adult) 6.00 
Train Whistle 4.00 
Souvenir Bears 6.00 
Tee-Shirts 16.00 
Caps 10.00 
Sweatshirts 23.00 
Fleece Jackets 25.00 
V-Neck Shirts 14.00 
Vehicle Car Tags 10.00 
Magnets 1.00 

 
 

Town of Matthews Personalized License Plate $30.00 or $60.00 
 
 
 
 
MATTHEWS COMMUNITY CENTER RENTAL FEES: 

 

 
 
Resident Non-Profit 

Small Studio 15.00 per hour 
Large Studio/Classroom 20.00 per hour 
Conference Room 25.00 per hour 
Community Room 50.00 per hour 
Kitchen 25.00 flat fee 
Theater Rehearsal 60.00 per hour 
Fullwood Theater 400.00 flat fee 

 
Non-Resident Non-Profit 

Small Studio 25.00 per hour 
Large Studio/Classroom 30.00 per hour 
Conference Room 35.00 per hour 
Community Room 60.00 per hour 
Kitchen 35.00 flat fee 
Theater Rehearsal 70.00 per hour 
Fullwood Theater 450.00 flat fee 

 
Resident Profit 

Small Studio 45.00 per hour 
Large Studio/Classroom 60.00 per hour 
Conference Room 65.00 per hour 
Community Room 85.00 per hour 
Kitchen 60.00 flat fee 
Theater Rehearsal 85.00 per hour 
Fullwood Theater 750.00 flat fee 



 
Non-Resident Profit 

Small Studio 50.00 per hour 
Large Studio/Classroom 75.00 per hour 
Conference Room 80.00 per hour 
Community Room 100.00 per hour 
Kitchen 75.00 flat fee 
Theater Rehearsal 110.00 per 
hourFullwood Theater 800.00 flat fee 

 
Other Fees 

Sound System 20.00 flat fee 
TV/DVD/Projector 20.00 flat fee 
Overtime/Staff Time 30.00 per hour 
Technician Fee 25.00 per hour 

 
Refundable Security Deposits 

Rental- No Food or Drinks 100.00 
Rental- Food and Drinks 200.00 
Rental- With Alcohol 100.00 *Additional 
Rental- With Ticket Sales (Approval Needed) 100.00 
*Additional Theater Rental 
 200.00 

 
 
 
CREWS RECREATION CENTER RENTAL FEES: 

 

Resident Non-Profit (Costs per hour) 
1 Multi-Purpose Room $20 
2 Multi-Purpose Rooms $30 
3 Multi-Purpose Rooms $40 
Half-Court Gym $15 
Full-Court Gym $40 

 

Non-Resident Non-Profit (Cost per hour)  

1 Multi-Purpose Room  $30 
2 Multi-Purpose Rooms  $40 
3 Multi-Purpose Rooms  $50 
Half-Court Gym  $25 
Full-Court Gym  $50 

 

Resident Profit (Cost per hour) 
1 Multi-Purpose Room $30 
2 Multi-Purpose Rooms $40 
3 Multi-Purpose Rooms $50 
Half-Court Gym $25 
Full-Court Gym $50 

 
 

Non-Resident Profit (Cost per hour) 
1 Multi-Purpose Room $40 
2 Multi-Purpose Rooms $50 
3 Multi-Purpose Rooms $60 



Half-Court Gym $30 
Full-Court Gym $60 

Other Fees 
Overtime/Staff Time 

 
 

$20/hour 

Refundable Security Deposits 
Rental – No Food or Drinks 

 
 

$100 
Rental – Food and Drinks $200 
  

PARK SHELTER RENTAL FEES: 
 

Resident 
Baucom Park $20 (per 4 hours) 
Sardis Park $20 (per 4 hours) 
Squirrel Lake Park Shelter A $40 (per 4 hours) 
Squirrel Lake Park Shelter B $50 (per 4 hours) 
Stumptown Park (picnic area only) $50 (per 4 hours) 
Stumptown Park (stage and green) $250 (per 4 hours) 
Town Green Gazebo $60 (per 4 hours) 
Windsor Park $40 (per 4 hours) 

 
 
 

Non-Resident 
Baucom Park $30 (per 4 hours) 
Sardis Park $30 (per 4 hours) 
Squirrel Lake Park Shelter A $60 (per 4 hours) 
Squirrel Lake Park Shelter B $70 (per 4 hours) 
Stumptown Park (picnic area only) $70 (per 4 hours) 
Stumptown Park (stage and green) $300 (per 4 hours) 
Town Green Gazebo $90 (per 4 hours) 
Windsor Park $60 (per 4 hours) 

 
 
 



 
Town of Matthews Public Works 

Policy: Utility Cut Pavement Degradation Fee 

Date: 06/08/2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 
A utility cut pavement degradation fee is a fee charged to all utility companies / developers / 
contractors who open-cut Town streets for utility installation and repair. The fee will recover 
costs for damaged pavement repair and loss of pavement useful life expectancy by the Town. The 
fee will be imposed and collected by the Public Works Department through the Utility Cut Permit 
Program. Money collected from the fee will be used to supplement the Town’s street maintenance 
and resurfacing programs. 
 
Policy Information 
 
The fee applies when an open cut excavation is performed in Town street pavements. The fee will 
not apply for excavations on state or private streets. Also, the fee will not apply to excavations 
outside the pavement area, e.g., curb, sidewalk, shoulder or borings. The owner of the utility for 
which the excavation is made will be the party responsible for payment of the fee. In the case of a 
new development, holds may be placed on final Certificates of Occupancy if fees are still outstanding. 
 
Fee administration will be the responsibility of the Public Works Department.  Collections and 
accounting will be the responsibility of the Finance Department.  
 
For the Town to monitor all utility rights-of-way excavations, utility companies / agencies or their 
contractors must obtain a Street Cut Permit from the Public Works Department by calling 704-
708-1240. Applications will also be available on our website. To receive a permit, the applicant must 
also have a Charlotte Department of Transportation (CDOT) Utility Cut Certification, which can be 
obtained by passing a CDOT class.  Details on the class may be found by calling 704-336-3200. 
 
The contractor is responsible for payment of the fee once the cut has been made, measured, and 
accepted by the Town.  Utilities will not be granted additional permits unless the utility does not 
have any outstanding fees over 90 days.   
 
All degradation fee funds will be deposited into a Town account and used to supplement the cost of 
Town Street Maintenance and Resurfacing Programs. The Town has the authority to collect this fee 
per N.C.G.S. 160A-296(a)(6). 
 
Degradation fees will be determined based on the assigned cut type and size. The degradation fee is 
based on the area of the cut plus the 5-foot zone of influence, multiplied by the cost to mill and 
resurface the area to a depth of 1.66 inches.  The zone of influence and depth of repair used for the 
fee are based off of a study done on utility cuts in the area by UNC Charlotte. 
 
Note that irregular patches will be approximated by a rectangular patch of similar outside 
dimensions. The following are examples and formulas of the three different utility cut types and fee 
calculations: 
  



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Fee calculation for Type 3 cut: 
=MRC[(B+(2xZ))xH]T 
=0.95[(8+(2x5))x24]1.66 
=$681.26 

Fee calculation for Type 1 cut: 
=MRC[(B+(2xZ))x(H+(2xZ))]T 
=0.95[(8+(2x5))x(6+(2x5))]1.66 
=$454.18 

Fee calculation for Type 2 cut: 
=MRC[(B+(2xZ))x(H+Z)]T 
=0.95[(8+(2x5))x(6+5)]1.66 
=$312.25 

MRC= Milling and Resurfacing Cost, 
            Currently = $0.95/SF 
B= Base of Cut 
H= Height of Cut 
Z= Zone of Influence = 5’ 
T= Restoration Thickness = 1.66” 

Note: If cut plus zone of influence is greater than 75% of the road’s width, use Type 3 cut 

Note: If cut plus zone of influence is greater than 75% of the road’s width, use Type 3 cut 

-Pavement Cut at Edge of Road 

-Pavement Cut across Road 

-Pavement Cut in Middle of Road 


	5A-budget_presentation.pdf
	Matthews FY 2016-17 Budget
	Strategic Framework & Budget
	Strategic Framework & Budget
	Strategic Framework & Budget
	Strategic Framework & Budget
	Strategic Framework & Budget
	Strategic Framework & Budget
	Strategic Framework & Budget
	FY 15-16 Budget Recap
	FY 16-17 Budget Overview
	FY 16-17 Budget Overview
	Tax Rate History
	Town’s FY 16-17� Revenue Sources
	FY 16-17 Budget Pressures
	FY 16-17 Budget Pressures
	Investment in People/Resources���
	Governing Body
	Manager
	Human Resources
	Finance
	Fire & EMS
	Information Technology
	Safety & Risk Management
	Police
	Public Works
	Public Works - Stormwater
	Economic Development
	Planning & Development
	Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource
	Other 
	Additional Information
	Capital Improvement Plan
	Questions?

	MatthewsDowntownStreetscapeDRAFT41318110329060816AM.pdf
	Matthews Document Cover
	Matthews Downtown Streetscape Master DRAFT2_2016

	2 app.pdf
	2016-643 Primrose 4th Submittal 2016-6-6.pdf
	RZ-1


	4 sp2.pdf
	RZ-1
	RZ-2
	RZ-3

	5 sp3.pdf
	RZ-1

	648 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	01_2016.30_A1 - Floor Plans-RZ-1 - Existing Site Plan
	01_2016.30_A1 - Floor Plans-RZ-2 - Proposed Site Plan


	10F-tax_refunds.pdf
	Matthews SL362 MISC 19.pdf
	Matthews SL362 Misc 19


	10G1-budget_FEMA_21600.00.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Assistance to Firefighters grant from FEMA to purchase 20 tablets to be used on scene.

	10G2-budget_controlledsub_5447.50.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Controlled Substance Tax Assessment revenues received in excess of budgeted amount.

	10G3-budget_DARE_560.00.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize donations received in excess of budgeted revenues used for DARE program.

	10G4-budget_restitution_38.00.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize court ordered restitution payments.

	10G5-budget_restitution_256.50.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize court ordered restitution payments.

	10G6-budget_SAFER_91990.00.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize Safer Incentives Grant from FEMA for Fire/EMS. (EMW-2014-FF-00478)

	11B-budget_ord_fee_sched_FY16-17.pdf
	fye17 Budget Ordinance
	fye17 Budget Ordinance $
	fye17 Budget Ordinance
	fye17 Fee Schedule.pdf
	SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES FY 2016 – 2017
	FEES:
	MATTHEWS COMMUNITY CENTER RENTAL FEES:
	Non-Resident Non-Profit
	Resident Profit
	Non-Resident Profit
	Other Fees
	Refundable Security Deposits
	CREWS RECREATION CENTER RENTAL FEES:
	PARK SHELTER RENTAL FEES:
	Non-Resident

	Utility Cut Degradation Policy 6-8-16.pdf
	Purpose
	Policy Information





